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2014 Highlights

« In line or below inflation bill Increases for last
four years - Severn Trent remains lowest average
combined bill in England and Wales

« Increased investment - £602 million capital
expenditure (+8% year on year} - continues to
improve services for the benefit of customers

- Customer service, sewer flooding and supply
interruptions all iImproving

- Improved or stable performance on 10 out of
14 Ofwat KPIs year on year

— Customer satisfaction (SIM score) improved for
3rd consecutive year

« Continued growth in RCV*2 from £7,364 million
to £7,618 million (+3 4%)

- Group underlying PBIT rose 4.3% year on year
- Severn Trent Water underlying PBIT rose 4.0%

+ Delivering on dividend policy - 6.0% growth year
on year to 80.40 pence

» Constructive engagement with Ofwat on 2015-
2020 business plan Revised plan submission
27 June, draft determination expected 29 August,
final determination expected 12 December

1 Regulatory Capital Value
2 March 2014 vs March 2013
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Group turnover

£1,856./m

2013 £1,8316m
Group profit*

£269.1m

2013 £251 3m (restated)***
Group profit before tax

£282.7m

2013 £200 2m {restated)™™
Dividend per share

30.40p

2013 7585p
Earnings per share**

388.4p

2013 92 6p (restated)*™™

Before tax, exceptional items and gains/losses on
financiol ingtrurments

* Before deferred tox, exceptioncl itemns and gairsflosses
on financial instruments

*** Adjusted for adoptian of 1AS 19R.

Coutionary statement This docurnent contans statements that are,

or moy be deemed 10 be forworddooking statements’ with respect to
Sevem Trent s financiol condition, resuits of operotions ond business and
certan of Severn Trent's plans and objectives with respect to these tems

Forward-looking stotements ore someumes but not slways denufied

by therr use of a date in the future ar such words as ‘anticipates Ll
‘aims, ‘due, ‘could may will' would should, expects', believes’

intends' uans ‘projects, potentiol rmsnnnuy possible’ ‘torgets

goal' or estimates and in eachcose therr negatrwe: or other vanatons

or comparuble termy Any forward-looking staterments in this
docurment are based on Trem:sct.lrrentexpectmm I:ythar
very nature, forword-looking stotements are

speculatve and mnska'dummtybecmneu'\eyrﬂmemmms
and depend on oroumstances that may of May Nt -ocCur in the future

Forward-coking statements are not guerontees of future performance

and no assurances con be given that the forward loaking statements

in this document will be reclised There are a number o??ocwrs, many

of which are beyond Severn Trent’s control, that could cause actual

resutts performance and developments Lo differ matenally friom these

expressed or imphed by these forward-looking stotements. These factors

inctude but are not imited to changes In the economees and markets.

nwhach the group opertes, changes i the reguiotory and competiton

frameworks In which the group operates, the impact &f lagol or other

praceedings oganst or which affect the groupr ond chonges 1n nterest

ond exchange rotes ‘
All written or verbal forward looking statements made in this docurment |
or made subsequently which are attnbutable to Severn Trent or any !
other member of the group or persans acting on therr behalf are !
expressly qualified in ther enUrety the factors refesred o above !
Subject ta complance with lows and reguiatons, Severn Trent |
doés not intend te update these forward-looking staterents and does

not undertoke cry oblgation (o do so. ‘
Nothng in thes document should be regandad o5 a profits forecost.

This docurment 15 not on offer to sell, exchonge or tronsfer any secuntses

of Severn Trent Pic or any of its subsidiaries and 15 not soliciting

an offer to purchase exchonge or transfer such secunties n cny

Junisdicion Secunbies may nol be offered scld or tronsferred In the US

obsent registrotion o on opplicoble exernption from the registmtion

requirements of the US Secunties Act of 1933 {os amended)
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What we do

Severn Trent provides clean water and waste

water services in the UK and internationally through
our regulated and non-regulated businesses -
Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services.

Regulated

Read more on pages 13-24

One of the largest of the 10 requlated water and sewerage companies
in England and Wales. We provide high quality services to more than
4.3 miltlion households and businesses in the Midlands and mid-Wales.

Where we operate

Our region stretches across the heart
of the UK, from the Bnstol Channel
to the Humber, and from mid-Wales
to the East Midlands

Image removed

Key facts

Turnover

£1,544.8M wn csnom

Profit*

(2013 £498 Sm (restated))™
£5186| | |1-“:2;’::;2;*;:,5:;2;:::::::2‘:;?“e'“‘

Households and businesses serviced

4.3m

Litres of drinking water supplied each day

1.8bn

Litres of waste water collected per day

1.4bn

Emptoyees

5 ,9 02 (0s at 31 March 2014)




Non-regulated

Severn Trent Services (STS)

Read more on pages 25-32

Commercial suppliers of water and waste water treatment services
and products, with customers around the world.

Where we operate

Severn Trent Services 1S our core non-
requlated business It has two business areas
- Water Purfication and Operating Services
Water Punfication (Products) 1s organised
around three regions — the Americas, Asia
Pacific and China, Europe, the Middle East and
Africa Operating Services works for customers
In the US, UK and Italy

Image removed

Renewables

Severn Trent’s non-requlated business already generates renewable energy from
wind turbines and anaerobic digestion (AD) of crops. We are now expanding into

About us

STS Operating Services STS Water

Operating Services provides Purification (Products)

contract operations and Products provides

matntenance for mumicipal filtration, disinfection

and industnal cients and the and process solution

UK Mirustry of Defence (MOD} technologies for vanous

for water and waste water municipal and industriat

treatment facilities water and waste water
treatment applications
and for the marine and
offshore industries

Key facts

Turnover

£3 11 .4' I I (2013 £3285m)

Employees

2 ’ 3 87(05 at 31 March 2014)

Profit*

(2013 £12 6ém (restated))**
| | I * Before mterest, tox and exceptiond stams
L] * Adusted for adoption of [AS 19R

the food waste AD market and plan to develop other technologies.
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Who we are

Water is essential to life and to the
communities in which we live and work.

At Severn Trent we are focused on continuing
to deliver better value, better services and @
healthier environment today, tomorrow and
for the longer term.

Our millions of customers in the UK and
around the world rely on us, so our aim is to
do the right thing, acting with honesty and
integrity and playing an active role in creating
a sustainable future for our water and

the environment.

Our principles, which govern the way we work,
are set out in our Code of Conduct: Doing the
right thing — The Severn Trent way.

Further details are provided on page 49

UONDWLIOJUI JBUI)  SIUSWISIDIS (DI3UBUY Aupdwio)  Sluawisios joisuculy dnosg  8dubuwisaog  wodas J1Bainns

* Listening to * Giving our * Helping our * We're generating
customers in customers peace customer and 23% of pur
shaping ourplans  of mind the environment  energy from
See page 13 See page 18 See page 25 renewable sources

See page 31

Driven by -
and for — our
customers

Image removed Image removed Image removed
Image removed
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Chairman’s statement

({4

We have continued to make
significant long term investment in
our regional water and sewerage
infrastructure, whilst keeping bill
rises on average below the rate

of inflation.”

Andrew Duff, Chairman

Image removed

[ arm pleased to report another year in
which our focus on water and waste
water services has delivered benefits
for our customers ond our shareholders

Sustainable returns

We have made progress this year in a
number of areas and agan delivered a
good financkl performance

Total group revenue rose by 1 4% to
£1,856 7 mitlon, while underlying group
profit before tax was 7 1% higher at
£269 1 milhion This resulted in adjusted
basic earnings per share of 88 4 pence,
down 4 5% from 92 & pence

For 2013/14, the board 1s proposing

a final dwvidend of 48 24 pence, to be
paid on 25 July 2014 Thiswill result in

a total dmdend for the financial year

of 80 40 pence, representing growth of
60% Thisis n line with our policy for the
current regulatory penod to March 2015
of growing the dnidend each year by 3%
more than the retal pnce index

As ever we am to strike a balance
between improving our services and
keeping bills low for our customers,
whilst providing a farr return for our
shareholders Our sharehotders and
our customers have benefited from our
consistent delivery over recent years

Since 2005, we've delivered atotal
shareholder return of 205 7%, well ahead
of the 86 8% retumn from the FTSE100

In May 2012, we announced that we
would invest g further £150 mullion In
improving our water and waste water
networks for our customers whilst at

the sarme time returning £150 raillion to
shareholders by way of a special dividend
To date we have invested a further

£120 million in our networks and services
with more to come n 2014/15

Our contribution

At Severn Trent, we make an mportant
economig, social and ervironmental
contnbution to the regions we serve

Whilst the general economy shows signs
of recovery, we recognise that customers’
incornes have been squeezed and our
focus rernains on managing our business
os efficiently os possible, so we can keep
our costs and bills down
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Our price increase for 2013/14 was agan
below the rate of inflation, making thus
the fourth consecutive year in which
we've maintained or reduced average
bills in real terms As a result, our
combined average househald bills for
water and sewerage remain the lowest in
England and Wales

Over the last year, we have also
continued to make sigrificant long term
Investrnents in our regional water and
sewerage infrastructure, supporting
rmany thousands of local jobs and small
businesses We also remain committed
to investing in skills development and
apprenticeships, supporting young people
to join our Industry As the economy
struggles to emerge from recession,

our commitment to investrment in
infrastructure as well as providing
opporturities for young professionals
makes a real difference

From 2015-2020, we expect to invest
around £3 bitlion to help us deliver the
service Improvernents that our customers
want and which the environment needs,
whilst still keeping pnices as low as
possible The mpact of this investment
will go beyond cur core services and will
again be felt by a wide range of people
and businesses across our region

Severn Trent makes o major contribution
to a heglthy environment and we are
commutted to operating our business N
a responsible and sustainable way

Over the last year, we have reduced
senous pollution inadents by over a

third We have also achieved 99 29%
compliance at our waste water
treatment works Reducing greenhouse
gas emissions from our operations 5 also
smportant tous Over a number of years
we've built an industry teading postion

in renewable energy, which now provides
23% of the energy we use

Our people

QOur performance during the yeor reflects
the expertise, professionalism and
dedication of our great people

Severn Trent 15 fortunate to have an
engaged and loyal workforce who are
possionate about providing the best
possible service for our custormers

At Severn Trent Water, over 98% of our
people are customers too, which helps us
to understand our customers better

[t's also mportant to align our
employees' interests with those of our
shareholders and to share the benefits
of our success with them More than
5,000 Severn Trent Water employees
are members of our Share Incentive
Plan through which eligible employees
had the potential to be owarded shares,
up to a total maxtmurm volue of £583

in 2013 We also offer to all eligible UK
employees the opportunity to take part in
a Sharesave scheme, which 1s a savings
plan that prowides on option to buy
discounted shares in Severn Trent.

Protecting our employees’ hedlth, safety
and wellbeing 1s fundamental to the
way we do things If we take good care
of our people, we believe they will take
care of our custorners 1am particularly
proud that the last two years have been
our safest ever, ond our inury rates

are among the lowest in the industry
Our aim 1s that no one should be hurt or
made unwell by what we do

Our future

Dunng May and June 2013 the board
recenved a senes of condrtional proposals
from the LongRiver consortium,
whichincluded Borealis Infrastructure
Management Ing, the Kuwait Investment
Office and Universities Superannuation
Scheme Lirmited The board unanimously
concluded thot the proposals failled to
reflect the significant long term value

of Severn Trent or to recognise its future
potential The LongRiver consortium
decided not to make on offer for

Severmn Trent

Leoking ahead, Severn Trent 1s confident
In continuing to deliver value for all and
we are well positioned to take advantage
of changes in our Industry

Over recent years, Severn Trent has
actively informed the debate about woter
industry reform through our ‘Changing
Course’ senes of publications We have
advocated changes which wailt help the
UK make the most efficient use of woter
resources, Improve cutcomes and service
for custormers and deliver sustainable
returns for investors

We're supportive of the Water Act
2014 and are well positioned to take
advantage of the changes it will bring,
including the move towards greater
competition We'll continue to make
the case for further change where we
see opportunities for efficiency, greater
resilience and lower costs

We also continue to work with Ofwat to
finalise our business plan for the next
regulatory penod and are committed to
an open, far and transparent dialogue
with our regulator Qur plan is driven by -
and for - cur custorners and s shaped by
the philosophy that underpins Changing
Course, providing a solid and sustainable
foundation for the longer term

Board changes

During the year the board announced
the retrement of Dr Bernard Bulkin
and the appointments of Dr Angela
Strank and Philip Remnant as non-
executive directors

Following the year end, the board
announced the appointment of John
Coghlan as a non-executve director

with effect from 23 May 2014 and the
retrernent of Baroness Noakes as a non-
executive director with effect from the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
on 16 July 2014

Finally, I'm delighted to welcome

our new Chief Executive, Liv Garfield
Tony Wray (former Chief Executive) did
an outstanding job of putting Severn
Trent in a strong position to delver its
objectives, grounding the business

in quality management process and
ethical standards 1 know that Liv has the
qualities to build on these achievements,
to inspire our employees to continue to
delver better value to our customers,
irvestors and other stakeholders, and

to keep Severn Trent at the front of the
debate about the future of our ndustry

Andrew Duff, Charrman

ajuouiano  dodas 16aons
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Chief Executive’s review

(¢

I’'m excited by the prospect of
leading the next phase of Severn
Trent’s development. The business is
performing well, is soundly financed
and is poised to take advantage

of the continuing development of
our industry.”

Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

Image temoved

Introduction

I'm delighted to have jained Severn
Trent, a forward looking and industry
leading business

[ apprecate all the hard work from

Tory Wray and his colleagues over
recent years and I'm locking forward to
continuing to delwer for our customers,
our shareholders, our regulators and our
great pecple at Severn Trent

Another year of delivery

This was a good year for Severn Trent's
requlated business, as we delivered on

our commitments to our customers, the
ernvironment, our Investors and employees.

Our customers once again benefited
from the lowest combined water and
waste charges 1n England and Wales
The cumulative price ncrease over

the past five years 1s below inflation
We intend to mantain below mnflation
Increases, on average, through to 2020

We irmproved our operationat performance
despite difficult weather, with a hot
sunmer followed by a winter of prolonged
ran and high winds Although the rain
affected the quality of our raw water, we
continued to deliver tugh levels of water
quality compliance Our overall water
quality continues to be amongst the best
in the UK, however we know we have
more to do in delvenng the improvernents
identified in the Dnnking Water
Inspectorate (DWI) Chief Inspector’s
report. We remain committed to ensunng
our customers continue to recerve water
of the highest quabity

We further reduced the average duration
of interruptions to supply We remain on
track to hit cur leakage reduction target
over the current regulatory cycle and we
agan reduced the number of properties
suffenng internal sewer flooding

While our operating performance 15 good
across most parts of our business, as the
regulated business performance review
details, some other performance areas
did not meet the required standard
Three of the twenty indicators used

to assess the long term health of our
assets are not performing within the
required levels This in turn has resulted
in three of the four serviceability areas
{each with one falling indicator) being
assessed as marginal We recognise this
performance 1s not what our customers
expect, and we have put actions in place

, to address this
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We have included shortfalts in our
2(15-2020 busimess plan in recognition
that we have not delvered the level of
performance we had set ourselves

Also our custormer service hasn’t always
been as good as we would ke We are
committed to delivering the best possible
experience for aur customers and are
focusing on traning, better systers and
processes and new ways for custormers
to interact with us One area where we
have targeted improvements i1s on our
New Connections process We recognise
the need to provide customers with a fast
and efficient service and are committed
to doing better to meet developers’
expectations

This year, we've again seen our efforts
reflected in our improved Service
Incentive Mechanism (SIM) score, as
measured by Ofwat, but there s still
much more to be done Further details
are provided on page 20

Our SIM score really matters tous - it
tells us if we are delvenng 5 out of 5
performance every time, every day for
our customers We know we have lots
still to do and that we need to deliver
improvement quickly to keep pace

with changes in custermer behoviours
and expectations We've made good
progress in our Quantitative SIM scores
with a 14% improvement this year,
meaning that customers are receiving
a more responsive service from us

Our Qualitative SIM score, which
captures how our custorners feel about
ther interaction with us, 1s where we
need to place more focus in the year
ahead For the year as a whole for this
measure, our score Is 4 48 compared to
43610 2012/13 Although this leaves
us In seventh place out of the 10 water
and waste water companies, we are
improving at o faster than average pace

Severn Trent has one of the lowest levels
of bad debt in the sector, at around 2 2%
of revenues This 15 important for our
custormners because those who pay bear
the cost of those who don't We therefore
put considerable effort into ensuring that
customers who can pay actually do pay
and we have invested in new technologies
that make it easier than ever to do so

- see further detarls on pages 21 and 22

However, we recognise that economic
conditions remain tough  As a responsible
business, it's important that we help
people who are genuinely unable to pay,

so we have a comprehensive range of
social tanffs Our relationship with the
Citizens Advice Bureau also helps
customers to address thetr broader
financial problems

We continued to look after the
environment dunng the year, with our
Investment programme producing
further environrmental iImproverments
that also benefit our customers We cut
the number of sewer blockages and

we reduced the number of serious
pollution incidents by over a third We're
also improving the quality of our rvers,
achieving our best ever waste water
treatment waorks compliance of 99 29%
Knowing that we will supply them with
water 15 cntical for our customers and

the secunty of supply Index measures

our ability to supply water in a drought.
Our score this year was 100 (based on our
Ofwat measure - see page 9), reflecting
the work we've done to Improve resilience
and extract water sustainably

Our non-regulated business delvered

a mixed performance, with growth

in revenue and profits at Operating
Services on the back of new contract
wins and acquisitions, contrasting with a
disappointing performance in Products,
which recorded a loss for the year Anew
management team has been installed
with plans launched to reduce the cost
base and return the business to profitable
growth over the next 12 months

We have taken a cautious view of the
nsks relating to these actions, and the
costs are reflected in these results, whilst
the benefits will be seen progressively
throughout the coming year

We've also delivered for our investors
Our focus on efficiency, continuous
improvement and sustainable financing
helps us to mantain our dvidend
corrrmitment to our shareholders

Our tax position this year reflects an
outline agreement we have reached with
HMRC on @ long standing discussion
regarding overpayments of tax in prior
pencds and have now factored this into
our bustness plan for 2015-2020 to
support lower customer prices In the next
regulotory penod (AMP6 - see further
detals on pages 11 and 12)

This performance and continuous
improvernent 1s made possible by aur
committed and expenenced teamn Good
performance 1s underpinned by doing
things the nght way, safer, better and faster

Our teams have sustaned last year's
industry leading safety performance -
for further detalls see page 23

On behalf of all of my executive
colleagues, I would like to thank our
employees and supply chain partners
for their continued commitment

Looking forward, conclusion

and outlook

Severn Trent has submitted a balanced
plan for AMP6, which offers better
services and continued better value

for customers, along with a healthier
environment At the same time, our plan
will delver nvestment and growth in our
business, to produce fair ond sustainable
returns for our Investors We continue

to work with Ofwat to conclude the
price review process We expect a

draft detemination from Ofwat on

29 August and a fingl deterrmination

on 12 December 2014

Wales remamns an important area of
operation for us We welcome the
publication of Welsh Government’s
Water Strateqy and we will be playing
our full port to make a success of its
implementation We also welcome the
publication of the Silk Commission's
report into further devolution and look
forward to ongoing discussions about
ensunng our custormers in Wales
continue to receive excellent value

for money

My focus for the next 12 months will

be on making sure our custormers are
nght at the heart of Severn Trent and
delivenng further operationat and process
improvements, so that we are ready to
delver on our plan for the next five years
Under our current dvidend policy, the
dividend for 2014/15 1s set to be 84 90p,
a growth of 5 6% We willbe in a position
to communicate our dvdend policy for
the penied 2015-2020 only after we have
received the final determination from
Ofwat on 12 December 2014

Ilock forward to working with everyone
in Severn Trent, as we build the next
phase of our joumey to delver for our
custormers, shareholders, employees and
the environment.

Liv Garfield, Chief Executive

ououwianon  uodal aiB3oas
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Our strategy

Our aim is to drive value for our customers and shareholders
with a focus on water and waste water services in key regulated
and non-regulated sectors. Our strateqgy delivers better value,
better services and a healthier environment for our customers,
society and investors.

How we are organised to deliver

Regulated Non-regutated

In the UK, our regulated business Sevem Trent Water In the UK and key international markets, Severn Trent
provides water and waste water services to over 4 3 million Sennces (STS) provides water and waste water senices
homes and businesses and water technolegy products to a wide range of

Our business ptan for the next regulatory penod (AMP6 business, municipal and industnal custormers We also

- see pages 11 and 12}, 1s drven by - and for - our have a growing nen-regulated renewable energy portfolio
custormers Our aimiis to provide what our customers want Our strategy is to teverage our knowledge of water and
and what the environment needs, whilst still keeping our waste water treatment in UK non-regutated and globat
charges as low as possible municipal, industnal and commeraial markets, which offer
See our business model on pages 14 and 15 long term growth oppertunities

See our business mode! on pages 26 and 27

@ Water and woste water  Regulated tumover @ STS Water Purification Non-regulated turnover
{Products) - global water

technology/products

® STS Operating Services
- contract operations
and maintenance for
municipal and industnal
clients induding UK
(retail) business and the UK
Mirustry of Defence (MoD)

Graph removed Graph removed

Other non-

regulated business
Renewable Energy -
Severn Trent also has a
non-regulated renewable
energy portfolio that
pnmarly supplies our
own regulated business

What we stand for

Value Responsible leadership  Sustainability

We aimn to deliver value for our We have long advocated a more At Severn Trent we balance the
customers and our shareholders socially, environmentally and Interests of all our stokehotders and
Our customers get good value for financially sustainable future for our the environment. We believe In doing
money - quality products, the lowest industry through our ‘Changing Course’  the nght thing for the longer term
possible charges and a good overall series of publications We aim to have and in opergting our business ina
service Our shareholders benefit from anopen and honest corwersation sustainable way

lorng term sustainable growth with our customers, our colleagues

and our regulators about the changes
we can all make towards a more
sustainable future
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Our strategy delivers

Image
removed

Better value and
better services
for customers

At Severn Trent Water, we already
have the lowest combined water

and waste water bills in England and
Wiales Through a focus on continuous
improvement and efficiency, we am
to delver the service improvements
our customers want and which the
environment needs, whilst still keeping
pnces s low as possible

At Severn Trent Services, we also work
In partnership with our customers to
deliver innovative and cost effective
water and waste water solutions

Image
removed

A healthier
environment

At Severn Trent Water, our aimn s to
protect and enhance the environrment,
improving the qualtty of our rivers and
safeguarding the infrastructure that
our customers and the environment
depend upon

We stnve to operate our business

in a sustainable way, reducing the
amount of water we take out of the
environment, reducing our carbon
ermissions and generating our own
renewable energy

At Severn Trent Services, we offer
custorners throughout the word
arange of products and senices
{see inside the front cover for detalls)
From filtration and disinfection
equipment to water and waste
water contract operations, our water
treatment technologies and services
are designed to help protect and
preserve our ervironment

Image
removed

Sustainable returns
for investors

Our strategy delivers long term
sustainable growth for nvestors

Severn Trent Water invests on average
over £500 million annually n our
water and waste water networks

We fund this programme from

the profits we generate, but also

by borrowing money from capital
markets Caprtal investment s added
to our requlated asset base, which
also nises n Line with inflation each
year The returns we generate for
shareholders who invest In our asset
base are set by our economic regulator,
Ofwat, over five year planning cycles

We can generate additional returns
by being more efficient in the delivery
of the capital programme, rmanaging
our operational costs more effectively
and by financing our business at a
lower cost.

At Severn Trent Services we target
long term contractual relationships
that provide financic! and operational
stability and a good platform

for grawth

dupwianog  podal 21631005
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- L)
Our objectives
Our objectives
: 1 Wewill ide you with water that is good to drink
image Quality water provide y 9
removed
: 2 We will ensure water is there when you need it
mage Service you y
removed can rely on
3 We will safely take your waste water away
4 We will provide you with excellent customer service
Affordable bills 5 We will have the lowest possible charges
|
renggd
6 We will help you if you struggle
Responsible 7 We will protect our local environment
romoved service
8 We will protect the wider environment
9 We will make a positive difference in the community
Sustainable 10 We will finance our business sustainably
romoves finance

Image
removed

To achieve our objectives we need to support our great people
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Basis How we measure them 2013714 2012/13
Water quolity compliance s 2 ow © 995 9998
MAT  Water serviceability non infrastructure? ow © MAR STA
MAT - DWI reportable events eategory 3,4 5) KFL 3 (v} 24 23
MLE  Ledkage levels mu wiLisow @ @ 441 a4l
ACT  Secunky of Supply Index (SOSI}* KP1 14/0W © 99/100 95/100
MAT  Water supply interruptions INdex per property mins 2 KPI 6/0W L] 16 29
MAT  Water serviceability infrastructure 3 ow O MAR STA
Water serviceability (internal KPI 8 00 202 80
Internal sewer flooding repeat incidents number ow o 204 255
MAT  Sewerage seniceability infrastructure 3 ow O MaR STA
Sewerage serviceabilty (internal) KPL7 (¢ ] v) 57 78
ACT  Sewerage treatment works — fating consent bimits %2 KPL 13 © 071 085
MAT  Service Incentive Mecharusr Qualtatve (SIM) e gpp 4 00 448 436
ACT  Senvice Incentive Mecharusm Quantitatve (SIM) score® KPL 5 00 143 167
Service Incentive Mechanisrm (Ofwat) oW O B155 7811
Voice of the Custormer feedback - STS Global 7 STSKPL11 O 424 -
Average combined water bill £ fouttum prces) O £335 £326
ACT  Debtor days® KPL 10 O 35 367
Custormers benefiting from Watersure tanff numper O 95611 7972
Senous polluton ncdents
(nfrostruciure cotegory 1, 2} per 10000 km network > 7 ow Q 127 217
Pollution Inaidents
ok . 1 2.3) per 10000km 3,911 ow Q@ 7797 6610
MAT - Pollution Incidents (sewerogecat1 2 33 1011 w1z 0 Q 449 376
MAT  Sewerage serviceability non infrastructure ow 0 STA STA
Discharge permit compliance %2 ow QO 9929 9915
Greenhouse gas emissions kcoze ow Q 5109 5204
MAT Net energy use Gwh 6 KPL 15 Q 691 690
Satisfactory sludge disposal % ow © 100 9993
MAT  Waste water treatment performance %2 STSKPL10 Q 56 108
Irwestrnent emisen O 6021 5554
Voice of the Customer feedback - behaving STS [+ JE ¥ ) -
respensibly and with integnty
Interest cover « oW 0 36 36
Net debt/RCV geanng % ow 586 571
Credit rating siondord & Roors ow O BBB+ BBB+
ACT  CAPEX £m (UK GASP,net of gronts and contrbutions) 1 KPL 9 00O 582 5418
ACT OPEX £m kL1 Q@ Q 5853 5665
Post tax return on capital % ow 4] 6.4 67
QR Employee engogernent s 14 KPL 2 00 81 79
MAT  Lost tirne iIncidents per 100,000 hrs worked 15 KPI 1 00 021 o021
MAT  Lost time iIncidents per 100,000 hrs worked STSKPL1 Q 027 030
@R Employee engagement % 518 o 75 77

adupuranon  podas nbajong

Key

Green Reguloted meosures
incluging Business KPIs and
Ofwat performance indicators

Purple: Non-Regulated measures
incluging Business KPIs

Black. Severn Trent group measure

©  Executive Drector perforrmance
meqsure see Remuneration Commuttee
report on pages 60 to 76

ow  Ofwat perforrmance indicator

MAT  Mowing Annuel Total

QR Quarterly Review

MLE  Maximurn Likelihood Estimate

ACT  Yeor End Actual

MAR  Marginal

S5TA  Stable

OIO Desired directson of KPI

SJUBLLIZ]DIS |DIuUDUY dnoin

Notes

Na longer an Ofwet KPT but stll reported
Megsured on a calendar year basis
Ofwat serviceability score ossesses how effectvely
we gre mantainng our network and assets ogoinst
arange of measures Assessed as either improwing
stable marginol or detenoroting
4 Score of 99 represents internal KPI and 100 s our
Ofwat measure Measure s out of 100
5 Number of minutes lost due to supply Interruptions
for 3 hours or longer per property served
6 Actual performance based wholly or partially on
ntemal data
7 Customer satisfaction and branding survey
8 Actual perforrnance based on audited UK
GAAP finanaal stoternerits for the yeor ended
31 March 2014
9 Number of inaidents adjusted to reflect compary size
10 Total number of pallutioninadents {category 1, 2,31
11 2012/13 figures not comparoble In 2013 the
Ervaronment Agency changed its reporting
methodology for small inodents Asa result of this
reclossification we now report more smaller incidents

12 Non complionce with consents permits or forrnal
dient requirements dunng the previous 12 months,
13 Investrment excluding PDAS andt 1FRS adjustments
14 Performance bosed on annual survey of
ol employees,
15 Actual performance ocross all ermplovees and
agency staff

KPI 3 Drmlang Water Inspectorate - Reportable events.
Thus KPT mieasures the number of significont events
reported to the DWI

KPI 7 Serviceability Wste Water This KP1is an index
based on poliutions and blockages (both measures
of how our below ground assets are performing) ond
sewage treatrment works non compliance (above
ground) The index reflects a 50 50 weighting for
abeve and below ground assets

KPI B Serviceabiity Water This index 15 bosed on maing
bursts ond supply interruptions greater than 12 hours
[both measures of how our below ground assats are
performung} and Water Treatment Works (WTW} non
tomplionce (obove ground) The index reflects o 50-50
weightng for above ond below ground ossets.

KP1 14 Secunty of Supply Index (SOSI} s 0 measure
of how resiient we are ogainst periods of drought.
The ndex calculation s based upon the difference
betweer the water available to use and the volume
of water we expect to put Nt our supply network in
order Lo meet dernand
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Market and

industry overview

Severn Trent has contributed heavily to the
debate about our industry’s future and how

we tackle the challenges through our series of

‘Changing Course’ publications.

The water and sewerage industry

in England and Wales has more

than 50 millien household and non-
household customers More than 30
privately-owned companies serve these
custorners, of which 10 - including Severn
Trent Water - provide both water and
sewerage services The industry invests
around £5 billion each year and employs
over 35,000 people

The water industry has achieved

much in the 25 years since it was
prvatised It has attracted over

£100 bilion of private Investrment to fund
improvernents in, among other things,
customer service, drinking water and
environmental standards

However, our sector still faces significant
short and long term challenges

» customers’ incomes have been
squeezed, imiting therr ability to pay
for service iImprovernents We need to
ensure that our services are affordable,

» the UK’s population 15 growing, placing
Mmore pressure on our water resources
and on our networks We need to
ensure we have sufficient capacity,

+ we're expenencing more flooding and
droughts We need to ensure that we
have resilient services able to cope with
this increased volatility,

» financial markets hove changed
significantly since the 2008 financial
crisis, raising questions about how the
industry can best finance its long term
investrment We need to ensure that
the industry 1s financed sustainably,

- we still face considerable challenges
to meet the requirements of the
Water Framework Directive ond
other ervironmental imperatives
We need to play our part in improving
the environment, at a pnce that s
affordable to our customers, ond

+ some of our infrastructure 1s old
Whilst it has served us well it 1S no
longer able to deliver the quality
standards and reliobility customers
want. We need to ensure that our
Investments are timely, provide good
value for money and will deliver many
years of future service

We have actively sought to be at the
forefront of the debate about our
industry’s future and how we tackle
these challenges, through our senes
of ‘Changing Course’ publications

We have championed a more socially,
ervironmenitally and financialty
sustainable water industry

We've been pleased that many of the
ideas we have championed have been
reflected in the emerging UK policy and
regulatory frarmework that 1s being put
inplace Challenges remain, but we are
encouraged by the direction of reform
We look forward to helping to make it
asuccess

How the industry i1s regulated
Severn Trent Water s a regulated
business We work within five year
regulatory planning cycles, with the pnces
we charge our custorners set at the
beginning of each cycle by our economic
regulator Ofwat These five year cycles
are known as Asset Management Plan
(AMP) periods We have just reached the
end of the fourth year of AMP5 However,
we don’t just think in the short term

Having a sustainable business requires us
to also balance longer term requirements
that stretch beyond our five year plans
For example, our water resource plans
look 25 years into the future and we
study the need for investrment in some of
our assets over a 40 year penod We use
this information to adjust our nvestment
plans for the next AMP cycle to ensure
we do the right thing for the long term
whilst helping to keep customers’

bills affordable

As well as being regulated by Ofwat, our
performance 1s monitored by

+ the Dnnking Water Inspectorate, which
makes sure we cornply with drinking
water quality reguiations,

+ the Environment Agency (‘EA’),
which controls water abstraction,
nver pollution and flooding, and

« Natural Rescurces Wales, which brings
together the work of the Countryside
Council for Wales, the Environment
Agency Wales and the Forestry
Commission Wales to manage the
natural resources of Wales, and

Natural England who protect and
improve England’s natural
ervironment

We also work with other
agencies Including

« the Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs which sets the
policy context for the water industry
in England,

+ the Welsh Government which sets the
policy context for the water industry In
Wales, and

» the Consumer Council for Water which
represents customers in the industry
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Our business plan for AMP6

Ofwat requires us to produce business
plans for each five year regulatory penod
In December 2013, we submitted our
business plan for the next regulatory
period (AMP6), which runs from April
2015 to March 2020 This plon is currently
being reviewed by Ofwat who will give us
its final deterrmnation in December 2014

Cur plan s dnven by - and for - our
customers The ‘golden threoad’ runring
through our ptan compnses four
essential elements

1 Our plan delivers better value

for money

We're proud to have the lowest average
combined bills iIn Engtand and Wales

Our AMP6 plan delivers even better value,
by lirmiting price rises to below the rate

of nflabon This means our average

price rises from 2010-20 will have been
below the rate of nflation over that 10

year penod

We’re proud to have
the lowest average
combined bills in
England and Wales.”

Our plan s driven by -
and for - our customers.”

At the same time, we'll ncrease overall
capital iInvestment to around £3 bilion
we'll pnontise improvements in those
areas most important to our customers,
including better services and healthier
rivers In particular, our plan proposes
to reduce

* |leakage by a further 6%,

= the length of trme our customers’
water supply 1s interrupted by 47%,

+ the number of homes offected by
sewer flooding by 14%, and

- our carbon footprint by 3%

We've also set challenging efficiency
targets, reducing total costs In AMPE
by over £370 million, helping to keep
average bills lower in 2020 than they
otherwise would have been

2 Our plan s foir and balanced

We've token into account the interests
of all our stakeholders We're sharing
the benefits of cutperforrnance with
our customers by investing an extra
£150 rmullion, to improve the service

our custormers receive - see further
details about how we have spent this
extro investment so far on page 20
We'll continue this approach in the next
regulatory pencd, to ensure custormers
share In the rewards of our success and
also ensure that there 1s no need for
regulatory intervention iIn AMPE We'll
have the opportunity to earmn more,
through incentives that encourage us to
delwer even better senvices If we don't
delver on our commitments, penalties
will result in lower prices to customers

Our plan will also deliver fair returns
for shareholders
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Market and industry
overview continued

({4

3 Our plan s robust and reliable

Our approach builds on our track record
of producing robust business plans and 1s
based on the largest customer research
and engogement exercise we've ever
undertaken through our Let's Talk Water
consultation We also put in place a
Mgorous assurance process, to test the
plan’s robustness

In total, we tatked to more than 16,000
custarners and other stakeholders

We gave customers real choices

about where ther money should be
spent and we were challenged hard

by the Water Forum, our customer
challenge group, and changed our plan
as aresult The Water Forum includes
representatives from custorners, our
ervironmental regulators and local
authorities, and has an independent
Charr, Dame Yve Buckland, who 15 also the
Charr of the Consurmer Council for Water

4 Our plan does the nght thing for the
long term

we've long advocated a more socially,
environmentally and finanaiclly
sustainable water industry and published
our first ‘Changing Course’ report in

Aprl 2010 Our plan s shaped by the
phiosophy that underpins ‘Changing
Course’ and provides a sohid foundation
for the long term

Our future plans include major
investrments over the next two AMP
penods to Increase the reslience of
Birmingharm’s water supply

..there 1s a clear line of sight between what
customers wanted to see and what is being

proposed in the plan.”

Dame Yve Buckland, Water Forum Chair

We're also planning to make significant
Imvestment in 2015-2020 to improve the
quality of nvers and on strategic resilience,
which we're phasing over 10 years to
ensure the nght balance for customers’
bills In AMPE We plan to double our
programme of sustainable urban dranage
systerns, to help prevent sewer flooding
We dalso plan to reduce the amount of
water we take out of the environment per
customer by 6%, further strengthering
our leading position n this area

A changing regulatory environment
The water industry continues to be
offected by a number of changes to
legislation ond regulations

New legislation mtroduced this year
through the Water Act 2014 brings a
number of sigrificant changes to the
way the ndustry operates In particular,
it will allow more competition for
non-household customers and

greater ‘upstrearmy’ competition which
should eventuadlly lead to o more
efficent industry

The European Water Framework

Directive {WFD} will be a sigrificant

driver of our future capital expenditure

It will help to protect and enhanice our
nvers, iakes, streams and groundwater
Dunng 2013/14, we published a
Changing Course report on implernenting
the WFD and shared it with the EA Thisis
our contribution to the debate about
achieving environmental improvements
ot an affordable cost to customers We've
also begun to look at which technologies
offer the best solution to implementing
the WFD, in preparation for AMP6

The non-regulated market

The worldwide market for water and
waste water products and services 15
substantial with long term prospects

for growth In most areas we serve

The drivers of the water and waste water
business remain strong, and include
water scarcity, population growth,
climate change and more stnngent
requlatory requirements

The customers for our Operating
Services are often municipal or regional
authorities, who are looking to outsource
management of ther treatment
faciities The market for these services

i1s therefore largest in countnes which
have established traditions of nvolving
the private sector in providing public
services, such as the US In the UK, we
will iIncreasingly be able to provide water
services to business customers, as the
Water Act 2014 opens up the market ta
competitron from 2017

On the Products side, our customers
range from public sector treatment
works and industral operations to marine
and offshore ot and gas operations

They need high quality products to meet
ther water ond waste water purficatian
needs The market for these products

15 global We are also developing o
dedicoted aftermarket sales team to
create a new revenue stream The level
of dermond for our products often
depends on environmental regulations,
the strength of municipal finances and
the level of iInvestment in new treatment
applications in the shipping industry,
ratification by the International Mantime
Organisation of new standards for
punfying ballast water to prevent the
spread of invasive species would expand
the market for our BALPURE® product line
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Regulated

Severn Trent Water

Listening to
customers
In shaping
our plans

Tackling the nasty problem of sewer
flooding for customers like Jessica
Hinnett from Alfreton in Derbyshire1s a
top priority for custorners which came
out of our Let’s Talk Water consultation

Over 16,000 customers gave us their
views In our biggest ever customer
consultation We made sure their voices
were heard loud and clear whenwe
submitted our AMP6 business plan

to Ofwat.

Thankfully for Jessica, her problem was
sorted out quickly “T can't speak highly
enough of everyone at Severn Trent
who helped me at g time when [ was
very emotienal ”

Better
for Jessica

We made sure that we stened to our
customers’ problems, like Jessica’s,
In our AMP6 business plans

Image
removed

3,000

customers attended
our Let’s Talk
Water roadshows

Image
removed
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Regulated
business model

Water is essential to life ond to the communities

in which we live and work Severn Trent Water

i1s ntrinsically inked to the life cycle of water

The customer 1s at the heart of our continuous
drive to improve our operations and services across
collection, delivery and cleaning of water

Severn Trent Water 15 a regulated business ‘We work
within five year ptanning cydes, with customer pnces
set by our economic regulator, Ofwat, to allow us

to fund our investrnent programme and cover an
efficient level of operating costs We are also subject
to regulation by two quality regulators - the Drinking
Water Inspectorate and the Environment Agency
{details of these regulators are provided below)

Qur prices and asset base are adjusted by RPIinflation
each year In certain circumstances we can ask for
prices to be rewiewed within the five year penod due
to costs assocated with ‘notified tems’ ar ‘relevant
changes of crcumstance’ Customer bad debt and
the adoption of private drains and sewers are included
In these categones for the current five year penod
Severn Trent has not sought to review prices for ether
of these reasons duning 2010-15

The company earns a return on 1ts asset base We can
generate odditonal returns if we outperform Ofwat’s
assumptions by becoming more efficient in the
delivery of our capital programme, managing our
operatioral costs more effectively, and by finanaing
our business at a lower cost

Qur operating performance is assessed and
benchmarked against the sector by Ofwat Within the
current price review there is scope to eam addibonal
Incorne, or Incur penalties, based on our performance

Regulatory framework

Consumer Council for Water
Consumer Counal for Water 1s an independent body designed to
protect the nghts of consurmers www cowater org uk

Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI)

The Dnnking Water Inspectorate makes sure companies supply
water that is safe to dnnk and complies with all nationat and
European standards www dwi defra govuk

Environment Agency (EA)
The Ervironment Agency 15 @ public body set up to protect and
improve the environment. www environment-agency gov uk

Health and Safety Executve
The Health and Safety Executive 15 the enforang authonty on
health and safety law wwwhse govuk

Natural £ngland
Natural England protects and improves England's
natural emaronment. www naturalengland org uk

Natural Resources Wales

Natural Resources Wales bnngs together the work of the
Environment Agency Wales, The Forestry Commission Wales
and the Countryside Council for Wales,

www naturalresourceswales gov uk

Ofwat

The economic regulator for the water and sewerage industry
It mokes sure that water companies use customers’ money
effigently and effectively and sets our price limits

www ofwat.govuk

The role of Severn Trent Water

tmage
removed

image removed

Qcross our region

on poges 39-41})

\ O,

Water is collected Water

(abstraction} is cleaned

We pay the Environment Our 156 water treatment
Agency for the water we waorks cleon raw water
collect from reservoirs, rivers  to the highest standards
and underground aquifers making it safe to dnink

Regulatory framework
* Ofwat - Ofwat
+ Natural England - Drinking Water
» Natural Resources Wales Inspectorate
« Environment Agency + Health and Safety
- Health and Safety Executve  Executive
Risks
- Failure of key assets may « Failure of key assets or
result in domage to property, processes may result in
Injury to people and/or a decline in water quality,
disruption to our ability disruption in our supply
to supply our customners to customers or failure to
(Pincipal Risk Ref 6 and 8) meet regulatory targets
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7 and 8)
+ Hozardous processes
{Where nsks are curreritly or chemicals may result
considered Principal Risks, in people being Injured
further details are prowided (Pnncipal Risk Ref 6)

-

%

Image
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Networks invested
maintained

and
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Image removed

Clean water

is distributed

A 47,000 km network
of pipes and enclosed
storage reservoirs bring
a continuous supply of
clean water right to our
customers’ taps

+ Ofwat

= Drinking Water
Inspectorate

» Health and Sofety
Executive

+ The performance of our
distnbution network may fall
below the standards expected
by DWI or Ofwat, resulting in
poor service to our customers
and increased leakage from
our network (Principal Risk
Ref 7)

+ Failure of one of our key
assets could result in
disruption to supply to
customers
{(Principal Risk Ref 8)
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Customers

enjoy our services

We bilt 4 3 million
businesses and households
a year In return, we provide
a safe, religble supply of
water and the collection of
waste water 24 hours a day,
365 days ¢ year

= Ofwat

- Consumer Councit for
Water

+ Drinking Water
Inspectorate

+ We may be unable to
sufficiently improve our
performance In relation to
customer service in order to
deliver what our customers
tell us they want
(Principal Risk Ref 1)

+ We may be uncble to respond

effectively to the opening up
of the business retall market

to competition {Principal Risk
Ref 2)

]

O,

Image
removed

Waste water

is collected

Qur ¢ 92,000 km of sewers
and pumping stations
collect waste water from
homes and businesses, and
surface water from outside
properties and drains

- Ofwat
» Environment Agency

- Health and Safety
Executive

« Failure to deal with custormer
waste effectively may lead
to sewer flooding
{Principal Risk Ref 7}

O,

Image
removed

Waste water
is treated and
returned to the

environment

Wiaste water 15 carefuilly
screened, filtered and
treated in our 1,019 sewage
treatment works to meet
stringent environmental
standards We pay the
Environment Agency an
annual consent fee to
return the now treated
water to the water system

- Ofwat

» Natural England

» Natural Resources Wales
= Environment Agency

= Health and Safety
Executive

+ We may suffer operational
falure In our waste water
operations which resuits
In domage to the local
environment (Principal Risk
Ref7)

We are an mvestment led industry, and our capital programme this
year was £602 million, or around £140 per connected property,
reflecting increased investrment year on year (2012/13 £555 mullion)

In our water and sewerage networks, ncluding finding and fixing more

leaks ond reducing the number of supply interruptions, iImprovements
to our water ond sewage treatment plants and upgrades to our
sewer network to reduce incidents of sewer flooding We fund this
investment programme from the profits we generate, but also by
borrowing money from the capital markets Capital iInvestment 1s
added on to our asset base, called the RCY Our asset base glso nses
in lne with inflation each year The returns that we generate for
shareholders on that asset base are set by our economic regulator,
Ofwat, over five year planning cycles We can increase these returns
by outperformance

Risks

We operate within a complex legal and regulatory ermronrnent as a water
and sewerage service provider in England and Wates. As a result we foce a
number of nsks induding those assocated with possible non-compliance
with our legol and regulatory frarework, failure to obtain support

from Ofwat for our business plan for 2015-2020 and falure to meet

the terms of our reguiatory contract as set out in our agreed business
plan for 2010-2015 We qlso face nsks associated with possible future
changes in legislation which may resutt in our business plans becoming
unsustanable (Pincipat Risk Ref 3, 4 and 5 on pages 39 and 40)

Regulatory Framework

+ Ofwat

* Health and Safety Executive
* Environment Agency

* Dnnking Water Inspectorate
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Regulated

performance review

Delivering better value,

better services and a healthier
environment

Our goal 1s to be the UK's best water

and waste water company This means
we must deliver better value and better
services to customers and nvestors, while
protecting the environment on which

we depend

To reach our goal and meet our
customers’ needs, we set 10 long term
objectives In 2013 Each year, we report
against our objectives and explain how
we've improved our performance

Quality water

Objective 1 We'll provide you with water
that 1s good to dnnk

Qur dnnking water 1s amongst the bestin
the UK and we achieved 99 96% overall
compliance with the Drinking Water
Inspectorate’s (DWI) quality standards
{(2012/13 95 98%j

However, some aspects of our
performance have fallen betow the
standard we and our customers expect
We reported one more significant event
to the DWI this year than last The two
most recent DWI Chief Inspectors’
reports have ighlighted a number of
improvement areas, and there has been
one prosecution durng the last year in
relation to water quality Specifically, our
performance In relation to the number
of outbreaks of detected coliforms
(non-harmful bactena) has exceeded the
maximum level expected by Ofwat twice
in three years (iIncluding 2013/14) Asa
result cur serviceability on above ground
assets Is rated as marginal

16

We are taking these falures extremely
seriously and accept that we have more
to do in order to address the 1ssues and
nsks we face We have identified several
areas where improvements to our assets
are required and investment programmes
are already m progress We have a
programime of work dedicated to
identifying and delivenng improvernents
We have stepped up our operational
rmonitoring and remain committed to
doing what is needed to address 1ssues in
this area at pace We remain committed
to ensunng that our customers receive
water of the highest quality

We continue to invest in our people and
inour treatrment works to enable us to
improve our performance For example,
this year we have run a pregramme to
improve knowledge and awareness of
water quality for our network operators
and operational call-centre colleagues
We are In the process of nvesting to
renew assets and improve processes ot
our largest works at Frankley At Bamford,
Derbyshire, we've Improved our processes
toincrease ther resilience and ability to
treat water from the local peat moors

We continue to look to the future with our
water quality strategy and our AMP6 plan
will also look to addressing deterorating
raw water quality n more inrovative and
sustainable ways, for example, extending
our catchment approach It involves
working in partnership with landowners
and users to murirrise the risk of potlution
entering the raw water system, so we

can ovoid additional investrnent i our
treatrment works

Partnership working to reduce flood nisks

Together with the Environment Agency,

we've created four hectares of woodiand
along the River Ashop, Derbyshire By stopping
Ivestock grazing and working with natural
processes, land management like this reduces
and delays the flow of water downstream,
cutting the nsk of flooding and pollution, while
improving wildife habitats and biodiversity
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Services you can rely on

Objective 2 We will ensure water is there
when you need it

Our customers expect water to be
there when they turn on the tap and for
leakage to be lower

As part of our commitment to
improvement, we have reviewed

the basis on which we calculate our
leakage figure The net impact of the
improvements is neutral with respect to
actual and target performance

We maintained leakage at 441 Ml/d
beating our Ofwat leakage target of

456 Ml/d Severn Trent 1s one of the few
companies to target lower leakage dunng
AMP5 and we're on track to deliver a 11%
leakage reduction over AMPS

We've further reduced the average
nurnber of minutes that custorners are
without supply from 29 minutes per
property to 16 minutes We're Investing
N new pipes, valves and other assets,
and improving our ability to restore
customers' supplies quickly For example,
new technology allows us to keep

water flowing while we repair a pipe

Image
removed

Image removed

We were pleased to win an award for
innovation of the year at the Water
Industry Achievement Awards 2014
for new equipment we have developed
that improves leak detection efficiency
and 1s particularly effective with plastic
pipes which 1s a problem throughout
the industry This equipment has been
developed by us working n partnership
with Loughborough University from

a research and development project
through to commercial launch

with Echologics

The number of properties that
experienced a supply interruption tonger
than 12 hours was 2,699, an incregse
of 142 on last year Over 900 of these
interrupticns occurred following the
extreme storms of February when
power supplies were interrupted for
extended periods This 1s a key mput
measure to serviceability assessment
Despite an underying iImproverment on
this measure, and the fact that other
indicators performing within or ahead
of the operating ranges agreed with
Ofwat, the application of the serviceability
frarmnework means our serviceability 1s
rated as marginal

We are committed to reducing the
number of Interruptions longer than
12 hours In order to achieve this we
have iIncreased our focus on IMproving
our nsk and contingency planning and
emergency response

Creation of
4 hectares
of woodland

Towards the end of the year, we
consulted on our water resources
management plan This explains how
we'll provide sustainable and affordable
water to our customers, over the next
25 years and beyond We also 1ssued our
drought plan, which sets out how we'll
maintain supplies during shortages

Our future plans include major
Investments over the next two AMP
penods to Increase the reslience

of Birringham’s water supply

This will extend the life of the Elan Valley
Aqueduct, sovng customers hundreds
of millions of pounds over the coming
decades and reducing nsk to the UK's
second largest city We'll also continue
to improve our trunk main network
and strategic gnd of pipes to provide
customers with increased resilience

Objective 3 We will safely take your
waste water away

We continue to invest to reduce the

nisk of internal sewer flooding and have
protected a further 121 properties

this year, putting us on track for 741
properties over AMPS Qur efforts have
reduced the number of custorners

who suffered repeated internal sewer
flooding, from 25510 2012/13 to 204
this year We also mitigated the nsk of
flooding for around 160 properties this
year We're increasingty using sustainable
drainage systems to reduce flooding, as
well as increasmng our partnership working
with local authorities, the Ervironment
Agency, local drainage boards and
highways authonties
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Giving our customers

peace of mind

In 2007, Gloucestershire suffered severe
floods Hundreds of properties suffered
sewer flooding and nising rnver levels
forced us to shut our Mythe water
treatment works, leaving 140,000
properties without a piped water supply

We were determined that our custormers
shouldn't have to face this again

Since 2007, we've invested nearly

£47 millien in making our water and
sewerage system robust and resilient
We've instalted 16 km of strateqic water
mamns and 3 4 km of sewers, along

with new water and sewage pumping
stations, and we haove built flood
defences around our Mythe works

The result 1s peace of mind for customers
like Sytwvia Hyett Despite appalling
weather, no properties have suffered
sewer flooding in this area in the last two
winters and our custormers’ water supply
has been unaffected

Sylvia said

“We are so relieved that this work has
been completed If it rans now, for the
first time 10 many years we can go to
bed without being ternfied as to what
we may find nthe merming  the work
done by Severn Trent to prevent this will
improve our lives immeasurably”

Mythe
works flood
defences

in action

image removed
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Better
for Sylvia

Gloucester resident Sylvia Hyett
now has greater peace of mind ofter
a £47 millon investment in making
our water and sewerage system
robust and resilient

Image
removed

Image removed
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Regulated performance
review continued

This year, we completed our flood
protection scheme in Gloucester It has
kept the town free from flooding, despite
extrerne weather over the last two
winters Our Royal Leannington Spa
sewer iImprovement project, which will
protect 103 properties from flooding, 15
going to plan and will complete in 2014
This project won a notional Green Apple
award for recycling excavated matenial
and we're explonng how to extend this to
other schemes

Our overall serviceability remains
marginal We have continued to deliver
good performance on five of the six
indicators included in the serviceability
assessment On the sixth indicator,
sewer blockages, our performance

has shown an improving trend over

18 months (falling 13% last year) but
remains above the target agreed with
Ofwat The improvement is reflective of
the action we have taken throughout
the AMP5 penod Although our overall
environmental performance remains
positive, and the other customer and
environmental indicators within this area
are performing within or ahead of the
operating ranges agreed with Ofwat,
the application of the serviceability
framework results In a continuing
‘marginal’ assessment This 1s consistent
with the assessment included in our
PR14 Plan Our pollutions performance
15 included within Objective 7 - We will
protect our local ervironment - set out
onpage 21

We've macdle a good start to odopting
and upgrading private pumping staticns,
ahead of therr transfer on 1 October
2016 We've dlrecdy adopted and
upgraded 24 stations and will adopt
another 150 in the next year

We will continue to improve our blockage
and pollution perfermance by increasing
our focus on customer education 75%
of blockages are due to unwanted tems
that customers put down the tollet so we
are speaking to customers following any
local ncident and developing a broader
campaign to provide more focus in

this area

Objective 4 We will provide you with
excellent customer service

We want to make it easy to be a Severn
Trent customer In recent years we've
worked hard to offer our customers a
broader choice of contact channels, and
to deliver an improved expenence from
each of those channels For example,
today we answer more than 80% of
calls within 20 seconds, and very soon
we will be answering customer emails
within 4 hours We're also working hard
to simplify our processes and provide our
custorners with more straightforward
Journeys through the vanous touchpoints
of our organisation Cur company-wide
Customer Experience Programme

will continue to focus on practical,
measurable improvernents to what realty
matters to our customers so that we can
consistently deliver to them a 5 out of 5
expenence, every time, every day

There are a number of other ways

that we capture and try to measure
customer satisfaction Ofwat measures
our customer service using Its Service
Incentive Mecharism {SIM), which has
qualitative and quantitative elements
The qualitative element reflects our
custormners’ views of our service This year,
our qualitative score rose to 4 48 from

4 36, narrowing the gap between us and
our peer group Despite cur efforts we ore
stil in seventh place for the year for this
measure and we recogrise that our pace
of change needs to iImprove

The quantitative metnc reflects the
number of custormers who have to
contact us Qur performance improved
by 14% Overall, our SIM score was 81 55,
up from 78 11 last year

We also capture data through our ‘Voice
of the Custorner’ surveys, which gives us
feedback from around 10,000 customers
each month This shows that we're now
resolving 94% of customer issues first
time, while 93% are satisfied with the
way our advisors helped them

This year, we worked hard to understand
how we could more accurately predict
customer dermand This helps to ensure
that we have the nght resource at the
right t'ime, so we can respond faster to
our customers’ needs

During the year, we continued to roll
out our Great People programime
This gives our frontline advisors better
customer interaction skills and helps
our managers to run maore customer
focused operations

Affardable bills

Objective 5 We will have the lowest
possible charges for our customers

with household budgets under pressure,

we are pleased that our customers

benefit from the lowest combined water

and sewerage bills In England and Wales,

at £335n 2013/14 Curmulatively, our '
prices over the last five years have nsen |
by less than inflation, a record we intend

to maintam until 2020

This year, we have absorbed the
additional operating costs of the private
drains and sewers we adopted in October
2011 rather than seeking to pass these
onto customers We estimate that we'll
absorb additional operating costs of
around £38 rmidlion in AMPS, with around
£42 millon more capital nvestrment.

We continue to share efficency benefits
with our customers The additional

£150 milon of investment we
announced in May 2012 is helping to
delver our services, iIncluding cteaning our
sewers, Improving our sewage treatrment
works and reducing leakage To date,
we've invested £120 million, with the
remainder to follow mn 2014/15

Custorners who don't pay increase
the costs for those who do, so we take
a nigorous approach to ensuring that
everyone who can pay actually does
We have one of the industry’s lowest
levels of bad debt, at 2 2% of turnover

We continuolly improve the way we
work, so we can keep our customers’ bills
down and enhance our service We have
Introduced common systems and
processes which exploit our Investment
i our SAP enterpnse software solution,
which underpins and connects our
business operations For example, we are
simplifying our ‘Plan to Adopt’ process
(the way we build new assets) helping
us to deliver greater efficiency in our
capital programme
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Customer interaction

Custormers want to interact with us mn ways
that are convenient to them, so we've
strengthened our web self-service offering,
gving customers full access on a smartphone
or tablet We're also the UK's first utility to
launch Pingit, Barctays’ mobile payment app
We're already exploring the next innovabions
that will make it easier to pay

Dunng the year, we Invested in our
Customer Operations Service Centre

to improve efficlency and save money
When a customer reports a problem, our
agents have better inforrmation on the
affected asset, wark crew avallability and
other key factors, so we can fix problemns
faster and give our customers a better
service We've also invested in Netbase, a
system that analyses our infrastructure’s
performance so we can identify where
we need to focus the efforts of our work
crews to rapidly stop leaks

Collaborative working with our

supply chain partners also delivers
efficencies and business improvernents
In 2013/14, we renewed our ‘One
Supply Chain’ approach for a further
five years Extending these relationships
has enabled us to put together a

robust capitat programrme for AMPS
More generally, our Procurement team
has continued to help us cut the cost of
the goods and services that we buy with
a total of £58 million saved this year

Objective 6 We will help you
if you struggle

Poverty rates in our region are
significantly higher than the natronal
averoge and we recognise that some
customers genuinely struggle to pay therr
bdls We offer a wide range of social tanffs
and schernes to help, benefiting a total of
over 20,000 customersin 2013/14

This support includes the WaterSure
tanff, which caps bills for customers who
have particular difficutty in paying, and
Water Direct, which allows customers to
arrange small deductions from benefits,
to go towards therr bilt arrears

Image removed

The Severn Trent Trust Fund 1s o registered
charity, which has helped many
customers to meet their water bills

The Big Difference Fund 15 our partnership
with the Cihizens Advice Bureau {CAB)

The CAB helps our customers to address
therr broader finanaiat issues, so they can
ronirmise or avoid household debts more
effectively in the future Dunng 2013/14,
we donated o further £3 5 million to
these funds

Responsible business

Objective 7 We will protect our
local environment

Pollution incidents are caused by
unplanned discharges of water or
sewage Into the environment We've
further reduced the number of pollution
incidents, with senous pollution inadents
down by over a third We understand
that we are cne of only two companies
to deliver a year on year reduction in
serious pollutions, as recognised by the
Environment Agency (EA) Qur overall
environmental performance, assessed
in2012/13 by the EAas 3% (out of g
possible score of 4%}, has significantly
improved in 2013/14 We await the EA's
final assessment on performance, due to
be published In summer 2014 However,
there were two prosecution actions taken
by the EA during the yeor; this highlights
the need for continued iImprovernent

In our operational performance We've
increased our wisibility of our final
effluent quality by mstaling monitors at
350 sites, with 209 of these sites being
commissioned and in service (compared
to only 50 the previous year) We am to
have monitors at 520 sites by the end

of AMPS

We've continued to invest In our sewage
treatment works and we're on track to
complete our investrment programme
for AMPS Our non-infrastructure
improvement group has also analysed
and systematically eliminated problems

As aresult, onty five of our 704
consented sites falled to reach ther
compliance limits, giving us our best
ever performance of 99 29%, which has
contnbuted to the serviceability of our
above ground assets remaining stable

We alse continue to innovate, testing
the Lontra Blade compressor at our
Worcester sewage treatment works

The compressor 15 optimised for aerating
waste water, to reduce the electnicity

we use for this process by 20% The trial
demonstrated the unit’s efficiency

and reliability We've also begun work

on the UK’s first vertical flow reed

bed This technology offers the lowest
maintenance and most environmentally
friendly solution for sewage works in
rurat areas

In line with the EA’'s National Environment

Programme, we invested a further

£48 million to enhance nver quality,
bringing our AMP5 Investment to

more than £150 million This inctuded
Improving processes ot 15 sewage works
ond enabling public sewerage networks
for four communities to remove poiluting
private discharges

SJU3WRI0IS |oiduDUy dnosg  BauDwRA0g  Jodad 21bajons

$)UBLUBIDIS jDUBUY Aunduwo’

uonouwlIGjuLIByI0

21



22

Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Regulated performance
review continued

Educating our future customers

Through our Water Charmpions programme,
Severn Trent volunteers create fun and
educational water efficient gardens for
schools We also provide learming matenals
and home actmties, so children really learn
about water Aldermoor Farm Primary School,
Coventry, i1s one beneficiary Our volunteers
spent three days there, helping the schoal to
transform its outdoor learning erviroriment

We have an important role in protecting
biodversity, including at the 38 sites of
special scientific interest (SSSIs) we own
or partly manage We're working with
partners such as Natural England, Natural
Resources Wales, the EA, wildlife trusts
and the RSPB, to bring oll of our S551s into
favourable condition by 2020 Our key
wvisitor sites with SSSI status have been
entered nto Natural England's Higher
Level Stewardship schemes, which aim to
deliver significant ervironmental benefits
i priority areas In particular, we're
locking to increase biodiversity and offer
sustanable catchment management on
ouriaond

However, there are water quality 1ssues
at the 5551 at the Charnwood Reservoirs,
Leicestershire To address these we're
ctose to finalising a 10 year agreement
and legse with Leicestershire & Rutland
Wildlife Trust (L&RWT), which will enable
L.&RWT to manage the woodland and
reservolr margin, in line with Natura!
England’s S551 conservation objectives

We continue to have our woodlands
certified by the Forest Stewardship
Council and enter therm in the Forestry
Commussion’s woodland grant schemes
For example, a scheme at Carsington
Water manages the landholding to
berefit woodland birds while also
holding water, so it's slowly released
into catchments We also hiaise with
community groups such as bird clubs,
to monitor the numbers and species
of birds on and around our reservoirs
Volunteer groups have helped create
btodiversity habitats such as new
ponds, manage reed beds and restore
wildflower grasslands

Image removed

Objective 8 We will protect the
wider environment

Water and sewage treatment 1s energy
intensive and Severn Trent Water is
responsible for 98% of the group’s carbon
emissions We've been reporting our
performance for more than a decade and
have consistently reduced our emissions
and costs, through energy efficiency,
renewable energy production, iImproved
metering and more effective use of
transport In 2013714, our emissions
totalled 511 kilo tonnes of CO.e,a
reduction of 9% Qur plon 1s to reduce
our carbon ermissions by 3% in AMPE

We've had Carbon Trust Standard
accreditation since 2009 and contribute
to the Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP)
More information about our greenhouse
gus impact can be found in the Directors’
report on page 79

This year, we achieved 100% compliance
on satisfactory sludge disposal and
implerented a new IT systemn to
modernise cur compliance rmonitorng
and control We also invested in biosolids
storage, to mibigate the effects of severe
weather, and trialled innovative solutions
to ensure we can recycle biosolids dunng
challenging weather

We've built a sector leagding position in
renewable energy, which now provides
23% of our energy requirements

A number of these processes use by-
products or essential features of our
water or sewage treatment, and are
classed as part of our requlated business

Dunng the year, we instolled more
efficient combined heat and power units
at our largest sewage treatment works,
to increase output by 10% We're also
bullding our first, and the UK’s largest,
bio-methane njection plant at Minworth,
Birmingham Information about our non-
regulated renewables can be found on
pages 31 and 32

Objective 9@ We will make a positive
difference in the community

Our actvities bring broad economic

and social benefits to our region
According to research we commissioned
from Coventry University, for every £1 we
invest £1 66 15 generated and retaned

in the regional economy {figures from
‘Making a Difference’, a Severn Trent
Water Report) With an investment
programme of around £600 mullion in
2013/14, our contributton 1s considerable

We're also @ magjor employer, of more than
5,900 pecple We help young people into
work through our apprenticeships and
currently have more than 80 apprentrces
In our operations and customer seraces
As well os benefiting the young people
irvolved, this helps secure the skills we'll
need In the coming years

Educating our current and future
custorners is also key to helping people
understand how to use water efficently
and what can be safely disposed of in our
sewers Our schools education programme
reaches more than 45,000 children each
year, so they understand the vatue of
water We've extended this with our
company-wide Water Charmpions
volunteering programme This allows our
people to create fun and educational
water efficent gardens in local pnmary
schools, which they can incorporate into
everyday learming This engages our local
communities, while improving our people’s
skills and building working relationships
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Also, in 2013 we were a sponsor of the
Big Bang event in aur region The national
Big Bang programme 1s the lorgest
promotional event for science, technology,
engineering and maths for young people
in the UK and the regional event at the
Ricoh Arena in Coventry, UK, involved
nearly 4,000 scheelchildren

Our locol communities are actively
involved in helping the running of our
visitor sites, volunteenng nearly 20,000
hours each year on conservation,
maintenance actmity and providing
excellent custormer service Last year

we Invested over £1 1 mutlion in our
visttor sites and aver 3 million customers
visited our sites dunng 2013, highlighting
our continued commitment to offer
high levels of conservation, access and
recreation across our region At Draycote
Water, our reservor site near Rugby,

we have spent £330,000 over two

years remodelling and refurbishing the
visitor centre, bullding a children’s play
area and increasing parking facliies
Since its re-opening i April 2013 we hove
seen an Increase In visitor numbers of
almost 56%

Sustainable finance

Cbjective 10 We will finance our
business sustainably

We am to finance our business
sustainably, so we can invest now to
protect our future services We avoid
excessive debt, which would transfer

nsk to our custorers, and look for a
sustainable mix of debt finance at the
nght cost, reflecting the tong term nature
of our Investrment

Our financing needs are and will remain
substantial In AMP6 our plan suggests
we will need to raise around £2 6 billion
n new and refinanced debt, which
means it will be necessary to maintain an
nvestrnent grade credit rating Our long
term credit ratings are BBB+ (Standard
and Poor’s) and A3 {Moody’s) These are
in ine with regulatory assumptions and
were unchanged dunng the year

Cur gearing and interest cover remain

prudent - further detail can be found In
the Financial review on pages 33 to 37

Greqt people

To achieve our objectives, we have

a flexible work{orce, with people
who are willing to work In new ways,
embrace new skills and facus on our
customers’ needs

Our employee survey showed our highest
tevel of engagernent in eight years,

our engagement index reaching 81%
This compares with 79% last year and
75% for other benchmarked companies

Particular strengths included health and
safety, where our people understand our
commitment and therr own responsibility
for working safely Severn Trent’s Code

of Conduct, ‘Doing the nght thing - The
Severn Trent way', explains our approach
to 1ssues ranging from bnbery and
cornuption to excellent customer service
Our people recognise their responsibiity
for complying with the Code of Conduct
and our focus on doing the nght thing,
reflecting our continued training and
engagement in this area They also
understand how the company’s goals
and ther role contnbutes to customer
experience and are happy to go the extra
mile when required

As always, there are areas where

we can improve Incommon with

many orgarusations, our people think

we could be better at handling and
communicating change They also want
us to simplify our processes, reflecting
the number of new systems and
processes we've introduced in recent
years In response to feedback from last
year's survey, members of the Executive
Committee have held events around the
business meeting teams and sharing our
future plans We continue to hold events
around the business, allowing employees
to ask about our business and contribute
theirideas

Excellent health and safety

No one should get hurt or made unwell
by what we do We've sustained our
lost tme incident (LTT) rate at 0 21 per
100,000 hours warked {2012/13 0 21),
making us the leaders in our industry
Particular achievements included our
Water Produchion team working for an
entire year without an LT1

We've done this through further
investment and training Our ongoing
MindSafety® training programme helps
our people to understand hiow they
shoutd work and take responsibility for
their own safety

We've also implemented site based
safety improvernent teamns This gives
our people ownership of the Issues

and allows them to fix the doy-to-day
problems that can affect their health,
safety and wellbeing Our proactive
approach to hedlth, safety and wellbeing
continues to improve, with around
15,000 hazards identified and resolved
per month

Occupational health has been a focus
for us this year We've ntroduced a
physiotherapy and rehabiltation service
for those suffenng with musculoskeletal
problerns, which has reduced employee
absence by move than 1,000 days

We've also developed ‘Fit for the Future’,
which 15 part of our bespoke injury
prevention programme This programme
not only trains people in safe and efficient
rnanual handling but provides health

and nutntion adwice to support our
employees in mamntamnmg a healthy and
productive career The programme won
Rehabilitation Irtintive of the Year at the
Rehabilitctron First awards

Our next area of focus will be mental
heatth We've taken partin Time to
Change, England’s biggest programme to
end stigma and discnrmination for people
with mental health problems We want
to identify the gaps between supporting
people with mental health issues and
taking practical action We've surveyed
our people and are educating managers
and employees about bullding personal
restience to better manage challenges at
home and in work
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Regulated performance
review continued

Developing our people

We've continued to roll out our

Leading for Performance programme
This develops leaders who can coach
therr teams and inspire greater levels

of performance We've also run
development centres for 80 monagers,
benchmarking thern externally and
internally, and helping them to create
high quality personal development plans

We continue to develop our ine
managers through our Line Manager
Journey So far, we've trained nearly 700
people in a range of core managerment
skills We've nvested in IT and business
skills, as well as project and programme
management, with 850 training days this
year in those areas

Our Future Skills strategy encompasses
our apprentice and graduate
prograrmimes We've taken on more
graduates this year, ernploying 20 for
general leadership training ond we have
ntroduced atechnical engineenng
programme for graduates

{

A diverse workforce

A dwerse and inclusive culture 1
important for business success

Our approach 1s based on doing the
nght thing and we're working to ensure
our policies, processes and practices are
open, far and transparent

We monitor our perforrance against
arange of diversity measures and
benchmarks, so we can use the data

to nforrm our actions Our workforce 1s
slightly more diverse than the sector
overage 31% of our employees are
women compared to the industry
average of 28 9% 7 5% of our employees
are Black, Asian and Minonty Ethnic
{BAME) compared to the industry average
of 2% We're bullding a diversity and
mclusion plan to address particular areas
of mprovernent Qur current focus 1son
attracting more women mto operational
teadership roles and ensunng that our
frontlme operational roles are attractive
to BAME candidates To support our goals
we have carried out a complete review
of our Job descnptions and advertising
stroategy and trained over 320 managers
In effective nterview techniques

More information about our gender
diversity, including statistics far the
group, are provided in the Nominations
Committee report on pages 52 and 53

Information chout hurnan rights issues
for the group 1s set out in the Corporate
Responsibility Committee report on
pages 57 to 59

Rewording our people

We look to offer mnovatwe rewards for
our people, with a strong link to improving
business perforrmance Through our
flexible benefits scheme (‘Lifestyle’)
ermployees can choose certain benefits,
such as buying or seling annuat leave
days We also offer a range of products,
where we can use our buying power to
offer employees discounts Lifestyle won
the Best Flexible Benefits Scheme at the
Employee Benefits Awards in June 2013

It's also iImportant to align our
employees’ interests with those of our
shareholders and to share the benefits of
our success with them More than 5,000
employees are members of our Share
Incentive Plan and we offer a Sharesave
scheme, allowing employees to buy
discounted shares

Outlook

The next 12 months will see us complete
the delivery of our AMPS plan

In the coming months we will also
finalise our plan for AMP6, so we can
cortinue to deliver for our customers,
shareholders, employees and the
ervironment We'll ensure we'reina
position to start delivering it from day one
of AMPE

Ofwat has committed to publishing its
final deterrmination of all comparies’

. plans by 12 Decernber 2014

A diverse and inclusive culture is important
for business success. Our approach is based
on doing the right thing and we’re working

to ensure our policies, processes and practices
are open, farr and transparent.”
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Non-regulated

Severn Trent Services

Better
for Patrick

Along term waste water operations
partnership saved tens of thousands
of dollars for Severn Trent Senices’
business customer Patrick Banger

Better valueand a
heatthier environment

Helping our
customer
and the
environment

We've operated the Neely Wastewater
Reclamation Facility in Gilbert, Anzong,
since 1999 While the town’s population
has boormed, we've still delivered
Irnprovernents that benefit our
customer and the environment All the
faclity’s treated water goes to imgate
parks, golf courses and comman areas,
or to recharge faclity basins We've
worked to save the town more than
£60,000 in operating expenses, while
solar power system will save a further
£1 2 mitbon over 20 years

Image removed

£1.2m

saving over 20 years
through a solar
power system
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Non-regulated

business model

Our non-regulated business allows us to
maximise our water and waste water
treatment knowledge by creating and
delivenng services and products to the
UK and glebal muricipal, industnal and
commercial sectors

We also provide renewable energy to
the group and are looking to identify
new opportunities in energy generation

Where risks are currently considered

Principal Risks, further detalls are provided

on pages 39to 41

STS Operating Services

STS Water Purification
(Products)

Renewable energy

O,

 J

Image
removed

Identify and develop

opportunities

Identify and develop opportunities in
non-regulated markets

Operating Services pravides contract
operations and mantenance for water
and waste water treatment facilities
for murigipal and industnal clents and
the UK Mirustry of Defence (MOD)

Inthe UK we provide design, bulld and
contract operations for water and waste
water treatment faclities for a vanety

of Industriol segments and supply retall
water to businesses throughout the UK

Products provides filtration, disinfection
and process solution technologies for
various municipal and industnal water
and waste water treatment applications
and the manne and offshore industnes

Severn Trent's non-regulated business
generates renewable energy from

wind turbines and the anaerobic
digestion (AD) of crops and we are

now expanding intc the food waste AD
market. Qur planned facility at Coleshull,
Warwnckshire, UK, will convert up to
44,000 tonnes of food waste into 17,026
MWh of electricity and opproximately
30,000 tonnes of biofertiliser for
agriculture per year by 2016 We plan

to Ivestigate the developrment of other
technologies including photovoltaics (PV)
and biomaoss combustion

®
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Create products

and services

Create products and services that help
our clients manage their water and
energy needs

Our strategy 1s to continue growing our
Cperating Services business in the US
and Europe

Water supply services across the UK

are changing, with legislation giving
businesses a choice In who they buy
their water and waste water services
from Operating Services 1S pursuing
this open market moverment, helping
businesses achieve optimurn water and
waste water management through
enhanced services

Our strategy 1s to ntroduce next
generation products for traditional
markets and develop technologies to
address needs in new geographies
Addressing specific regional needs (such
os gas feed in Indig, and disinfection
and filtration in Ching) we will be able

to provide products that delver the best
value for the custormer

In 2014/15 we waill supply over 40,000
Mwh of electricity and heat to our
reguiated business

Our new food waste AD business will
provide a service for the recycling

of mdustnal, commeraial, retal and
domestic food waste




O,

4

Image
removed

Build strong and

respected brands

Build strong and respected brands that
are recogrused across our sectors

Operating Services s recogrised as

the largest private operator in terms

of facilites operated in the US, where
we serve more than 400 facilities in

22 states These facilities regularly win
awards in areas such as ervironmental
compliance, health and safety and
overall plant performance

Operating Services has taken a leading
role in the UK water supply market With
water services licences for Scotland,
England and Wales, we offer multi-sited
businesses the benefits and synergies of
a single supplier approach

Our brands are used and recognised
throughout the werd Some of our key
brands are

ClorTec? on-site sodium hypochlorte
generation systems

Capital Controls® aline of gas feed
systems ond accessones

TETRA® 15 one of the most trusted
names n drinking water and waste
water filters

BALPURE? ballast water treatment
technology

We are recognised as being expenenced
in the field of anaerobic digestion and
combined heat and power generation
(CHP) Qur expertise in this complex
biclogical pracess means that we can be
trusted to provide an excellent service

G}

Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

 J

image
removed

Maximise our return

Maximise our return on INvestment
through long term contracts and
service agreements and cross
dissermunation of our products

We continue to enter new states in

the US, securing our largest monetary
contract to date in Bridgepart,
Connecticut, while expanding our
presence in California with the
acquisition of 14 contracts from
SouthWest Water Company Long term
contracts with the MOD and First Milk
provide continuing stability

We are moving to a regional operating
model, which wilt better address

our markets, bring us closer to our
customers and realign the cost base
to iImprove rmargins We believe the
effectiveness of our core technologies
can deliver long term potential
Afterrmarket sales of our water
treatment technologies represents a
further opportunity We look to enter
new and targeted market geographies
to expand our market presence

We have established electricty and
heat power sale/purchase agreements
with our regulated business We will

be entenng into long term contracts
with the wider supply market to process
food waste

Associated risks

Hozardous processes may result in our
pecple betng injured (Principal Risk Ref 6)

Folure of products or treatment
processes may result in ervironmental
damage and regulatory non-compliance
{Pnncipal Risk Ref 7}

Regulatory or political change may lead
to decreased demand for our services

We may be unable totake advantage of
the opening up of the UK retall market to
competition (Principat Risk Ref 2)

Fatture of products or treatrment

processes rmay result ininjury to people,
environmental damage and regulatory
non-compliance (Prncipal Risk Ref 6 and 7)

Disruption in the global supply chain may
impact our ability to meet dient needs

The intellectual property in our key
products may be used by competitors
Regulatory change may lead to
decreased demand for our products
New products may be introduced to the
market leading to increased competition
for our products and services

Non-delvery of the expected benefits of
the restructunng plan

Hazardous processes may result in our
people being injured (Principal Risk ref 6)
We may be exposed to iIncreased
volatility in energy prices

Regulatory or political change or local
opposition to our plans may affect our
ability to generate sufficient renewable
energy to achieve our targets
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Non-regulated

performance review

Severn Trent Services delivered a

mixed perforrmance in 2013/14
Operating Services performed well,
winning new contracts and delivering
growth year on year However, in our
Praducts business, shipments were below
expectations due to continuing custormer
project and delivery delays, leading to
lower revenues and profit before interest,
tax and exceptional tems {PBIT) for
Severn Trent Services as o whole

After adjusting for the impact of disposals
in 2012/13 and exchange movernents,
revenue was 1 3% higher but PBIT was
down by 48 6% Reported revenue fell by
5 2% to £311 1 million, while reported
PBIT was down 43 7% at £7 1 million

Operating Services

Operating Services grew year on year,
winning new business in the US and UK,
and successfully renewing contracts

in the US and Italy, with contract
retention rates overall ahead of target.
Tumover increased to £209 9 miflion, up
8 0% dfter adjusting for exchange rates
and disposals In the prior year

The US business secured its largest ever
win by monetary value in Bndgeport,
Connecticut, to provide operation,
maintenance, management and
custormner services for the local waste
water collection and treatment systerns

Image
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The £13 8 milion a year, 10 year contract
15 our first in Connecticut, gving us a
presence In 22 states, and a potential
springboard to win further work in New
England The business also won 24 new
projects in the Texas Gulf Municipal Utility
District region

We dlso acquired 14 contracts from
the Califormia based SouthWest Water
Company, representing approximately
£4 8 million in annual revenue, which
expands the number of public private
partnerships we have in Califorra

In the UK, we took full ownership of

the Severn Trent Costain business

Our relationshup with First Milk progressed
with a 10 year design, build and operate
contract to provide a new effluent
treatment plant in South Wales

We are well posittoned 1n our plans

to toke advantage of the opering up

of business retal market beginning in
2017, leveraging Severn Trent’s skills and
expertise to offer customers a single
expert supplier

10 year

Brdgeport
contract

Bridgeport, Connecticut

In January 2014 Operating Services

began its largest ever contract in terms of
monetary value with the Water Follution
Control Authonty of the City of Bndgeport,
Connecticut. The 10 year contract, which
includes twa subsequent five year options,
requires us to provide aperation, mantenance,
management and custorner services for the
Authority's waste water systems.
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Back River Wastewater Tregtment Plant

Products has been aworded a contract to
provide its TETRA® Dentte® denitrfication filter
technology to the Back River Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP} in Baltimore,
Maryland The TETRA Denite process will

be used to reduce high levels of nutrents
discharged into the Chesapeake Bay

Upon comptetion, the £14 million installation
will be the largest fixed-film denitrfication
systemn in the world

Cur 25 year, £1 biilion cperation and
mantenance contract with the UK
Miristry of Defence 1s now inits ninth
year We've continued to deliver

our contractuot commitments for
environmental performance and
asset improverment

In Italy we successfully completed the
reorganisation and refinancing of our
associate business SII This iIncluded

on agreement to reduce the levels of
any shareholder supporting guarantees
and set up contracted repayment
amangements over 15 years for toans
provided by shareholders SII has already
paid over the first amounts due under
these new arrangements which will,
over tirme, reduce the fully provided gross
exposure of the group

Water Purification {Products)
Performance was disappointing, with
shipments below expectations due to
continuing customer project and delivery
delays across a nurnber of markets, along
with poer executton on some mternal
projects impacting negatively on both
revenues and PBIT

Products’ performance in Amenca and
Europe was impacted due to difficult
economic conditions and limited
custorner investment In water and waoste
water projects

In emerging markets such as Asia
Pacific, demand remained consistent

for disinfection and filtration products
due to continued urbanisation In Ching,
effluent discharge standards continued
to dnve filtration product dermand
Important wins included a contract to
provide our Copital Controls® chlonnation
system to the Chengdu Seventh Tap
Water Plant in Chengdu, China

In Severn Trent De Nora, we have secured
a framework agreement with a global

ol company for future installation

of our OMNIPURE™ and BALPURE®
products Custerner delays offected all
product lines, largely in EMEA where the
customers’ development of new offshore
operations 1s behind schedule

In the manne rmaorket, we still await
ratification of ballast water treatment
standards by the International Martime
Crgarization As a result, sales of our
BALPURE® product line rernain lower
than expected However, BALPURE® still
delivered growth and we have a pipeline
of new projects We continue to Invest
in BALPURE®, so it has o broader reach
across the marketplace This includes
maodifying the product to make it more
cost competitive for srmaller ships, and
taking costs out of the original design to
improve its competitiveness across the
product range

Orders were up by 23% over the pnor
year, and the challenge is to now corwert
these orders into revenue Turnover was
£101 5 mitlion, a decrease of 10 3%
after adjusting for exchange rates and
disposats in the prior year

Action has already been taken to
return the business to profitable
growth, ncluding installation of a new
management teamn, and over the next
12 months our Products business will
realign its cost base to improve margins
growth Nevertheless, we have taken

a cautious view of the nsks related to
these actions and have recorded an
mnpoirment of £24 7 million against
goodwill in the business During the
year the business continued its move
to a regional operating model, which
will better address our markets and
bring us closer to our custorners

£14m

denitrification
system
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Our products must continue to deliver
value for custarners so we've created
teams for each of our core product
categenes disinfection, filtratron and
electrochlonnabion Lo ossess our
current platforrns and determine
future needs As aresult, a number of
research and development projects in
our filtration and ultrowiolet disinfection
portfolios were discontinued to focus
on current needs We are developing
next generation products for traditional
disinfection and gas feed markets that
will deliver better value for rmoney

We are also developing a dedicated
aftermarket sales team to create a new
revenue stream, with Severn Trent De
Nora the first to provide an offering
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Continuous improvement

Our teams, Induding Health, Safety and
Ervronment, Human Resources and Legal
Counsel, are dedicated to iImplementing
systems and shanng best practices

which empower our cofleagues to

do the nght thing - the Severn Trent way
Protecting health and safety 1s one of our
core values We set targets every year for
ncrernental improvement and we beat
our Lost Time [ncidents (LTI} target of 030
for 2013/14 with a scare of ¢ 27 (see STS
KP! 1 on page 9} Our achieverments
included three consecutive months, and
six rmonths in total, with no LTIs

The business also continues to adopt
Safer Better Faster, our approach to
continuous Improvement, with ¢ number
of our facitities and offices introducing
some or all elements of it Thisis driving
safety and operational improvernents

29
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Better
for Neil

Renewable Energy Manager Neil
Liddell-Young expects our new

£13 million food waste anaercbic
digestion plant to generate a further
2% of our energy needs

Image
removed

Image removed




204 GWh

Severn Trent
generation 2013/14
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We’re generating 23% of our
energy from renewable sources

Today, Severn Trent as a group generates
23% of Sevemn Trent Water’s energy from
a wide vanety of sources Having explored
opporturities from water and sewage we
are now expanding our non-regulated
renewables portfolio, with our pnmary
focus for expansion being the emerging
food waste digestion market

We've now started work on @ new plant,
which by 2016 wall corwert up to 44,000
tonnes of food and iiguid waste into
17,026 Mwh of energy - equivalent to g
further 2% of our requirements

We're investing £13 million in the plant,
ot Coleshill, Warwickshire This will create
new challenges for our employees and
supply chain as well as seven new jobs
in the local community when it opens
later this year The plant’s environmental
bernefits indude preventing food waste
going to landfill, reducing our net carbon
ermissions and providing high quality
biofertiliser, to replace man-maode
clternatives The plant will also further
improve our resilience and our ability

to serve our customers, by making

us less reliant on electncity from the
naticnal gnd

Prcture abowe Agrivert Ltd plant
31
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Non-regulated performance
review continued

Customer service

It1s our objective to provide excellent
customer service Since 2013 we have
been monitonng customer satisfaction
through our Voice of the Customer
surveys (see measures of objectives 4
and9onpage 9) For STSKPE 11, thisis
the first year that we have full dota for
the whole of STS We scored 4 24 out of 5
for this year

Process

We've continued to Invest In our systems
We've Introduced a new enterpnse
resource planning system, and
implemented the Workday human
resource management system, which
enables us to manage our global
workforce of 2,387 employees froma
central application We have also
implemented a global customer
relationship management system and
rmade all our operating systems cloud
based A common IT infrastructure
1mproves our communications and allows
us to develop commen processes, 50
improwing our efficiency

Great people

Our successful heolth and safety
performance 1s often recognised
externally, for exarnple in Novemnber 2013
we receved a plant safety award from the
Eastern Pennsylvania Water Pollution
Control Operators Association

We stnve to support and develop our
great people, their skills and opportunities
for creative and Innovative thinking

In 2012/13, we put in place a training and
development team This year, the team
has been active across the business and
initiated a range of traning and
leadership development programmes,
including onboarding for new recruits

All colleagues who fulfil a leadership role
are expected to further develop therr skills
and many of our managers have been
involved in self owareness and team
bullding events

Nearly 900 employees took part inthis
year's Global Corporate Challenge, 0 16
week team based physical actmty and
wellbeing programme involving more than
37,000 teams globally Our employees
took more than 919 million steps and
walked 365,000 miles, finishing second
among all the companies in the gas,
electnoity and water supply cotegory and
reporting mary positive benefits

Our employee engagement remains

high but just below target, at 75%
{2012/13 77%) We conduct a bi-annual
survey and quartetly pulse surveys, based
on a random selection of 25% of our
employees These show continued
positive perceptions of our business
among our employees

Information about diversity iInitiatives
and cur gender diversity, ncluding
statistics for the group, 1s provided in the
Nominations Committee report on pages
52and 53

Information about diversity imtratives and
human rights issues for the group 1s set
out in the Corporate Responsibility
Committee report on pages 57 to 59

Renewables

Inaddition to the renewable energy
generation that forms part of our
requlated business (see page 22) we
continued to builld our non-regulated
renewable capacity

After secunng planning permission, we've
started work on site on our first food
waste anaerobic dgestion plont at
Coleshill, Warwickshire We're planning to
commission the plant towards the end

of 2014

We've installed our first four large wand
turbines at sites In Derby, Leicester and
Newthorpe, and three of these are now
generating electnoty Two more turbines
are planned for the coming year We've
also expanded our ¢rop anaerobic
digestion ptant in Nottingham This can
now produce 33% more renewable
energy, ncluding heat sales Severn Trent
Water uses the electnoity and heat that
we generate In its water and waste water
treatment processes

Outlook

Our expectations for our non-regulated
business remain positive

Recent new business in Operating Services
will provide long term revenue stability, as
the business seeks to expand nto larger
markets through organic growth

Next generation products ond new
gecgraphies will provide opporturities for
Products, offsetting delayed customer
spending in traditional markets We will
continue to tnvest in BALPURE®, while
awaiting IMO ratification of ballast water
treatment standards We also expect to
see sustanable growth from our
aftermarket sales intiative While moving
to aregional operating structure, we will
target continuous iImprovernent across all
business segments and ensure we
properly manage our supply chain
Hawving the nght cost base and
appropnate products for each region will
allow us to develop into a sustanable
global business

Our non-regulated renewable energy
generation continues to grow os we seek
to expand into different technologies arx
new markets
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Financial review

Group financiat performance

The group has delivered a good finanaial performance overall
with year on year improvernents at Severn Trent Woter and the
Operating Services part of our non-requiated business Severn
Trent Services, while the Products side has struggled with both
market dynamics and execution on a nurmber of projects

In the regulated business, Severn Trent Water, the costs that
we directly control were held at infiation, while other costs

over which we have less direct influence, notably power costs,
continued to increase at levels higher than inflatron, a trend we
have seer in pror years We ramtained our good perforrmance
on bod debts at 2 2% of turnover (UK GAAP), which 1s creditable
in the current clmate where househcld incomes remamn under
pressure We continued to sustan our planned investment

in the ossets and infrastructure that suppart this long term
business with total caprtal expenditure at £602 1 million, up

8 5% on the prior year, though infrastructure mantenance
expenditure included in this figure and expensed under IFRS
accounting rules was down £7 4 mullion {5%), driven by shorter
term operational requirements

With no substantial change in financing structures this

year, finance costs increased to nsing ta £247 9 million

{2013 £244 3 milion} largely os a result of the higher level of
net debt

PBIT is profit before interest and tax, underlying PBIT 1s PBIT
excluding exceptional items before tax as set out nnote 8

on page 104 Our tax position this year reflects an outline
ogreerment we have reached with HMRC on a long standing
discussion regarding overpayments of tax in pnor periods {as
set out In note 13 on pages 105 to 106) and we have now
factored this into our business plan for 2015 - 2020 to support
lower custormer prices n AMP& Prior perod comparative figures
have been restated, where indicated, for the chonge in the
accounting policy for retirerment benefits The impact is to
decrease profit previously reported by £11 5 million, with an
equal and opposite movernent In reserves

Group turnover was £1,856 7 mullion (2013 £1,831 6 million),
anincrease of 1 4% over last year

Underlying group PBIT increased by 4 3% to £516 8 million
{2013 £495 4 million} The primary factors affecting underlying
PBIT are described in the commentary an Severn Trent Water
and Severn Trent Services below

There were net exceptional iters before tax of £44 4 rrullion
(2013 £5 8 million) Group PBIT decreased 3 5% to
£472 & milion (2013 £489 6 million)

Regulated - Severn Trent Water

Turnover in Severn Trent Water increased by 2 2% 1n 2013714,
to £1,544 8 millon Prices were increased by 1% tess than
November 2012 inflation of 3 0% from 1 April 2013 which gave
nse to an incregse In turnover of £29 8 milion The 2013 dry
surmmer led to higher consurmption from metered customers
which increased turnaover by £7 1 million year on year Growth,
net of the impact of meter optants, increased turnover by

£1 3 milllon which was offset by other decreases amounting to
£4 4 milion

Undertying PBIT increased by 4 0% to £518 6 mullion

Operating costs increased by 3 1% to £600 3 millien in line
with expectations Depreciation increased by £3 3 million due
to the smpact of copitol expenditure increasing the size of the
asset base and there was a decrease in infrastructure renewals
expenditure of £7 4 million

Directly managed costs increased in line with the level of
mflation at 3 0% year on year, while ndirectly managed costs,
over which we have less control, ncreased by 3 2%

2013 ’ Increaseltaecreuse)

2014
fm £m £m %
Directly managed costs
Employee costs 2386 2266 120 53
Hredond contracted 1541 1475 66 45
Raw matertals and )
consurnables 425 434 (09) (271}
Other 488 495 07 (14
Costs capitalised (92.6) (871) {55) 63
3914 3799 115 30
Indirectly managed costs - —
Bad debts 313 318 (@5 (16
Power 653 606 47 78
Ratesand sericecharges 1123 1101 22 20
2089 2025 64 32
Operating costs 600.3 5824 179 31

Overall net labour costs, ncluding hired ond contracted and
after costs capitolised, were 4 6% higher penod on period

Raw matenals and consumables were lower than the prior year
prnmarly due to savings within waste water

Bad debts remained stable at 2 2% of turnover {UK GAAP) due
to our continuing proactive approach and range of social tanffs
to help customers pay their bills The iIncrease in power costs
arose due to higher stnke pnces on our energy swaps

Dunng the year, Severn Trent Water invested £602 1 million
(2013 £555 4 million) (UK GAAP, net of contributions) in fixed
assets and mantaining and improwving Its infrastructure network
Included in this total wos net infrastructure maintenance
expenditure of £140 3 millen (2013 £147 7 milhion), charged to

. the income statement under IFRS
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Financial review continued

Non-regulated - Severn Trent Services

increase/
2014 2013 (decreqse)
£m fm %
Turnover
Services as reported 3114 3285 (52%)
Structural changes - {211)
Impact of exchange rate
fluctuations ) - 01
Like for like 3114 3075 13%
Increase/
2014 2013 ({decregse)
£m £m %
Underlying PBIT )
Senvices as reported ) 71 126 (43 7%)
Structural changes - 12
Like for ke 71 138 (486%)

In Severn Trent Services there was like for like growth in sales but
underlying PBIT, measured on the same basis, was lower

The like for like results show the pnor year results using current
year exchonge rates and exclude the amounts in the prior year
that arose from the Analytical Services and Metering Services
businesses, which were sold in that yeor

Performance was mixed Operating Senaces performed well
and iike for ke turnover was £209 9 million, an increase of 8 0%
compared to the prior year However, in Products, shipments
were below expectations due to continuing customer project
and delvery delays leading to lower like for ike turnover at
£101 5 million, o decrease of 10 3% compared to the prior year

Both businesses were impacted by net exceptional costs
totalling £31 5 midlion, the detail of which 1s In the exceptional
items section below

Corporote and other

Corporate overheads amounted to £13 6 million

(2013 £14 6 milion) Cur other businesses generated an
underlying profit of £2 5 million 2013 loss of £2 7 millon)
This included an underlying profit on our captive insurance
actvity of £2 3 milion {2013 loss of £1 8 million) and an
underiying loss of £0 4 rmillion (2013 loss of £09 mitlion ) in
our renewables business ansing rmainly from new investment
feasibility and other similar costs taken to charge There were
exchange losses in Corporate of £0 7 milion (2013 gains of
£0 4 million)

Exceptional items before tax

There were net exceptional operating costs in the year to

31 March 2014 of £44 4 rrllion (£4 3 million) which are
descnbed in further detail below, and in the pror year in Severn
Trent Services there was a net exceptional loss on disposal of
businesses of £1 5 million

Exceptional operating tems incdluded

+ In Severn Trent Water, a profit of £8 2 million ansing from the
disposal of a number of properties,

« InSevern Trent Services exceptional costs of
£31 5 million compnsing

- In Products, a goodwill imparment of £24 7 million as
the prospects for this business depend on the successful
execution of a plan to reduce the structural cost base
of the business and move it closer to growth markets
Management has taken a cautious view of the risks of
delvery of the expected benefits of this plan and, inine
with the requirements of accounting standards, has
not inctuded these benefits in its assessment of the
recoverability of the goodwill At 31 March 2014 the group
was committed to restructuning costs of £3 4 million ansing
frorn the implementation of this plan A write down of
software development costs of £2 4 mullion ansing from the
termination of a planned ERP system replacement that will
no longer be required as a result of this reorganisation has
also been recorded as an exceptional cost

- InQperating Senvces costs of £1 2 million ansing from
the rearganisation of the business in the UK following the
acquisttion of Costan's minonty share in that business
and £1 9 milon in Italy to complete a reorganisation of
the senior management structure commenced in the
prior year

- Release of £1 2 million from a provision recorded in the prior
year for a commeraal legal dispute that was settled in the
current year for an amount lower than had been estimated

» In Corporate there were exceptional costs of £18 7 million
ansing from adwisory, legal and cther services related to
LongRiver Partners approach and an additional provision of
£2 4 rmllion relating to potential labilities frorn warranties
granted on disposal of a business in @ prior year

Net finance costs

The group's net finance costs were £247 9 million, compared
with £244 3 rrullion in the prior year

The effective interest rate, Including index inked debt, for
2013/14 was 5 8% (2013 59%) The cash interest rate was
49% (2013 4 9%) The non-cash interest charge was lower year
on year following repayment of an index inked loan dunng the
year This was offset by an increased cash interest charge ona
tugher level of net debt. Changes to the accounting standard
IAS 19R have resulted i anincrease of £17 2 million in net
pension finance cost (prior year figures have been restated by
£12 4 million to reflect these changes)

Gans/({losses) on financial instruments

The group uses financial denvatives solely to hedge nsks
assoaated with its normal business actmties ncluding

« Exchange rate exposure on borrowings denominoted in
foreign currencies,

» Interest rate exposures on floating rate borrowings, and
- Exposures to increases in electncity prices
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Accounting rules require that these dervatives are revalued at
each balance shest date and, unless the cnteria for cash flow
hedge accounting are met, the changes in value are taken to
the income statement If the nsk that 1s being hedged does
neot mpact the income statement inthe same period then cn
accounting nmusmatch anses from the hedging activities and
there is a net charge or credit to the income statement

Where the denvatives are held to their full term, these
mismatches are expected to net out. Furthermore, the changes
in value that are recorded during the lives of the dernvatives,
unless crystallised, do not represent cash flows Therefore the
group presents adjusted earnings figures that exclude these
non-cash iterns An analysts of the amounts credited to the
Income statement i the penod I1s presented in note 12 to the
financial statements on page 105

Profit before tax

Underlying group profit before tax increased by 7 1% to
£269 1 rullon (2013 £251 3 rmillion} Group profit before tax
was £282 7 millon (2013 £200 2 rmithon)

Taxation

The current year tax charge for 2013/14 befare exceptional
iterns was £56 5 million (2013 charge of £27 9 million)

This indudes a charge of £9 3 million ansing from adjustments
to pror year tax computabions In the previous year adjustrents
to prior year tax computations resulted in a current tax credit

of £29 2 mitlion due pnmanly to an industry agreement over

the treatment of infrastructure income in those computations
The deferred tax charge before exceptional tax was

£21 5 million {2013 credit of £8 2 million)

An exceptional current tax credit of £59 2 million has been
recogrised, reflecting the anticpated refund of overpayrment of
tax in pnor penods as HMRC has now agreed that certan capital
expendrture within our water and waste water treatment
works 1s eligible for capital allowances as plant and machinery
This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of
£56 2 million

There was a further exceptional credit to deferred tax of

£114 8 million (2013 £36 7 million) ansing from the reduction
in corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% with effect from 1 April
2014 and then to 20% from 1 April 2015

In the prior year the group’s UK subsidiary companies adopted
the new accounting standard FRS 101, which changed the basis
for those companies’ corporation tax computations The most
sigrificant smpact of this change 1s that certain amounts that
had been taxed in previous years were recogrused as profits

and wilt be taxed in future periods Therefore, to prevent such
iterns being taxed twice, the tax already paid on such items
was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional
credit in the prior year of £40 5 million to current tax and an
exceptional charge of £38 8 miliion to deferred tax

The total tax credit for the year was £152 2 million (2013 credit
of £18 7 milion)

See note 13 on pages 105 to 106 for further detail

The underlying effective rate of current tax, excluding pnor
year credits, exceptional tax credits and tox on exceptional
items and financial nstruments, calcutated on profit before
tax, exceptional tems before tax and gans/{losses) on financial
Instruments was 17 3% (2013 25 4%j)

We expect the effective rate of current tax, as defined above, for
2014/15 to be in the range of 20% t0 22%

Profit for the year and earmings per share
Profit for the year was £434 9 million {2013 £218 9 milbon)

Adusted basic earnings per share (before exceptional iterns,
gans/{losses) on financial instruments and deferred tax} were
88 4 pence (2013 92 6 pence) (see note 15 on pages 107 to
108) Although underlying profit before tax was higher year

on year, the previous year current tax charge benefited from

a large pnor year current tax credit and so adjusted earnings
per share are lower year on year Basic earnings per share were
182 1 pence (2013 909 pence)

Cash flow

2014 2013

£m £m

Cash generated from operations 730.2 7312
Net caprital expenditure (463 9) (401 8)
Net interest paid ~ (2045) (2334)
Tax receved/(paid) ] 272 {725}
Other cash flows {0.6) (05)
Free cash flow 884 230
Acquisitions and disposals (11 4) 111
Dividends ) (185 3) (3220)
Net 1ssue of shares 23 53
Change in net debt from cash flows (106 G) (282 6)
Non cash movernents ) (44.2) (469)
Change In net debt (150.2) (3295)
Net debt 1 April (4,297 3) (3,9678)
Net debt at 31 March (4,4475) (4,2973)
Net debt comprises: )
Cash and cash equivalents . 123.2 4036
Bank overdrafts ) - (04)
Cross currency swaps hedging debt 514 1007
Bank loans (594 9) {758 7)
Other loans (3,8260) (3,8409)
Finance leases (20012) (2016)

(4,447 5) (4,297 3)

Cash generated from operations was £730 2 million
(2013 £731 2 milion) Capital expenditure net of grants
and proceeds of sales of fixed assets was £463 8 million
{2013 £401 8milion) Net interest paid decreased to
£204 5 million (2013 £233 4 million)
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Financial review continued

In the first part of the year the group made payments of tax,
however, the exceptional credits in prior penods ansing from the
water industry’s outline ogreement with HMRC resulted in tax
refunds in the second half of the year In total the group paid
£48 5 million of tax and received tax refunds of £75 7 million
resulting In net tax recenved of £27 2 million

Net debt at 31 March 2014 was £4,447 5 million

(2013 £4,297 3 millon) Balance sheet geonng (net debt/net
debt plus equity) at the year end was 80 3% (2013 83 6%)

Net debt, expressed as a percentage of RCV at 31 March 2014

of £7,618 million was 58 4% (2013 58 4%) The group's net
interest charge, excluding gains/{losses) on financiol instruments
and net finance costs from pensions, was covered 3 3 times
{2013 3 2 times) by profit before interest, tax, depreciation

and exceptional iters, and 2 1 times {2013 2 0times) by
underlying PBIT

Following the ntroduction of the new accounting standard,
IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’, the group 1s required to
omend its approach to estimating the fair value of its debt
instruments to comply with the new standard which rnow
places more emphasis on quoted pnces in active markets rather
than expected cash flows discounted using rotes derwved from
market data The farr value of net debt at 31 March 201415
estimated to be £4,799 8 million (£4,880 4 mitlion) compared to
the book value of £4,447 5 mullion (2013 £4,297 3 million}

Treasury management and bquidity
The group’s principal treasury managemenit objectives are

- to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both
the quanturn required and lowest cost compatible with the
need for continued avalability;

* to maintan an nvestrnent grade credit rating, and
- to mantan a flexible and sustanable balance sheet structure

The group continues to carefully monitor iquidity

At 31 March 2014 the group had £123 2 million

(2013 £403 6 million} 1n cash and cash equivalents and
committed undrawn faclities amounting to £500 millon
(2013 £500 milllor) Average debt matunty is around 16 years
The group 1s funded for ts investment and cash flow needs up
to January 2015 without recourse to comrmitted facilities or
new debt

Cash 1s invested in deposits with highly rated banks and liquidity
funds and the bist of counterparties is regularly reviewed

Treasury policy and operations

Qur treasury affairs are manoged centrally ond in accordance
with our Treasury Procedures Manual and Policy Statement.
The treosury operation’s role 1s to manage Liquidity, funding,
investrent and our financial nsk, Including nisk from volatilty n
Interest and {to a lesser extent) currency rates and counterparty
credit nsk, The board determines matters of treasury policy and
its approval is required for certain treasury transections

Our strategy is to access a broad range of sources of finance

to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost
compatible with the need for continued avallability Our principal
operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water, 1s a long term

business charactensed by multi year investment programmes
Our strategic funding objectives reflect this and the higuidity
position and avallability of committed funding are essential to
meeting our objectives and obligations We therefore am for g
balance of long term funding or commitment of funds across o
range of funding sources at the best possible economic cost

We use fingnaiat denvatives solely to manoge risks associated
with our normal business actiaties We do not hold or issue
dervative financial instruments far financial trading

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is fully hedged,
our business does not involve significant exposure to foreign
exchange transactions We have nvestments in various assets
denominated in foreign currencies, pnncipally the US dollar

and the euro Our current policy 1s to hedge an element of the
currency translation nsk associoted with certan foreign currency
denorinated assets

The group Issues notes in foreign currency under its EMTN
programme and uses cross cutrency swaps to convert the
proceeds to stering The effect of these swaps 15 thot interest
and principal payments on the borrowings are denorminated in
sterling and hence the currency risk is eliminated The foreign
currency notes and the cross currency swaps are recorded in
the balance sheet at therr fair volues and the changes in far
values are taken to gains/{losses) on finanaal Instruments in the
Income statement Since the terms of the swaps closely match
those of the undertying notes, such changes tend to be broadly
equal and opposite

The group's current policy for the management of interest

rate nsk requires that not tess than 45% of the group’s
borrowings should be at fixed interest rates, or hedged through
the use of interest rate swaps or forward rate ogreements

At 31 March 2014, interest rates for 77% of the group’s net debt
of £4,447 5 millon were fixed

The group holds Interest rate swaps with a net notional principal
of £591 4 million and cross currency swaps with a net notional
prinapal of £610 2 milion which economically act to hedge the
interest rate nsk on floating rate debt or the exchange rate nsk
on certan foreign currency borrowings However, the swaps do
not meet the hedge accounting rules of 1AS 39 and therefore
the changes in fair value are taken to gains/(losses) on financial
instruments n the income statement. During the year there was
. acredit of £44 5 milion in relation to these instruments
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The group has entered into a series of forward starting interest
rate swaps with a notional pnncipal amount of £450 millon
that hedge the interest rate nsk on the anticipated borrowing
requirements of Severn Trent Water for AMPS These swaps are
treated as cash flow hedges and the changes in farr value are
taken to other comprehensive Income Dunng the year swaps
with a notional pnncipal amount of £225 million reached ther
start dates Hedge accounting for these swaps was terminated
as at 1 Apnl 2013 because the group was not able to identify
speafic debt mstruments that would qualify os the hedged
iterns in a future hedging relationship The fair value held in
other comprehensive income at the date of termination will be
amortised to the income staterment over their remaining lives

The group manages Its electricity costs through a combination
of self generation forward price contracts and financial
denvatives All of our external power requirements for the

first four years of AMP5 and most of the remaining year have
been hedged in this way, at prices below those allowed n the
final determination

The group’s long term credit ratings are

Long term ratings Seven TrentPlc  Severn Trent Water

Moody's Baal A3
Standard and Poor’s BBB- BBB+
Pensions

The group operates two defined benefit pension schemes,
of which the UK Severn Trent Pension Scheme (STPS) 1s by far
the largest Formal trienmial actuanal valuations and funding
agreements as at 31 March 2013 for the STPS and the other
smaller defined benefit pension scheme have been agreed
and renewed In the year Defiat reduction contnbuttons in
total nclude a payment of £40 million i 2013/14, £35 million
In 2014/15, £15 million in 2015/16 and then £12 million per
annum in subsequent years to 2024/25 Further payments
of £8 million per annum through an asset backed funding
arrangement will also continue to 31 March 2032

As previously announced, the final salary sections of the
pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015
The final salary sections were closed to new entrants in 2006
Consequently the age profile of scheme partiaipants is expected
to nse and hence service costs are also expected to nse until
future accrual ceases in March 2015

A new defined contnibution pension scherne has been
established and members of the defined benefit pension
schemes will then becormne members of the new defined
contribution pension scherne The existing defined contribution
pension scherme will also be replaced by the new pension
arrangernents with effect from 1 April 2015 From 1 Apnl 2012
new employees have been automatically enrolled into this
scheme and those employees who were not members of o
Severn Trent scheme were automatically enrolled into this
scheme from 1 April 2013

The key actuanal assumptions for the defined benefit schemes
have been updated for these accounts On an IAS 19 basis,

the estimated net position of the schernes was a defiat of
£348 3 milion as at 31 March 2014 This compares to o defiat
of £383 7 rilion as at 31 March 2013 The movernents in the
net deficit are summansed in note 30 on poges 11910 122
The funding tevel has increased to 84 0% (2013 81 8%)

The major assumptions used in the valuation of the defined
benefit pension schermes were as follows

2014 2013
Price inflation ) 3.3% 32%
Pension increases in payrment 1% 32%
Pension increases in deferrment 33% 32%
Discount rate 4 4% 4 4%
Remaining life expectancy for members -
currently aged 65 (years) .
-men ) 213 215
- women 244 246

Remaining life expectancy for members
currently aged 45 upon retirement at 65 {years)

- men i 226 227
- women 260 262

The following table summanses the estimated impact on
scherme labilties resulting from changes to key actuanal
assumptions whilst holding all other assumptions constant

Impact on scheme

Assumption Change inassumption  Licbilities

Increase/decrease by Decrease/increase by
Discount rate 01% £38 rillion

Increase/decrease by  Increase/decrease by )

Price nflation 01%
Increase i life

£35 mitlion

Mortality

Accounting policies and presentation of the financial
statements

Our consolidated finonool stoterents are prepared in
accordance with International Financiol Reporting Standards
that have been endorsed by the European Union

expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million
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Risk management

Our approach to risk:

Our approach to nisk balances the need
to efficiently mitigote the inherent nsks
in our business and the opporturity to
improve our performance through the
targeted management of selected nsks

Across the group, we manage nsks within
the overall governance framework which
includes clear accountabilities, delegated
authority imits and reward policies
These are designed to provide employees
with an holistic view of effective

nsk monagement

Within Severn Trent Water, our approach
reflects our status as a requlated

utility providing essential senices and
operating as part of the Crtical National
Infrastructure for the UK The noture of
our Severn Trent Water business 1s such
that there are some significant nherent
nisks as dlustrated in the section headed
‘Principal nsks’ We aim to have a strong
control framework In place to enable

us to understand our risks and manage
them effectively

Although the Severn Trent Services
businesses are not generally requlated,
we provide products and services

for clients who operate n regulated
ervironments and as a resutt, we take
a simidar approach to nsk

Our Enterpnse Risk

Management process.

We use an established Enterpnse Risk
Management (ERM) process across the
group to assess and manage our most
significant nsks which are linked to our
corporate objectives

Our ERM process covers all types of risk
including operational, financol and legal
and regulatory

We analyse both the possible causes of
nsk and what the impact would beif
nsk crystalised Using this process, we are
able to consider the controls needed to
minimise the likelihood of nsks aceurnng
and those which can help to maximise
our resilience to nsks Our assessment
of nsks includes explicit consideration

of the possible impact of the risk on

the reputation of the group as a whole
The understanding which we are able
to gain frorm our ERM process allows

us to put in place effective rmitigation
strategies Resllience of our serices Is

wvital and we regularly carry out exercises
Jontly with other agencies such as local
authonties, police and fire services

Duning the year we have also started an
extensive traning programme to increase
the number of traned staff avaitable to
respond to Incidents

The key risks are reported to the Audit
Committee and discussed at the board
every six months in the form of nsk maps
Inaddition, ndvidual nsks or specific

nsk topics are also discussed by the

board during the year We have regular
risk ‘deep dives’ ot our executive team
meetings These take the form of updates
from individual business teams within
Severn Trent Water on their progress with
improving controls and providing effective
mitigation for their most sigrificant nsks

Risk appetite

Dunng the year the board held a senes
of discussions about our appetite for nsk
from four key perspectives consistency
with our culture and values, delivering
what our customers need, retaining

the confidence of our Investors ond
complionce with the regulatory regime
in which we operate These perspectives
were applied to eight specific areas

= Health, safety and wellbeing,
» Finanang the business,
+ Ambition for growth,
» Future competitive position,
« Customer canfidence,
» Resilience of our network,
. = Relationships with regulators, and
+ Sustainability of the business

The board witl continue to work on
refining our approach to nsk appetite in
the coming year The board discussions
on nsk appetite, in the context of our
strategy, Influence the outcome of the
ERM process and, in particular, how we
establish an appropnate target position
. for each significant nsk

Financial nsks

Like all businesses, we need to plan
future funding in ine with business

need This is part of our normal business
ptanning process (see Principal Risk

Ref 4) The board receves reqular
updates retating to funding, solvency and
bquidity matters

Financial nsks are discussed in detal on
pages 33 to 37

An example of nsk management in practice

We rely on our network of partners and
suppliers to enable us te continue our normal
operations Our ERM process recognises the
nsk of failure of the supply chain We have
analysed which of the causes of falure would
Impact on our essential operations in order
to identify cntical suppliers We work with
suppliers to understand their resilience plans
and arangements

We also analyse the consequences of
supply chamn fatlure on our operations to
understand where we can diversify touse
alternatve suppliers, ar to temporanly adapt
our processes

One of the most criical items for our
operations 18 having sufficient cherricals to
allow us to treat water and waste water

As a result of our understanding of the nsk
we have put in place a strategy team to
ensure that we manage the procurement of
chemicals effectively Our analysis has also
helped us to decide on stock levels for our
essential supplies
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Principal risks

We have a number of significant nsks in comman with other companies operating water and sewage treatment works,

distnbution networks and related actmties (as shown on our business models on pages 14 to 15 and 26 to 27) These include

* we, or our clients, operate in heavily regulated ervironments and are subject to many varied, complex and changing obligations
As result, we face nsks associated with non-compliance,

in a signficant impact on our core business actmities,

our operations,

Severn Trent Water has an extensive network of assets and the faillure of key indmdual or collections of these assets could result

our processes are sensitive to the impacts of extrerne weather events such as drought or flooding,
we face nsks to the health, safety and wellbeing of our people, custorners and contractors as a result of the nature of

« our business operations depend on the effective performance of key supply chain partners,

« we share a concem with many other businesses over our ability to fund long term pension prormises, and

« we share concerns with other businesses over access to funding and over the secunty of funds placed with counterparties
Where appropriate, these are discussed in the table of principal nsks below

Ref What is the nsk?

Which part of Severn  What does it mean for us?
Trent 1s affected?

What are we doing to manage the nisk?

Custorner perception

1 Wemaybe unable to
improve and mantain
our levels of customer
service sufficiently
to deliver what our
custormers tell us they
want,

2 Wemay be unable to
take full odvantage
of the opportunities
presented by the
opening up of the
business retall market to
competiion

Group wide

Legal and regulatory ermronment

3 Wemaybe unable to
effectively anticpate
and/or nfluence future
developments in the
UK water industry
resulting In our business
plans becorning
unsustainable

Severn Trent Water

Severn Trent Water

Fallure to deliver the service
customers expect will lead to
customer dissatisfaction Asa
regulated utility prowiding essentiol
services, we recogmise that
customer trust 1s vital for us to
maintain legitimacy

If we are unable to provide the
level of service we want to our
customers we may also suffer
financiel penalties under Ofwat's
Service Incentrve Mechanism {SIM)

We may lose income os a result of
business retall customers moving
to competitors or we may fail to
successfully grow our business by
baing unable to develop sufficiently
attractive services to win new
customers

We have co-ordinated programmes of work
underway across all parts of Severn Trent Water
to mprave our processes and our technology

to enable us to deliver outstanding customer
senice

Qur performance os measured by Ofwat's SIM
measure cortinues to improve However, we are
not Improving as fast as some of our competitors
and our performance 1s still not as good as we
would like

We have set ourselves more challenging targets
and our customer experience Improvement
programmes are working to deliver these at a
faster rate for our custormers.

Within Severn Trent Woter our strategy reflects
the needs of different groups of customers -
whether large or small businesses and whether
water s cnbical to ther operations

Across the group we are developing our servce
offenng which includes, for example, services
to help customers understand and reduce therr
water consurnption

We have established a dedicated programme,
overseen by members of our Executive
Committee, to put n place the systems,
process and organisational changes needed to

_ Implement our strategy

The major part of our business,
Severn Trent Water, operates n

a highly regulated emvironment
Whilst we are broadly content with
the direction of changes proposed
for our industry, there remains a nisk
that future changes could havea
significant impact on Severn Trent
Water

Dunng the year we published the fourth in our
‘Changing Course’ senes - ‘Changing Course
through the Sustanable implementation of

the Water Frarmework Directive’ which sets out
our view on an approach to implementation
which 1s affordabte for our customers We also
commussioned a report from KPMG looking at the
challenges and possible solutions for sustainable
investrment to maintain the water infrastructure
We will continue to engage with our peers,
Ofwat and other regulotors, UK Government
departments and other stokeholders to inform the
direction of regulatory policy where appropriate
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Risk Management continued

Ref What s the nsk? Which part of Severn What does it mean for us? What are we doing to manage the nsk?
Trent 15 affected?

Legal and requlatory environment

4 We maybe unable to Severn Trent Water We submit a business plan to We are using our established business planning
develop and deliver a Ofwat every five years Ateachof  processes to update our plan for the 2015-2020
five year business plan these price reviews, we haveansk  pnce review period We are engaging with Ofwat
which is acceptable to that changes will be required to our i order to respond to the feedback from their Risk
Ofwat, our customers, plan to meet Ofwat’s expectations  Bosed Review We will be prowviding an updated
other stakeholders and Once plans have been ogreed, proposal in June which reflects Ofwat’s feedback,
which s financeable we face nsks to delivery of the the Risk and Reward Guidance and the views of
within the assurmptions plan wathin the constraints and our customers
we have used assumptions that we have We are reviewing progress agatnst the plan

adopted agreed for the current pnce review penod to
Fallure to achieve the targets set confirm that we expect to achieve the agreed
out in our agreed plan for the targets or that we have included appropnate
current price review period could compensation in our plan for the next penod
result in Ofiwat being less willing where we have falled to fully delver the required
to support our business plan service levels and outputs

subrmussion for the next price revew ' We will continue to engage with our customer
penod and could result in additional - challenge group {the Water Forum) to ensure that
funding requirements In the current  we continue to respend to our customers when

perod refining our plan
5  Theregulatory Group wide Cur policies and processes must Durning the year, we have mantained our focus
landscape 1s complex reflect the current legal ond on raising awareness of updated policies via
ond subject to angoing regulatory emvironment and all e-leamning, face to face coaching and generot
change There s a nsk relevont employees must be kept communications These communications
that processes may fail aware of new requirements Due include rerminders of the pnnaples of our Code
or that our processes to the spread of our operations, of Conduct Doing the nght thing - The Severn
may not effectively keep and changes in actity and Trent way
pace with changes In organisational structure thisisnot ~ We are reviewing our methods of obtaining
legislation teading to the ahways straightforward Thegroup  assurance in relation to compliance 1ssues to
nsk of nor-complionce os a whole may face censure for ensure we have a consistent approach for all
non-cornplance n an ndvdual key cbligations, including tcence condibions,
group company or a specific region - competition legistation and anti-bribery and
in which we operate corruption legislation
Operations, assets and people _
6  Ourassetsorprocesses  Group wide The nature of our work requires Our ongoing strategy for health, safety and
may fall resulting in our employees and contractors wellbeing covers improving the management
Injury to an employee, to undertake actmties or to use system, addressing the causes of Inadents ond
contractar or member of equiprnent which have potential improving health, safety and wellbeing
the public to cause senous harm Whilst we Dunng the year, we have delivered a number of
take every precaution to prevent improvements, including a new reporting system
injury, asset failure or failure to and a new standard for local safety improvernent
follow agreed processes may result  teams Our next steps include implementing
In someone being hurt Specific new approaches to our safety stondards and nsk

examples include falure of one of  ossessment
ourkey assets suchas areservorr - Inaddition to learnmg lessons frorm ncidents,

which could result Ininjury to we continue to measure Improverments in culture

customers or the public and the belief in our vision as well as substantiol
proactive safety activity to identify and remove
hazards

Our ossets are subject to reqular and ngorous
manitonng, including Independent inspection of
our reservarrs to ensure that they remain safe
and that mantenance work 1s undertaken where
needed

We will continue with our programme of safety
improvernents and with our ngorous monitonng
and maintenance regimes for cntical assets
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Which part of Severn
Trent 1s affected?

Ref Whatisthe nsk?

What does it mean for us?

vodas nbaiong I
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What are we doing to manage the nsk?

Operations, assets and people

7 Wemay falto meet Severn Trent Water
all of our regulatory
targets including
targets from Ofwot In
relation to operational
performance of our
assets resutting in
regulatory penalties

8  Fadure of certain key Severn Trent Water
assets or processes

may result in nability

to provide a continuous

supply of quality water

to large populations

within our areq, orin

damage to third party

property

Financial nsks
9  Changng demographics  Group wide
and fluctuations in the
Investment market
may affect our ability to
fund pensions promises
sustainably

" Ifwe are unable to meet

operational performance targets,
we may be subjected to significant
regulatory penalties ether within
the current pnce review penod, or
applied to the next pnce review
Regulatory targets apply to all of
our water treatment, distnbution,
sewerage and sewage treatrment
assets Measures are in place n
relation to water quality, continuous
supplies, sewer flooding, sewer
collapses and poltution events

Some of our assets are antical to
the prowision of water to large
populabons for which there are
Lrmited altermnative means of
supply These assets are regularly
mspected and mantaned and our
assessment of the overall condtion
isgoed If a falure were to occur
the consequence would result in
temporary mability to continue to
serve our customers

Inaddttion, our IT and telephony
systermns are crhical to our operations
and failure of these systems, for
example matenalisation of a

cyber threat offecting our rermote
monitoring systern, could have a
sigrificant effect.

We provide significant funding
for our schernes We may be
called upon to prowide more
money to reduce deficits in our
penstons schemes

We continue tofocus on finding ond cleanng
blockages in our sewers and on our education
pregrammes to help customers understand how
to use our assets responsibly

Qur business plan for 2015-2020 includes
considerable investment in our above ground
water assets to improve the reslience of our
networks, reduce interuptions and improve the
service that our custormers receve

SIUBLLIBT0YS [oRUDUY dnois

Dunng the year, as part of our plonning for the
next price review period from 2015-2020, we
have undertaken extensive surveys of some

of our largest, mest cntical assets As aresult
we have ¢ better understanding of the specific
paints around our network which could present
a threat to our continuous operation This has
helped us to prontise our spending requirements
and informed our asset management plans
which drive investment in maintenance and
impraverment of our assets in order to maintan
our service to customers

During the year we have progressed wark on
mnplernenting dual data centres to prowide
increased resilience for our key IT systems

We have also assessed the secunty of our
systems in ine with the ‘10 steps to cyber
secunty’ managed by CESG

Our business strategy for 2015-2025 includes
significant investment to improve the resiience of
our network, particularty by improving our ability
to move water around our netwark

We also have secunty measures to protect

our assets and contingency plans to maintom
supplies in the event of faiture
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We regutarly revalue our schemes and monitor
our investment performance

We will continue to monitor the performance of
our pensions investments and to work closely
with our third party adwisors to ensure that the
schemes are managed effectvely

The Strategic Report, as set out from the inside front cover through to page 41, has been approved by the board

By order of the board

Bronagh Kennedy

General Counsel and Company Secretary
28 May 2014
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Board of directors

1 2
Image removed Image removed
3 4
image removed Image removed
5 6
Image removed Image removed
7 8
Image removed Image removed
9 10
Image removed Image removed
11 12
Image removed Image removed
13
Image -
age removed Committee membership key
@  Audit Committee
A Corporate Responsibility Commuttee
4 Executrve Cormrmittee
® Nominations Committee
* Remuneration Committee

1 DrTony Ballonce &

BSc {Hons) MA (Econ} PhD {45)

Drector, Strateqgy and Regulation

Appointed to the board on 2 October 2007

Tony’s extensive experience in Utility policy and
regulabion leaves him ideally ploced to leod

the company’s strategk and regulatory work

Prior to joining Severn Trent he held the posts of Chief
Economist for Ofwat, director of London Econorrics
and director of Stone ond Webster Consultants

Externcl appointments
Member of Water UK Councail

2 John Coghlon e

BCorn ACA (56)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 23 May 2014

John s a chartered occountant with substontiol
financial expertise ond 1s a valuable addivon to the
board's exssting skill set He wall become Charman of
the Audit Committee with effect from the condusion
of the AGM on 16 Juty 2014 Johns currently
Charrman of Inchcape Shipping Senvices and a non-
executive drector and Chairman of the Remuneration
Cormmmittee of Lavendon Group plc He was previously a
non executve directar of Hibu plc (formerty Yell Group
pic) from June 2002 to February 2014 and Charman
of the Audit Commuttee Prior to this he was a non-
executive director of Ashley House pic and DX Seraces
PLC ond until 2006 he waos Deputy Chief Executive ond
Group Finance Director of Exel Pic

Externa! appotntments

Charman of Inchcape Shipping Senaces

Non executive drrector and Charrman of the
Rernuneration Commnittee of Lavendon Group plc
Charman of Freight Tronspert Assoootion [relond Limited

3 Richard Davey me «

BA {65)

Senior independent non-executive director
Appointed to the board on 1 January 2006

Richard spent the majenty of his executive career in
investrnent banking ot NM Rothschild and Sons, in roles
including Head of Investment Banking Richard bnngs
invaluable speaialist financiol expertise to the board,
the Audit Committee and as char of the Remuneration
Committee, hoving run Rothschitd’s Finonoal Services
Group and worked with a nurnber of hugh street banks
and insurers Previously he hetd non executive roles ot
Yorkstire Bullding Soceety, where he was Vice Chairman,
Freeserve Plc and Scottish Widows Fund and Life
Assurance Society

External appointments

Non executve Chairrman, member of the Risk and
Solvency Comrittee and Chairman of the Nemination
Committee of Amlin Plc

4 Andrew Duff a e

BScFEI (S5)

Non-executive Charrman

Apponted to the board on 10 May 2010 and

Chairman on 20 July 2010

Andrew's extensive expenence of nternabonal and

regulated business, strotegic management and

custorner service in high profile dynarmic ervronments

hove equipped him well for the role of Chaihan of the
~sgroup Andrew spent 16 years ot BP0 marketing,

strategy and ok trading He joined National Power in

1598 and the board of Innogy plc upon its demerger

from National Power w1 2000 He led the restructunng

and subsequent sale of Innogy to RWE in 2003

He become CEO of the successor cCompany, npower,

and a member of the RWE Group Executrve Committee

He was o non-executive director of Wolseley Pic from
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July 2004 until hus retiremnent in Novernber 2013
Andrew was appointed non executive Deputy Charrnan
of Elernentis ple on 1 April 2014 and became

non executtve Chairman of Elementis pic on

24 April 2014

External appomtments

Non executve Chairmon ond Chairmon of the
Nomnotion Committee of Elernents ple

Member cf the CBI President’s Committee

Trustee of Macmillan Cancer Support and Earth Trust
Fellow of the Energy Institute

5 Gordon Fryett a e

{60)

Independent non-executive director

Appanted to the board on 1 July 2009

Gordon has extensive experience working in and with
international businesses managing significant copital
expenditure His in depth retot expertise ot both
executive and operobional level in o custormer facing,
highly competitive ermaroriment, enables him to bnng
substantial expenence and expertse to the board and
the Corporate Responstbilty Cormrmittee Gordon held
the position of Group Property Director at Tesco Plc
untii bis rebirement, n Novermber 2013 He previously
held a nurnber of seror roles within the Tesco Group,
including Operations Director, International Support
Director and CEQ Republic of Ireland

External appointments
Alurnnus of INSEAD

6 Olma Garfield ac e

BA (Hons) (38)

Cheef Executrve

Appointed to the board on 11 Apnl 2014

Qlwo (L) brings to the board o wealth of expenence
managing custorner service delivery ond complex
infrastructure and organisations i a regulated
emvironment. Before Joining Severn Trent, Liv was Chief
Executive Officer of Operweach part of the BT Group,
where she spearheoded ond oversaw the commerciol
rall out of fibre broedband to twe thirds of the country
She joned BT in 2002 ond held the pivotal roles of
Group Director of Strategy and Regulabion, Managing
Director Commercigl ond Brands, Gtobal Services

and UK Custorner Serwces Dwector From 1938 to
2002, Lvworked for Accenture as a consultont in the
Commumications and High Tech Markel Urit, designing
and implernenting business change sotutions across a
nurmber of industry sectors

External appointments
Non exacutve director Teseo Ple

7 Martin Kane

BSc CEng CEnv MICE MIWEM FIW (61)

Chief Executive Officer, Severn Trent Services
Appointed to the boerd on 2 October 2007

Martin joined Severn Trent Water in 1975 and has
held vanous senior rotes gving Fum an extensive ond
unique understanding of the design, construction and
operation of water and waste water treatment plants,
water disthbution netwarks ond sewerage systems
Martin waos Director of Custormer Relations, Severn
Trent Water, from May 2006 until January 2012, when
hewas appointed Chuef Executive Officer of Severn
Trent Seraces

Externcl appointments

Mernber of the boords of Utilities and Serwce Industries
Trairing Limited and Notional Association of Water
Camparies (US)

Trustee of Internationol Society for

Trenchless Technology

8 MarinLomb e «

BSc MBA (54)

Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Martin has extensive expenence of managing and
develaping large engineening businesses in all parts
of the world. In May 2014, Martin teft the boord of
IMI ple having served as Chief Executive for 13 years
and after 33 years with the company He oversaw the
fundamental reshaping of IMI and held a nurnber

of senior management roles there On 1 March
2014, Martin was appointed Charman of Evoqua
Water Technalogies His strang commercial acumen,
expenence of managing complex projects, and
familianty with current market pressures leave ham
well ploced to add value to the Severn Trent business
Previously Martin was a non executive director of
Spectns plc

External appointments

Chairman of Evoqua Water Technologies LLC
Member of the Adwisory Board of AEA Investors
Management {UK} Limited

9 Michael McKeon ¢

MA CA (57)

Fingtnce Director

Appointed to the board on 13 December 2005
Michael brings significont finanaal end ¢ommeraal
expertise to the board and has over eight years’
expenence of the Severn Trent group Prior to joining
Severn Trent he wos Finance Director of Novar Plc and
before that, held vanous senior rotes with Rolls Royce
Pie, including Finance Director of the Aerospace Group
He has extensive international business expenence
having worked overseas for CarnaudMetalbox, Etf
Atochem and Price Waterhouse Michaet is @ chartered
accountant and o member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland

External appointments

Non-executive director and Charnan of the Audit
Committee of The Merchants Trust Plc

10 Baroness Noakes m e

DBE LLB FCA (64)

Independent non-executive director

Appaointed to the board on 29 February 2008
Sheslo bangs voluable expertrse to the board as

an expenenced director ond Audit Committee
Chairman of UK Iisted companies and with extensive
and vaned professionol, political and public sector
expenence A qualfied chartered accountant, she
previously headed KPMG's European and International
Government practices and hos been President of the
Insutute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Sheila was appainted to the House of Lords

in 2000 and has served on the Conservative front
bench in vanous roles including as shadow treasury
minister between 2003 and May 2010 Previously she
held non executive roles on the Court of the Benk of
England, Honson Plc, ICT Pic, John Loing and SThree
Shesta will retire from the board with effect from the
conclusion of the 2014 AGM

External appointments

Non-executive director, member of the Group Audit
Commuttee and Group Norminations Cornrmittee and
Chairman of the Board Risk Committee of The Royol
Bonk of Scotiand Group Pic

Deputy Chawmoan, senior independent director

and Charman of the Norminations Committee

of Carpetnght Pic

11 TheHon Philip Remnant me

CBE ACA MA (59)

Independent non-executive director

Appainted to the board on 31 March 2014

Philip1s @ seror investment banker with substantial
adwsory and regulotory expenence Achartered
occountant, he is Senuar Independent Director of
Prudential Pic, o Deputy Chairman of the Takeover Ponel,
0 non-executive director of UK Finanoal Investrments
Limited and Chairrmon of City of tondon Investment
Trust ple He was previously o Vice Chaimnan of Credit
Sutsse First Boston Europe and Heod of the UK
Irwestrment Benking Department Philip was Director
General of the Takeover Panel for two years between
2001 ond 2003, and agmn In 2010 Previously he served
onthe board of Northem Rock plc and from 2007 to
2012 was Chairman of the Shareholder Executive

External appointments

Senior Independent director and member of the
Audit, Nominations and Remuneration Committees
of Pruclentigl Pic

Deputy Chawman of the Takeover Panel

Non executnve director of UK Financiat
Irvestments Limited

Non executive Charmon of City of Londen
[vestrnent Trust plc

Governor of Goodenough College

Trustee of St Poul’s Cathedrol Foundaotion

12 Andy Smith «

BTech {Hons) (53}

Director of Water Services

Apponted to the board on 2 October 2007

Andy bnngs o broad ronge of executive and operabonal
expertise gained from diverse sectors to the board
Andy has significant experience havwng worked in

the UK and overseas with global businesses such as

B8P, Mars ond Peps, in engineenng and operational
rmanagement rotes Previously he was o member of
the board at Boots Group Plc

13 DrAngeloStrank a e«

BSc PhD (Geology} (61)
Independent non-executive director

Appointed to the board on 24 January 2014

Angelo 15 Chief Scientist at BP Group She has held
vanous senior strategic, technicot and commerciol
leodership rotes ot BP since joining in 1982, most
recently Vice President ond Head of the Chief
Executive’s Office In 2010 Angela was the winner of
the UK First Wornan's Award in Science ond Technology
in recogriion of pioneening UK wornen i business ond
industry Her track record and expenence in strategy,
technelogy and trensformotional change are a
complementory addition to the boord's skill set

External appomtments
Board of Govemors of the University of Manchester
University College London, Energy Institute

- Intemational Advisory Board
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Executive Committee

The Chief Executive dunng the year under review was Tony
Wray, who retired on 11 Apnl 2014 Lw Garfield succeeded
Tory as Chief Executive on 11 Apnl 2014

The Executive Committee oversees the development and
executton of the Sevem Trent strategy It also has accountability
for achieving business results The terms of reference of the
Executve Committee are avatlable on the company’s website
{www severntrent com) or from the Company Secretary

During the year, the Executve Comrmittee met to consider
strategy, business management, policy and planming,

and operationat perforrmance

Members of the Executive Committee are delegoted
responsibility to sit on steenng groups that oversee the
delivery of our strategy and business managerment.

Dunng the year, steenng groups were set up to oversee
areas such as the submission of our PR14 plan to Ofwat and
the integrated delivery of our year end results and Ofwat

Annual Regulotory Returns

tmage removed tmage removed tmage removed Image removed
1 2 3 4
Image removed Image removed Image removed Image removed
5 6 7 8
Image removed image removed Image removed
9 10 11
1 Dr Tony Ballance 3 Evelyn Dickey 6 Angela Hunter-Dobson § Michael Mckeon
BSc (Hons) MA (Econ) PhD (49) BSc (Hons) (51) MA (Hons) (42) MACA(57)
Director, Strategy and Reguiction Director of Human Resources Customer Relations Director Finance Director
Please see full biography on page 42 Jotred Severmn Trent n November 2006 Joined Severn Trent In Moy 2012 Please see full biogrophy on page 43
Evelyn has extensrve HR expenence Angela commenced her career with
2 Simon Cocks leading design and delivery of mojor ~ 1BM duning its transformation frorm 10 Alec Richmond

BA (Hons) (48)

Waste Water Seraces Director
Joined Severn Trenit in July 2009
Simon s an electrical engineer

by training He previously worked
for London Electnaity in various
operational and management
roles and, more recently, for
Natiena! Grid where he was Heod
of UK Operations Perfarmance and
Planning, then Commercial Director
for the gas and elecinaty business
in the UK and Europe and held

the position of Chwef Procurerment
Officer before Joining Severn Trent
Simon s a board member of UK
Water Industry Research

change programmes, business
restructunng, employee relations,
resourcing, executive remuneration,
organisational capability ond
performance manogement
initiatives Before joining Severn Trent
Evelyn worked in HR consultancy and
as HR Director (HR Operations) for
Boots the Cherrists

4 Otvia Garfield

BA (Hons) (38}
Chief Executive
Please see full biography on page 43

5 Myron Hrycyk

MBA {57}

Chief Infarmation Officer

Joined Severn Trent in April 2008
Myron has hetd senior IT posts

for major organisations acress @
range of business sectors, Financial
Services, Publishing, Automotrve
and Logistics/Supply Chain He has
detvered strategie IT and business
transforrmation progrommes,
restructured corporate IT units
and deployed high performance IT
practices Myron also has executive
responsibility for Supply Chain &
Procurement

manufactunng to services business
She has since held senior operational
leadership positions for Barclays,
Hiscox and Vedafone, delvering
custormer services across B2B, B2C,
domestic, international, indwect and
requlated markets In addition te
leading oward winning customer
operations, she has consulted
widely in the area of custormner
service In multiple sectors

7 Martin Kane

BSc CEng CErv MICE MIWEM FIW (61)
Cheef Executive Officer,

Severn Trent Services

Please see full biography on page 43

8 Bronagh Kennedy

{BA} (Hons) (50)

General Counsel and

Company Secretary

Joined Severn Trent in June 2011
Bronagh 1s o solicitor and was
previausly Group Company Secretary
and General Counsel ot Mitchells &
Butlers, where she worked for 15
years Prior to that, she was a Senior
Assoaate at Allen & Overy

BSc (Econ) FCA FIIA (56}

Director of Internal Audit

Joined Severn Trent i June

2007 Pror to that, he worked for
Cadbury Schweppes Pic, leading
the cornpany’s global internal

oudit service from 2000-2005
Before jorming Severn Trent, he
worked for RSM Rabson Rhodes os
o director and a member of the
management board responsible for
Risk Assurance Services Alecisa
fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in Englend and Woles
and the Institute of Internal Auditors

11 Andy Smith

BTech (Hons) {53)
Director of Water Services
Ptease see full biogrophy on page 43
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Chairman’s letter

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Charrman

Governance 1n Severn Trent

The way we are structured

Our organisation Is structured to allow for
effective and efficent decision making with
clear occountabilities

The way we choose to behave

Our Code of Conduct ‘Doing the right thing -
The Severn Trent way' sets out our approach
to responsible business behawours

The Code of Conduct 1$ supported by 15
group policies and our behaviours model
Further detais of these can be found on our
website (www severntrent com)

The way we ensure our effectiveness
* We always look to enswre our people

have the nght skills in order to drive
performance improvement

+ Managerment assuronce 1s provided

by acombination of effective
management processes and nsk and
cormphance actvities

* Independent assurance 1s provided

primarily by Internal Audit, by our external
auditors and other external bodies

7N

The way we are The way we
structured ¢hoose to behave

The way we work

The way we
ensure our
effectiveness

Dear Shareholder

At Severn Trent, we are committed to delivenng value to our stakeholders and building
asustainable business, which is underpinned by good gevernance As a board we are
accountable to shareholders for ensunng that effective governance processes are in
place and complied with

The board’s role s to
+ understand and rmeet its obligations to the company’s stakeholders,

+ govern the group within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enable
nsk to be assessed and managed,

+ approve the group’s strategic objectives, and
- ensure that sufficient resources are avallable to enable it to meet those objectives

Good governance ensures that decrsions flow down the orgarusation, so we
implement them correctly, and that information flows up to those that need it to
make decisions Ultimately, good governance ensures that the board has access to
tirmely, relevant and robust information, so 1t can run the business effectively

During the year I led the review of our board'’s effectiveness ond looked at how we
have made progress with the areas identified as requinng further improvernent at
the last review We have overseen the continued embedding of our Code of Conduct
across our businesses and reviewed our supporting policies

I believe that good governance is cntically dependent on behaviour and culture, as well
as organisation and process The following sections of this report set out how geod
governance supports our activities at Severn Trent and describe how the board applies
the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code - in the way we are structured, the
way we choose to behave ond the way we ensure our effectiveness

Assessing our governance arrangements in terms of these headings enables us to
establish the nght long term behawviours, which will help us to deliver the group’s
strateqic objectives in a sustainable manner

I firmly believe that we will continue to deliver value and achieve sustainable growth
for our cormpany through the successful mix of good governance, a clear strategy with
a supporting business plan and o strong Maonagement team to execute it

Andrew Duff
Charman

Compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code

The version of the Corporate Governance Code applicable to the current reporting
pertod 1s the Septerber 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code {the ‘Governance
Code’) The Governance Code 1s available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website
{www frc org uk}

For the whole of the financial year ended 31 March 2014, Severn Trent was compliant
with the Governance Code, with the exception that the adequacy of arrangements

in relation to the company’s whistleblowing procedures falls within the remit of the
Corporate Responsibility (CR) Commuittee, rather than the Audit Committee The CR
Commuttee’s remit 1s to deal with any allegations from employees relating to any
breaches under Severn Trent’s Code of Conduct The Audit Cornmittee reviews

reports of matters orising in respect of financial or nternal control matters from the
company’s whistleblowing procedures and the company’s procedures for preventing
and detecting fraud and bribery, and recenes reperts on non-compliance The board
considers that these arrangements are appropnate

1odal J1bayong
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Governance report

Group Authonsation Arrangements

The Group Authornisation Arrangerments
(GAA) ore the framewaork through which the
Severn Trent Plc board authorises the nght
people, at the nght level, to take important
decsions os we manage legal, financiol
and administrative 1ssues throughout the
group The GAA gre designed to fachitate
good control, efficient decision making and
dernonstrable compliance

The flow of authority 1s from the Severn Trent
Ple board to the Chief Executive and the
Severn Trent Executive Committee Inrespect
of certain issues, the delegoted outhonty is
subject to an cbligation to work with specialist
business services areas (such os Tax, Treasury,
Group Finance and Company Secretanat)
which provide additional expertise and a group
wide perspective

Govemnance of subsidianes

The membership of the board of the Listed
company, Severn Trent Plc, 1s the sarme as that
of its regulated subsicary, Severn Trent Water
Limited Thvs structure was implermented

in 2007 when it was decided to integrate

the management of the companies to gain
greater transparency and insight of Severn
Trent Water by the Pic board

Following his appointment as CEQ of Severn
Trent Services tn January 2012, Martin Kane
becarme a non-executive director of Severn
Trent Water Lirnited

The two corpanies opercte as distinct legal
entiies The baards comply with the Severn
Trent Plc Board Governance document and the
Severn Trent Water Limited Matters Reserved
tothe board They are assisted through the
management of seporate agendas, meetings
end minutes by Cornpany Secretarat and
cdvised in their meetings by the Company
Secretary where appropriate

Subsidiary cormpany beards are required

to be managed scrupulously with respect
tolegal, fiscal and odrministratve matters

In particular, the relationships between Severn
Trent Water Limnited end our other businesses
such as Severn Trent Services are moenitored
and controlled to ensure that we comply with
our obligations on arm's length transactions
between them

The way we are structured

Board membership

Dunng the year under review your board has comprised the norr-executive Chairman,
five executive directors and seven independent non-executive directors Dunng the
year the board announced the retrerment of Dr Bernard Bulkin and the appointrment
of Dr Angela Strank as a non-executive director, with effect from 24 January 2014
The board also anncunced the appointment of Philip Rermnant as a non-executive
director with effect from 31 March 2014 During the year the board also announced
the appointment of Liv Garfield as Chief Executive with effect from 11 April 2014
Following the year end, the board announced the appointment of John Coghlan as a
non-executive director with effect from 23 May 2014 and the retirement of Boroness
Noakes as a non-executive director with effect from the conclusion of the AGM on

16 July 2014

Photographs of the members of the board, together with thesr biographies and a
descnption of the complernentary skills and diverse experience that they bring to bear,
can be found on pages 42 and 43

We believe this unitary board brings an appropriate balance of Innovation, expertence,
independence and challenge to ensure effective decision making

Inaccordance with the Governance Code, all the directors will retire at this year's
AGM and submit themselves for election or re-election by the shareholders, with the
exception of Baroness Nookes who will be retinng from the board with effect from the
conclusion of the 2014 AGM

Details of our policy on diversity tn the boardroom are provided in the Nominations
Cormmuttee report on pages 52 and 53

Role of the Charman

The role of Andrew Duff, your Chairman, 1s to lead a unitary boord, faclitating the
contribution of its members at its meetings, and to be responsible for ensunng that
the principles and processes of the board are maintained in ine with the board
governance framework

Agendas for board meetings are agreed by the Charman in consultation with the
Chief Executive and Company Secretary, although any director may request that an
ltern be added to the agenda The Chairman has authonty to act and speak for the
board between its meetings, Including engaging with the Chief Executive He reports
to the board and committee charrmen as appropriate on deasions and achions taken
between meetings of the board He also meets with the non-executve directors
without the executwve directors present, to consider the performance of the executve
directors ond to provide feedback

Senior independent non-executive director

Richard Davey I1s your sentor independent non-executive director He chairs the
Rernuneration Committee and is a member of the Audit and Norminations
Commuittees The board has agreed that Richard will act as Chairman of the board in
the event that the Charman is unable to do so for any reason

Non-executive directors

Your non-executive directors are appointed to the board to contnbute therr
independent external expertise and experience in areas of Importance to the

group Their competences iInclude corperate finance, general finance, corporate
strateqy, custarmer care, property, environmental and technolegy matters, general
managernent, transformational change and supply chain management They also
provide Independent challenge ond ngour to the board's dellberations and are
encouraged to make independent assessments of the group’s competencies The non-
executive directors, led by the senior Independent non-executive director, meet without
the Chairman at least once a year for thern to appraise the Charrman’s performance

. and they have other meetings dunng the year withaut executive directors present




Severn Trent Plc

Reporting obligations

As a public isted company, the cormpany 15
required to cornply with a range of reperting
oblgations set out by law and regulation

The company recognises the importance

of effective communication as a key port

of building shareholder volue and that, to
prosper and achieve growth, it must eam
the trust of secunty holders, employees,
customers, suppliers, communities and

the economic regulotor of Severn Trent
Water Limited, Ofwat, by being openin its
communications and consistently delvering
on Its commitments

The company announces its results
on o half yearty basis and complies
with the requirernent to make intenm
management staterments

The Chief Executive has established o
Disclosure Cornmitiee, chaired by the Finance
Director, with specific responsibilities for

the delvery of the intenm and year end
financiol and regulatory reporting processes
The Disclosure Committee oversees the
delivery of an integrated plon incorporating oll
elements of the year end reporting process,
narrely the group’s prebiminary results
announcement and report and accounts, the
company’s AGM, the statutory and requlatory
accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited, the

Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement and

the Annual Regulatory Performance Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Your board has reviewed the status of the non-executive directors and considers them
all to be independent in character and judgement as defined by the Governance Code

Chief Executive

Responsibility has been delegated to the Chief Executive to implement the compary’s
strategy Dunng the year under review the Chuef Executive was Tony Wray, who retired
on 11 Apnl 2014 Liv Garfield succeeded Tony as Chief Executive on 11 Apnl 2014 and 1s
empowered to take all deasions and actions that further the company’s strategy and
which in her jJudgement are reasonable, having regard to the Chief Executive limits set
out in the company’s GAA The: non-executive directors, led by the Charrman, appraise
the Chief Executive’s performance annually

Executive directors

The executive directors support the Chief Executive n dnving the implementation of
strategy forward in Severn Trent They are committed to domng this ina responsible
way which takes account of commitment to our Code of Conduct, the long term
sustanable and responsible stewardship of the business and the delivery of better
value, better services and a healthier environment for our customers and the
communities in which we live and work

Role of the Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Bronagh
Kennedy, and the Company Secretanat team Bronagh is responsible for ensunng that
the board operates in accordance with the governance framework it has adopted

and that there are effective Information flows to the board and its committees and
between senior management and the non-executive directors

The appeintrment and resignation of the Company Secretary 1s @ matter for
consideration by the board as a whole

Terms and conditions of appointment

We have made the terms and conditions of appointment of the directors avalable for
nspection by any person at the cornpany’s registered office during normal business
hours They will also be avarlable at the AGM

Board processes
We have documented processes in place regarding
- the boord’s tasks and activibes, and

« the matters specifically reserved for the board’s deasion making, the authonty
delegated to the Chief Executive, the accountabibity of the Chief Executive for that
authonity, and gurdance on managing the relationship between the board and the
Chief Executive

The board has reserved the following for its own consideration

+ the appointment of the Chief Executive, directors and the Company Secretary;
« the strategy and budgets of the company;

- the GAA which set out the group’s delegated approval lirmits,

decistons regarding the company and its subsidianies required to be made by the
company's GAA, constitutional documents, stotute or external reguiation, and

the approval or adoption of documents, including the report and accounts, reguired
to be made by the board by the company’s GAA, constitutional documents, statute
or external regulation
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Governance report continued

Board attendance at scheduled
meetings N 2013/14

Andrew Duff
Teny Ballance

Dr Bernard Bulkin
Richard Davey
Gordon Fryett
Martin Kane
Martin Lamb
Michael McKeon
Baroness Noakes*
Andy Smith

Dr Angela Strank
Tony Wray

717
717
6/6
7
7
717
7
77
6/7
717
212
I

* Unable to attend one maeting owing to personal reasons

Graph removed

Board attendance at additional
rmeetings in 2013/14

Andrew Duff
Jony Ballance

Dr Bernard Bulkin
Richard Davey
Gordon Fryett”
Martin Kane*
Martin Lamb*
Michael McKeon
Boroness Noakes*
Andy Srruth

Dr Angela Strank
Tony Wray

17
7
5/5
7

67

6/7
6/7
717
517
717
212
7

* Unable to attend certoin odditionol meeungs held at short

ngtice owing to pnior business commutrments

Beard meetings

We have regular scheduled meetings of the board and of its permanent committees
throughout the year and any additional meetings and ad hoc commuttee meetings are
corvened as and when required

Papers, ncluding minutes of board committees held since the previous board meeting
and perforrance reports, are circulated in advance of each meeting

There 15 an agreed procedure In place which allows directors to take independent
professional advice in the course of their duties and all directors have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary If a director has a concern over any
unresolved matter they may require the Cormnpany Secretary to minute that concern

The chart opposite shows how the board has spent its time at scheduled beard
meetings The board rmonitors the performance of the Severn Trent Water and
Severn Trent Services businesses at every meeting and recenes monthly updates
on performance against the KPIs stated on pages 8 and 9 of the Strategic Report.
The board also regularly discusses reports on capital efficiency The board monitors
governance matters and developrments in best practice through the Governance
report provided by the Cornpany Secretary, a standing iterm on the board agenda
The board also formally reviews compliance with the Governance Code onan
annual basis

Dunng the year three additional board meetings were convened to consider the
subrrussion of the business plan to Ofwat and the appointment of the new Chief
Executive The board met a further four times to carefully evaluate the proposals
receved from LongRiver Partners As part of this process, the board alse carefully
listened to the views of its shareholders

Four ad hoc committee meetings of the board were convened to consider
such matters as Severn Trent Plc’s preliminary and intenim results and interim
management statements

In addition to formal meetings, the board attended a full day strategy session this year,
where the board and executve team together considered the aregs of future value
creation across the Severn Trent business

Board committees

The four permanent committees of the board assist In the execution of its
responsibilities and the board has delegated some of its responsibilities to those
board committees The committees ossist the board by fulfilling their roles and
responsibilibes, focusing on their specific activities, reporting to the board on decisions
and actions taken, and making any necessary recommendations

The terms of reference of the Audit, Remuneration and Norminations Committees
comply with the prowisions of the Governance Code, except as reported on page 45,
and are avallable for inspection, together with the terms of reference of the Corperate
Responsibility Committee, on our website {www severntrent com) or may be obtained
on request from the Company Secretary

The effectiveness of each of the committees has been reviewed dunng the year as
part of the internal board review and the committees have also considered ther terms
of reference during the year

Reports from the Chairmen of these committees are set out on pages 52 to 76 of
this report
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The way we choose to behave .

Code of Conduct. ‘Daing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’

Every day Severn Trent employees have to make choices about what they do and how
they do it Most of the time it 1s clear what the nght thing to do 15, whether it is about
doing what 1s safe, doing the nght thing for custorers, doing what 1s nght ethucally -
and indeed what 1s nght legally

However, sormetimes it 1s not so clear ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’
details the pnnciples we work by This 1s our Code of Conduct and explains who we are,
what we stand for and how we work, it also tells our custormners and business partners
that they can trust and rely on us These prnciples apply to everyone In Severn Trent's
businesses, no matter where in the world they are based They prowide a common and
consistent framewaork for responsible business practices and set out the standards we
need to follow in our day to day activities

During the year we have continued to roll out the Code of Canduct across the group to
miake sure that everyone in the business understands what it 1s all about and upholds
our ethical stondards All employees are provided with a copy In their local language
as part of therr nduction Trarung sessions are also avalable and dll teams have been
encouraged to discuss it through regular communications exercises

We have also cantinued to roll out cur Code of Conduct into our supply chain, as
explained in the Corporate Responsibility report on page 59

Dunng autumnn 2013 employees across Severn Trent Water Lirnited attended

‘Our Journey Continues’ sessions which focused on the next steps inthe journey to
be the best water and waste water company i the UK These sessions also provided
a refresher on the importance of Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way and
emphasised how these principles and our Code of Conduct were at the heart of our
standard ways of working
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Pclicies

The Code of Conduct s supported by 15 group policies and our behaviours madel
Further details of these can be found on our website {www severntrent com)

Durning the year we have completed the annual review of the policies to ensure they
are fit for purpose

Conflicts of interests

The board has a full docurnented precess in place to authorise situationat conflicts in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and under the company’s
articles of association

At every board meeting there 1s a standing agenda item at the beginning of the
meeting to consider and discuss whether any potential conflict exists If it does then
the relevant director does not attend the meeting when that item 1s discussed

An annual review of conflicts I1s carned out and is incorporated into the year end
process of venfying directors' interests Half yearly reports cre also made to the board
of all directors’ conflicts and directors are rerminded of ther obligations to disclose any
potential conflicts

In March 2014, the Nominations Committee considered in detal the managemenit
of Martin Lamb’s situational conflict ansing as a consequence of his appointment as
Chairman of Evoqua Water Technologies, which canflicts with the Severn Trent Services
Water Punfication {Products} business in terms of product Line and competition for
customers The benefits of Martin's valuable contnbution to the board as o recently
retired Chief Executive and the relatively small size of the Products business in the
context of the group as a whole were taken into consideration by the Nominations
Committee The board concurred with the recommendation of the Nominations
Committee and approved the authonsation of the situational conflict in accordance
with the orticles of assoaation and the proposed management of the situational
conflict, which will be kept under reqular review
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Governance report continued

|
Retall shareholder engagement strategy

The board has an active shareholder
engaogement strategy, the main elements of
which are set out below

The annual report and accounts is the principal
means of communicating with shorehotders
The group has adopted e-communications as
on alternative method of sending company
information In March 2012 sharehotders were
re-consulted as to therr preferred method

of recenming company COMMUNICations
Following the consultation, 49,153
shareholders (79%) receve confirmation that
the annual report 1s avalable to view onling,
whilst 12,942 shareholders (21%) continue to
receve a hard copy

Our website (www severntrent com) contains
an archive of annual reports together with
other information relevant to investors

This includes comprehenswe share price
information, financial results, company news
and financial calendars

The company offers a Dwidend Reinvestrnent
Plan (DRIP) Detalls of the DRIP are avallable
on our website and the website of Equinity,
our registrar

Shareholder networking programme

The aim of the programrme 1s to offer retail
shareholders the opportunity to learn more
about the carnpany, through site visits and
talking to staff

As part of our Shareholder Networking
Programime, participants in November 2013
had a choice to visit either o waste water

or cleon water site These were hosted

by Simon Cocks, Waoste Waoter Services
Director and Andy Smith, Director of Wter
Services Eighteen participants were taken

to our Minworth Sewage Treatment Works
(Birmngham) for a tour and presentation by
Simon Thirteen participants were taken to
Campion Hills Water Treatrent Works (Royal
Learmington Spa) for a tour and presentation
by Andy This was followed by both groups
visiting our operating centre in Coventry

Positive feedback was given on the
organisation and content with strong support
for the company continuing the programme,
both from shareholders and employees who
enjoyed the interest shown in ther work,

The situctional conflict will be managed by Martin Larnb not being provided with
access to any information relating to the Products business However, in order to
enable hurn to perform his duties as a director of the company, Martin will have access
to information at the aggregated Severn Trent Services level In addition, he will not
be present at, or participate n, any board or commuttee discussions or vote on any
maotter relating to the Products business Martin resigned as @ member of the Audit
Commuttee with effect from 21 March 2014

Interests i

No director had a matenal interest at any time dunng the year in any contract of
significance with the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings

Shareholder engogement

Annual General Meeting
The AGM of the company will be held at the Interational Carvention Centre,
Broad Street, Brminghom B1 2EA at 11am on Wednesday 16 July 2014

Presentations are made on the group’s activities, performance dunng the year and
an operationally focused presentation pnor to the formal business of the meeting
The Chairmen of the Audit, Corporate Responsibility, Remuneration and Norminations
Committees, together with all other directors, attend the AGM

The AGM gives shareholders an opportunity to feed back to the company on
performance, manogement and the way we work in a very diect fashion, through
the way they vote Shareholders may alse meet infermally wath directors and
senior managerment before and after the meeting and ask formal questicns dunng
the meeting

The board encourages shareholders to attend the company’s AGM and to exercise
their nght to vote The notice of meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 working days before the meeting Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially seporate issue The poll results from the 2014 AGM wilk be made available
on our website after the meeting

The way we ensure our effectiveness

Induction

On joning the board, a director’s nduction needs are evaluated and then they are
provided with a comprehensive and personalised induction pack which includes
information on our business, key operations and processes, how we are regulated, how
we are shaping future regulation, strategic plans, financial reports, business plans and
information on our governance framework

Meetings are arranged with members of the executive management tearmn and with
external advisers who provide support to the relevant board committees on which
the directors may serve Visits to operational and office sites across the group and
management presentations are also arranged for directors joiming the board and
subsequently throughout the year

These arrangements have been followed far the induction of Liv Garfietd, Dr Angela
Strark, Philip Remnant and John Coghlan

Continuing professional development

The directors receved updates throughout the year on matters such as changes to
best practice governance guidelines The directors also have access to professional
development provided by external bodies and our advisers

Conunuing professional development {CPD) requirements were considered as part
of the board effectiveness review referred to below No additonal requirements |

. were dentified
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Institutional shareholders and analysts

The board recognises the importance of
representing and promoting the interests of
Its shareholders and that 1t 1s accountable
to shareholders for the performance and
actwvities of the company

Presentations are made to shareholders and
onalysts following the release of the interim
and year end results The Chief Executive and
Finance Director regularly meet shareholders
during the year The Chairman and the
senior Independent non-executve director
have also met shareholders separately from
executive directors and are availoble to meet
shareholders at their request. The board
receives written feedback following meetings
with institutional shareholders and monitors
shareholder actvity on a quarterly basis at
its meetings

During March and Aprl 2013 Makinson Cowell,
an independent capital morkets adwiscry firm,
underteok on nvestor cudit which set out to
ascertain both bondhelders’ and shareholders’
views of us as a company, our strategy,
performance, and effectiveness of our
communications It also amed to determine
our standing relative to our peers and to the
equity and debt markets os o whole

The main findings of the audit were that
Severn Trent 1s regarded by shareholders ond
bendhelders as more strongly pioced today for
the next regulatory period than was the case
three years ago (when the previous audit was
conducted), that the performance of Severn
Trent Water has improved, there was a positive
view about the compeny’s financial position
and grecter appreciation of its conservative
financial strategy; and investors rated the
management team more fighly than three
years ago

An online directors’ resource Iibrary and CPD repository hos been created for use by
the directars The library includes a Corporate Governance Manual, a Results Centre
ond [nvestor Relations section, Strateqy Day matencls and details of board trairng
sessions It also includes a further reading sectron which contains regulor updates and
guidance on changes to legislation and best practice

Performance and effectiveness reviews

An independent review of the effectiveness of the board s conducted every three
years The last external review was camed out in November 2011 and an independent
review will be comrmussioned dunng the 2014/15 financial year

In Jonuary 2014, the board commenced an internal review of its effectiveness and
that of ts committees The review was led by the Chairrman and was assisted by

the Company Secretary who conducted a senes of confidential interviews with each
director Following the feedback from the board effectiveness review, a review of each
indwvidual director’s performance was carmed out by the Chairman

Interms of Improvements identified in the previous year's internal review, It was
concluded that good progress had been made Steps had been taken to ensure
appropriate time was allocated for consideration of strategic matters The board

had considered leadership and succession planning with particular focus on the
development of management below the Executive Committee level Dunng the year
the board reviewed progress against the five year talent managerment and succession
plan and the outputs from the 2012/13 talent management process

This year's review confirmed continued board strengths, including the quality of

the relationship between executive and non-executive directors, a diverse and
complementary balance of skills and experience and effective use of time All board
committees remained highly effective and had continued to improve dunng the year

The only suggested improvements to effectiveness were Inrelation to the annual
off-site board strategy discussions which had beer impacted by the considerable
amount of time that had been required to be devoted in the year to the preparations
for submission of the Severn Trent Water Limited final business plan to Ofwat It was
anticipated that this should not be the case in the current year A review of the forward
agendas for each commuttee will also be carmed out at the start of each year to ensure
that matters requinng the attertron of the board as a whole were considered in the
nght forum

The board will continue to formally review progress against the recommendations

. anstng from the board effectiveness reviews every six months
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Nominations Committee

Image removed

Andrew Duff
Charrman of the Norminations Commttee

The man purpose of the Committee 1 to
ossist the board by keeping the composition
of the board under revtew and cenducting

o ngorous and trensparent process when
making or renewing appaintments of directors
to the board It also advises the board on
issues of directors’ conflicts of interest and
independence The full terms of reference for
the Commuttee can be found on our website
{www severntrent.corm) and are also avataoble
from the Company Secretary

Succession planning

When considernng new appointments to
the board, the Committee oversees the
preparatien of a role specification that is
provided to anindependent recrutment
orgarsation retained to conduct a global
search In addidion to the speafic skils,
knowledge and experience deemed
necessary, the specification contains cnteng
such as

- a proven track record of creating
shareholder value,

- ungquestioned mtegnty and a diversity of
psychological nundset,

+ acommitment to the highest standerds
of governance,

+ having the required tume avallable to devote
to the job,

» strategic mundset, an awareness of market
leadership, outstanding monitoring skills,

- a preparedness to question, challenge and
openly assess, and

+ onindependent point of view

This report provides detalls of the role of the Nominations Commmittee and the work it

has undertaken dunng the year

The Committee keeps under review the balance of skills on the board and the
knowledge, expenence, length of senace and performance of the directors 1t also
reviews ther external interests with a view to identifying any actual, perceved or
potential conflicts of interests, ncluding the time avaloble to commit to ther duties
to the company The results of these reviews are mpartant when the board considers
succession planning and the election and reappontment of directors Members of the
Commuttee toke no part in any discussions concerning their own arcumstances

The members of the Committee in 2013/14 were the non-executive directors of the

board and the Chief Executive, Tory Wray

Dunng the year the Committee considered the composition of the board, the
succession plan for the Chief Executive role, the board’s diversity policy and the board’s
effactiveness review It also reviewed the strength and depth of talent and succession
planning below Executive Committee tevel In addition, as detalled on pages 49

and 50, the Commuttee reviewed Martin Lamb's situational conflict of interest in

March 2014

In April 2013 the Committee Initriated a succession planning process to search fora
new Chief Executive following Tony Wray's arnouncement of his intention to retire
inthe spring of 2014 Spencer Stuart and The Zygos Partnership were appointed as
adwsors and were provided with a role specification and a detalled brief of the desired
candidate profile and therr services were used to conduct a thorough search to identify
suttable candidates The Cornmittee considered o list of potential candidates and those
shortlisted were interviewed by mermnbers of the board Tony Wray took no part in any

meetings relating to this process

Following this process, the board accepted the Committee’s recommendation that Liv
Garfield join the board as Chief Executive with effect from 11 Aprl 2014 Livbnings a
wedalth of expenence managing custorner service delivery and complex infrastructure
and organisations in a requlated ermronment

Dunng the year the Committee also mtiated searches for new non-executive directors
The Zygos Partnership was appointed as advisor and was provided with a role
speafication and a detailed brief of the desired candidate profile and its services were
used to conduct a thorough search to identify suitable candidates The Committee
considered a st of potential candidates ond those shortlisted were interviewed

by rmembers of the boord and also by Liv Garfield as Chief Executive designate
Following this process, the board accepted the Committee’s recommendation thot

Dr Angela Strank, Philip Remnant and John Coghlan join the board

The appointrment of Dr Angela Strank as a non-executive director, with effect from

24 Jonuary 2014, maintained the balance of the appropriate skill set on the board In
the context of the retirerment of Dr Bernard Butkin Angela’s track record and experience
in technology, transformational change and strategy are complementary to the
board’s existing skill set and she became a member of the Nominations, Remunergtion
and Corporate Responsibility Committees upon Joining the board

Philip Rermnant was appointed as a non-executive director with effect from 31 March
2014 and he becarne a member of the Audtt, Rermuneration and Nominations
Committees upon joining the board Philip hos substantial finanaal, public sector and
requlatory expenence and provides a valuable addiional contnbution to the board's

existing skill set

John Coghlan was apponted as a non-executive director with effect from 23 May
2014 and he became a mermber of the Norminations Committee upon joning the
board John will become Charrman of the Audit Committee with effect from the
conclusion of the AGM on 16 July 2014, at which time Baroness Noakes will be retinng
from the board John has substantial financiol expertise and 1s @ voluable additton to

the board's existing skill set
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Committee attendance in 2013/14
Andrew Duff

Dr Bemard Butkin

Richard Davey*

Gordon Fryett*

Martin Lamnb*

Baroness Noakes*

Dr Angela Strank

Torny Wray**

* Unable to attend one meeting owing 1o prior
business commitments

9/9
77
819
8/9
8/9
8/9
212
4/9

* Did not attend meetings at which the apposntment of his

successor wos beng considered

Graph removed

As part of the selection process for the new directors, the Commuttee evaluated the
balance of skills, expenence, independence and knowledge on the board and used
this evaluation in the preparation of the role speafications Neither Spencer Stuart
nor The Zygos Partnership has any other connection with the compary, other than
in respect of their role as advisor in the appointment of the new Chief Executive
ond non-executive directors

Both search companies used are signatories to the voluntary code of conduct for
executive search firms to address gender diversity on corporate boards and best
practice for the related search process

In accordance with the requirements of the Governance Code, all members of the
board wili seek election or re-election at the AGM in July 2014, with the exception of
Baroness Noakes who will be retning from the board with effect from the conclusion
of the AGM In March 2014 the Committee formally reviewed the performance,
contribution and commitment of each of the directors retinng at this year's AGM and
seeking reappontment, and supported and recommmended their reappoirtment to
the beard The Committee has confirmed that each director contmues to perform
well, both on an individual and collective basis, making a valuable contnbution to the
board’s deliberations and dermonstrating commitment to the long term interests of
the company

The Committee also supported and recommended the election of the newly
appointed directors, Liv Garfield, Dr Angela Strank, Philip Rermnant and John Coghtan
The appontment of these new executive and non-executive directors brings new skills
and expenence to the board, and overall the bolance of such remained both diverse
and complementary

Diversity

Further to the publication of the Dawies Report, ‘Wornen on Boards’, in February 2011,
boards of FTSE 350 companies have been encouraged to promote greater female
representation on corporate boards Guidance from the Financial Reporting Council has
also highlighted the importance of greater dwersity of psychological profite around the
board table

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key factor n beng a
successfiul business Severn Trent Plc aspires to the targets in the Davies Report to
promote greater fernale representation on listed company boards

As and when board appointment opportunities anse, we make full use of the
procedures recommended by the Davies Report and by the Governance Code to
support this aspiration All board appointments have been and wall continue to be
based on ment and must be in the interests of all stakeholders

A breckdown by gender of the number of persons who were directors of the cormpany,
senigr managers and other employees as at 31 March 2014 is set out opposite

As at 31 March 2014, we had two fernale members on our board of 12 {representing
17%) and three female members out of 11 on the Executive Committee (representing
27%) As at the date of this report, and following the retirernent of Tony Wray and
appontment of Liv Garfield as Chief Executive on 11 April 2014 and appointment of
John Coghlan on 23 May 2014, there are three femnale members on our board of 13
{representing 23%) and four fernale members out of 11 on the Executive Committee
{representing 36%)

Severn Trent 1s seeking to bulld a diverse pool of future leaders and detalls of dversity
intiotives being undertaken are set out In the Corporate Responsibility Committee
report on page 59

Andrew Duff
Charman of the Nominations Committee
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Audit Committee

Image removed

Baroness Noakes DBE
Charman of the Audit Committee

The Committee assists the board in
discharging its responsibilities for the integnty
of the compary's financtal statements,

the assessment of the effectiveness of the
systems of nternal controls and monitaring
the effectveness and objectivity of the
internal and external audtors it also oversees
the assurance of requlatory returns made

by Severn Trent Water Limited to Ofwat

The role and the responsibilities of the
Committee are set out in written terms of
reference These can be found on our website
{www severntrent com} and are also availlable
from the Company Secretary

This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee and the work it has
undertaken during the year

The mernbers of the Committee are Bareness Noakes DBE (Charman), Richard Davey
and Philip Rermnant {appointed with effect from 31 March 2014), whose experience
and backgrounds are set out on pages 42 and 43 Martin Lamb was appointed to the
Committee upon the retirement of Dr Bernard Bulkin on 24 January 2014 ond resigned
from the Commuittee with effect from 21 March 2014 The board 1s satisfied that alt

the Committee members have recent and relevant financial expenence and that all
members of the Commuttee remain independent

The members of the Committee receve updates on financial reporting and the group’s
regulatory framework in vanous forms throughout the year The Chairman, Chief
Executive, Finance Director, Director of Internal Audit, Group Financial Controller and
the externol audrtors normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the Commuittee
Other members of senior managernent ore also invited to attend as appropriate

The Committee regularly holds private discussions with both the internal and

externcl audttors

In performing its duties, the Committee has access to the senices of the Director of
Internal Audtt, the Cornpany Secretary and, if required, external professional advisers

The Committee reports to the subsequent meeting of the board on the Committee's
work [t met four tmes in 2013/14 and ts work focused on four key areos

+ finonagl statements and accounting policies,
+ nsk managernent and internal contrels,
= oversight of internal and external audtt, and

= the regulatory reporting obligations of our subsidiary Severn Trent Water Limited,
including serutinising the assurance process underpinning the PR14 subrrussion

The Committee's performance was included in the review of the boards effectiveness
referred to on page 51

Financia! statements and accounting policies

The Committee looked carefully at those aspects of the finonaial statements which
required significant accounting judgements or where there was estimation uncertainty
These areas are explained in note 4 of the financial statements on page 98

The Committee receves detailed reports both from the Finance Director and the
external audttor on these areas and on any other matters which they believe should be
drawn to the attention of the Cormrmittee The Cormmittee also reviews the draft of the
external auditors’ report on the financial statements, with particular reference to those
matters reported as carmpng risks of material musstaternent The Committee discusses
the range of possible treatments both with management and with the external
auditors and satisfies itself the judgements made by management are robust and
should be supported The following areas were the most tmportant ones examined

for 2013/14

» whether further impairmenits of the goodwill and intangible assets related to
businesses in Severn Trent Services, in particular in relation to the Products business
were required,

- whether the assumptions used to calculate the amount of the defict in the group's
defined benefit pension schemes were reasonable and in ine with those used by
similar comnpanies,

the way in which dervative instruments were accounted for and in particular the
impact of the adoption of [FRS 13,

the armount of provisions held for tax labilities which were still the subject of
discusston wath the tax authonties, and

the proposed disclosure of matenal items of iIncome or expenditure and whether
these meet the critena to be classified as exceptional items

-
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Committee attendance in 2013/14 The Committee reviewed the evidence and assumptions underpinning the use of the °

Baroness Nogkes 4/ going concern assumption in prepanng the accounts and in making the statement

Dr Bernard Bulkin 3/3  made in the Directors’ report that the company s a going concern

Richard Davey* 3j4,  The Committee reviewed the draft results anncuncements for interim and full

Martin Lamb 171  Yearresults and analysts’ presentations and paid particulor attention to the tone

) of the announcements and presentations to consider their consistency with the
Unabile ta ott meeting owing to pnos
busrl‘geszc%g'lrflzmgrr:fs FEHng owng fo prier financial statements

In reviewing the financial statements, the Committee receives input from the
Disclosure Committee, which 1s chaired by the Finance Director The work of the
Disclosure Committee 1s described further on page 47

An additional governance requirement from this year i for the board to confirm

that the report and accounts are fair, balanced ond understandable The Disclosure
Committee undertakes a detailed review of the annuo! report and accounts prior

to making a recommendation that the board could make the far, balanced and
understandable staternent, contained in the Directors’ responsibility staterment on
page 82 The Committee reviewed the Disclosure Committee’s process at its meetings
in March and May 2014

Deloitte LLP (Delaitte) reported to the Commuttee on their review of the half year
interim results and on their audit of the year end financiol staterments
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Internal controls

The Commuttee receves regular reports from Internal Audit in respect of their work on
internal controls and reviews management letters received from the external auditors

The Committee reviewed the processes for and outputs from our Enterprise Risk
Manogerment process, through which the pnincipal nsks and related controls are
identified The Committee discussed the approach to docurmenting the Board's nisk
appetite and prowiding guidance to nsk owners on the board's tolerance for different
types of nsk Inaddition, it monitored the ongeing develeprment of our compliance and
assurance processes in respect of the key nisks

The Commuittee reviews the procedures, systenns and controls designed to prevent
and detect fraud and bribery and recetves a reqular log of ncidents of fraud or
bribery which ncludes the actions taken to investigate and respond to the inadents
There were no matenal naidenits dunng the year

The Commuittee also reviewed the group’s approach to cyber secunty and IT continuity
Given the Increasing dependency of the business on technology, this rermains an area
of erucial importance and further reviews have been camed out during the year

Further details of our internal control framework can be found in the Directors’ report
on page 80
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Internal Audit

The Drrector of Internal Audit and his teamn report on a day-to-day basis to the
executive team on the effectiveness of the group’s systems of iInternat controls and
the adequacy of these systems to manage business nisk and to safeguard the group’s
gssets and resources This work 1s summansed and reported to the Cormmittee ona
reqular basis and 1s a key element of the assurance that the Cormmittee receves on
the nsks and controls in the group The Director of Internal Audit is free to raise any
issues with the Commuttee orits Chawman at any time dunng the year

The effectrveness of the Internal Audit function, its plans, level of resources and
budget are reviewed at least annually by the Committee In addition, during the year,
an external quality assessrment of Internal Audit was conducted by Grant Thormnton
and the findings were reviewed by the Commuttee There were no matenal ratters
identified for the Audit Commuittee as a result

InMarch 2014 the Committee met separately with the Director of Internal Audtt and
his Internal Audit tearm and had a detalled discussion of the work of Internal Audit,
including in particular the processes which led to the Internal Audit plan for 2014/15
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Audit Committee continued

Policy on the prowision of non-audit services

The company has approved a formal policy
on the provision of non-audit services
amed at safeguarding and supporting

the independence and objectmty of the
external auditors

The policy sets out the approach to be taken
by the group when using the services of the
external auditors, Including requinng that
certain services provided by the external
audtors are pre-approved by the Committee
or its Charman

It defines the non-audit services that may
be prowided by the externa! auditors and
separately sets out those non-audit services
which are prohibited, since the independence
of the external auditors could be threatened

Non-audit services where the external
ouditers may be used include audit

reloted services required by statute or
regulation, tax compliance and tax planming
adwice, due diligence on acquisitions

ond disposals, senaices related to fraud,
Corporate Responsibility report reviews and
requlatory support

The approval of the Committee or its
Charman is always required if a non-oudit
service provided by the ouditors 1s expected to
cost more than £100,000 or If non-audtt fees
for the year would exceed the smount of the
audrt fee

Furthermore, the procurernent of non-

audit services will need to comply with the
Utility Contracts Regutations and all services
requirerments aver the current EC threshold will
have to be subject to tender

The Committee also meets once a year with the Director of Internal Audit without
management present

External auditors

Deloitte audits all sigrificant subsidiaries of the group Annuolly, the Committee
reviews the external auditors’ audit plan and reviews and assesses information
provided by thern confirming their ndependence and objectvity withun the context of
applicable regulatory requirernents and professional standards The Committee also
reviews the auditors’ effectiveness, which involves assessrnent of the auditors by the
Comrmittee and key executives, and confirmation that the auditors meet minimum
standards of gualification, independence, expertise, effectiveness and communication
The Committee also meets privately with the external auditors at least once per year
These assessments are carned out prior to the Committee recommending to the
board that the external auditors be proposed for reappointment at the AGM

Delotte was appointed auditors of the company in 2005, pursuant to a competitive
tender process The company does not currently have a policy of tendenng the
external audit at specific intervals but would intiote a tender process if there were
any concerns about the quality of the audit or the independence and objectvity of
the auditors The company is committed to complying with UK and EU rules on audit
tenders whuch will reguire the audit to be formally tendered in the next few years
There are no contractugl obligations that act to restrict the Commuittee’s choice of
external auditors

Details of the amounts paid to Deloitte for audit and non-audit services are provided In
note 7 to the accounts onpage 103

Severn Trent Water Lirited

The regulated actvties carried out by Severn Trent Water Lirmited also require two
annual reporting requirements to Cfwat which are reviewed by the Committee

an annual subrrussion on Severn Trent Water Limited's regulatory obligations known
as the Annual Regulatory Performance Report, together with the Annual Regulatory
Compliance Stotement, and a statement that underpins the customer charges made
by Severn Trent Water Linited, known as the Principal Staterment

InMay 2013 the Committee reviewed the assurance framewaorkin place for the
Annual Regulatory Compliance Statement process In September and November
2013 the Committee reviewed the process, imehine and assurance framework for
the production of the 2014715 Principal Statement and its submission to Ofwat

Deloitte makes reports to Ofwat in respect of Severn Trent Water Lirmited'’s regulatory
accounts The Annual Regulatory Performance Report, which provides an overall
picture of company performance, covers many aspects which are not financial and
Severn Trent Water Lirmited appoints engineering consultants, Atkins, to report on
those aspects The Committee recerves reports from Atkins on therr work as part of its
review of the Annual Regutatory Returns

An additional requirement dunng the year was oversight of the essurance processes
which were designed to ensure that a high quality plan was submitted to Ofwat

s part of PR14 This involved both internal assurance processes and assurance
provided by a number of external assurance providers for specific aspects of the

final business plan subrmission The Committee reviewed the overall processes in
September 2013 and in Novernber 2013 reviewed the draft reports recerved from the
assurance providers The Committee's findings were reported to the board as part of its

. deliberations prior to the subrmission of the final business plan in December 2013
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Corporate Responsibility Committee

Image removed

This report provides details of the role of the Corporate Responsibility (CR) Commuttee

Gordon Fryett
Chairman of the Corporate
Responsibility Committee

The Committee provides gurdance

and direction to the group’s Carporate
Responsibility programme, reviews the group’s
key non-financial nsks and opportunities and
monitars progress

The terms of reference for the

Committee can be found on our website
{www severntrent camy and are also available
from the Company Secretary

The Committee reviews annually

the adequacy of the group's formal
whistleblowing policy ond procedures which
deal with allegations from employees
relating to breaches of the Code of Conduct
and reviews at each of its meetings the
whistleblowing incident log

and the work it has undertaken dunng the year

The members of the Committee are Gordon Fryett (Chairman), Andrew Duff, Liv
Garfield and Dr Angeta Strank Gordon Fryett wos appointed Chairman of the
Committee upon the retirerment of Dr Bernard Bulkin on 24 Junuary 2014 Dr Angela
Strank was appointed a member of the Committee upon her appointment to

the board on 24 Jonuary 2014 and L Garfield was appointed a member of the
Cormmittee as successor to Tony Wray as Chief Executive on 11 Apnl 2014

Qur CR framework

Our Code of Conduct ‘Doing the nght thing - The Severn Trent way’, provides the
structure and a common CR framework for both our businesses - reguloted and non-
regulated The nine principles of our Code of Conduct are

Keeping everyone healthy and safe

Supporting employees’ nghts and diversity
Maintaining ethical and honest behaviour

Staying free from brbery and corruption

Keeping our communications open and responsible
Delvenng excellent customer service

Working within the community

Protecting our ermronment,

Standing up for what's nght

To monitor performance, both Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services have

an effectve performance managerment systern in place through core business Key
Performance Indicators (KPIs), see puges 8 and 9 of the Strategic Report for further
detalls These are overseen by the relevant management teams and the board

Many of the business KPIs refate directly to our CR focus areas and therefore contribute
significantly to our CR performance and are linked to our reward arrangements

We report internally on our CR performance through senior managernent and the
Committee Externally, we report through a number of channels including our website
and our annual report and accounts

(X2 - - e RV R VY S

Cormmittee meetings

The Commuttee provides board oversight of cur CR framework, nduding the strategy
and performance related to hedlth, safety, ervironment and the community as well as
employee and supply chain matters CR KPIs and whistleblowing cases are reviewed at
every meeting Key areas of discussion and review are set out below

» Severn Trent Services CR framework and ongoing development of meqsures,
inctuding actions identified in customer and employee engagernent surveys,

« foltowing a change in guidance by the Environment Agency, the Committee
discussed the approach to categonsation of pollution incidents and the impact on
performance and target setting The Committee also reviewed the improvement
and mtervention actmbies to dnve improved ervironmental performance and
custormer outcomes The Committee received pellution incident performance
reports throughout the year as part of its perfarmance monitoring,

the provision of occupational health senaces in Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent
Services This 1s an area of crucial mportance, dlongside health and safety, and

the Committee will contmue to review absence trends and the implementation

of occupational health programmes within the group Details of our occupational
health programmes are provided in the Strategic Report on page 23,

+ the Committee recerved two reports from Internal Audst with respect to their work
on nen-financial nsk an update on Internal Audit actwity and progress on key
Internat Audit findings The Committee subsequently receved more detalled papers
on fire safety and the application of our Code of Conduct in our Supply Chain, and
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Corporate Responsibility Committee continued

+ Addtionally, the Committee discussed updates on waste management, the PR14
engagement programme, river water quality, community involverment, employee
satisfaction, supply chamn management, customer communications and drinking
water quality

CR activities

We are committed to CR and see 1t as an integrated part of our business Therefore our
actvities in this regard are discussed in the Strategic Report because operating ina
responsible way 1s how we work at Severn Trent

Human nghts

We have a responsiblity to understand our potential impacts on human nghts and

tc mitigate or eiminate them We are committed to operating in accordance with
the United Nations Global Compact Principles and our Code of Conduct supports this
commitment Whilst not having a specific human nghts pelicy, we have group policies
on Human Resources, Anti-Bribery and Anti-Fraud, Whistleblowing and Procurement
These policies are in turn supported by a broader range of policies within Severn Trent
Water and Severn Trent Services to support key human nghts

Freedom of association and collectve bargaining

We recognise the nght of all employees to freedom of association and collective
bargaiming We seek to promote co-operation between employees, our management
team and recognised trode unions We believe this fosters a jont understanding

of business needs and helps to deliver common solutions amed at making our
business successful

Internationally, Severn Trent Services operates a small number of soles and
marketing offices where union membership 1s not avallable due to national low 1t s
important that these employees and those who do not wish to join @ union are not at
a disadvantage

All Severn Trent employees are encouraged to raise concerns at work through their
line manager, however, we recognise that emnployees may feel nhibited in certan
creurnstances In this case, employees are encouraged to use our confidential and
independent whistleblowing helpline, operated by Safecall, an independent company
that specialises in handing concerns at work The service 1s avallable internationally
and Safecali prowide a translation service allowing any employee to access it

Equality

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key foctor nbeing o
successful business We do not tolerate discnmination under any circumstances

and bebeve In treating everyone equally with farness, encouragement and respect
Our Code of Conduct and our group Hurman Resources Policy govern all aspects of
employee nghts and diversity Underpinning these are indimduat business level palicies
that define our approach to @ diverse and inclusive ervirgnment,
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Committee attendance in 2013/14

Gordon Fryett 4ih
Dr Bernard Bulkin 33
Andrew Duff 414
Dr Angela Strank* 01
Tony Wray 414

* Unable to attend one meeting owing to personal reasgns

Diversity

To attract and draw skills from a diverse pool of talent we am to have an appropriate
balance of gender and ethnicity that represents the labour market we are part of and
the customer base we serve In 2012, we conducted gender diversity research with
wornen emiptoyees in Severn Trent Water to understand what 1s important to them
in developing careers at Severn Trent We have used the outcome of this research

to provide opportunities to all employees to shadow our Executive tearm and better
understand what is involved in serior management

Our dversity monitoring provides us with details that help focus our dversity effort

in specific parts of our work and our organisation and provides insights about how
attroctive we are to different parts of the labeur market We measure actvty at three
recruitrnent stages (attract, shortlist and hire) for gender and ethnicity This informs our
interventions and mvestigates whether we have an appropriate mix of employees

We have also undertaken trairing with emiployees inwvelved in recrutment to

ensure that we do not have an unconscious bias within the attraction and selection
programme This includes looking at how and where we advertise roles to ensure we
reach a diverse pool of potential applicants

Throughout 2013714, we have olso focused on increasing diversity in our applicants
with a pnimary focus on our entry level schemes for apprenticeships and groduates
We have looked at the communications we use to attract new applicants and how we
can reach a broader range of our community

Within Severn Trent Services we are currently establishing partnershups with a number
of job site providers with a view to helping us encourage greater diversity in our
management positions

Our gender diversity metncs as ot 31 March 2014 are set out in the Nominations
Cormmmittee report on page 53

Prevention of child labour and forced labour

We will refuse the use of child labour and forced labour under any crcumstances
The highest nisk for Severn Trent is through our supply chain, therefore we work with
our suppliers to ensure they operate to the same standards we set ourselves

Our Code of Conduct has been built into the procurement tender process as part of
the prequalification questionnarre template in Severn Trent Water Dunng 2013/14
500 suppliers have been assessed for nsk and importance, to guide further
engagement on our Code of Conduct We have engaged with all our pronty suppliers
and identified plans to close any gaps as appropriate

Severn Trent Services has implemented a nisk based approach to assessing supplier
complionce with thewr Supplier Code of Conduct. All high nsk suppliers have undergane
a review for compliance and commitment to the Code In addiion, 100% of new
suppliers dunng 2013/14 signed documentation to validate their comrmitment

Prevention of bribery and corruption

Cur group-wide Anti-Bnbery and Anb-Fraud Policy prohibits bribery and corruption in
all our business deahings, regardless of the country or cutture within which we work
Employees identified as high risk through a risk review for Severn Trent Water and
all employees of Severn Trent Services are required to undertake an online training
module and examunation to ensure awareness of and compltance with this policy

Dunng 2012/13 Severn Trent Services undertook a nsk assessment ond review of its
existing nternational sales representative and distributor network to identify potential
nisks and check compliance with the policy A nsk profile and review 1s undertaken

for all new sales representatives and distnbutors This helps to ensure that our global
channel partners comply with our policy and expectations
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Remuneration Committee

Image removed

Richard Davey
Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

The Committee determines, on behalf of
the board, the company’s policy on the
remunerction of executive directors, other
members of the Executive Commuttee and
the Chairman of the board The Committee
determines the total rermuneration packages
and contractual terms and condibions for
these indnviduals The policy framework for
remunerating all senior executive Mnanagers
1s consistent with the approach taken for
executive directors

Dear Shareholder

In 2013/14, we have delivered on our commitments to our stakeholders, with
operational improvernents, below inflation nses to customer bills, higher levels of
service to customers and higher returns to shareholders through the growing ddend
This performance hos been reflected in the payrments under our incentive plans

The annual bonus payments to executive directors for the financial year to 31 March
2014 were between 49 3% and 78 7% of base salary, reflecting a good year of
operational performance of the business Dunng the year, awards under the Share
Matching Pian (SMP) vested at 78% of the maximum baosed on performance over the
three years to 20 May 2013 The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTEP) awards bosed on
performance over the three years to 31 March 2014 will vest in full There 1s a detalled
breakdown of the targets set and the payments under the annual bonus, SMP and LTIP
on pages 68to 70

Key policy developments for 2014/15

Dunng the year the Commuittee reviewed the remuneration policy to ensure that

it supported the business strategy and provided an appropnate means to reward
the executives for their contribution to our performance Following this review and
consultation with the company’s key shareholders, the Committee has decided to
simplfy the long term incentrve structure and have a single long term incentrve plan
No further awards will be made under the SMP and shareholder approval 1s being
sought at the AGM for a new LTIP to replace the current LTIP which expires in 2015
The performance metrics under the new LTIP will be the same as under the current
ptan (o siding scale of Return on Regulatory Capital Value (RoRCV} targets measured
over three years) and the award levels for 2014 will be 125% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 80% of salary for the other executive directors, which incorporates the
vglue cf the SMP forgone

In addition, we would ke to inform you that we are ntroducing a change to the bonus
structure for executive directors and other managers for 2014/15 While the Severn
Trent Water balanced scorecard and indwidual performance remain fughly relevant,
the Committee has now decided that a significant elernent of the bonus for these
drrectors should be based on demanding key business objectwes, the achieverment of
which has the capacity to transform the bustness Finally, following a review of market
practice and shareholder feedback, the shareholding guidelines for the Chief Executive
have increased from 150% to 200% of salary and the guidelines for the other executive
directors have increased from 100% to 125% of salary respectively No other significant
changes are being made to the remuneration policy

Executive director changes

During the course of the year, the Committee considered the retirernent of the current
Chief Executive, Tony Wray and the recruitment arrangements for his successor,

Liv Garfield Full detaits of therr respective leaving ond joining arrangerments are set
out in the Annual report on remuneration on poge 75

Structure of the report

This1s the first year of compliance with the new regulations on remuneration
reporting and I hape you find the remuneration report more transparent and easy
tounderstond Inline with the regutations, the remuneration report 1s splt nto two
sections The Policy Report sets out the remuneration policy for the executive directors
of Severn Trent Plc for the next three years and will be subject to a binding vote by
shareholders at the AGM The Annual report on remuneration provides detatls of the
amounts paid to the directors for the year ended 31 March 2014 and sets out how
the policy will be applied for the forthcorming year Ths letter and the Annual report
on remuneration will be subject to on advisory vote at the AGM There will also be o
separate binding vote to approve the new LTIP

We have sought and carefully considered the feedback from shareholders in the

changes we have made to simplify the remuneration policy | hope you are supportve
and can approve all three resclutions ot the AGM

Richard Davey
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Policy report
Thus section of the remuneration report, setting out the remuneration policy for the directors of Severn Trent plc, s subject to
approval by shareholders at the AGM on 16 July 2014 and will toke effect, subject to approval, from this date

Setting the remuneration policy

The Cornmittee sets the remuneration pelicy for executive directors and other serior executve managers, taking into account the
company’s strategic objectives over the short and the long terrm and the external market.

The Committee addresses the need to batance nsk and reward The Commuttee monitors the vanable pay arrangements to take
account of the nsk levels ensunng an emphasis on long term and sustainable performance The Committee believes that the
incentive schemes are appropriately managed and that the choice of performance measures and targets does not encourage
undue nsk taking by the executives so that the long term performance of the business 1s not comprormised by the pursuit of
short term value The schemes incorporate a range of internal and external performance metrics, measunng both operational
and finanaial performance over diffenng and overlapping performance periods prowiding a rounded assessment of overall
company performance

Linkage to all employee pay

The Committee reviews changes in remuneration arrangements in the workforce generally It aims to ensure that executive

salary increases are normally aligned to the increases for the rest of the workforce Furthermore, the annual bonus operates on

a stmilar basts with the bonus schemes operated throughout Severn Trent Water {using the same balanced scorecard), all UK
employees moy parucipate n the HMRC approved Save As You Earn (SAYE) scherne and UK bosed Severn Trent Waoter employees
may alse participate in @ Share Incentive Plan (SIP} The company has not directly consulted with employees on the topic of
executive remunergtion, however, the Committee does consider the general base salary increase, remuneraticn arrangements and
employment conditions for the broader emplayee group when determining the remmuneration policy for executive directors

Shareholder views

The Cornmittee engages pro-actively with the cornpany’s major shareholders, and takes therr views into account. The Committee
reviews any feedback recerved from shareholders as a result of the AGM process and throughout the rest of the year and takes into
consideration the latest views of Investor bodies and their representatives, including the Assoaation of Briish Insurers, the National
Assoaation of Pension Funds and proxy advice agencies such as Institutional Shareholder Services When any matenal changes are
made to the remuneration policy, the Remuneration Cornrrittee Charman will discuss these with major shareholders in advance,

and will offer a meeting for a more detalled discussion

Remuneraticn policy for the executive directors
The following table sets out a summary of each element of the executive directors’ remuneration packages

Purpose and bink to

Eterment strategy Operation (including perforrmance metrics) Maoximurm opportunity
Salary Torecrut and reward  Base satanes for Indwidual directors are reviewed annually Details of the salary levets for
executves of a by the Committee and normally take effect fromn 1 July the directors for 2014 are set
suitable calibre for Salanes are set with reference to individual performance, out in the Annudl report on
the role and duties expenence and contribution, together with developments remnuneration on page 75
required in the relevant employment market (having regard to Any increase to directors’
sirmilar roles in publicly quoted cormpanies of a comparable salanes will generally be
size (currently FTSE 51-150) and practice in other water ne hugher than the average
companies), company performance, affordability and increase for the UK workforce
nternal relatmibies However, a ligher increase
The company, where appropnate, may set base salary may be proposed in the event
levels below the market reference salary at the tme of arole change or promotion,
of appointrment, with the iIntention of bringing the buse or In other exceptional
salary tevets In ine with the market as the indmdual gains crcumstances
_ the relevant expenence
Benefits  To provide competitive A car allowance, family level pivate medicat insurance, life The value of the other benefits
benefits n the assurance, personal accident nsurance, health screening, an - 1s based on the cost to the
rmarket to enable ncapacity benefits scheme and other incidental expenses compary and there I1s no pre-
the recrutmentand  Relocation, disturbance and expatnate allowances and tax deterrmined maxirmum brmit
retention of directors  equalisation may be patd as appropriate
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Remuneration Committee continued

Purpose and Iink to
Element strategy Operation (including performance metrics) Maximum opportunity
Pension To provide apension A defined contribution scherme and/or cash supplerment in Company contribution to a
comparable with lieu of pension pension scheme and/or cash
similar companies in allowance up to a maximum
the market to enable of 25% of salary Different
the recruitment and legacy arangements rernain
retention of directors in place for some directors
and the maximum limits
are as set out in the notes
following this table
Annual To encourage For executives other than the CEQ of Severn Trent Services Maximum annual bonus
bonus improved operational  (STS), at least 50% of the bonus will be based on the Severn  of 120% of base satary
performance and Trent Water balanced scorecard, with the balance relating (target annual bonus of 60%
align the nterests to key business objectives and personal contribution Forthe  of base salary)
of directors with CEQ of ST, the majority of the bonus will be based on the
shareholders through  financial and non-financial performance of STS No more
the partial deferral of  than 20% of the bonus will relote to personal contribution for
payment In shares any executive
50% of the bonus 15 paid in cosh and 50% i shares which
vest after three years {(with the value of any dividends to be
rofled up and paid on vesting}
A dawback mechanism applies to allow the recoupment
within three years of the payment of the bonus or the grant
of deferred shares in the event of financial misstatement,
error in the calculation or gross misconduct
LTIP To encourage strong  Awards are granted annually and are subject to a three Maximurn imit 1s 150%
and sustained year performance condition which requires the company’s of base salary (with 200%
Improverments n RoRCV to out-perform the target set out in Ofwat’s final being used in exceptional
financial performance, deterrinabion A sliding scale of targets is set creurnstances) The current
in line with the The value of dwvidends paid on the shares comprising the grant levelis 125% for the
company’s strategy  award will be rolled up and paid on vesting Chief Executive and 80%
and long term The award may be structured os a condtiona share award ~ of base salary for the other
shareholder retums  {awards may also be settled in cash in certain arcumstances)  directors
A clawback mecharism applies to allow the recouprment of  Up to 25% of an award
vested incentive awards within three years of vesting iIn the may vest for threshold
event of financal misstatement, an error in calculating the performance
level of vesting or gross negligence, fraud or gross misconduct
Save As To encourage The executive directors are able to participate nthe group’s  The maximum brits under
YouEom  widespread employee SAYE scheme and SIP on the same terms as other eligible the plans are as set by HMRC
scheme share ownership to employees
(SAYE) enable employees to
and Share  share in the success
Incentve  of the business,
Plan (3IP)  and toalign therr
interests with those of
shareholders
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Further details on the vanable pay policy
Annual bonus

The performance measures and targets are carefully selected annually to aign with the relevant business unit's strategic and
key performance indicators The annual weighting of the bonus between the various metrics and personal contnbution may vary
depending on the key prionties of the business for the year ahead Robust and demanding targets are set taking into account the
operating environment and priorities, market expectations and the bustness plan for the year ahead

Long term incentives

a)Lrip

RoRCV 15 used to assess performance under the LTIP This 1s consistent with the measure used by Ofwat in setting custorner prices as
part of the final determination (the process whereby Ofwat sets the level of prices Severn Trent Water can charge customers) and
reflects the efficiency of eamings rather than simply being an absolute measure of profit It 1s verfied and published as part of the
Annual Regulatory Performance Report The Committee believes that the use of RoRCV provides a strong cignment between the
long term financial and operational performance of the group and the reward delivered to management

Performance 1s measured over the three financial years with a sliding scale of targets applied The Committee reserves the
discretionary power to adjust the formulaic outturn of the RoRCV condition to ensure that the vesting result s reflective of the
underlying finonaial and operatronal performance of the company over the performance penod The use of this discretran 1s
expected to be exceptiendl, but may be irvoked by the Committee in arder to take into account factors such as regulatory changes,
changes in the financing of the company and extreme weather events {not an exhaustve list) This discretion can be operated
upwards ar downwards, but the Commuttee would consult with its major shareholders before making any upwards adjustment
Inrelation to the awards granted in 2013 and prior, there 1s a cap and collar imiting the extent to which this discretion can be
appled (f the vesting result indicated by the RoRCY condition 1s greater than 50% the Committee may reduce the vesting to @
number not less than 50%, and if 1t 1s 0% 1t may increase it to any figure not greater than 50%) This cap and collar approach will not
apply to awards granted from 2014

In oddition, for ary awards to vest, the Committee must be satisfied that there has been no comprorruse to the commeraal
practices or operabional standards of the group If the Committee 1s not so sabsfied, then the vesting percentage may be scaled
back as appropnate (inctuding to 0%)

b) Legacy Share Matching Plan

Until 2013, awards were also made under a Share Matching Plan (SMP) Under the SMP, the policy has been that executive directors
could recenve up to 0 5 matching shares for each share deferred under the annual bonus plan (the maximum award levet was
therefore 30% of salary) The matching owards were subject to achievernent of a relative total shareholder return performance
condition and financial underpin At the time of release participants also receve the value of the dvidends paid on vested shares
over the performance period The executive directors have outstanding owards under the SMP related to grants made in 2011, 2012
and 2013 The outstanding awards will be allowed to pay out under the approved policy subject to achievement of the performance
conditions on which they were granted

Remuneration Commuttee discretion

The Committee will operate all plans according to the rules of each respective plan and the discretions contained therein

The discretions cover aspects such as the timing of grant and vesting of awards, determining the size of the award {subject to the
policy imnits), the treatment of teavers (see policy on terminations), retrospective adjustrment of award size (e g for anghts issue,

a corporate restructuning or for special dvidends) and, in exceptional crcumstances, the discretion to adjust previously set targets

If events happen that cause the Committee to determine that it would be appropnate to do so in exercising such discretions the
Commuttee will take into account generally accepted market practice, best practice guidelines, the provisions of the Listing Rutes and
the company's approved remuneration policy

Pension policy

The executive directors porticipate in a vanety of pension arrangements The policy for future appointments, which is reflected in the
rernunerabion package agreed for Liv Garfield, 1s a company contnbution to a defined contnbution scheme and/or cash allowance
up to a maximum of 25% of salary Legacy arrangements for the other directors include a 40% of solary cash allowance for Michael
McKeon and Andy Smith and 30% of salary for Martin Kane Tony Ballance 1s a member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme
{Pension Choices section), a defined contnbution scherme He currently contnbutes 3% of salary and the cormpany contributes 30%,
plus a further 2 5% in respect of death in service and it health benefits The normal retirernent age for the scherme 1s 65 although
retirement prior to 6515 possible with the consent of the company

Martin Kane, Andy Smith and Tony Wray are legocy members of the company’s defined benefit pension scheme Please see poges
72 and 73 for further details
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Remuneration Cormmittee continued

External directorships

Executive directors are permitied to toke on external non-executive directorships, though normially only one other FTSE 100
appointment, to bnng a further external perspective to the group and help in the developrnent of key indviduals’ expenence
In order to avoid any conflicts of interest, all appointrments are subject to the approval of the Norninations Committee
Executve directors are permitted to retain the fees ansing from one appointment.

Shoreholding guidelines

The company cperates shareholding guidelines under which executive directors are expected to buld and maintain a shareholding
in the company The Chief Executive 1s expected to build and maintain a holding of shares to the value of 200% of salary and other
executive directors 125% of salary Executive directors are expected to retain all of the net of tax number of shares they receive
through the LTIP, SMP and deferred share bonus until the shareholding guidelines have been met

Reward scenanos

The charts below show how the compaosition of each of the executive directors’ remuneration packages vanies at different levels of
performance achievernent

Graph removed

Mimimum poy s fixed pay only (1 e satory + benefits + pension) On target pay includes fixed pay o 60% of solory bonus ond 50% vesting of the LTIP awards (with grant levels of 125% of solary for
the Chief Executive and B0% of solary far the ather executive directors) Mawmum pay nchudes fixed pay end ossumes 100% vesting of both the annual bonus ond the LTIP awards No shere onice
growth has been foctored into the abave chart and oil amounts hove been rounded to the nearest £1,000 Salary levels {which are the base on which other elements of the pockage are calculcted)
are bosed on Lhose applying ot 1 July 2014 The value of taxable benefits 1s the cost of providing those benefits in the year ended 31 March 2014 {estmated value used in the cose of Lw Gorfield}
Note thot the majonty of Martin Kane s Laxable benefits relote to his relocation 1o the US The exccutve directors are olso perritted 10 partcipote in the company Sove As You Earn Scherne and
Share [ncentime Pian but they have been excluded from the above groph for simplicity

Service contracts and policy on payments for loss of office
The remuneration related elements of the current contracts for executive directors are shown in the table below

Prowision Policy
Notice penod 12 months from etther party
Termination payment Under the policy and as reflected in the service contract for Liv Garfield and all future appointments,

payrments for loss of office compnse a rnaximum of 12 months’ salary and benefits only
The policy under other executive directors’ legacy contracts provides for o maxirnum payment in
the case of redundancy, payment in lieu of notice or termination in breach of the agreement by the
compary of 175% of base salary In determining actual payouts, the Committee shall have regard
to the ovemding requirerment to be fair to both the company and the executive In particular, the
company shall not be required to reward failure on the part of the executive (which in the case of the
contracts other than for Michael McKeon is reflected in the financial performance of the group) and
shall have regard to the current corporate govemnance standards ot the date of termination of the
executive [n such cases, the Committee may exercise its discretion to reduce the payment by up to
10% (lowering the payment to 157 5% of salary) and in the case of Michael McKeon it may reduce the
payrment as It thinks fit

Mitigation Any termingtion payment will not be made cutomatically but will be subject to both phasing and
mibgation {including offset aganst any earnings frorm new employment)
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Provision Policy

Change of control There are no specific contractual payments or benefits which would be tnggered in the event of
a change in control of the company Outstanding incentive awards would vest in line with the
treatrnent set out below for a good leaver except that the performance and vesting period will end on
the date of control

Annual bonus The Committee may exercise its discretion to pay a bonus to a departing executive, subject to
performance and pro-rated to reflect the proportion of the year worked The bonus would be paid at
the same time as for the other directors and if the executive has left employment by that date, it may
be paid solely In cash
Any outstanding deferred bonus shares will vest on cessation of employment unless the departure s a
resutt of summary disrmissal

LTIP The defoult treatment 15 that awards will lapse on cessation of employrment However, executives will
be considered a good leaver in certain prescribed circumstances or by the discretion of the Committee
If an execute 1s a good leaver, the award will ordinanly vest an the narmal vesting date subject
to performance and tme pro-rating (based on the proportion of the performance penod thot the
executive has been employed rounded up to the nearest month) The Committee may determine that
the award should vest early, and in exceptional aircumstances may time pro-rate the award to a lesser
extent For the outstanding awards under the legacy 2005 LTIP, the time pro-rating is calcutated by
rounding up to the nearest full year

Share Matching Plan The directors have outstanding awards reloting to grants rade in 2011, 2012 and 2013 The defauilt
treatrment is that awards will lapse on cessation of employment. However, executives will be treated as
a good legver in certain prescribed circurmstances or by the discretion of the Commuttee, n which case
the matching award wall normally continue to run for the full three years subject to performance and
vme pro-rating {reunded up to the nearest calendar month) The Cammittee, however, may decide to
pro-rate to a lesser extent and/or allow the awoard to vest early

Recruttrment owards As detalled under the recruitment policy, the Committee has the discretron to grant owards to buy-out
an executive’s awards at their previous emiployer if necessary to secure their employment The terms
of any recruitment award will be determined on a case by case basis In relation to the one-off awards
granted to Liv Garfield, on her appaintment as Chief Executive, these are subject to performance
conditions and will not be subject to time pro-rating In the event of the early termination of her
appointment by the company This lack of tme pro-rating was agreed in recognition of the fact that
the expected value of the forfeited awards at BT was significantly fugher with much of it being non-
performance related (ond which would not have been scaled back for o similar event)
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Outplacement senaces and rembursement of legal costs may be provided where appropriate Any statutory entitlernents or sums
to settle or compromise claims in connection with a termination would be paid as necessary Outstanding owards under the SAYE
and SIP would vest iIn accordance with the terms of the plans as approved by HMRC

All non-executive directors have letters of appointment with the company for an intial penod of three years, subject to annual
re-appointment at the AGM The Charrman’s appointment may be terminated by the company The appointment letters for
the Chairmon and non-executive directors provide that ne compensation 1s payable on termination, other than accrued fees
and expenses

Approach to recrutment and promotion

The remuneration packages for all new executve directors will be set in line with the company’s approved policy The Comrmuttee will
take into account, In arrving ot a total package, the skills and expenence of the candidate, the market rate for a candidate of that
level of expenence, as well as the mpertance of securing the best candidate

Annual bonuses and long term incentives will be awarded in ine with the maximurm bimits set outlined in the policy on page 62
Participation in the plans will nermally be pro-rated for the year of joining

The Cornmittee may make additional cash and/or share based awards If deferred pay s forfeited by an executive on legving

a previous employer Such awards would take into account the nature of awards forfeited (| e cash or shares), time horizons,
attrbuted expected value and performance conditions Awards would typically be made under the terms of the LTIP or under
the exemptions permitted under the Listing Rules Nen-perfarmance related payments 1e ‘golden hellos’, will not be mode

Other payments may be made in relation to relocation expenses and other Inaidental expenses as appropriate

Inthe case of an internal appointment, ary vanable pay element awarded in respect of the pnor role would be allowed to pay out
according to the terms on which it was onginally granted
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Remuneration Committee continued

Charrman and nen-executive directors

The remuneration policy for non-executive directors, other than the Charman, 1s deterrmined by the board The fee for the Charrman
15 determined by the Remuneration Commttee (without the Chairman present)

Purpose and link to

Element strategy Operation Maximurn Opportunity

Fee Torecruit and retan  Base board fee with additionol fees paid for the senior Detalls of the current fee
non-executives of @ independent director and chairmanship of the board levels for the directors are set
surtable calibre for Committees The Chairman receives ¢ total fee in out in the Annual report on
theroleand duties  respect of his board duties Fees are pad monthly remuneration
required Reasonoble expenses are paid where necessary The fee levels are set subject

The fees for the non-executive directors and Chairman are  to the maximum himits set out
set taking into account the time commitment of the role in the articles of association
and morket rates in comparable companies The fees are

normally reviewed annualky (but not necessarty increased)

Non-executve directors normally serve terms of three years They do not have service contracts Instead they are engaged by
letters of appointment which are terminable by etther party with no notice period and no compensation in the event of such
termination All of the directors ore subject to appointment or reappointment ot the 2014 AGM, with the exception of Baroness
Noakes who will be retinng from the board with effect from the conclusion of the 2014 AGM

Annual report on remuneration
This part of the report will be subject to an adwisory vote at the AGM The nformation on pages 67 to 7415 audited

Membership of the Remuneration Committee and its advisors

The members of the Cormmittee are listed in the table below All are independent non-executive directors, as defined under the
Governance Code, with the exception of the company Charman who was independent on his appointment During the year ended
31 March 2014, the Committee met six times to discuss key rermuneration issues ansing, the review and operation of the company’s
remuneration policy and market updates by its advisors

Remuneratich Committee attendance in 2013/14

Richard Davey* 5/6
Andrew Duff* 5/6
Dr Bernard Bulkin 4i4
Martin Lamb 6/6
Dr Angela Strank 212

* Unable to attend one meeting owing to prior business commitments

The Committee members have no personal finanaia! interest, other than as shareholders, i the matters to be deaded The Chief
Executve, Director of Human Resources and General Manager of Reward and Policy also attended the Committee meetings

to provide advice and respond to specific questions Such attendances specifically excluded any matter concerning their own
remuneration The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Commitiee

To ensure that the company’s remuneration practices are in ine with best practice, the Committee has access to advice from New
Bridge Street (NBS) (a tradmg name of Aon Hewitt Limited) NBS 1s the iIndependent adwisor to the Committee and were appointed
in 2011 Neither Aon Hewitt Limited nor any other part of Aon plc provided other services to the company dunng the year The total
fees paid to NBS dunng the year were £209,089 excluding VAT The Committee reviews the appointment of its adwisors annually and
s comfortable that the advice 1t receves i1s objective and independent.




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Directors’ emoluments

Year ending 31 March 2014 Yeor ending 31 March 2013
Base salary Benefits Annual  Long term Base solary  Benefits Annual  Longterm

£'000 andfees mknd® Pension®  bonus™ incentves™ QOther™ Total andfees nknd® Pension®™ bonus®™ ncentves® Other®  Total
Non-executive directors
Dr Bernard
Bulkin * 473 - - - - 01 474 630 - - - - - B30
Richard Davey 750 - - - - 02 752 750 - - - - 03 753
Andrew Duff
{Charman) 2500 - - - - - 2500 2500 - - - - - 2500
Gordon Fryett 533 - - - - - 533 500 - - - - - 500
Martin Lamb 50.0 - - - - - 500 500 - - - - - 500
Baroness
Noakes 65.0 - - - - 03 653 650 - - - - 03 653
Philip
Rermnant @ 0.2 - - - - - 02
Dr Angela
Strank + 9.4 - - - - - 94
Executive directors

Tony Ballance 2021 166 746 1620 1442 63 6058 1985 165 728 1958 789 42 5667
Martin Kane 2555 1458 766 1265 1619 5.0 7713 2508 1210 752 2880 987 24 8361

Michael
McKeon 4631 165 1856 3448 3269 05 13374 4522 166 1813 4462 1997 061,296
Andy Smith 2629 165 149% 2105 1923 97 8418 2568 169 1607 2538 1174 06 8062
Tony Wray 5612 165 2286 4524 4895 119 1,7601 5524 165 223 3 5464 2961 0616353
Total 22950 2119 7153 12962 13148 340 58672 22637 1875 71331,7302 7908 9056945
Footnotes

) Benefits include o car ailowance of £15,000 per annum farnily level private medical insurance, e assurance worth § x bose satary teleghone gllowonces and parteipstion n an nkapocity
benefits scheme The figure shown for Martin Kane includes remiuneration paid as compensation far his required relocation to the US This figure includes his US cost of lving expenses comprising of
accarmmexdation costs, UK and US private medical insurance vehicle costs ar fores, tax adwice flewble benefits, US disturbance ellowonce utibty costs and o residual payment in respect of a shore
oward He olso recenved compensalion for UK tax suffered on US benefits £49 434 (2013 £44,270)

{1} In the yeor to 31 March 2014 Andy Srruth was a member of the defined benefit pensien scherne ond the figure shown represents the annual cost to the company of providing the defined benefit
pension up to the annugt scheme cap £141,000 (2013 £137 400) plus the annual cash suppierent paid in lew of a pension above the cap £52,770 {2013 £51 670) From 1 Apnl 20314 Andy Smith
will recerve a salary supplermnent n lleu of pension worth 40% of bese salary in line with legocy contractunl arrgngements Tony Batlonce 1s a member of the defined contnbution scherme and the
figure shown 15 the contnibution paid into the scheme by the company in the year For the other executive directors the figure shown s the onnual cash supplement paid ¢ lieu of o pension

() The annual bonus 1s paid 50% in cash and 50% i shares with the portion deferred into shares subject to on addibonel holding period of three years with no further performance
conditions attoched

{v)The 2014 figure 1s comprised of

- The vesting of the 2011 LTIP award The performance penod for this award ended on 31 March 2014 and the awards will vest in June 2014 The value of the shares has been estimoted by using
the overage shafe pnce for the penod fiom 1 Joruory 2014 10 31 Morch 2015 0f £17 7

- The vesting of the 2010 SMP aword The performance penod for this award ended on 20 May 2013 and the awards vested on 14 June 2013 at a share price of £17 57
The 2013 figure 15 comprised of
- The vesting of the 2010 LTIP oward The perforrmance penod for this award ended on 31 March 2013 and the owards vested on 14 June 2013 ot o shore price of £17 57

{v) For non executive directors this figure relates to expenses For executive directors this figure consists of the value obtained frominclusion in the Severn Trent all employee Save As You Earn
Scheme and Share Incentive Plan

(i} Retired from the board on 24 January 2014
(v} Joired the board on 31 March 2014
(vm} Jo:ned the board on 24 January 2014
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Remuneration Committee continued

Annual bonus outturn for 2013/14

The weighting of the performance measures for the annual bonus awarded during the year was as follows

Graph removed

Performance of Severn Trent Water

The bonus outturn in respect of Severn Trent Water performance was determined by reference to a balanced scorecard of
measures, based on 10 of the corpany’s 16 Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) The Commuttee believes that the use of the
selected 10 Severn Trent Water KPIs continues to be both an effective and challenging annual bonus metric and meets the needs
of the business The bonus entittement was determined by reference to the aggregate number of points awarded across all the
KPIs The targets taken together are considered by the board to have animpact on the longer term finoncial performance of the
company and a number of thern are reported to Ofwat

The KPIs used to determine the annual bonus are

Key Performance Indicators

Target Stretch Outturn  Points

Employee KPI1  Lost time inadents per 100,000 hrs worked 028 027 021 130
+ Provding a safe working KP12  Employee motivation 79% 80% 81% 130
ermvironment
- Developing a confident and
productie workforce
Customer KP14  Service Incentive Mecharism - Qualtatve 452 473 448 99
* Quality interaction with the KPI5  Service Incentive Mechamism - Quantitative 162 154 143 130
customer KPI7  Senceability - Waste 75 66 57 130
KPI8  Serviceability - Water 70 68 202 0
Finanaial KPLS  Capital Expenditure (met) versus final determination - 0% 02% 0% 100
» Asset base enhancement % outperformance
- Mariogernent of cost base KPI11 Operating Expendrture versus final determination - 0% 06% 0% 100
% outperformance
Environment KP112 Pollubion incidents {cat 1, 2 and 3) 491 475 449 130
* Minimising environmental mpact  KPI 16  Leakage MU/d - Post MLE 456 449 441 130
Total 1,079

Each KPT has 100 torget points 130 stretch points and in theory, extro points can be earned for above stretch perfarmance For executive directors to be owarded the moxmum bonus guailoble they
are required 1o achiave 1,300 aggregate points Dunng the yeor, 6 of the 10 KPIs exceeded the stretch level of performance, generating an aggrepate ntial score of 1 443 points After exarmining the
overoll performance and indicative bonus outturn the Committee deterrmined that each of the 6 KPIs should be copped at the fevel of stretch performance (1 e 130 points per KP]) As o consequence
the final aggregate score was 1,679 points The resulting bonus awarded for the Severn Trent Water portion of the annuol banus was 63 2% of 45 bonus element maximum representing a streng

performance N the yeor and continues the positive progressive trend in the outturn of the KPls




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Performance of Severn Trent Services

In respect of Martin Kane, performance was measured aganst the profit before interest and tax (PBIT} (before exceptional items)

and non-financial objectives of Severn Trent Services

Weighting % achieved
PBIT 65% 0% out of 65%
Non-finanaiol objectives 35% 26 75% out of 35%
Total 100% 26 75%

The total bonus payable for Severn Trent Services’ performance was 26 75% of the maximum In respect of Michael McKeon,
his performance was measured against the achievernent of the Severn Trent Services business plan He was awarded 25% of the
maximum bonus avallable as atthough the financial measures were not met the strategic outcomes were dnven successfully

Personal contnbution

All directors had 10% of their bonus opportunity measured against personal objectives, with the exception of the Chief Executive
and Chief Executive of Severn Trent Senvices, who had 20% The personal objectives set related to PR14 and the AMPS business plan,
development of the retaill business, talent and succession planning and transitton management.

Qverall achievernent for 2013/14

STW sTS Personal
performance  performance  performance Total bonus
% solary Deferred shares

% salary % salary %salary  {max 120%) Cash £ £ Total £

Tony Ballance 6826 - 840 7666 80,987 80,987 161,974
Martin Kane 758 2247 1520 4925 63,267 63,267 126,534
Michael McKeon 6067 300 1020 7387 172,417 172,417 344,834
Andy Smith 6826 - 840 7666 105,249 105,249 210,497
Tony Wray 6067 - 1800 7687 452,364 - 452,364

The bonusis paid 50% in cash and 50% in shares (deferred for three years) The deferred shares will be granted in June 2014
The deferred shares are not subject to any further conditions save for continued employment Tony Wray retired from the board on
11 April 2014 and the Committee exercised its discretion to pay his bonus solely in cash

Long term incentive awards vesting in relation to performance in 2013/14

The 2010 $MP awards and the 2011 LTIP awards have or will vest based on performance during the year

2010 SMP awards

The 2010 SMP awards were subject to a TSR performance
condition, measured relative to companies ranked 51-1501n
the FTSE by morket captalisation (excluding investment trusts)
The performance penod was three years commencing on

the date of grant (21 May 2010) In addition, the Committee
must be satisfied that the compary’s TSR was reflective of the
company’s underlying performance The performance period
ended on 20 May 2013 with Sevem Trent ranked 27 out of 82
cormpanies The Committee was satisfied that the company’s
TSR apprepriately reflected the company’s underlying
performance and the award vested at 78 0%

Graph removed
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Remuneration Committee continued

2011 LTiP awards

The 2011 LTIP awards were subject to an RoRCV performance
condition, measured over three financaial years to 31 March
2014 The Committee has vanous discretions inrelation to
determining the final vesting outcome as set out In the policy
report. The performance period ended on 31 March 2014

The Committee considered the level of RORCV out-performance
of the Ofwat final determination for the 2011 LTIP award after
adjusting RoRCV to exclude the impact of an exceptional tax
credit. This showed the average RoRCV over the three years
ending in 2013/14 had stil cutperformed the RoRCV Ofwat final
deterrmination by 16 5% therefore resulting in 100% vesting

Surmary of long term incentive awards vesting based on performance in 2013/14

Graph removed

Nurmiber of End of Value of

shares performance Number of resultant
Executive Award type Grant dote granted penod % vesting shares vesting award® Vesting date
Tony Ballance SMP 21/05/10 2,069  20/05/13 78% 1,613 £28340 21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 6,525 31/03/14 100% 6,525 £115558 01/04/14

Total £143,898
Martin Kane SMP 21/05/10 2586 20/05/13 78% 2,017 £35439  21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 7,121  31/03/14 100% 7,121  £126,113 01/04/14

Total £161,522
Michael McKeon SMP 21/05/10 5177  20/05/13 78% 4,038 £70948  21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 14,411  31/03/14 100% 14,411 £225219 01/04/14

Total £296,167
Andy Smith SMP 21/05/10 3,049 20/05/13 78% 2,378 £41,781 21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 8,477 31/03/14 100% 8477 £150128 01/04/14

Total £191,509
Tony Wray® SMP 21/05/10 5591 20/05/13 78% 4,360 £76,605 21/05/13
LTIP 22/06/11 23,271 31/03/14 100% 23,271  £412,129 01/04/14

Total £488,734

[} For the SMP award ths 1s based on the shore price ot refease of £17 57 For the LTIP award this1s bosed on the overoge share peice over the firal three menths of the performance pemod {£17 71

5 the owards will not be released until June 2014

{fi) Tony Wray retired from the board on 11 April 2014 As noted on poge 75 he 1s being treated as o good leaver under the nues of the LTIP His award vests as normal on 1 Apnl 2014 and will be
released after the end of the dose penod 1n occordonce with the rules there 1§ no pro-rota reduction since he served for the whole of the performance pericd
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Outstanding scheme interests, including share awards granted dunng the year

The table below sets out details of the executves’ outstanding awards under the LTIP and SMP, deferred share awards under the
Annucal Bonus (ABS} and SAYE scheme os at 31 March 2014

Maximum®  Percentage vesting End of Awards granted dunng the yeor
number of at minmum  Exerosepnce  performance Vesting/™

Executve Award type shores performance {{s)] penod exercise date Basis of award Face value

Tony Ballance 2011 LTIP 6,525 0% - 31/03/14  01/04/14 - -
2012 LTIP 5,741 0% - 3103715  01/04/15 - -
2013LTIP 5855 0% - 31/03/16  01/04/16 50%salary  £103,050
2011 SMP 1,868 5% - 15/05/14  20/05/14 - -
2012 SMP 1,721 5% - 24/05/15  25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 2,963 5% - 12/06/16  13/06/16 051 match £48,926
2011 ABS 3,736 - - - 30/06/14 - -
2012 ABS 3,442 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 5926 - - - 26/06/16  Deferred bonus £97,852
2013 SAYE 725 - 1241 -~ May-16 - -
2013 SIP 32 ~ - - - - -
Total 38,534

Martin Kane 2011LTIP 7,121 0% - 31/03/14  01/04/14 - -
2012 LTIP 7,119 0% - 31/03/15  01/04/15 - -
2013LTIP 7,119 0% - 31/03/16  01/04/16 50% salary  £125,300
2011 SMP 2,131 5% - 19/05/14  20/05/14 - -
2012 SMP 2,162 5% - 24/05/15  25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 4360 5% - 12/06/16  13/06/16 051 match £72,000
2011 ABS 4,262 - - - 30/06/14 - -
2012 ABS 4,324 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 8721 - - -~ 26/06/16 Deferredbonus  £144,000
2011 SAYE 316 - 1137 - May-14 - -
2012 SAYE 152 - 1177 - May-15 - -
2013 SAYE 290 - 1241 - May-16 - -
2014 SAYE 270 - 1331 - Moy-17 - -
2013 5P 32 - - - - - -
Total 48,379

Michael McKeon 2011 LTIP 14411 0% - 31/03/14  01/04714 - -
2012 LTIP 12,684 0% - 31/03/15  01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIP 12,837 0% - 31/03/16  01/04/16 50% salary  £227,700
2011 SMP 3938 5% - 19/05/14  20/05/14 - -
2012 SMp 3,685 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 6,757 5% - 12/06/16  13/06/16 051match  £111,564
2011 ABS 7,876 - - - 30/06/14 - -
2012 ABS 7370 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 13,514 - - - 26/06/16 Deferred bonus £223,128
2009 SAYE 1,943 - 862 - Maoy-14
2013 SIP 32 - - - - - -
Total 85,147

Andy Smith 2011 LTIP 8477 0% - 31/03/14  01/04/14 - -
2012 LTIP 7,460 0% - 31/03/15  01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIP 7610 0% - 31/03/16  01/04/16 50%salary  £133,950
2011 SMP 2,399 5% - 19/05/14  20/05/14 - -
2012 SMP 2,234 5% - 24/05/15 25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 3,842 5% - 12/06/16  13/06/16 051 match £63,436
2011 ABS 4,798 - - - 30/06/14 - -
2012 ABS 4,468 - - - 28/06/15 - -
2013 ABS 7,684 - - - 26/06/16 Deferredbonus £126,872
2013 SAYE 725 - 1241 - May-16 - -
2013 5IP 32 - - - - - -
Total 49,729
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Remuneration Committee continued

Maximurn™  Percentage vesting End of Awards granted during the yecr
nurmber of atminmum  Exerasepnce  performance Vesting/
Executive Award type shares perforrnance (p) penod exarcse date Basis of award Face volue
Tory Wray 2011LT71P 2327 0% - 3103714 01/04/14 - -
2012 LTIP 21,875 0% - 31/03/15 01/04/15 - -
2013 LTIP 22312 0% - 31/03/16  01/04/16 70%salary  £392,700
2011 5MP 4,542 5% - 19/05/14  20/05/14 - -
2012 SMP 4,733 5% - 24/05/15  25/05/15 - -
2013 SMP 8,273 5% - 12/06/16 13/06/16 051match  £136,592
2011 ABS 9,084 - - - 14/04/14 - -
2012 ABS 9,467 - - - 14/04114 - -
2013 ABS 16,546 - - - 1404114  Deferredbonus  £273,185
2013 SAYE 725 - 1241 - May-16 - -
20138IP 32 - - - - - -
Total 120,860

11} Awards that cre due to vest in o close penod will be released on the first dealing doy where procticable after the end of the close penod The expecied release date for the 2011 LTIP awords 15
June 2014

(i} Additbonal dvidend equivalent shares may be released where prowded in the rules

Long Term Incentive Plan awards

The LTIP awards are granted as conditional shares The target range for all outstanding awards 1s the same as for the 2011 LTIP set
out on page 70

As noted on page 70, the 2011 LTIP vests at 100% on 1 April 2014, however as the corpany was ina close penod the release of
award will be made after this period ends The 2013 LYIP awards were granted on 19 June 2013 The share price used to calculate
the number of shares granted was £17 60

Share Matching Plan awards

Awards ore granted in ine with the policy outiined in the Policy Report For awards granted in 2011 onwards, TSR performance 1s
measured over three different measurement penods, each commencing on the date of grant - 20% of each award 1s measured
over 18 months, 30% over 27 months and 50% over 36 months 25% of each part of the award will becorme eligible for vesting for
median performance increasing (on a straight lne basts) to full vesting for upper quartile performance or above However, for any of
the award to vest, the Comrruttee must be satisfied that the company’s TSR s reflective of the company’s underlying performance
over the fult three year perfarmance penod

The 2011 SMP awards vests, subject to performance, on 20 May 2014 The 2013 SMP awards were awarded on 26 June 2013

The share price on that date was £16 51

Deferred shares under the Annual Bonus Scheme

Each year, 50% of an executive director’s annual bonus Is deferred in shares for three years The awards are granted in the form of
conditional shares The 2013 award relates to the deferral of the annual bonus for 2012/13 The award was granted on 26 June
2013 The share pnice used to calculate the number of shares granted was £16 51 The deferred shares relating to the annual bonus
for 2013/14 will be granted in June 2014

Save As You Earn

The executive directors, in common with all eligible UK employees of the group, are entttled to participote in the company’s HMRC
approved SAYE Scherme

Share Incentive Plan

The directors received an award of free shares linked to the performance of Severn Trent Water under the Share Incentwve Plan
(worth £583) during the year on the same terms as other Severn Trent Water employees The shares vest immediatety on grant.

Directors’ pension provisions

Service Increase In

completed In Increase in occrued  Transfervalue  Transfervalue Incregse in Increase in

year (including Accrued accrued pension dunng of aecrued ofaccrued  tronsfervolue  value net of

transferred in pensionat pensionduring the yeor (net of pension at pension at net of directors’ directors’

Name service credits) 310314 the yeor inflation) 310313 310314 contrbutions  contributions
Andy Srmith i 9 43,459 5,690 4,859 6808 8047 1154 888
Tony Wray 6 30,743 925 269 5115 5476 361 00
Martin Kane 35 151,924 2,811 -469 2,7489 2,8287 798 -94

Notes

The accrued pension Nigures ond transfer value coleulations have been provided by Towers Wotsan The nflation figure used In respect of the year to March 2014 was os ot September 2012 (2 2%) n
kine with statutory gusdonce for calculating the ncrease in value
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Tony Wray and Andy Srith are deferred members of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (SSPS Section) Tony Wray ceased to
contnbute to the Scheme from 31 December 2011 and Andy Smith from 31 March 2014, when they became deferred pensioners
of the Scheme and stopped accruing pensionable service Their normal retirerment age under the scherme 1s 60 Early retirement

Is avallable after the age of 55 with the consent of the company Any pension would be subect to a reduction that the trustees
consider appropnate, acting on actuonal adwice, to reflect the expected longer payment of the pension [n the event of total
incapacity, early retirement 15 avaltable on an unreduced basts allowing for pensionable service to age 60 Under the Trust Deed
and Rules, pensions in payment are guaranteed to increase in hine with retall price inflation subject to a maximum of 5% each year
(subject to Guaranteed Minimurm Pensions being increcsed at least in line wath statutory requirernents)

Maortin Kane 1s a member of the Severn Trent Pension Scheme (WPS Section) but opted out of the scherme in June 2007 White he
no longer accrues additonal yeors of service for pension purposes, consistent with the legislation, Martin Kane’s accrued benefits
generdlly continue to be linked to his final salary (or £161,000 plus RPI frorm 30 June 2007 to the date of his retirernent, If higher)
and scherne benefits are preserved in relation to il health retirernent and death in service

External dvectorships

Michael McKeon was appointed as a non-executive director of The Merchants Trust Ple on 1 May 2008 and in respect of the
appointment for the year ended 31 March 2014 he was paid fees of £26,042 (2013 £23,458)

Tony Wray was appointed as a non-executive director of Grainger ple on 24 Gctober 2011 and in respect of the appointrment for the
year ended 31 March 2014 has been paid fees of £48,500 (2013 £41,250)

Both Michoel McKeon and Tany Wiray retained their respective fees in accordance with the above policy No other executive directors
currently hold any external fee eamning non-executive directorships

Directors’ shareholdings and summary of outstanding share interests
As disclosed in the Policy Report, the compary operates shareholding guidelines under which executive dwectors ore expected to
build and mantain a shareholding In the company (this was increased to 200% (2013 150%) of salary for the Chief Executive and
125% (2013 100%) of salary for other executive directors in January 2014) Details of the current shareheldings of the directors and
whether they have met the new shareholding guidelines are set out below
Interests in shares as at 31 March 2014
Qutstanding scheme interests o shareholding

Beneficrally Deferred shores under guideline
Director owned  LTIP and SMP the Annuol Bonus ~ SAYE options Total achieved*
Dr Bernard Bulkin! 554 - - - - -
Richard Davey 588 - - - - -
Andrew Duff 3,500 - - - - -
Gordon Fryett 2,220 - - - - -
Martin Lamb 3,012 - - - - -
Baroness Noakes 4018 - - - - -
Philip Rernnant? - - - - - -
Dr Angela Strank® -
Tony Ballance 15,526 24673 13,104 725 38,502 152
Martin Kane 23907 30,012 17,307 1,028 48347 185
Michagel McKeon 36,215 54,412 28,760 1,943 85,115 158
Andy Smith 26,220 32,022 16,950 725 49,697 185
Tony Wray* 45596 85,006 35,097 725 120,828 100
*  The share pnce used to calcutate the percentage of the shareholding guideline achieved was £18 23 (as ot 31 March 2014)
1 Dr Bernard Bulkin retired from the board on 24 January 2014 3 Dr Angela Strank joined the board on 24 January 2014
2 Phibp Rernnant joined the board on 31 March 2014 4 Tony Wray retired from the boord on 11 Apré 2014

Shares counting towards achievernent of the guideline include benefically owned shares and the net of tax volue of deferred shares
under the annual bonus since they are not subject performance conditions The executive directors are expected to retain all shares
receved through the vesting of any incentwve schernes (after the settlernent of any tax babiliy) untd the shareholding guidelines are met.

There has been no change in the drrectors” interests in the ordinary share capital of the company between 31 March and 28 May 2014,

other than Martin Kane acquired 316 shares on 27 May 2014, with a market pnce of 1,899 pence per share, fallowing the exercise of
Fus 2011 three year Sharesave scheme option, generating a £2,408 gan

In addttion, Tony Wray acquired 241 shares on 12 May 2014, with a market pnce of 1,885 pence per share, following the early exercise of

his 2013 three year Sharesave scheme option, generating a £1,552 gain The remaining 484 Sharesave options lapsed on 12 May 2014
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Remuneration Committee continued

Percentage increase in the remuneration of the Chief Executive

Chief Executive (£'000) 2014 2013 % Change
- Salary 561.2 552 4 16%
- Benefits 165 165 -
- Bonus 452.4 546 4 (17 2%)
Averoge per emplayee (£/000)

- Salary 285 275 36%
- Benefits? 0.4 04 -
- Bonus? 13 12 83%

1 Indudes tar aliowance and farmily level private medical insurance for senior and muddie managers

2 The figuras are bosed on an estmale as the 2014 bonuses are not finalised before the dote of publcation

The table above shows the movement in salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive between the current and
previous financial year compared against that of the average employee The Committee has elected to use the average earnings
per employee as this avoids the distortions that can eccur to the corpany’s total wage bill as a result of movements in the number
of employees The comparator group used were Severn Trent Water employees based in the UK as this is where the vast majority of

our employees are based

Total sharehalder return chart {not subject to audit)

This graph shows the value, by 31 March 2014, of £100 nvested
in Severn Trent Plc on 1 Aprit 2009 compared with the value of
£100 invested in the FTSE 100 index The FTSE 100 was chosen
as the comparator index because the company I1s a constituent
of that Index The intermediate points show the value at the
intervening financial year ends

Graph removed

Total remuneration of the Chief Executive

Year ending 31 March

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Chief Executive TonyWray  TonyWray  TonyWray  TonyWray  Tony Wray
Total rermuneration (£'000) 1,0270 9498 124471 1,6353 1,7601
Annual bonus (% of maximum) 515% 432% 481% 82 4% 787%
LTIP vesting (% of maximurn) 630% 00% 284% 575% 100%
SMP vesting (% of maximum} 78%

Relative mportance of the spend on pay

The table below shows the expenditure of the company on staff costs against dvidends paid to shareholders for both the current
and pnor financial periods, and the percentage change between the two perods

2014 013 %Chonge
Staff costs (£'my) 3405 34009 {0 1%)
Dividends (£'m} 185.3 3220 (42 5%)®

1 The dwidend in 2013 wes unusuclty high due to the special dridend of £149 % milion pad i July 2013




Severn Trent Plc  Annuat Report ond Accounts 2014

How the policy will be applied in 2014 onwards

Salary, benefits and pension

Base salanes for all executwe directors will be increased by 2 7% from 1 July 2014, with the exception of the Chief Executive,

L Garfield As a new joiner to the compary, Liv's salary will next be reviewed on 1 July 2015 The level of increase to be applied for
201415 aligned to that which the company will apply to the salaries of the general UK workforce

The base salanes for the executive directors from 1 July 2014 are os follows

Liv Garfield £650,000
Michael McKeon £479,500
Andy Smith £282,100
Martin Kane £263,900
Tony Ballance £217,100

Benefits and pension provision will be applied n{ine with the policy set out n the table on pages 61 and 62

Anrual bonus

For 2014/15 the bonus weightings will be 50% on the Severn Trent Water balanced scorecard, 43% on key business objectives and
10% on personal performance For the CEC and CFO the key business objectives will relate to o mixture of Severn Trent Water and
Severn Trent Services performance, while for the Director of Water Services and Director of Strategy end Regulation they will relate to
Severn Trent Water performance Martin Kane's benus will be based 90% on the financial and non-financial performance of Severn
Trent Services and 10% on personal objectives

The structure and operation of the annual bonus will be as outlined N the policy table The Committee considers the performance
targets to be commercially sensitive and has therefore determined naot to disclose them in advonce Full details of the targets used will
be set out in next year's Remuneration report.

Long Term Incentive Plan

The LTIP gwards for 2014 will be granted under the new plan, subyect to its approval by shareholders at the 2014 AGM The grants
will be 125% of salary for the Chief Executive (set as part of the recrutment package) and 80% for the other executive directors
{the award stze being determined by the Committee after taking into account the potential value of the SMP forgone and ofter
examining rnarket remuneration levels generally) The awards will be subject to an RoRCV performonce condition m line with
existing awards

The vesting scale will be as shown on page 70 {100%-107%)

Retirement from the board of Tony Wray
Tory Wray retired from the company on 11 April 2014 after completing his 12 moh‘th r‘fOtICE pe’rbd e wiftnot:ecewe any
compensation for loss of office As a retiree, Tony Wray will be treated as a'ood leaver n relation to his outstanding incentrve
awards Consistent with the policy on terminations, his bonus for 2013/14 will be paid in cash and his outstanding deferred share
bonus awards vested, in full, on cessation of employment His outstanding awards under the SMP and LTIP will continue to vest
on the normal vesting dates, subject to performance and a tme pro-rata reduction For the SMP awards and, as a condition of the
grant of hus 2013 LTIP, time pro-rating 1s calculated to the nearest month For the 2012 LTIP award time pro-rating is calculated to
the nearest full year Any outstanding SAYE and SIP awards vest In accordance with their terms

Recrutment of Liv Garfield os Chief Executive

The remuneration package granted to Liv Garfield on appointment 1s as follows

- Salary of £650,000

« Pension contribution of 25% of salary

« Annual bonus potential of 120% of solary

« LTIP grant level of 125% of salary

The annual bonus and LTEP targets are in ine with our policy A one-off LTIP award was necessary to secure her appointment,

os partial consideration for her significant unvested entitlerments at BT The award will be split into three equol tranches, the face
value of each being £812,500 (125% of base pay of £650,000) vesting in 2014, 2015 and 2016 {matching the vesting times of

her unvested entitlernents) 1t will be subject to the same performance condition and continued employment conditon as the
equivalent Severn Trent LTIP awards vesting in each of those years Awards will vest on o takeover and in the event of a good leaver
subject to performance There will be no scaling back on a time pro rata basss This lack of pro rating was agreed in recagnition of the
fact that the expected value of the forferted awards 1s very sigruficantly higher with much of it being non-performance related {and
which would not have been scated back for a similar event)

In addition to this one-off award she will be rembursed for reasonable expenses in relation to her relocation
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Remuneration Committee continued

Non executive directors’ fees
The Chairman wil recerve a single fee of £257,000 for 2014/15 to cover all his board duties
The 2014 fee levels for the non-executive directors are set out 1n the table below

Fees
Base fee paid to all non-executwe directors £51,350
Supplementary fees
- Senior Independent director £10,000
- Audit Committee Chairman £15,000
- Remuneration Committee Chairmnan £15,000
- Corporate Responsibility Committee Chairman £13,000
The Chairman and non-executive directors normally serve for terms of three years The current expiry dates of therr letters of
appontrment are Richard Davey (31 December 2014), Andrew Duff {9 May 2016), Gordon Fryett (20 June 2015), Martin Lamb
(1 March 2017), Baroness Noakes (16 July 2014}, Philip Remnant (31 March 2017) and Dr Angela Strank {24 January 2017
However, all of the directors are subject to reappointrment at the 2014 AGM
Statement of shareholding voting at AGM
At last year's AGM, the Directors’ rermuneration report recenved the following vates from shareholders

Total number of votes % of votes cast

For 141,217,885 99 74%
Against 026%
Total votes cast 141,584,978 100%
Abstentions

Richard Davey
Charman of the Remuneration Committee

28 May 2014 gc&ﬁb@‘w-‘q’
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Directors’ report

The directors present their report, together with the audited
group financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2014
The Governance section set out on pages 45 to 76 forms part of
this report

Prnincipal actvity
The principal activity of the group 15 to treat ond provide water
and remove waste water in the UK and internationally

Details of the pnncipal joint ventures, associated and subsidiary
undertakings of the group at 31 March 2014 are shown in
notes 19, 20 and 46 to the financal statements on pages 112
and 142

Business review

The Strategic Report on the inside front cover through to page 41
prowides detaled information relating to the group, its business
models and strategy, the operation of its businesses and the
results and financial position for the year ended 31 March 2014

Detods of the prncipol nsks and uncertainties facng the group
are set out in the nsk management section on pages 38 to 41

Directors and therr interests
Biograptues of the directors currently serving on the board are
set out on pages 42 and 43

All of the directors will be offering themselves for election or
re-election at the Annual General Meeting (AGM}, as set out

In the Gavernance report on page 46, with the exception of
Baroness Noakes who will be retinng from the board with effect
from the conclusion of the AGM

Detalls of directors’ service contracts are set out in the Directars'
remuneration report on pages 64 and 65 The interests of the
directors in the shares of the company are shown on pages 70
to 73 of that report

Insurance and indemnities

The compary maimtans Directors’ and Cfficers’ Liobiity
Insurance in respect of legal action that might be brought
against its directors and officers [n accordance with the
company’s articles of association, and to the extent perrmitted
by law, in Novernber 2011 the company indemnified each of its
directers and other officers of the group against certan babilities
thot may be ncurred as a result of their positions with the group
Indemnities were also entered into with Or Angela Strank,

Lw Garfield, Philip Remnant and John Coghlan upon ther
appomntments to the board

Sevem Trent does not have In place any indemnities for the
benefit of the auditors

Employees
The average number of employees within the group 1s shownin
nete 9 to the finanaal statements on page 104

Severn Trent believes that a diverse and inclusive culture 1s a key
factorin being a successful business Apart from ensunng an
indmdual hos the ability to do the job we do not discnminate

in any way and make every effort to ensure that those wath
disgbilities can take up employment with us We endeavour to
retain ernployees in the workforce if they become disabled, we
make all reasonable adjustments to therr role and, if necessary,
look for redeployrnent opportunities to support them in seeking
an alternative role within Severn Trent We ensure that training,
career development and prormotion opportunities are availlable
for all our employees imespective of their gender, race, age

or disability

The provision of occupational health programmes is of crucial
importance and, in particular, work has been undertaken during
the year to promote awareness of mental health 1ssues and
the employee assistance programme avallable to Severn Trent
Water employees

The group actively encourages employee involvernent and
consultation and places emphasis on keeping its ermnployees
informed of its actiity and financial performance by way

of company wide commurication forums, briefings and
publication to staff of all relevant information and corporate
announcements To help align employees’ interests with the
success of the company’s performance, Severn Trent offers two
employee share plans The Severn Trent Sharesave Scheme,
an HM Revenue and Custorms approved SAYE plan, 1s offered

to UK employees on an annual basis The Severn Trent Share
Incentive Plan, approved by HM Revenue and Customs, makes
an ennual award of shares to Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent
Water Limited employees, based on perfarmance against the
company’s KPI targets

Research and development

Expenditure on research and development Is set out In notes
7 and 17 to the Financial statements on pages 103 and

110 respectively

Treasury management

The disclosures required under the EU Fair Value Directive in
relation to the use of financial nstruments by the comparwy are
set out In note 37 to the Financial statements on pages 127 to
135 Further details on our treasury policy and manogement are
set out In the Financial review on pages 36 and 37

Post balance sheet events

Details of post balance sheet events are set out N note 44 to the
group financial statements on page 141
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Directors’ report continued

Dividends

Anintenrn dvidend of 32 16 pence per ordinary share was pad
on 10 January 2014 The diectors recommend a final dvidend
of 48 24 pence per ordinary share to be paid on 25 July 2014

to sharehotders on the register on 20 June 2014 This would
bring the total dvidend for 2013/14 to 80 40 pence per ordinary
share (2013 75 85 pence) The payment of the final dividend 1
subject to shareholder approval at the AGM

On 27 July 2012 a special dvidend of 63 O pence per ordinary
share was paid to shareholders

Capital structure

Detalls of the company’s 1ssued share capital and of the
movernents during the year are shown in note 32 to the
financral statements on page 123 The company has one

class of ordinary shares which carnes no nght to fixed income
Each share carmies the right to one vote at general meetings of
the company The issued norminal value of the ordinary shares 1s
100% of the total issued norminal value of all share capital

There are no specific restnctions on the size of a holding nor on
the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general
provisicens of the articles of association and prevailing legislation
The directors are not aware of any agreements between holders
of the cornpany’s shares that may result i restnctions on the
transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

Details of employee share schemes are set out in note 38 to the
financig! statements on pages 135 to 138 For shares held by
the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership Trust, the trustee
abstains from voting

No person has any speaal nghts of control over the company’s
share capital and all issued shares are fully pad

With regard to the appointrent and replacement of directors,
the company s governed by iks articles of association, the
Governance Code, the Companies Act 2006 and related
legislation The articles may be amended by special resolution
of the shareholders The powers of directors are descnbed in the
Severn Trent Plc Board Governance document, the articles and
the Governance report on pages 46 {0 51

Under its articles of associotion, the directors have authornity to
allot ordinary shares, subject to the aggregate norminal amount
limit set at the 2013 AGM

There are a number of agreements that take effect after, or
terminate upon, a change of control of the company, such as
commercial contracts, bank loan agreements, property lease
arrangements and employee share plans None of these s
considered to be sigruficant in terms of therr likely impact on
the business of the group as a whole There are no agreements
between the company and its directors or employees that
provide for compensation for loss of office or employment that
occurs because of a takeover bid

Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 March 2014 the company had been notified n
accordance with chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency
Rules of the fallowing mayor shareholdings

No of ordinary  Percentoge of voting

shares of 97Vhsp nghts and ssued
Narne of holder each shore copital
Blackrock Inc 23457458 987%
Newton [nvestrnent
Management Ltd 11,474,764 4 80%
Legal & General
Group Plc 9,523,698 399%

Percentages rounded to two deamal places

As at 28 May 2014, the company had been notified of the
following holdings of voting nghts n the erdinary share capriat
of the company Blackrock Inc 23,457,458 (9 87%), Newton
Investment Management Ltd 11,474,764 (4 80%) and Legal &
General Group Plc 5,523,698 (3 59%)

Authonty to purchase shares

The compary was gven authonty at its AGM in 2013 to make
market purchases of ordinary shares up to a maximum number
of 23,882,260 shares Similar authorty will again be sought from
shareholders ot this year's AGM No market purchases were
made by the company durnng the year ended 31 March 2014

Contributions for political and chantable purposes
Donations to chantable organisations during the year amounted
to £108,000 (2013 £97,707) Donations are given to chanties
whaose projects align closely with our aim to promote the
responsible use of water resources and waste water services
which provide the opportunity for longer term partnerships

In addrtion, we provide donations to employee nominated
chanities through a matched funding scheme and health and
safety reward schemes We are also committed to supporting
WaterAud, the UK’s enly major chanty dedicated to improving
access to safe water, hygiene and sanitation in the world's
poorest countries

Severn Trent's policy is not to make any donations for political
purposes In the UK, or to donate to EU political parties or incur
EU political expenditure Accordingty nerther Severn Trent Plc nor
its subsidianes made any political donations or incurred political
expenditure in the financial year under review

Under the prowisions of the Political Parties Elections and
Referendums Act 2000 (the relevart provisions of which are now
contaned in Part 14 of the Companies Act 2006}, shareholder
authority 1s reguired for petiacal donations to be made or
political expenditure to be incurred by the company or any of

its subsidianes in the EU and disclosure of any such payment
must be made i the annual report The legislotion gves a wide
defimition of what constitutes polircal donations and politicol
expenditure iIncluding sponsership, subscrnptions, payment of
expenses, paid leave for employees fulfiling public duties and
support for bodies representing the business community in
policy review or reform The company has therefore obtained
limited authonty from sharehclders os a precautionary measure
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to allow the company to continue supporting the community
and such organisations without inadvertently breaching
the legislation

At the 2013 AGM, shareholders gave the company authorities
to make political donations or to incur political expenditure
inthe EU (which would not ordinanly be regarded as political
donations) up to an aggregate annual limit of £150,000 for the
company and its subsidianies Pursuant to those authorities,
during the year ended 31 March 2014 the group incurred costs
of £nil (2013 £nil) Those authortties will expire at the 2014 AGM
and, in kine with market practice to renew the authonties on an
annual basis, the board has decided to put forward a resolution
to this year's AGM to renew the authorities to make donations
to political organisations and to incur political expenditure up to
a maxmum oggreqate of £150,000 per annum As permitted
under the Companies Act 2006, this resclution also covers any
potitical donations made cr political expenditure incurred, by any
substdiaries of the company

Report on greenhouse gas emissions
This is the first year Severn Trent has been required to report
greenhouse gas (GHG) ermissions in the Directars’ report

Severn Trent 1s committed to reducing its GHG ermissions

For Severn Trent Water, which accounts for 98% of our totat
group errussions, we have been publicly reporting on our
emissions since 2002 In that time we hove reduced our
emissions consistently We have achieved this pnimardy by being
more energy efficent and generating more renewable energy

Our continued investrment in renewable energy over the past
decade and beyond now allows us to generate 204 GWhpa,
the equivalent of 23% of Severn Trent Water's electncity needs
We continue to lead the UK water industry in renewable energy
productson and our aimm 1s to generate the equivalent of 30%
by 2015

Severn Trent Water has held the Carbon Trust Standard since
2009 In recognition of consistent ernissions reductions ond
effective carbon management processes Qur gross GHG
emissions have continued to reduce since we first achieved the
Standard because of our reduction in energy consumption and
our increase In self-supplied renewable energy This year, Severn
Trent Water used 894 GWh of electricty, which 15 22 GWh

(2 4% less than in 2009 and Severn Trent self-supplied 154
GWh of electriaty, 26 GWh (20 5%) more than in 2009

Our approach of generating more of our own energy and
reduang the amount we use reduces our costs and our relance
on the electrncity gnd

further details about our approach to cimate change and the
nsks and opportunities it presents to our business are set out in
our Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP} submission (www cdp net)
The CDP request information about clirmate change from
companies each year on behalf of investors and score each
cormpany on the quality and cormnpleteness of their responses
We hove seen o year on year improvemnent in our CDP score and
In 2013 we achieved 83%, compared to the average score of
819% across the FTSE 100

Our GHG emissions are reported in tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (tCO,e), for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014

The GHG data we report 1s reported internally dunng the year
to the Corporate Responsibility Committee and to the board
We have subjected our GHG data and processes to extemal
assurance by Atkins

Severn Trent Ple direct operational greenhouse gas
emisstons (tCOze) 201314

Emissions from combiustion of fuel and operation

of facilities (Scope 1) 169,844
Emissions from electricity purchased for own use

{Scope 2) 330,679
Total annual gross operational emissions 500,523
Annuol GHG intensity ratio (tCOx/unit) 2013114
Operational GHG ermissions of Severn Trent per

£m turnover 2696

Our long term am is to be carbon neutral and energy setf
sufficient, provided this is the best value option for our
custormers and investors We plan to continue to reduce our
ermissions within Severn Trent Water by a further 3% between
2015 and 2020, pnmarily by reducing our energy use We plan
to continue to increose our renewable generation mainly within
our non-regulated business where the focus for expansion is
the emerging food waste digestion market Pursuing these
measures will continue to reduce our key sources of emissions,
reduce our reliance on the electnarty gnd and bring financiol
benefits for our custorners and investors

Notes

Qur opproach to reporting 1s based on the GHG Protocal Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard and we have included onty ermissions from the assets which we
own and operate and which we can directly nfiuence and reduce, knewn as the
finanaial control boundary In accordance with the reporting regulations, we have not
reported on emissions we can influence but which we are not responsible for, referred
to as indirect ermissions

For Severn Trent Water, we have calculated our emissions using the ‘Carbon accounting
in the UK Water Industry methodology for estimating operobional emissions, Version 8 17
(released March 2014} This 1s a peer-reviewed calculotion tool developed and used by
all the major woter cormpanies N the UK It 1s updated each yeor te include the latest
avarlable ermissions factors For Severn Trent Services, we have used the latest Defro
Errussions factors which include the relevant corversion factors for overseas electnoty
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Directors’ report continued

Internal controls

The board 1s respansible for the group’s system of internal
controi and for reviewing its effectiveness The board reviews
the effectiveness of the systemn of internal control, Including
financiel, operational and compliance aspects incduding

risk management, at least annually In accordance with the
requremnents of the Governance Cede The internal control
system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
against matenal rmisstaternent or loss, as it 15 designed to
rmanage rather than eliminate the nsk of failure to achieve
business objectives

The Audit Committee reviews the group’s risk management
process and the effectiveness of the system of nternal control
on behalf of the board and keeps under review ways in which
to enhance the control and assurance arrangements The Audit
Comrrittee recerves reparts every six months from the Chief
Executive detalling the significant nsks and uncertainties foced
by the group, an assessment of the effectiveness of controls
over each of those nisks and an action plan to improve controls
where this has been assessed as necessary Durng the course of
its review of the systern of internal control in 2013/14, the Audit
Committee has not identified nor been adwised of any failings or
wecknesses which it has determined to be significant

The Internal Audit departrent provides objective assurance and
advice on risk management and control The external auditors
{Deloitte) also report on significant financial control 1ssues to the
Audit Committee

An independent reporter (Atkins} provides objective assurance
in relation to the Severn Trent Water Limited Annual Regulatory
Compliance Statement and Annual Regulatory Performance
Report Deloitte carried out a review of the agreed upon
procedures relating to the calculation of the financial KPls
ncluded in the Annual Regulatory Compliance Staternent and
the Annual Regulatory Performance Report

The board confirms that procedures providing an ongong
process for identifying, evaluating and managing the principal
nisks and uncertanties faced by the group have been in place
for the year to 31 March 2014 and up to the date of approval
of the annual report, which s in accordance with the revised
guidance on internal control published in October 2005

{the Turnbull Guidance)

The group’s procedures for exercising control and managing nsk
in relation to finanaial reperting and preparation of consolidated
accounts include

» the formulation and communication of group accounting
policies which are regutorly updated for developments in IFRS
and other reporting requirements,

- specification of a set of financial controls that all of the
group’s operating businesses are required to Implement as
@ Mminmum,

« deployment of a group-wide consolidation systerm with
controls to restnct access and mantain integnity of data,
+ recruitment, training and development of appropriately
qualified and experienced financial reporting personnel,
oversight by the Disclosure Committee of the group’s
compliance with its disclosure obligations, and

= manthly reviews by the board of financial reports from the
group’s operating businesses

Relevant audit information
The directors confirm that

« 50 far as each of them is aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware,
and

- each of thern has taken all the steps that he/she ought to
have taken as a director to make hirmself/herself aware of
any relevant audit Information and to establish that the
company’s auditors are aware aof that infermation

Thus confirrmation 1s given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006

External auditors

Hawing carmned out a resew of their effectiveness dunng the
year, the Audit Committee has recommended to the board the
reappointment of Deloitte LLP and a resolution to that effect will
be on the agenda at the AGM Deloitte LLP have indicated ther
willingness to continue os auditors The Audit Comrruttee will
dlso be responsible for determining the audit fee on behalf of
the board

Accounts of Severn Trent Water Limited

Regulatory accounts for Severn Trent Water Limited are
prepared and sent to Ofwat A copy of these accounts will

be available on the website of Severn Trent Water Limited
{www stwater co uk) or on request to the Company Secretary
There 1s no charge for this publication
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Going concern

The group’s business activities, together with the factors likely
to affect its future development, performance and positicn and
the business reviews of Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent
Services are set out In the Strategic report, from the inside front
cover to page 41 The financigl position of the group, its cash
flows, iquidity position and borrowing faciliies are described In
the Financial review on pages 33 to 37 The group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing its capital and its financiol
nsk management objectives gre descnbed in the Financial
review on pages 33 to 37 and in the Governance report.

Details of the group’s financigl Instrurments, hedging actvities
and exposure to credit nsk and iquidity nisk are described in note
37 to the group financial statements

The group’s principal operating subsidiary, Severn Trent Water,
s a regulated long term business charactensed by mult

year investment programmes The group’s strategic funding
objectives reflect this The group therefore seeks to attan

a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds
across a range of funding at the best possible economic cost
Average debt miatunty 1s 16 years ond the effective average
interest cost dunng the year was 5 8% The group s na strong
lquidity pesition and had £123 2 millien in cash and lguid
reserves and £500 0 millien of undrawn committed bank
faolities at 31 March 2014, which are expected to be sufficent
to fund its investment and cash flow needs at least until
December 2015 in the normal course of business

Severn Trent Water operates in an industry that i1s currently
subject to econemic regulation rather than market competition
Ofwat, the economic requlator, has a statutory obligation to set
pnce imits thot it bebeves will enable the woter companies to
finance their actwities As a consequence the directors believe
that the group 1s well placed to manage its business nsks
successfully despite the cuwent uncertain economic outlook.

After making enquines, the directors have a reasonable
expectation that the company and the group have adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt

the going concern basis in prepanng the annual report

and accounts

Annuol General Meeting

The AGM of the company will be held at the Internationat
Convention Centre, Broad Street, Brminghaom B1 2EA at 11am
on Wednesday 16 July 2014 The notice convening the meeting,
together with details of the business to be considered and
explanatory notes for each resolution, 1s distnbuted separately
to shareholders 1t 1s also avallable on the company’s website
{www severntrent corn)

By order of the board

Lo B2y

Bronagh Kennedy
General Counsel ond Company Secretary

28 May 2014
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Directors’ responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Cornpany law requires the directors to prepare financiol
staternents for each financial year Under that law the directors
are required to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with Intemational Finanaial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the parent company
financial statements in accordance with Financial Reparting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework Under company
law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and far Wiew of the state ofy
affarrs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company
for that peried

In preparing the parent company financiat statements, the
directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

+ make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

« state whether Finanaial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced
Disclosure Frarmework has been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

» prepare the finonaial statements on the going concerm basis
unless it is nappropriate to presume that the comparty will
continue N business

In prepanng the group financial statements, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors

- properly select and apply accounting polices,

« present information, Including accounting policies, th a
manner that provides relevant, rehable, comparable and
understandable information,

+ provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirernents in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and condrtions on the entity's financal posttion and
finonciat performance, and

« make an assessment of the cormpany’s ability to continue as
Q going concem

Ry

The directors are responstble for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disdlose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the finanaal position of the company and enable

thern to ensure that the financial statements comply with

the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other rregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the corporate and financial infermation included
on the company’s website Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and dissermmnation of finanaial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

The directors consider that the Annual Report and Accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the company’s and the group’s performance, business models
and strategy

Responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

« the financial statements, prepared in occordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, labilies, finanaal position and profit or
loss of the company and the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole, and

- the management report, which 1s incorporated into the
Directors’ report, indudes o fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
comparny and the undertakings induded in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a description of the principal
nsks and uncertainties that they face

By order of the board

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chorman Finance Director
28 May 2014
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Independent auditor’s report to the members

of Severn Trent Plc

Opinion on financial statements of Severn Trent Plc
In our opinion

« the financial staterments give a true and far view of the
state of the group's and of the parent company's affarrs
as at 31 March 2014 and of the group's profit for the year
then ended,

« the group financtal staterments have been properly prepared
In accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

« the parent company finanaat staterments hove been property
prepared in accordance with Finanaial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework, and

« the financial staternents have been prepared n accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the group financial statemients, Artile 4 of the
IAS Regulation

The financial staternents comprise the Consolidated mcome
staternent, the Consolidated and Parent statement of
comprehensive Income, the Consoldated and Parent company
balance sheets, the Consolidated cash flow statement, the
Consolidated and Parent cormpany statements of changes in
equity and the related Consolidated notes 1 to 46 and Parent
company notes 1 to 18 The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the group financiol
staterments 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the

Risk

European Union The finanaial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preporation of the parent company financial
statements 1s applicable law and Financial Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disclosure Framework

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’
statement contained within the Directors’ report on page 82
that the group 1s a going concern We confirm that

= we have concuded that the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the finanaal
statermnents I1s appropriate, and

- we have not identified any matenal uncertanties that may
cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a
going concern

However, because not all future events or conditions can be

predicted, this staternent 1s not a guarantee as to the group’s
ability to continue as a going concern

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed rsks of matenal misstatement described below
are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the
allocation of rescurces in the audit ond directing the efforts of
the engagement team

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

Determination of the provision for impairment of trade
receivables

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water's trade
recevables based on histoncal experience of levels of recovery
from accounts In particular ageing categories

Revenue recognition risk in retation to the estimation of
unbilled revenue in Severn Trent Water.

For water and waste water customers with water meters,
the amount recognised depends upon the volume supplied,
including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied
between the date of the lost meter reading and the year
end The estimated usage 1s based upon histancal data and
assumptions around consumption patterns

We reviewed ond challenged the inforrmation used to
determine the bad debt provision by considering cash collechon
performance aganst historical trends and the level of bad debt
charges over time Specifically, we reviewed the actual history of
slow paying custormers in Severn Trent Water in the period using
dato analytics to understand the coltection of previously aged
debtors and to recompute the ageing analysis We also tested
the key controls reloting to the data used in the bad debt model
and agreed a sample of this data back to its source, being the
billing system

We challenged the validity of managerment’s estimate of the
current year accrued revenue by companng actual amounts
billed to the estmate made in the prior year to determine the
occuracy of the estimation techriques In addition, we used
data analytics to recornpute the total level of unbilled revenue
for the current year In Severn Trent Water os well as testing the
controls around the key data inputs to the model and ogreed a
sample of this data back to its source
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Risk

How the scope of our oudit responded to the nsk

The assessment of the carrying value of goodwill
Management 1s required to carry out an annual impairment
test. This 1s a complex and subjective process which requires
rnanagement to make estimates concerning the future cash
flows of each cash-generating unit and asseciated discount
and long term growth rates based on therr view of the future
prospects of the business

Determining the amount of the group's retirement benefit
obligations.

This pracess I1s complex and requires management, (after
taking advice from their actuanal advisors) to make o number
of ossurmptions concerning long terrm interest rates, inflation,
salary and pension increases, iInvestment returns and longevity
of current and future pensioners

Determination of current and deferred tax balances
Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax posiions requires
judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiotions
with, and enquines from, tax authorities in o number of
Junsdictions

We challenged the key assumptions relating to the estmated
future cash flows of each cash-generating unit (‘CGU) by
considenng historical perforrnance against budget and our
understanding of future prospects We also compared the
long term growth rates and discount rates for each CGU to
industry benchmarks and performed sensitvty onalysis to
understand the cash flow impact of a reasonably possible
change in assumptions

Regarding the £24 7 millon impairment charge recorded m
The group’s US Water Purfication business, we considered the
imparment iIndicators identified by management, critically
reviewed therr assumptions in relation to estimated future cash
flows of this CGU and held discussions with sentor management
to understand the future prospects of this business, and the
related sensitvity analysis

With support from the pension specialists within our audit
team, we challenged the assurmptions used in the calculation
of the pension scheme deficit as detailed in note 30,
specifically regarding the discount rate, inflation rate and
mortaolity assumphions with reference to comparable market
ond other data

With support from the tox specialists within our audit team, we
considered the likely outcornes of uncertan tax positions and
reviewed correspondence with the tax authorities to assess the
appropriateness of the tax balances that have been recorded in
the balance sheet

The Audit Committee’s consideration of these risks Is set out on
page 54

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed
inthe context of our audit of the financial statements asa
whole, and not to express an opinon on indmdual accounts

or disclosures Our opimion on the financial statements 1s not
modified with respect to any of the nsks described above, and
we do not express an opinion on these indvidual matters

Our application of materiality

We determined planning materiality for the group to be

£18 million, which 1s approximately 7% of pre-tax profit before
exceptional tems and other adjustments including the farr value
rmovernents in financial nstruments These iterns are excluded
to focus on the group’s underlying trading performance,
consistent with the group’s intemal ond external reporting

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £750,000,
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view,
warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit scope focused on the consolidation at the
parent company level and the group’s two business segments
being Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services Severn Trent
Water waos subject to a full statutary audt and accounts for over

90% of the group’s net operating assets and operating profit
The extent of our testing on Severn Trent Services was based
on our assessment of the nsks of matenal misstaterent and
the matenality of the segment’s global business operations,
principally in the UK and the US, the matenality of each
component being lower than that of the group

The group audit team follows a programme of planned visits to
the auditors of each of the significant components of the group
not audited by the group team This pnmanly relates to the
Severn Trent Services audit team i the US The Senior Statutory
Audrtor or another senior member of the group team wisits the
Severn Trent Services qudit tearn in the US at legst once every
two years

Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies
Act 2006

Inour opinion

» the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited
has been properly prepared In accordance with the
Companies Act 2006, and

= the nformation given in the Strategic report and the Directors’
report for the financiol year for which the financial statements
are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Severn Trent Plc continued

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception

Adequacy of explanations recerved and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to repart to you
if, 1N our opirion

- we have not recerved all the iInformation and explanations we
require for our audit, or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

- the parent cormpany finanaal statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if
in our opinion certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not beert made or the part of the Directors' remuneration report
to be audited 1 not in agreernent with the accounting records
and returns Under the Listing Rules we are required to review
certain elements of the Directors’ rermuneration report We have
nothing to report ansing from these matters or our review

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the

part of the Corporate governance staternent relating to the
company’s compliance with nine prowisions of the UK Cerporate
Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from

our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report

Under the International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland),
we are required to report to you If, in our opinion, information in
the Annual Report 1s

- matenally nconsistent with the information in the audited
financial statements, or

- gpparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally
inconsistent with, our knowledge of the group acquired in the
course of performing our audit, or

+ otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have
identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired
dunng the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider
the Annual Report s farr, balanced and understandable and
whether the Annual Report appropnately discloses those
matters that we communicated to the Audit Committee

which we consider should have been disclosed We confirm
that we have not identified any such inconsistenaes or
musleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully n the Directors’ responsibilities
statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the finanaal statements and for baing satssfied that they give

a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express

an opinion on the financial staterments in accordance with
applicable law ond Interational Standards on Auditing (UK and
Ireland)} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors We also comply
with International Standard on Quality Control 1 (UK and
Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that
our quality control procedures are effectve, understood and
appled Ourquality controls and systems include our dedicated
professional standards review team, strategically focused
second partner reviews and independent partner reviews

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, asa
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we right
state to the company’s members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for our audrt work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audtt of the financial statements

An audit Involves obtaining evidence about the armounts

and disclosures in the financic! staternents sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from rnaternal misstatement, whether coused by fraud or

error This Includes an assessment of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent
company’s arcumstances and have been consistently applied
and adequately disdosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the finanaal statemments In addition, we read all
the financial ond non-financial information in the Annual Report
to identfy matenal inconsistencies with the audited financtal
staternents and to identify any information that s apparently
matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with,
the knowledge acquired by us in the course of perfarming

the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenat
risstaternents or Inconsistencies we consider the implications
for our report

N

Carl D Hughes MAF nior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Delote LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
London, UK

28 May 2014
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Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2013
2014 Restated
Note £m £m
Turnover 56 1,856.7 1,8316
Operating costs before exceptional tems 7 (1,3399) (1,3362)
Exceptional operating costs 8 (44 &) (43)
Total operating costs 7 (1,3843) (1,3405)
Exceptional foss on disposal of business 8 - {(15)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 5 5168 4954
Exceptional tems before interest and tax 8 {&h.4) (58)
Profit before nterest ond tox 5724, 4890
Finance income 10 808 784
Finance costs 11 (328.7) (3227)
Net finance costs (247 9) (244 3)
Gans/(losses) on financial instruments 12 58.0 (#53)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures 0.2 02
Profit before tax, gains/{losses} on financial nstruments and exceptional iterns 269.1 2513
Exceptional temns before tax 8 {tla.ta) (58)
Gains/{tosses) on financkl iNstruments 12 580 (453)
Profit on ordinary actmvities before taxation 2827 2002
Current tax excluding exceptionat credit 13 (56.5) (279)
Deferred tax excluding exceptional credit 13 (21.5) 82
Exceptional tax credit 13 2302 384
Total taxation on profit on ordinary actraties 13 152.2 187
Profit for the year 4349 2189
Attnbutable to

Owners of the company 433.8 2160
Non-controlling nterests 11 29
434.9 2189

Earmings per share (pence)
Basic 15 1821 509
Diluted 15 1813 905
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2013
2014 Restated
fm £m
Profit for the year 4349 2189
Other comprehensive Income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to the income statement )
Net actuang! gain/{loss) on defined benefit pension schemes 37 (392)
Tax on net actuanal gainfloss ) (0.8) 90
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate {12.3) (3 4)
(9.4} (336)
Itemns that may be reclassified to the Income staterment
Gan/{loss) on cash flow hedges 15.1 (390)
Deferred tax on ganfloss on cash flow hedges (3.0) 90
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the ncome statement in the year ) 81 14 8
Deferred tax on transfers to ncome statement ) (16) (34)
Exchange movement on translation of overseas results and net assets (9.7) 54
89 {132)
Other comprehensive loss for the year {0.5) (46 8)
Total comprehensive Incomne for the year 4344 1721
Attrbutable to
Owners of the company ) 4343 1687
Naon-controlling interests 01 34
4344 1721
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Equity attnbutable to owners of the company

Share Share Other Retained oontm'l‘l?:g- Total
caprtal premium reserves earnings Total Interests equity
£m £m £m £m fm fm fm
At Apnl 2012 2326 838 4002 2569 9735 79 9814
Profit for the year {restated see note 3} - ~ - 2160 2160 29 2189
Losses on cash flow hedges - - (350) -~ (390 - (390}
Deferred tax onlosses on cash flow hedges - - 90 - S0 - 90
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the income statement - ~ 148 - 148 - 148
Deferred tax on transfers to the income
staternent - - (34 - (34) - (34)
Exchange movement on translation
of overseas results and net assets - - 49 - 49 05 54
Actuanal losses {restated see note 3) - - - (392) {392) - (392)
Tax on actuanal losses {restated see note 3) - - - 90 90 - 30
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - {34) {3 4) - (34)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - (137) 182 4 1687 34 1721
Share options and LTIPs
- proceeds fromn shares issued 07 59 - - 66 - 66
- value of employees’ services - - - 69 69 - 69
- own shares purchosed - - - {13) (13} - (13)
Current tax on share based poyments - - - 08 08 - 08
Transfer of infrastructure reserve - - (314 2) 31472 - - -
Dwvidends paid - - - {(3220) {3220) {05) {3225)
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 723 4379 8332 108 8440
Profit for the year - - - 4338 4338 11 4349
Gains on cash flow hedges - - 151 - 151 - 151
Deferred tax on gains on cash flow hedges - - (30 - (30 - €]4)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred
to the iIncome statement - - 81 - 81 - 81
Deferred tax on transfers to the income
statement - - (16) - (16) - (16)
Exchange movement on translation
of overseas results and net assets - - 87 - 87 (10) 97
Actuanal gains - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on actuanal gans - - - (08) (08) - 08
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - (123) (123) {123)
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - 99 424 4 4343 01 434 4
Share optiens and LTIPs
- proceeds from shares issued 06 45 - - 51 - 51
- value of employees’ services - - - 58 58 - 58
- own shares purchased - - - (28 (28) - (28)
Current tax on share based payments - - - 10 10 - 10
Adjustment ansing from change in
nen-contrelling interest - - - (137) (137) 22 {115)
Dividends paid - - - (185 3) {1853) (06} (1859}
At 31 March 2014 2339 94.2 82.2 6673 10776 125  1,0901
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Note £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 16 148 417
Other intangible assets 17 80.2 953
Property, plont and equiprment 18 7,023.5 6,7600
Interests in joint ventures 19 03 03
Interests in associates 20 49 47
Denvative financial assets 21 724 1301
Avaiable for sale financial assets 35 01 01
7,196.2 70362
Current assets
Irventory 22 27.2 321
Trade and other recevables 23 5132 5060
Current tox recevable 165 405
Derivative financial assets 21 129 10
Cash and cash equivalents 24 1232 4036
693.0 98312
Total assets 7,8892 80194
Current liabilities
Borrowings 35 (206.1) {170 3)
Dernvative finanaial labilities 27 (24.8) {06}
Trade and other payables 28 (4127) (3520
Prowisions for labiliies and charges 31 {12.1) (111)
(655 7) (5810)
Non-current labilities
Borrowings 35 (4,4160) (46313)
Denvative finoncial habdities 27 (206.2) (3096)
Trade and other payables 28 {492 4} (453 4)
Deferred tax 29 (654.0) (7858)
Retirement benefit obligations 30 (348.3) (383 7)
Prowsions for labiliies and charges 31 (26.5) (306)
{6,143.4) (6,594 4)
Total iabiliies (6,799.1) (7,1754)
Net assets 1,090.1 8440
Equity
Called up share capttal 32 2339 2333
Share premium account 33 94.2 897
Other reserves 34 822 723
Retaned eamings 667.3 4379
Equity attnbutable to owners of the company 1,077.6 8332
Non-controling interests 125 108
Total equity 1,0901 8440

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2014

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon

Charman Finance Birector “‘Q ' U
Company Number 2366649 ‘.vQ}.l,wz
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 March 2014

2014 2013
Note £m fm

Cash generated from operations 40 730.2 7312
Tax receved/{paid) 27.2 (72 5)
Net cosh generated from operating activities 757 4 6587
Investing activities
Interest receved 6.5 37
iNet cash inflow from sale of businesses 39 - 124
Acquisition of subsidiaries 39 - (13)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests (11.4) -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 103 161
Purchases of intangible assets (13.9) (160)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (490 6) {4292)
Contnbutions and grants recered 303 273
Net cash used In mvesting activities (468.8) (38700
Financing octwties
Interest paid {206 9) {186 8)
Closed out swaps - (44 3)
Interest element of finance lease payments {4 2) (60
Ddends paid to shareholders of the parent {185 3) (3220
Dmdends paid to non-controlling interests {0.6) (05)
Repayments of borrowings (172 4) {259 9)
Repayments of obligations under finance leases {0.4) (17 4)
New loans raised 0.7 6683
Issues of shares 51 66
Purchase of own shares (28) {13)
Net cash used in financing activities {566.8) (163 3)
(Decreaselincrense n cash and cash equivalents (278.2) 108 4
Net cash and cash equivalerts at beginning of penod 403.2 2547
Effect of foreign exchange rotes {1.8) 01
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 123.2 4032
Net cash and cash equivalents comprise
Total cash and cash equivalents 123.2 403 6
Bank overdrafts - (04)
Net cash and cash equivalents at end of perniod 123.2 403 2

The decrease In cash and cash equivalents i1s reconciled to the movement in net debt in note 40
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Notes to the group financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2014

1 Generalinformation
The Severn Trent group has a number of operations These are
descnbed in the segmental analysis iIn note 5

Severn Trent Plc I1s o company incorporated and domicled in the
UK The address of its registered office 1s shown on the back of
the cover of the Annual Report and Accounts

Severn Trent Pic 1s listed on the London Stock Exchange
2 Accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Internctional Financial Reporting Standards (EFRS),
International Accounting Standards (AS) and IFRIC
interpretations issued and effective and ratified by the European
Union as at 31 March 2014

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis (see Directors’ report on page 81) under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
certan financial assets and ligbilities {including denvative
mstruments) ot fair value

The preparation of financial statements i conformity with IFRS
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
finanaiol statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses for the reporting peniod Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount,
event or actions, actual results may ultimately differ frorm
those estimates

b} Basis of consolidation

The finanaial statements include the results of Severn Trent Plc
and its subsidianes, joint ventures and assocated undertakings
The results of subsidanes, joint ventures and asscaated
undertakings are ncluded from the date of acquisition or
incorporation and excluded from the date of disposal

The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the group has
the power to control a subsidiary

The results of joint venture undertakings are accounted for on
an equity basis where the group exercised joint control under a
contractual arrangement

The results of associates are accounted for on an equity bosis
where the group holding is 20% or more or the group has the
power to exercise significant influence

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidianes are identified separately frorm the group’s equity
therein Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those
interests at the date of the onginal business combination and
the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since
that date

All Intra-group transactions, balances, incorme and expenses are
elminated on consolidation

¢) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the fair value of consideration recevable,
excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter-compary
sales, In the ordinary course of business for goods and

services provided

Revenue 1s not recognised until the service has been provided to
the customer or the goods to which the sale relates have either
been despatched to the custorner or, where they are held on
the customer's behalf, title hos passed to the customer

Turnover includes an estimate of the amount of mains water
and waste water charges unbilled at the year end The accrualis
estimated using a defined methodology based upon a measure
of unbilled water consumed by tanff, which s calculated from
histoncal biling informatron

In respect of long term contracts, revenue Is recognised
bosed on the value of work camed out dunng the year with
reference to the totol sales volue and the stage of completion
of these contracts

Interest income 15 accrued on a time basis by reference to
the pnnapal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable Dividend income from investrments i1s recognised
when the group’s nghts to receive payment have been
established Interest ond dvidend income are induded in
finance ncome

d} Exceptional items

Exceptional iterns are income or expenditure, which indmidually
or, iIf of a similar type, n aggregate should, in the opinion of

the drrectors, be disclosed by virtue of therr size or nature If the
financial statements are to give a true and fair view In this
context, matenality 1s assessed at the segment level

e) Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxabte profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
staterment because it excludes items of Income and expenses
that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further
excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible The group’s
Liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet dote

Deferred taxation 1s prowided in full, using the hability method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and labiliies and ther carnying amounts in the financal
staternents A deferred tax asset 1s only recogrised to the extent
it 15 probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable in

the future to utilise it. Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-
discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset 1s redlised or the deferred tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and labdities are offset when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilres and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the some taxation authonity ond the group intends to
settle its current tax ossets and labilities on a net basis
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies {(continued)
f) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of purchase
consideration over the far value of the net assets acquired
Goedwill arising on acquisition of subsidianes 1s Included

in intangible assets, whilst goodwill ansing on acquisition

of associates 15 included i ivestments in associates If an
acquisition gives rise to negative goodwill this 1s credited directly
to the income staternent. Fair value adjustments based on
provisional estirnates are amended within one year of the
aequisition, If required, with a corresponding adjustment

to goodwill

Goodwill ansing on oll acquisitions pror to 1 April 1998 wos
whitten off to reserves under UK GAAP and remains eliminated
against reserves Purchased goodwill ansing on acquisitions after
31 March 1998 1s treated us an intangible fixed asset

Goadwill 15 tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
set out in note 2m) below ond camed at cost less accumulated
impaimment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to the cash-generating
unit that derves benefit from the goodwill for iImparrment
testing purposes

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and
all or part of that unit is disposed of, the associated goodwill
Is included In the carrying amount of that operation when
deterrmiring the gain or loss on disposal of the operation

g} Intangible non-current assets

Intangible assets acquired separatetly are capitalised at cost and
when acquired I o business combination are capitalised at far
value at the date of acquisition Following initial recognition, the
histoncal cost model 1s appled to intangible assets

Finite fe intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis
over their estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years
Software 3-10
Other assets 2-20

Amortisation charged on assets 1s taken to the incorme
statement through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for Impairment where indicators
of imparment exist

h) Research and development

Research expenditure I1s expensed when t 1s Incurred
Development expenditure is capitalised ond written off over
its expected useful economic life where the following cntena
are met.

+ 1tis techrically feasible to create and make the asset avalable

for use or sale,

there are adequate resources avallable to complete the

development and to use or sell the asset,

+ there is the ntention and ability to use or sell the asset,

+ 1t1s probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits, and

« the development cost can be measured reliably

Expenditure on property, plant and equipment relating
to research and development projects is capitalised and
depreciated over the expected useful life of those assets

1) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed os incurred except where t1s
probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they
ore recognised as a prepayment which s wntten off to the
income staternent over the life of the contract.

The group assesses that it 1s probable that a contract will be
awarded when preferred bidder or equivalent status has been
achieved and there are no signficant impediments to the award
of the contract

/) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s held at cost {or ot deemed
cost for infrastructure assets on transition to IFRS) less
accumulated depreciation The costs of like for like replacement
of infrastructure components are recognised in the iIncome
statement as they arise Where it 1s probable that the
expenditure will couse future economic benefits to flow to the
group, then costs are capitalised

Where items of property, plant and equiprent are transferred
to the group from customers or developers, the fair value of the
gsset transferred 1s recognised in the balance sheet Farr value
15 determined based on estimated depreciated replacement
cost Where the transfer 1s 1n exchange for connection to the
network and there 1s no further obligation, the corresponding
credit Is recognised iImmediately in turnover Where the transfer
15 considered to be inked to the prowision of ongoing services
the corresponding credit I1s recorded in deferred income and
released to operating costs over the expected useful bves of the
related assets

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets, that necessanly take a
substantial penod of tme to get ready for therr intended use, are
added to the cost of those assets untl such time as the assets
are ready for therr intended use

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated to its estimated
residual value over its estimated useful life, with the exception
of freehold land which s not depreciated Assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated untd commisstoned

The estimated useful ives are

Years
Infrastructure assets
Impounding reservorrs 250
Raw water aqueducts 250
Mains 80-150
Sewers 150-200
Other assets
Builldings 30-80
Fixed plant and equipment 20-40
Vehicles and mabile plant 2-15
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
k) Leased assets

Where the group obtains assets under leasing arrangements
which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the group as lessee (finance leases),
the lower of the far value of the leased asset or the present
value of the minimum lease payments 1s capitaised as an asset
with a corresponding liability representing the abligation to the
lessor Lease payments are treated as consisting of a capital
element and a finance charge, the capital element reduang the
obligation to the lessor and the finance charge being written

off to the income staterment at a constant rate over the period
of the lease in proportion to the capital amount outstanding
Depreciation I1s charged over the shorter of the estmated useful
life and the lease period

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership remain with the lessor are classified as operating
leases Rental costs ansing under operating leases are expensed
on a straight line basis over the term of the lease Leases of land
are normaily treated as operating leases, unless ownership 15
transferred to the group ot the end of the lease

) Grants and contributions

Grants and contrbutions receved In respect of non-current
assets, ncdluding certain charges made as a result of new
connections to the water and sewerage networks, are treated
as deferred income and released to the income staterment over
the useful economic life of those non-current assets

Grants and contnbutions which are given in compensation for
expenses incurred with no future related costs are recognised in
operating costs in the Income statement i the period that they
becorme recevable

m) Impairment of non-current assets

If the recoverable amount of goodwill, an item of property, plant
and equipment, or any other non-current asset 1s estimated

to be less than 1ts carrying amount, the carrying amount of

the asset 1s reduced to ts recoverable amount Where the

asset does not generate cash flows that ore Independent from
other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount

of the cash-generating Unit to which the asset belongs
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value tess costs to

sell or estimated value in use at the date the mparment
review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell represents

the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in anarm’s
length transaction between knowledgeable and willing third
parties, less costs of disposal Value in use represents the present
value of future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-
generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the cost of capital of the
cash-generating unit or asset

The discount rate used I1s based on the group’s cost of capital
adjusted for the nisk profiles of indmdual businesses

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually Impairment reviews
are also carned out if there 1s an ndication that animpairment
may have occurred, or, where otherwise required, to ensure
that non-current assets are not carned above therr estimoted
recoverable amounts

[mparments are recognised in the incorme statement

n) Inventory

Inventory and work in progress 1s stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value Cost includes labour, matenals, transport
and attrnbutable overheads

0) Service concession agreements

Where the group has an unconditional night to receive cash from
a government body in exchange for constructing or upgrading a
public sector asset, the amounts recevable are recognised as a
financial asset in prepayments and accrued Income

Costs of constructing or upgrading the public sector asset are
recognised on a straight line basis, before adjusting for expected
inflation, over the life of the contract

p) Retrement benefits

The group operates both defined benefit and defined
contribution pension schemes

The difference between the value of defined benefit pension
scheme assets and defined benefit pension scheme habilities
s recorded on the balance sheet as a retirernent benefit asset
or obligation

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured

at fair value using bid price for assets with quoted prices
Defined benefit pension scheme labilities are measured at
the balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the
projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of
return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term and
currency to the labibity

Service cost, which s the ncrease in the present value of the
liabilities of the group’s defined benefit pension schemes
expected to anse from employee serice In the penod, is
included in operating costs Net finance cost s calculated by
applying the discount rate used for the scheme tiabiities to the
net deficit

Changes in the retrement benefit obl:gation anse from
differences between the return on scheme assets and mterest
included in the Income statement, and from actuanial gains
and losses from expenence adjustments and changes in
demographic or finanaal assumptions Such changes are
clossified as remeasurements and are charged or crediied to
equity and recorded in the statement of comprehensive income
Inthe pernod in which they anse

Contnbutions to defined contnbution pension schemes are
charged to the income statement In the period in which they
fall due




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report ond Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
q) Provisions

Provisions are recogrised where

« there s a present obligation as a result of a past event,

= 1t1s probable that there will be an outflow of economic
benefits to settle this obligation, and

+ g reliable estimate cf this amount can be made

Insurgnce provistons in the group's captive insurance subsidiary
are recogrused for claims natified and for claims incurred but
which have not yet been notified, based on adwice from the
group’s Independent insurance adwvisers

Prowisions are discounted to present value using a pre-tox
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability where
the effect 1s matenal

r) Purchase of own shares

Shares held by the Severn Trent Employee Share Ownership
Trust which have not vested unconditicnally by the batance
sheet date are deducted from shareholders’ funds until such
time as they vest

s) Financial nstruments

() Financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following categories

» ot fair value through profit or loss,

+ held to matunty Investments,

+ avalable for sate financiol assets,

+ loans and recevables, and

« dervatives designated as hedging instruments

Financiol assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset 1s classified ot far value through profit or loss

if 1t 15 so designated or if it 15 classified as ‘held for trading’
Denvative finanaiat assets that are not designated and effectve
as hedging instruments are required to be classified as *held

for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group's Treasury Policy,
described in the Financiol Review on page 36, 1s that the

group does not hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments
for trading Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are stated at far value, with any gains or losses ansing

on remeasurement recognised in gains/losses on financial
Instruments in the iIncome statement. Far value 15 deterrmined
using the methodology descnbed innote 36 Interest recevable
in respect of denvatve financial assets 1s ncluded in

finance Income

Held to matunty iwvestments

Wherte the group has the ability and intent to hold an
Investrment to maturtty the financiol asset 1s classified as held to
matunty Such financicl assets are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, with any gans or losses
being recognised in the income statement

Available for sale financial assets

After initial recognition at cost (being the fair value of the
consideratton paid), investments which are ¢lassified os
avalable for sale are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised In other cornprehensive income When an avallable
for sale investment 15 disposed of or iImparred, the gain or loss
previously recognised in cther comprehensive mcome is taken
to the Income statement. Where there s no active market in the
Investrnents and the fair value cannot be measured reliably, the
investrnents are held at cost

Loans and recevables

Trade recenvables, loans and other recevables that have fixed

or determinable payments and thaot are not quoted in an active
market are clussified as loans and recevables Such assets are
measured at farr volue on initial recognition and are subsequentty
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method unless there 15 objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, where it 1s written down to its recoverable amount
and the rrecoverable amount 1s recognised as an expense

Trade recevables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are assessed collectively for mparment by reference
to the group’s historical collection experience for recevables of
similar age

Denvatves designated as cash flow hedges

The farr value of dervative financiol assets that are designated
as hedging instruments 1s determined using the methodology
Included N note 36 Hedge accounting is described below

(n) Financiol labiities
Finanoial liabibties are cdlassified as either

- at fair value through profit or loss,
« other finanoial iabilities, or
+ denvatives designated as hedging instrurnents

Financial iabrities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial lability 15 classified at fair value through profit or

loss if it 1s so designated or If it is classified as ‘hetd for trading’
Dervatve financial labilities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be classified as
'held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group's Treasury Policy,
descnbed in the Financial Review on page 36, 1s that the group
does not hold or ssue denvative financial instruments for trading
Financial liabiities at fair value through profit or loss are stated
at far value, with any gains or losses ansing on remeasurement
recognised in gainsAosses on financial instruments in the
incorme staternent Fair value 1s determined using the
methodology described in note 36 Interest payable in respect
of denvative finanaal babilities 1s included in finance costs

Other financial kabilities

Other financial labilities, including borrowings, are initially
recogrised at far value less transaction costs After initial
recognition, other financial liabititres are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective Interest rate method

Derwvatives designated as cash flow hedges

The fair value of denvative finanaial labilities that are designated
as hedging instrumerts 1s determined using the methodotogy
included in note 36 Hedge accounting 1s described below
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
s) Financial nstruments (continued)

(m) Hedge accounting

The group uses dervative financial nstruments such as cross
currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interest rate
swaps to hedge Its risks associated with foreign currency and
Interest rate fluctuations Such denvative mstruments are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting
policies descnbed above

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the group documents

» the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item,

+ ts nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions, and

+ whether the hedging instrument 1s tughly effective In
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows {gs appropriate)
of the hedged item

The group continues to test and document the effectiveness of
the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires, 15 sold, terminated or exercised, or ne longer qualifies for
hedge accounting

Fair value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing is in a farr value hedging relationship
it 1s remeasured for changes in far value of the hedged nsk at
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recognised in
gainsflosses on financial instruments in the income staterment
The gain or loss on the hedging instrument 1s taken to gans/
tosses on financial instruments in the Income staterment where
the effective portion of the hedge will offset the gain or loss on
the hedged item

When hedge accounting 15 discontinued, the farr value
adjustrment to the carmying amount of the hedged iterm ansing
from the hedged nsk 1s amortised to the iIncome staternent
from that date

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gan or loss on the hedging instrument that
is determined to be an effective hedge 1s recognised directly in
equity and the ineffective portion In gans/losses on financial
Instruments in the iIncome statement. The gains or losses
deferred In equity In this way are recycled through gains/losses
on financial instruments in the incorne statement in the same
penod in which the hedged underlying transaction or firm
commitment is recognised N the incorme statement

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain

or loss on the hedging mstrument recognised in equity 1s held

In eguity unti the forecast transaction oceurs, or transferred to
gans/losses on financial instruments in the incorne statement If
the forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net investments in foreign
currency denomirated operations, to the extent thot they

are designated and effective as net investrnent hedges, they
are matched in equity against changes i value of the related
assets Any ineffectiveness is taken to gains/losses on financial
instruments in the iIncome statement.

{v) Embedded denvatives

Dervatives embedded in other financial nstruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their
nsks and charactenstics are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract 1s not carned at farr value,
with gains and losses reported in gans/losses on financial
instruments in the Income statement.

t) Share based payments

The group operates a nurmber of equity settled share based
compensation plans for employees The fair value of the
employee services received In exchange for the grant 15
recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The fair value of employee services 15 deterrmined by reference
to the farr value of the owards granted, calculated using

an appropnate pricing model, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions The number of awards that

are expected to vest takes into account non-market vesting
conditions including, where appropnate, continuing employment
by the group The charge 1s adjusted to reflect shares that do
not vest as a result of faling to meet a non-market condition

u) Cosh flow staternent

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include highly liguid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to aninsignificant nsk of change N value Such investments are
normatly those with tess than three months matunty from the
date of acquisition and include cash and bank balances and
Investments in iquid funds Cash and cash equivalents also
include overdrafts repayable on dermand

Net debt compnses borrowings, cross currency swaps that are
used to fix the stering labiity of foreign currency borrowings
{(whether hedge accounted or not}, cash and cash equivalents

Interest paid in the cash flow staterment iIncludes amounts
charged to the income staternent and amounts Included in the
cost of property, plant and equipment

v) Foreign currency

The results of overseas subsidiary and associated undertakings
are translated into sterling, the presentational currency of the
group, using average rotes of exchange ruling dunng the year

The net investments In overseas subsidiary and associated
undertakings are translated intc sterling at the rates of
exchange ruling at the year end Exchange differences ansing
are treated as movements in equity On disposal of o foreign
currency denominated subsidiary, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity since 1 Apnl 2004 relating to
that entity 1s recogrised in the income statement under the
transitional rule of IFRS 1
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Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

2 Accounting policies (continued)
v) Foreign currency (continued)

Exchange differences ansing in respect of foreign exchange
mstrurnents taken out as hedges of overseas investments are
also treated as movernents in equity to the extent that the
hedge is effective (see note 2s))

All other foreign currency denorminated assets and labilibes of
the company and its subsidiary undertakings are translated into
the relevant functional currency at the rates of exchange ruling
at the year end Any exchange differences so ansing are deqlt
with through the income staterment

Foreign currency transactions ansing during the year are
translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling

on the daote of the transaction All profits and losses on
exchange ansing dunng the year are dealt with through the
Incormne staterment

w) Discontinued operations and assets held for sale

Where an asset or group of assets (o disposal group) 1s avallable
for mmediate sale and the sale 1s highly probable and expected
to occur within one year then the disposat group 1s clossified as
held for sale The disposal group s measured at the lower of the
carmying amount and fair value less costs to sell

Where a group of assets which compnises operations that can
be dearly distnguished operationally and for finanaal reporting
purposes, from the rest of the group (o component), has been
disposed of or clossified as held for sale, and it

+ represents a separate major line of business or geograptucal
area of operations, or

« 15 part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate
major ine of business or geographical area of operations, or

+ 1sasubsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale,

then the component is classified as a discontinued operation

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of carrying amount ond farr value less costs to sell
Depreciation 1s not charged on such assets

3 New accounting policies and future requirements
The group has also adopted 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' (revised)
The revised standard changes the method of calculating the net
finance cost on defined benefit pension schemes Previously the
discount rate used to catculate the scherne liobilties ot the
prewvious balance sheet date was applied to the liabiiies and
the expected retum on the scheme’s assets was applied to

the assets Under the revised standard the discount rate 1s
applied to the net deficit to deterrnine the net finance cost.
Scheme admimstration costs were previously deducted from
the expected retum on assets Such costs are now included

in operating costs There is no change to the measurement

of the net surplus or deficit recognised in the balance sheet

The difference between the interest income calculated on the
scheme assets and the actuol return is recogrised in other
comprehensive Income as an actuanal gain or toss

The stondard must be applied retrospectively ond so the prior
year numbers have been restated The net impact of this
change 1s shown below

auowanon  uodar abajons
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2014 2013 8
£m £m a
Profit for the pericd Y
Operating profit (3.0) 26) S
Net finance cost (17.2) (124) 3
Decrease in profit before tax for the period ~ (20.2) (150) &
Deferred tax 4.0 35
Decrease in profit for the penod (16.2) (115)
Other comprehensive Income i
Net actuanal gains 202 150
Tax on actuanal gains {4.0) (35)
Decrease in other comprehensive loss 16.2 115

Impact on net assets - -

The group has adopted [FRS 13 ‘Fair Value Megsurement’

in this finanaal year This standard sets out the approach to
determining fair values in financial staternents and provides
additional guidance on how to measure fair value but does not
change when fair value 1s permitted or required In particular,
the standard requires the group to take account of its own
credit nsk in determining the farr value of financiol labilibes
The standard is applied prospectively and hence has no impact
on amounts previously recogrised In the current penod the fair
value of derivative financial labilities and the gain on financial
instruments was £8 5 million kigher as a result of the adoptiton
of this standard

Following adoption of IFRS 13 the group has reviewed and
amended its methodology for calculating the farr value of debt
The approach taken and the impact on arnounts disclosed
previously are set out in note 36

The impact of new accounting polices on eamings per share s
disclosed in note 15

IFRS 13 also amended IAS 36 ‘Impairments of assets’ to require
disclosure of the recoverable amount of cash-generating units
However, this requirement was removed by an amendment to
IAS 36 which 1s not mandatory for the group until 1 Apnl 2014
but it has been adopted early in these financial statemenits

IFRSs 10, 11 and 12 were issued 1IN May 2011 with an effective
date of 1 January 2013 The EU has adepted these standards
with effect from 1 January 2014 but with early application
permitted The group has elected not to apply these standards
early and will adopt thern with effect from 1 Apnl 2014

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ includes a new
definition of control to be used to determine when entities are
consolidated The standard i1s not expected to have @ matenal
impact on the group’s financial statements
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3 New accounting polictes and future requirements
{continued)

IFRS 11 Joint Agreements’ replaces [AS 31 “Interests in Joint
Ventures’ and SIC-13 Jointly-controlled Entities’ IFRS 11 uses
the definition of control given In IFRS 10 to define joint control
and removes the option to account for joint ventures using
praporticnate conselidation This is not expected to have a
matenal impact on the group's financial statements

IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ prowides
disclosure requirements for subsidianies, associates, joint
agreements and structured entities which were previously
covered in TAS 27, 1AS 28 and IAS 31 Additonal disclosures
will be required in the group finanaal statements to meet the
requirements of the standard

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
foilowing Standards and Interpretations were in 1ssue but not
yet effective

IFRS 9 ‘Finanaial Instruments’ s likely to affect the
measurerment and disclosure of financial Instruments
This Standard has not yet been adopted by the EU

4 Significant accounting Judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s accounting policies,

the group 1s required to make certain jJudgements, estimates
and assumptions that it believes are reasonable based on the
information avallable

The mere significant judgerments were

a) Tax provisions

Assessing the outcome of uncertain tax positions requires
Judgements to be made regarding the result of negotiations
with and enquines from tax authonties n @ number of
Junisdictions The assessments made are based on advice from
independent tax adwvisers and the status of ongoing discussions
with the relevant tax authorities

b) Prowisions for other labilities and charges

Assessing the finanoial outcorne of uncertain commercial and
legal positions reguires judgements to be made regarding the
relotive ments of each party’s case and the extent to which any
clam aganst the group is likely to be successful The assessments
rade are based on advice from the group’s Internal counsel
and, where appropnate, independent legal advice

c) Geodwill impairment

Deterrnining whether goodwill 1 rmparred requires an
estimation of the value In use of the cash-generating unit
(‘CGL) to which goodwill has been allocated The value inuse
calculation requires the group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a sutable discount rate to
calculate present value Details of the assumptions used are set
out In note 16 to the finuncial statements

The key accounting estmates were

a) Depreciation and carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment

Calculating the depreciation charge and hence the carrying
value for property, plant and equipment requires estimates to
be made of the useful lves of the assets The estimates are
based on engineenng data and the group’s expenence of similar
assets Details are set out n note 2 ))

b} Retirement benefit obligations

Deterrnining the amount of the group’s retirement benefit
obligations and the net costs of providing such benefits requires
assurnptions to be made concerning long term interest rates,
inflation, salary and pension increases, investment returns and
longevity of current and future pensioners Changes nthese
assurnptions could significantly impact the amount of the
obligations or the cost of providing such benefits The group
makes assumnptions concerning these matters with the
assistance of adwice from independent qualfied actuaries
Details of the assumptions made are set out In note 30 to the
financial statements

¢) Unbilled revenue

Severn Trent Water raises bills and recogrises revenue in
accordance with its nght to receive revenue in line with the tmits
established by the periodic regulatory price review processes
For water and waste water customers with water meters, the
amount recognised depends on the volume supplied including
an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the
date of the last meter read and the year end Meters are read
on a cyclical basis and the group recogruses revenue for unbilled
arnounts based on estimated usage from the lost billing to

the end of the financial year The estimated usage 15 based on
historical data, jJudgement and assumptions

d} Prowision for impairment of trade recetvables

Provisions are made against Severn Trent Water's trade
recevables based on histonical experience of levels of recovery
from accounts in a particular agemng category The actual
amounts collected could differ from the estimated level of
recovery which could impact operating results

e) Fairvalue of denvatives

Determining the fair value of denvatives where quoted prices
are not avarlable requires estmates to be made af the future
expected cash flows and an approprate discount rate which
reflects the credit nsk of the counterparties The valuation
techrigues and key Inputs used are descnibed in note 36
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5 Segmental analysis

The group has two reportable segments Severn Trent Water and Severn Trent Services The key factor deterrmining the identification
af repertable segments 15 the regulatory environment in which the businesses operate Severmn Trent Water is subject to economic
regulation by Ofwat and operates under a licence to provide water and sewerage services within a defined geographical region

In England and Wales Severn Trent Services 1s not subject to econormie regulation and operates In markets in the USA, Europe

and Asia

The Severn Trent Executive Committee (STEC) 15 considered to be the group's chief operating decision maker The reports provided to
STEC include segmental information prepared on the basis described above Details of Severn Trent Water's operations are described
on pages 13 to 24 of the Strategic report and those of Severn Trent Services on pages 25 to 32

Transactions between reportable segments are included within segmental resudts, assets and liabilities in accordance with group
accounting pelicies These are eliminated on consolidation

The group has a large and diverse custormer base and there 15 no significant reliance en any single custormer
The measure of profit or loss that 1s reported to STEC for the segments 1s profit befare Interest, tax and exceptional items {underlying
PBIT) A segmental analysis of sales and underlying PBIT is presented below

Severn Trent  Severn Trent

Water Services
2014 fm fm
External sales 1,542 6 3100
Inter-segment sales 22 14
Total sales 1,544.8 3114
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 5186 71
Exceptional iterns 82 (315)
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 526.8 {24.4)
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 1s stated after
Amortisation of Intangible assets 280 13
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2675 43
Profit on dispasal of fixed assets 03) 02)

Severn Trent  Severn Trent
Water Services
Restated Restated

2013 £m fm
External sales 1,509 2 3206
Inter-segment sales 17 79
Total sales 1,5110 3285
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 468 5 126
Exceptional iterns 133 (161}
Profit/{loss) before interest and tax 5118 {35)

Profit before interest, tax and exceptional items 1s stated after

Amortisation of Intangible assets 289 15
Bepreciation of property, plont and equipment 2614 53
Loss/{profit) on disposal of fixed assets 15 (14)

The group’s treasury and tax affairs are managed centrally by the Group Treasury and Tax Departments Finance costs are managed
onagroup basis and hence interest ncorne and costs are not reported ot the segmental level Tax s not reported to STEC ona
segmental basis

Interests in joint ventures and associates are not material and are not included in the segmental reports reviewed by STEC
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)

Separate segrmental analyses of assets and liabilives are not reviewed by STEC The balance sheet measure reviewed by STECon a

segmental basis 's capital employed which includes the following components

M Severn Trent Severn Trent

Water Services

2014 £m fm
Operating assets T4422 1728
Goodwill ) 13 146
Interests in joint ventures ond associates 01 50
Segment assets 14436 192 4
Segment operating Liabilities (1,155 7) {922)
Capital employed 6,287.9 100.2
Sevem Trent  Severn Trent

Water Services

2013 £m £m
Operating assets 72187 1731
Goodwill 13 417
Interests in joint ventures and associates 01 49
Segment assets 7,2201 2197
Segment operating labilities {1,137 4) (94 0)
Capital employed 6,082 7 1257

Operating assets comprnse other ntangible assets, property, plant and equipment, inventory and trode and other recevables

Operating liabilities compnse trade and other payables, retrement benefit obligations and provisions
Additions to other intangible ossets and property, plant and equipment were as follows

Severn Trent Severn Trent

Water Services

2014 £m £m

Other intangible assets i 82 55

Property, plant ond equipment 5196 69

Sevemn Trent  Severn Trent

Water Services

2013 £m £m

Other intangible assets 136 22

Property, plant and eguiprment 4517 86
The reportable segments’ revenue is reconaled to group turnover as follows

2014 2013

£m fm

Severn Trent Water 1,544.8 15110

Severn Trent Services 3114 3285

Other i 131 101

Inter-segment sales (12 6) (180)

Group turnover 1,856.7 1,8316
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Segmentat underlying PBIT 1s recanalled to the group’s profit before tax and discontinued aperations as follows

2013
2014 Restated
fm £Em
Underlying PBIT
- Severn Trent Water "~ 5186 4985
- Severn Trent Services 71 126
- Corporate and other costs (115) {169)
Consclidation adjustments 26 12
Group underlying PBIT 516.8 4954
Exceptional tems allocated to segments
- Severn Trent Water 82 133
- Severn Trent Services (31.5) {161}
- Corporate and other (21.1) (30)
Share of results of associates and joint ventures ) 0.2 02
Net finance costs . (247.9) (244 3)
Gans/{losses} on financial Instruments 580 {453)
Profit before tox 282.7 2002
The reportable segments’ assets are reconcled to the group’s total assets as fallows
2014 2013
£m £m
Segment assets
- Severn Trent Water 7,443.6 7,2201
- Severn Trent Services 192.4 2157
Corporate assets 68.2 495
Other financial assets 208.6 5348
Current tax recoverable 16.5 405
Consolidatton adjustments {40.1) {452)
Total ossets 7,889.2 8,0194
The consolidation adjustments comprise elimination of intra-group debtors and unrealised profits on fixed assets
The reportable segments’ Labilities are reconciled to the group’s total iabiities as follows
2014 2013
£m £m
Segment licbiles
- Severn Trent Water (1,155.7) (1,1374)
- Severn Trent Setvices (92.2) (94 0)
Corporate labilities (60.1) (64 7)
Other financial habilities (48531} (51118}
Deferred tax (654.0) (785 8)
Consolidation adjustments 16.0 183
Total liobilibes (6,799.1) (7,1754)

The consclidation adjustrnents compnse ebimination of intra-group creditors
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5 Segmental analysis (continued)
Geographical areas
The group’s sales were denved from the following countries

2014 2013

£fm fm

UK 16169 1,584 7
Usa 1459 1422
Other 939 1047
1,856.7 1,8316

The group’s non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post employrment benefit assets) were

located In the following countries

2014 2013
£m £m
UK 7,084.8 6,834 2
USA 361 611
Other 29 108
7,123.8 69061

6 Revenue
2014 2013
£m £m
Woater and sewerage services 1,5345 1,5009
Other services 181.1 1801
Sale of goods 98.9 1107
Service concession arrangements {note 42) 42.2 399
Total tumover 1,856.7 1,8316
Interest recetvable (note 10) 48 26
1,861.5 1,8342
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7 Operating costs

2014 2013
Before
Before exceptional
exceptional Exceptional costs  Exceptional Total
costs costs Total Restated costs Restated
£m £m £m £fm fm fm
Wages and salanes 286.1 4.3 290.4 2829 12 2841
Social securty costs 227 - 22.7 202 - 202
Pension costs 323 - 323 298 - 298
Share based payments 6.2 - 6.2 68 - 68
Total employee costs 3473 43 3516 3397 12 3409
Powver 711 - 711 658 - 658
Carbon Reduction Commmitment 5.9 - 5.9 57 - 57
Row materials and consumables 126.6 03 126.9 1308 - 1308
Rates 75.7 - 757 732 - 732
Charge for bad and doubtful debts 321 - 321 331 - 331
Service charges 316 - 316 319 - 319
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2700 - 2700 2646 - 2646
Arnortisation and irmparment of Intangible fixed assets 293 24 317 305 36 341
Impairment of goodwill - 247 247 - 46 46
Hired and contracted services 2127 215 2342 1662 37 1999
Operating leases rentals
- land and bulldings 29 02 31 31 - 31
- other 16 - 16 19 - 19
Hire of plant and machinery 33 - 33 44 - 44
Research and developrnent expenditure 5.0 - 50 54 - 54
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment {0.4) (8.2) (8 6) 29 (133) (104)
Foreign exchange gan/{fosses) 0.7 - 0.7 03 - 03
Infrastructure maintenance expenditure 140.3 - 140.3 1477 - 1477
Other operating costs 86.3 (0.8) 855 958 45 1003
1,442.0 444 14864 14324 43 1,4367
Release from deferred income (95 - (9.5) 93 - (93)
Own work capitalised {92 6) - {92.6) (869) - (869)
1,339.9 A4t 13843 1,3362 43 1,3405
Further details of exceptional costs are gven in note 8
During the year the following fees were charged by the auditors
2014 2013
fm fm
Fees payable to the company’s auditors for
- the audtt of the company’s annual accounts 01 01
- the audit of the company's subsidianes 0.5 05
Total audrt fees 0.6 06
Fees payable to the company’s audrtors and their associates for other services to the group
- audit related assurance services 01 02
- other services relating to taxation 01 -
- other assurance services 04 -
- services relating to corporate finance - 01
Total non-agudit fees 0.6 03

Detalls of directors’ remuneration are set out In the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 60to 76
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8 Exceptional items before tax

2014 2013
£m £m
Exceptional operating costs
Sevemn Trent Water
Profit on disposal of fixed assets 82) {13 3)
(82) (13 3)
Severn Trent Services
Restructuring costs 5.6 16
Imparment of intangible assets 24 45
Impairment of goodwill 24.7 46
Prowvision for customer contractual dispute (1.2) 39
315 146
Corporate and other
Professional fees on proposed transaction that did not proceed - 30
Professional fees related to LongRiver proposal 187 -
Prowision for terminated operations and disposals 24 -
211 30
Total exceptionat operating costs Liy 4y 43
Exceptionol loss on disposal of businesses - 15
Exceptional tems before tax &id 58
Exceptional tox 1s disclosed in note 13
9 Employee numbers
Average number of employees (iIncluding executive directors) dunng the year
2014 2013
Number Nurmber
By type of business
Severn Trent Water 5,634 5,458
Sevemn Trent Services 2,339 2,749
Corporate and other 19 14
7,992 8,221
10 Finance income
2013
2014  Restated
fm fm
Interest revenue eamed on
Bonk deposits 18 26
Other financial Income 3.0 -
Total iInterest revenue 4.8 26
Interest ncorne on defined benefit scheme assets 76.0 758
80.8 784
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11 Finance costs -

2014 2013 §

Total Totet =

£m £m §'

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 220 277 a

Interest on other loans 205.0 1916 g

Interest on finance leases 17 85 =

Total borrowing costs 2347 2278 g

Other financial expenses 23 27 al
Interest cost on defined benefit scherme obligations 91.7 922
3287 3227

Borrowing costs of £13 8 million (2013 £10 4 million) iIncurred funding eligible capital projects have been capitalised at an interest
rate of 5 11% (2013 512%) Tox relief of £3 2 mullion (2013 £2 5 millon) was claimed on these costs which was credited to the
Income statement, offset by a related deferred tax charge of £2 8 million (2013 £2 4 million)

12 Gains/(losses) on financial instruments

SIUSLLSI03S oIDUDLY Aunduioy

2014 2613
Em fm
Loss on cross currency swaps used as hedging instrurments in farr value hedges ) (26.5) {73) o
Gain ansing on adjustrment for foreign currency debt in fair value hedges 219 34 El
Exchange gan/{loss) on other loans 242 11 5,.
Loss on cash flow hedges transferred from equity (8.1) (14 8) §
Hedge ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges 20 - %
Gain/{loss) anising on swaps where hedge accounting is not appled 44,5 (255) >
580 {45 3)
The group's hedge gccounting arrangements are described In note 37 e)
13 Taxation
a) Analysis of tax charge in the year
2014 2013
Before
Before exceptional
exceptional Exceptional tex  Exceptional Total
tax tax Total Restated tax Restated
£m £m £m £m fm £m
Current tax
Current year at 23% (2013 24%) 472 - 47.2 571 (405) 166
Prior years at 24% {2013 26%) 93 (592) (499) {292) - (292)
Total current tax 56.5 {59.2) 2.7) 279 {405) (126)
Deferred tax
Cngination and reversal of ternporary differences
- current year 30.2 - 302 (38 388 350
Cngination and reversal of temporary differences
- prior year (87) (56 2) (649) {44) - (4 4)
Exceptional credit arising fromn rate change - (114.8) (114.8) - (367) (367}
Total deferred tax 215 (171.0) (149.5) 82 21 61
78.0 (230.2) {152.2) 197 (38 4) (187)

The current tax charge before exceptional tax was £56 5 million (£27 9 rullion} This includes a charge of £9 3 million ansing from
adjustments to prior year tax computations In the previous year a current tax credit of £29 2 million arose due primarily to an
industry agreement over the treatment of infrastructure Income in prior years’ computations
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13 Taxation (continued)
a) Analysis of tax charge in the year (continued)

Tax credits ansing from unusual items 1N each year have been disclosed as exceptional An exceptional current tax credit of

£59 2 million has been recogrised, reflecting the anticipated refund of overpayment of tax in prior periods as HMRC has now agreed
that certain capital expenditure within our water and waste water treatment works 1s eligible for capital alloewances as plant and
machinery This has also resulted in an exceptional deferred tax credit of £56 2 mullion

Ir the prior year the group's UK subsidiary companies adopted the new accounting standard FRS 101, which changed the basis for
those companies’ corporation tax camputations The most significant impact of this change is that certain amounts that had been
taxed in previous years were recognised as profits and will be taxed in future periods Therefore, to prevent such items being taxed
twice, the tax atready paid on such terms was repayable The impact of this change was an exceptional credit of £40 5 million to
current tax and an exceptional charge of £38 8 million to deferred tax

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted i the year and implernented a reduction in the corporation tax rate from 23% to 21% with
effect from 1 April 2014 and then to 20% with effect fromn 1 Aprit 2015 This has resulted in a deferred tox credit of £114 8 millicn in
the income staterment and a deferred tax charge of £12 3 rmllon in reserves

b) Factors affecting the tax charge in the year

The tax credit for the year 1s reconcied to tax on profit at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK below

2014 2013

£fm fm

Profit on ordinary actvities before tox 282.7 2002
Tax at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK 23% (2013 24%}) 650 482
Tax effect of expenditure not deductible in deterrining taxable profits 157 40
Current year mpact of rate change (3.7) 12
Effect of different rates in overseas junsdictions ) 04 06
Adjustments in respect of prior years (114.8) (336)
Exceptional deferred tax credit ansing from rate change T (114.8) (367)
Total tax credit (152.2) (187)

c) Tax charged/icredited) directly to equity

In additton to the amount credited to the income statement, the following amounts of tax have been charged/(credited) directly
to equity

2013
2014 Restated
£m £m

Current tax )

Tax on share based payments (10} (08)
Tax on pension contrbutions in excess of profit and loss charge - {15)
Total current tax credited to equity {1.0) (23)
Deferred tax )

Tax on actuanal gainsflosses ] 08 {75)
Tax on cash flow hedges 46 {56)
Effect of change in tax rate 123 34

Totol deferred tax charged/(credited) to equity 17.7 {97)
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14 Dividends
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period
2014 2013
Pence per Pence per

share £m share fm
Final dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2013 {2012) ) 4551 1086 4551 999
Intenm dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2014 (2013) 32.16 767 3034 722
Total crdinary dnvidends ) 7167 185.3 7585 1721
Speciol dividend - - 6300 1499
Total dvidends 77.67 185.3 13885 3220
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014 48.24

The proposed final dwidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has net been included as o bability in these

fingncial statements

15 Earnings per share
a) Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic eamnings per share are calculated by dwmiding the earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
nurber of ordinary shares n issue dunng the year, excluding those held in the Severn Trent Employee Shaore Ownership Trust which

are treated as cancelled

For diluted earrings per share, the werghted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue 15 adjusted to assume corversion of all
potentially dilutive ordinary shares These represent share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less than the

average market price of the company’s shares dunng the year

Basic and diluted earmings per share from continuing operations are caleulated on the basis of profit from continuing operations

attnbutable to the equity holders of the company
The calculation of basic and diluted earmings per share 1s based on the following data
() Earrngs for the purpose of basic and dituted earmings per share from continuing operations

2013
2014 Restated
£m fm
Proftt for the peniod attributable to the equity holders of the company 433.8 2160
() Number of shares
2014 2013
m m
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic eamings per share 2382 2377
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
- share options and LTIPs 11 11
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share 2393 2388
b) Adjusted earnings per share
2013
2014  Restated
pence pence
Adjusted basic earnings per share 884 926
Adsted diluted earnings per share 88.0 921

Adusted earnings per share figures are presented for continuing operations These exclude the effects of deferred tax, gans/losses
on financial instrurnents and exceptional items i both 2014 and 2013 The directors constder that the adjusted figures prowide a
useful additonal indicator of performance The dencrminators used in the calculations of adjusted basic and diuted earnings per

share are the same as those used in the unadpusted figures set out above
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15 Earnings per share (continued)
b) Adjusted earnings per share {continued)

Adjustments to earnings
The adjustments to earnings that are made in calculating adjusted earmings per share are as follows

2013
2014 Restated
£m £m
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 4338 2160
Adjustments for
- exceptional items before tax ity 58
-~ current tax related to exceptional items at 23% (2013 24%) (0.9) {05)
- {gains)Aosses on finanaial Instruments {58 0) 453
- deferred tax excluding exceptional charge 215 (82)
- exceptional tax (230.2) (38 4)
Earmings for the purpose of adjusted basic and diluted earrings per share 210.6 2200

¢) Impact of changes in accounting policy

As described in note 3, the group has adopted IAS 19R and IFRS 13 in the period The impact on basic and diluted earnings per share

in the current and prior year 1s shown below
f) Basic earnings per share

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share under previous accounting policies 1853 957
Impact of IAS 19 revised (6.8) (4 8)
Impact of change in valuohion of dervative liabilies 3.6 -
Basic earnings per share under revised accounting policies 182.1 909
2014 2013

Pence Pence

Adjusted basic earnings per share under previous accounting policies 96.9 989
Impact of IAS 19 revised (8-5) (63)
Adjusted basic earnings per share under revised accounting policies 884 926

(it Diluted earmings per share

2014 2013

Pence Pence

Diluted earnings per share under previous accouriting policies 1845 952
Impact of 1AS 19 revised i (6.8) @7
Impact of change in valugtion of dervative labilties 36 -
Diluted earmings per share under rewsed accounting policies 1813 905
2014 2013

Pence Pence

Adjusted dituted earnings per share under previous accounting policies 96.4 984
Impact of IAS 19 rewised (8.4) (63}
Adjusted diluted earnings per share under revised accounting policies 88.0 921




Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

16 Goodwill

2014 2013

£m fm

Cost
At 1 April 45.2 558
Disposals - (120}
Exchange adjustments {2.3) 14
At 31 March 42.9 452
Impairment
At 1 Apnl {3.5) {109}
Impairment charge in the year (24.7) (46)
Impairrment previously recorded on disposals _ - 120
Exchange adjustments 0.1 -
At 31 March (28.1) {(35)
Net book value
At 31 March 14 8 417

Goodwill Impairment tests

Goodwill 1s allocated to the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs) identified according to country of operatton and business segment
All of the group’s goodwill Is In the Severn Trent Services segment

A summary of the goodwill allocation by CGU 15 presented below

2014 2013

£m fm

Water Purfication US 14 271
Operating Services US 11.2 123
Senvices lialy 22 23
14.8 417

The group has reviewed the camying value of goodwill for impairment n accordance with the policy stated in note 2my)

The value in use calcutations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management coverng o five
year peniod The key assumption underlying these budgets 1s revenue growth and margin Managerment of each CGU determines
assumnptions based on past experience, current market trends and expectations of future developments

Cash flows beyond the five year period are extrapotated using an estimated nominal growth rate stated below The growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate for the economy in which the CGU operates The assumptians used in relation
to growth rates beyond the five year period and discount rates were

Nominal growth rate Post tox discount rate Pre-tax discount rate

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

% % % % % %

Water Purfication US See below 35 6.8 56 17.3 62
Operating Services US i 35 35 6.8 56 91 65
Services Italy 2.5 25 6.5 68 88 82

The waighted averoge growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts induded in industry reports except for Water Punfication
US where a growth rate of 3 5% has been applied for the first five years beyond the initiat five year period which is then reduced

by 2% per annum for the next 15 years with an extrapolabion at the resulting growth rate at 25 years into perpetuity This reflects
management’s best estimate of the prospects for the existing products and the business’s current product development expertise
Speaific discount rates for the CGUs are not avallable and hence a post tax discount rate reflecting nisks reloting to the CGU has been
estimated and used to calculate the value in use of the CGU from its post tax cash flow projections The equivalent pre-tax discount
rate 1s disclosed above

upwanoy  podal Jibajons

UONDULOJUNIBYIO)  $1USLLIDIS [D13uUBULY Aupduio) ’ SIUAWI0IS |01DuDUL ROl
|

109




110

Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

As a result of the impairment review, the group has recorded an impairment loss against the goodwill in its Water Punfication
US CGU The recoverable amount of the business has been determined by calculating the value m use of the CGU using the
assumptions described above

16 Goodwili (continued)
Goodwill impairment tests (continued)

Changes i the growth rate outside the five year penod or i the discount rate applied to the cash flows may cause a CGU's carrying
value to exceed its recoverable amount However, In the opinion of the directors, the changes in growth rate or discount rate that
would be required to reduce the recoverable amount of Operating Services US or Services Italy below their carying value ore not
reasonably possible and animpairment has been recorded i relation to Water Punfication US Therefore no sensitwvity analysis has
been presented

17 Other intangible assets

Computer software Other
Internally Internally
generated  Purchased generated Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
At1 April 2012 1218 1796 266 3280
Addtions i 60 85 15 160
Acquisition of businesses - - 13 13
Disposat of businesses - - (17) {17
Exchange adjustments - 06 05 11
At 1 Apnl 2013 ) 1278 1887 282 3447
Addibions 46 84 08 138
Disposals - (74 7) (50} (797)
Reclassifications 439 {439) - -
Exchange adjustments 02 (05) (14) 1)
At 31 March 2014 1761 780 226 2767
Amortisation i
At1 Aprl 2012 {102 2) (957) (141) (2120)
Amortisation for the year (167) (12 4) (14) (305)
Exceptional impairment - - {36} (36)
Disposal of businesses ] - - i2 12
Exchange adjustments - 02) (03) (0 5)
At 1 Apnl 2013 ) (1189) (108 3) {182) (245 4)
Amortisation for the year (139) {14 5) 09 (29 3)
Exceptional impairment (2 4) - - (24)
Disposals - 747 51 798
Reclassifications ) (51) 51 - -
Exchange adjustrents 01 03 04 08
At 31 March 2014 (1402) (42 7) {13.6) (196.5)
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 359 353 9.0 80.2
At 31 March 2013 89 804 100 993

Other assets pnmanly compnse capitalised development costs and patents
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18 Property, plant and equipment

Fixed plant
Lond and Infrastructure and Movable
buildings assets  equipment plont Total
£m £m £m fm fm
Cost
At1 Apnl 2012 2,6732 43104 3,4205 570 104611
Additions 1272 1033 2207 87 4599
Disposals 28 01D {24 5) (4 4) (318)
Disposal of businesses (113) - (17 5) - (28 8)
Reclossificotions 04 - 07 - 03
Exchange adjustments 03 - 14 07 24
AL 1 Apnl 2013 27862 44136 36013 620 10,8631
Additions 1365 1270 2664 67 5366
Disposals (49 {03) (129) (&2 (223)
Exchange adjustrments {07) - {2 8) (14) {49)
At 31 March 2014 29171 45403  3,8520 631 113725
Depreciation
At Aprl 2012 (8688) (1,1217) (1,857 4) (354) (3,8833)
Charge for the year (609) {296) {167 5) 66) (264 6}
Disposals 30 - 191 41 262
Disposal of businesses 75 - 118 - 193
Reclassifications 07 01 02 04 10
Exchange adjustments (02) - 10 {05) {17)
At 1Apnl 2013 (9187 (1,1512) (1,9952) (380) (4,1031)
Charge for the year (641) {309) (168 4} (66) (2700)
Disposats 37 - 128 38 203
Exchange adjustments 02 - 25 11 8
At 31 March 2014 {978.9) (1,182.1) (2,148.3) {(397) (4,349.0)
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 19382 33582 1,7037 234  7,0235
At 31 March 2013 1,8675 3,262 4 1,606 1 240  6,7600
The carrying amount of property, plont and equipment includes the following amounts in respect of assets held under
finance legses
Fixed plant
Land and Infrastructure and
buldings assets  equipment Total
f£m fm £m fm
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 - 119.6 38.5 1581
At 31 March 2013 - 1185 548 1733

Property, plant and equipment includes £604 1 million (2013 £509 2 rmillion) in respect of assets in the course of construction for

which no depreciation 1s charged
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19 Interests in joint ventures

2014 2013
£m £m
Group's share of
Non-current assets ) 01 01
Current assets 0.6 07
Current liabiliies {04) (05)
03 03
Group’s share of
Turmover ) 04 04
Operating costs (0.4) ©4
Profit before tax - -
Tax - -
Profit after tax - -

As at 31 March 2014 and 2013 the jont ventures had no significant contingent. liabilities to which the group was exposed and the
group did not have any significant contingent Liabilities i relation to ts interests i the jont ventures The group had no capital
commitments in relation to its nterests in the joint ventures ot 31 March 2014 or 2013

Particulars of the group’s principal jont venture undertakings at 31 March 2014 were

Proportion of

Countryof  ownership

Name Incorporation nterest
Cognica Limited Great Britain 50%
Jackson Water Partnership USA 70%

The partnership agreement for the Jackson Water Partnership requires that certain key decisions require the unarumous consent of
the partners and consequently the partnership has been accounted for as a joint venture

20 Interests in associates

2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 Apri 4.7 L6
Share of profits 03 02
Exchange adjustments {01) o1
At 31 March 49 47
Group's share of )
Total assets 236 248
Total liabiliies (18.7) (201}
4.9 47
Turnover 47 47
Profit after tax 02 02

AL 31 March 2014 and 2013 the assoctate comparty had na significant contingent tiabilities to which the group was exposed
The group had no capital commitrents in relation to its interests in the associate at 31 March 2014 or 2013

The principal associate at 31 March 2014 was Servizio Idnco Integrato S ¢ pa {'SIT), a company incorporated in Italy The proportion
of ownership interest hetd by the group was 25%

The group has given certain guarantees in respect of the associate’s borrowings The guarantees are limited to €5 1 million
(2013 €11 2 milion) The group does not expect any liobiities that are not provided for I these financial statements to anse from
these arrangements

During the year the group has entered into agreements with the other investars in SII to re-finance that comparty As part of these
agreements the quarantees referred to above were reduced from €11 2 million to €5 1 million and trade receivable balances
amounting to €21 rmullion were converted to a shareholder's loan repayable over 15 years The group’s equity and loan investments
in SII are fully provided against
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21 Categones of financial assets

2014 2013
£m £m
Fair value through profit and loss
Cross currency swaps ~ not hedge accounted 395 488
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 121 210
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted 01 01
517 699
Dervatives designated as hedging nstruments
Cross currency swaps - far value hedges 336 603
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges - 09
336 612
Total dervative finoncial ossets 853 1311
Available for sate investments carned at fair value
Unguoted shares 01 01
Loans and recevables (including cash and cash equivalents}
Trade recevables 195.6 1967
Short term deposits 768 3557
Cash at bank in hand 464 479
Total loans and recewvables 3188 6003
Total finoncial assets 45042 7315
Disclosed in the balance sheet as
Non-current assets
Denvative finanaial assets 724 1301
Avallable for sale financial assets 01 01
72.5 1302
Current assets
Dervative financiol assets 12.9 10
Cash and cash equnalents 1232 4036
Trade recevables (note 23) 195.6 1967
3317 6013
404.2 7315
22 Inventory
2014 2013
£m Em
Inventory and work in progress 27.2 321
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23 Trade and other receivables

2014 2013

£m fm

Trade recenvables 3164 3347
Less provisions for imparrment of recevables (1208) {1380)
Net trade recevables 1956 1967
QOther amounts receivable 279 325
Prepayments and accrued Income 289.7 2768
5132 5060

The carrying values of trade and other recevables are reasonable approximations of therr far values

Prepayments and accrued income includes £24 8 milion (2013 £26 8 million) in respect of amounts due fram custormers for
contract work and £34 4 million (2013 £39 4 milbion) which 1s recoverable after more than one year

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individual business unit level By far the most significant business unit
of the group 1s Severn Trent Water Limited, which represents 83% of group turnover and 76% of net trade recewvables Severn Trent
Water has a statutory cbligation to provide water and sewerage services to customers within its region Therefore there 15 no
concentration of credit sk with respect to its trade recevables and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the wealth and
prosperity of all of the commercial businesses and domestic households within #s region None of the other business units are
indwvidually significant to the group

Moverments on the doubtful debts provision were as follows

2014 2013

fm £m

At 1 Apnl 1380 1252
Charge for bad and doubiful debts ) 321 331
Amounts written off during the year (25.7) (221)
Armounts recovered during the year 0.2 -
Reclassification (231) -
Exchange adjustments {0.7) 18
At 31 March 1208 1380

The reclassification arose on the refinancing of the armounts recenvable from the group’s associate company, SH, which have now
been classified as other debtors but remain fully provided

Included in trade receivables are balances with a carrying amount of £168 3 million (2013 £176 4 million) which were past due at
the reporting date but for which no specific provision has been mode as the collective impairment recorded against such assets s
considered to be sufficient allowance for the nsk of non-collection of such balances

The aged analysis of recevables that were post due at the reporting date but not indwidualty impaired 15 as follows

2014 2013

fm £m

Up to 90 days 49.7 494
91-365 days 691 778
1-2 years 29.7 309
2-3 years 120 113
More than 3 years 7.8 70
1683 1764
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23 Trade and other receivables {continued)

included i the allowance for doubtful debts are provisions amounting to £22 9 rmillion (2013 £22 4 millon} against specific trade

recevables The age of the mpaired recevables was as follows

2014 2013
£m fm
Up to 90 days 0.6 37
91-365 days 33 39
1-2 years 7.6 39
2-3 years 5.3 122
More than 3 years 73 34
24.1 271

24 Cash and cash equvalents
2014 2013
£m fm
Cash at bank and i hand 46.4 479
Short term deposits 76.8 3557
123.2 4036

Of the £76 8 millon (2013 £355 7 million) of short term bank deposits, £43 8 million (2013 £26 1 million) 1s held as securrty

deposits for insurance obligations and 1s not avallable for use by the group In addition, £7 4 milllon (2013 £6 1 million} 1s held for

use by the Ministry of Defence and 1s not available for use by the group

25 Borrowings

2014 2013
£m fm
Bank overdrafts - 04
Bank loans 5949 7587
Other loans 3826.0 3,8409
Finance legses 201.2 2016
46221 48016

Presented In the balance sheet as
Current lioblities 2061 1703
Non-current habilities 4,416.0 46313
46221 48016
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26 Finance leases
Obligations under finance leases are as follows

2014 2013

Em fm

Gross obligations under finance leases 2605 2651
Less future finance charges {59.3) (635)
Present value of lease obligations 2012 2016

A matunty analysis of gross obligations under finance leases is Included in the undiscounted amounts poyable analysis presented in
note 37 Net obligations under finance leases fali due as follows

2014 2013

fm £m

Within 1 year 213 05
1-2 years 386 212
2-5years 305 665
After more than 5 years 110.8 1134
Included in non-current labiliies 1799 2011
2012 2016

The remnaining terms of finance leases ranged from 3 to 1 years at 31 March 2014 Interest terms are set ot the inception of the
leases Leases with capital outstanding of £201 2 rmillion (2013 £201 6 million) bear fixed interest at ¢ weighted average rate of
536% (2013 5 36%) The lease obligutions are secured against the refated assets

There were no contingent rents, escalation clauses or material renewal or purchase options The terms of the finance leases do not
Impose restriction on dmdend payments, additional debt or further leasing
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27 Categones of financial hablities

ajuowsnon  Jodad 2baong

2014 2013 é’
£m fm =
Fair value through profit and loss g
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 21.7 84 2
Interest rate swaps - not hedge accounted 1589 1718 g—,
Foreign exchange forward contracts - not hedge accounted 03 02 '-,3.:
180.9 180 4 g
Denvatives designated as hedging instruments 2
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges 472 1280 g
Energy swaps - cash flow hedges 29 18 12
501 1298 2
Total dervative financal iobiliies 2310 3102 §1
Other finanaal habilities §
Borrowings (note 25) 4,622.1 48016 &
Trade payables (note 28) 318 307 g
Total other financial liabilities 4,653.9 48323 ]
Total finoncial labilities 48849 51425 i
o
Disclosed in the balance sheet as g
Non-current liabilities g.,
Dervative financial liebilities 206.2 3096 3
Borrowings 4,416,0 4,6313 %
Trade payables - 20 >
4,622 2 49429
Current Labilizes
Denvatrve financial labilities 248 06
Borrowings 2061 1703
Trade payables 318 287
2627 1996
48849 51425
28 Trade and other payables
2014 2013
fm fm
Current liabilities
Trade payables 318 287
Socal secunty and other taxes 6.3 70
Other payables 229 257
Deferred income 9.2 92
Accruals 3425 3284
4127 3990
Non-current labilities
Trade payables - 20
Other payables - 04
Deferred Income 4827 4372
Accrugls 9.7 138
4924 453 4

The drrectors consider that the camying values of trade payables is not matenally different from therr far values
Accruals includes nil (2013 nil) in respect of amounts due to customers for contract work
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29 Deferred tax
An analysis of the movements in the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group 15 set out below

Accelerated Retirement Fair volue of
tax benefit finanaiat
depreaation  obligaton  Taxlosses instruments Other Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2012 9309 {74 2) 64) (596) 108 8015
Charge to income (restated) (04) (100) 64 01 346 307
Credit to income ansing frorm rate change (390) 14 - 12 (03) (367)
Credit to equity (restated) - (7 5) - (5 6) - (12 1)
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 21 - 12 01 34
At 1 Apnl 2013 8915 (88 2) - 627 452 7858
Reclassification 526 - - - (526) -
Charge to income (607) 63 - 122 75 (347)
Credit to ncome ansing from rate change {1231) 38 - 38 07 {114 8)
Credit to equity - 08 - 46 - 54
Charge to equity ansing from rate change - 77 - 43 03 123
At 31 March 2014 7603 {69.6) - (37 8) 11 6540

Deferred tax assets and liabiities have been offset The offset amounts, which are to be recovered/settled after more than
12 months, are os follows

2014 2013

£m £m

Deferred tax asset _ (121.7) (169 1)
Deferred tax liability 775.7 954 9
654.0 7858

30 Retirement benefit schemes
a)} Defined benefit pension schemes

() Background

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes In the UK, covering the majority of UK employees The defined
benefit pension schermes are funded to cover future salary and pension increases and therr assets are held in separate funds
administered by trustees The trustees are required to act In the best interests of the schemes’ beneficiaries A formal octuarniat
valuation of each scheme 1s carried out on behalf of the trustees at tnennial intervals by an independent, professionally qualified
actuary Under the defined benefit pension schemes, mermbers are entitled to retirement benefits calculated as a proportion
(varying between 1/30 and 1/80 for each year of service) of therr salary for the final year of employment with the group or, if higher,
the average of the highest three consecutive years’ salary in the last 10 years of employment

The UK defined benefit pension schemes and the date of therr last formal actuanal valuation are as follows

Date of last format actuanal veluation
Severn Trent Pension scherne (STPSY* 31 March 2013
Severn Trent Mirror Image Pension Scheme 31 March 2013

* The STPS 1s by far the largest of the group s UK defined benefit schernes

The defined benefit pension schemes will close to future accrual on 31 March 2015 A new defined contribution pension scheme
has been established and members of the defined benefit pension schemes will then become members of the new defined
contnbution penston scheme
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30 Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

{1} Amount ncluded in the balance sheet ansing from the group’s obligations under defined benefit pension schemes

2014 2013
fm f£m
Fair value of scheme assets
Equities 8706 8772
Gilts 270.5 2746
Corporate bonds 388.8 3609
Property 1484 147 8
Hedge funds 56.9 558
Cash 88.4 80
Total far value of assets 18236 1,7243
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - funded schemes (2,162.5) {(2,0987)
(3389) (374 4)
Present value of the defined benefit obligations - unfunded schemes (9.4) {93)
Liability recogrised in the balance sheet {348.3) (383 7)
The equities, gilts, corporate bonds and hedge funds have quoted prices in active markets
Movernents in the fair value of the scherne assets were os follows
2013
2014 Restated
fm fm
Far value at 1 Apnd 1,7243 1,5572
Interest incorne on scheme assets 760 758
Contributions from the sponsonng comparnies 73.0 435
Contributions from scheme members 51 51
Return on plan assets (excluding armounts included in finance income) 249 1163
Scheme adrrinistration costs (3.0) (26)
Benefits paid {76.7) {71 0)
Fair value at 31 March 18236 1,724 3
Movements in the present votue of the defined benefit obligations were os follows
2014 2013
£fm fm
Present value at 1 Apnl 2,1080 19030
Service cost 22.4 228
Past service cost 01 04
Interest cost 91.7 922
Conirbutions from scherme members 51 51
Actuanal (gains)Acsses ansing from changes in demographic assumptions {157) 1555
Actuandl losses ansing from changes infinancial assumptions 370 10
Actuanal gains ansing from expenence adjustments - {10)
Benefits pad (76.7) (7100
Present value at 31 March 21719 21080
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30 Retirement benefit schemes (contmued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

Of which
2014 2013
£m Em
Amounts relating to funded schemes ~ 2,1625 2,0987
Amounts relating to unfunded schemes 94 93
Present value at 31 March 21719 21080

The group has an obligation to pay pensions to a number of former employees whose benefits would otherwise have been
restricted by the Finance Act 1989 earnings cap Provision for such benefits amounting to £9 4 rrillion {2013 £9 3 rmilhon) 15 ncluded
as an unfunded schermne within the retirement benefit abligation

(i) Amounts recognised in the income statement in respect of these defined benefit pension schemes

2013
2014 Restated
£fm fm
Amounts charged to operating costs
Current service cost (22.4) {228)
Scheme adrrinistration costs ) (3.0) (2 6}
Past service cost (0.1) 04)

{25.5) (258)
Amounts charged to finance costs

Interest cost (917) (922)
Amounts credited to finance income

Interest incorne on scheme assets 76.0 758

Total armount charged to the income statement (61.2) (42 2}

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £97 2 million (2013 gain of £189 5 million)

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the statement of comprehensive income The cunmulative amount of actuanal
gans and losses recognised in the staterment of comprehensive Income since the adoption of IFRS 1s a net loss of £315 7 mullion
{2013 (restated) net loss of £319 3 milliony)

(v) Actuarial nisk factors
The schemes typically expose the compary to actuariol nsks such os iInvestrnent risk, inflation risk and longewity nsk

Investment nisk

The group’s contnbutions to the schemes are based on actuanal calculations which make assumptions about the retums expected
from the schemes' nvestments If the investrments underperform these assumptions in the long term then the group will need to
make additional contrbutions to the schermes in order te fund the payment of accrued benefits

Inflation nsk

The benefits payable to members of the schemes are linked to inflation measured by the RPI The group's contributions to

the schemes are based on assumptions about the future level of nflation I inflation is igher than the levels assumed in the
actuanal caleulations then the group will need to make additional contnbutions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of
accrued benefits

Lorgevity nsk

The group’s contributions to the schermes are based on assumptions about the fe expectancy of scheme members after
retirement If scheme members live longer than assumed in the actuanal calculations then the group will need to make additionat
contributions to the schemes in order to fund the payment of accrued benefits
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)

a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(v} Actuanal gssumptions

The major assumptions used in the vcluation of the STPS (olso the approximate weighted average of assurnptions used for the
valuations of all group schemes) were as follows

2014 2013

% %

Price nflation 33 32
Salary increases 3.0 30
Pension increases In payment 33 32
Pension increases in deferment 33 32
Discount rate &b 44

The assumption for price Inflation 1s derved from the difference between the yields on longer term fixed rate gilts and on index-
inked gilts The discount rate s set by reference to AA rated sterling 18 year corporate bonds

The company has adopted 1AS 19 Employee Benefits Revised and therefore expected return on assets assumptions are no longer
needed The discount rate s applied to the net defict to determine the net finance cost

The mortality assurmptions are based on those used in the tnenmial valuation of the STPS as at 31 March 2013
The mortality assumptions adopted at the year end and the life expectancies at age 65 implied by the assumptions are os follows

2014 2013
Mortclity table used
-men ‘SAPS’ SINMA L ‘SAPS’ STNMA_L
- women SINFA_L SINFA_L
Mortality table compared with standard table
-rmen 116% 116%
- women 92% 92%
Future mprovement per annum 1.0% 10%
Rernaining life expectancy for members currently aged 65 (years)
- men 213 215
- women 244 246
Remaining life expectancy at age 65 for members currently aged 45 (years)
- men 226 227
- women 26.0 262

The calculation of the scherne liabilities Is sensitive to the actuarial assurnptions and in particular to the assumptions relating to
discount rate, price nflation and mortality The following table summanses the estimated impact on scherne liabilities from changes
to key actuanal assumptions whlst holding all other assurmptions constant

Assumption Change i assumption Impact on scheme Liabilibes
Discount rate Increcsefdecrease by 01%  Decrease/increase by £38 million
Pnice inflation Increase/decrease by01%  Decrease/incregse by £35 million
Mortality Increase in life expectancy by 1 year Increase by £55 million

Inreality, interrelationships exist between the assumptions, particularly between the discount rate and price inflaton The above
analysis does not take into account the effect of these interrelationships

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calcutated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting penod, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit
obligation kability recogrused in the balance sheet
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30 Retirement benefit schemes {continued)
a) Defined benefit pension schemes (continued)

(vi) Effect on future cash flows
Contribution rates are set n consultation with the trustees for each scheme and each participating employer

The average duration of the benefit obligation at the end of the year 1s 18 years (2013 18 years) The expected cash flows payable
from the scheme are presented in the graph below

Graph removed

Following the completion of the triennial valuation of both schemes, future lump sum deficit contributions have been agreed

with the trustees In respect of the shortfall, a cash contribution of £40 million was made in the current year, a further £35 rnillion
contribution will be made in the year to 31 March 2015, £15 milton will be paid in the year to 31 March 2016 followed by £12 milkion
per annum to 31 March 2025 An annual contnbution of £8 2 million will also be made through on asset backing funding
arrangement for at least 13 years from 31 March 2014

b) Defined contribution pension schernes

The group also operates defined contribution arrangements for certain of its UK and overseas employees

The Severn Trent Personal Pension scheme was opened in Apnl 2012 This will be replaced by the ST Group Personal Pension scheme
from 1 Apnl 2015 and all members of other pension schemes will be transferred The scheme has been open since 1 Apnl 2012

and new employees were automatically enrolled fromthis date All employees who were not previously In a Sevem Trent pension
scheme were automatically enrolled into the ST Group Personal Pension scherne from 1 April 2013

The total cost charged to operating costs of £9 8 million (2013 £6 6 million) represents contributions payable to these schemes

by the group at rates specified n the rules of the schemes As at 31 Morch 2014 and 2013, dll contnbutions all due in respect of

the current reporting period had been paid over to the schemes
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31 Provisions
Terminated
Onerous  operabions
Restructunng  Insurance contracts and disposals Other Total
Em £m fm £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2013 22 251 24 46 74 417
Charged/(released) to ncome statement 39 48 04 24 {05) 110
Utilisation of provision (23) (68) {0 8} (19) (20) (138)
Unwainding of discount - - 01 - 01 02
Reclossifications - - - 13 (13) -
Exchange differences {01) - - - (04) {05)
At 31 March 2014 37 231 2.1 64 33 386
2014 2013
£m fm
Included n
Current liabilities 121 111
Non-current iabilities 26.5 306
38.6 417

The restructuring provision reflects costs to be incurred in respect of committed restructuning programmes The associated outflows
are estmated to anse over the next 12 months from the balance sheet date

Derwent Insurance Lirited, a captive insurance company, 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the group Prowisions for daims are made
as set out In note 2 The associated outflows cre estimated to arise over a peniod of up to five years from the balance sheet date

The onerous cantract provision relates to specific contractual labiliies either assurmed with businesses acquired or ansing I
existing group bustnesses, where estimated future costs are not expected to be recovered in revenues The assocwted outflows are
estimated to occur over a penod of 10 years from the balance sheet date

Provisions relating to terminated operations and disposals include amounts that it 1s probable will be paid In respect of claims ansing
from services performed by these businesses and the indemnrties described in note 41 b}

Other provisions include provisions for dilapidations and commercial disputes The associated outflows are estimated to anse over a
penod of up to six years from the balance sheet date

32 Share caprtal
2014 2013
£m fm
Totalissued and fully paid share capital )
238,942,647 ordinary shares of 971%sp {2013 238,365,734} 2339 2333
Changes In share capital were as follows
Number fm
Ordmary shares of 9%ap
At1 Aprl 2012 237,608,111 2326
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 757,623 07
At 1 Apnl 2013 238,365,734 2333
Shares issued under the Employee Sharesave Scheme 576,913 06
At 31 Morch 2014 238,942,647 2339
33 Share premium
2014 2013
£m Em
At 1 April 89.7 838
Share premiur ariing on issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 4.5 59
At 31 March 94.2 897
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34 Other reserves

Capital

redemption Infrastructure  Translation Hedging
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 1561 3142 240 (94 1) 4002
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 49 (186) {13 7)
Transfer to retained earmings - (314 2) - - (314 2)
At 1 Apnl 2013 1561 - 289 {112 7) 723
Total comprehenswe income for the year - - 87) 186 99
At 31 March 2014 156.1 - 202 {941) 82.2

The capttal redemption reserve arose on the redemption of 8 shares

The infrastructure reserve arose In the prior year on the group’s transition to IFRS from restating Severn Trent Water bimited’s
infrastructure assets to far value as deemed cost In the pnor year Severn Trent Water Limited adopted the new accounting
standard FRS 101, which uses the recognition and measurement criteria of IFRS The infrostructure reserve was therefore recognised
In Severn Trent Water Limited Dunng the prior year Severn Trent Water Limited used its infrastructure reserve to 1ssue bonus shares,
which were subsequently cancelled These transactions resulted in a transfer from the infrastructure reserve to retained earmings In
the financial staternents

The translation reserve anses from exchange differences on translation of the results and financial position of foreign subsidiories

The hedging reserve anses from gains or losses on interest rate swaps and energy swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge
accounting prowisions of IAS 39 and the transition rules of IFRS 1

35 Capital management

The group’s prinaipal objectives in managing capital are

- to access a broad range of sources of finance to obtain both the quantum required and lowest cost compatible with the need for
continued avallability;

» te mantan an investment grade credit rating, and

+ to montan a flexible and sustanable bolance sheet structure

The group seeks to achieve a balance of long term funding or commitment of funds aeross a range of funding sources at the
best possible economic cost The group monitors future funding requirements and credit market conditions to ensure continued
avallability of funds

The group does not have a specific gearing target but seeks to mantain gearing at a levet consistent wath its capital management
objectives described above

The group’s dvidend policy 1s a key tool in achieving its capital management objectives This policy 1s reviewed and updated inline
with Severn Trent Water's five year price control cycle and takes into account, inter alig, the planned investrment programime, the
appropriate gearing level, achieving a balance between an efficient cost of copital and retaiming an investrment grade credit rating,
and delvennyg an attractve and sustainable retum to shareholders

Duning the year the group repard an ndex-linked £169 million bank loan No significant new debt was raised in the year

At 31 March the group’s equity and debt capital compnised the following

2014 2013

fm fm

Cash and short term deposits ] 1232 4036
Bank overdrafts - 04
Bank loans {594.9) (758 7)
Other loans - 3826 0) {3,8409)
Obligations under finance leases (201.2) (201 6)
Cross currency swaps 51.4 1007
Net debt (44475) (4,297 3)
Equity attnbutable to the owners of the company (1,077 6) {833 2)
Total capital (5525.1}) (51305)
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36 Farr values of financial instruments
a) Fair vatue measurements

The valuation techniques that the group applies in determining the farr values of its financial nstruments are described below
The techniques are classified under the hierarchy defined in [FRS 13 which categonses valuation techiniques into Levels 1 - 3 based

on the degree to which the fair value is observable

Level 1 far value measurements are those denved fram unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or labilities,

Level 2 farr value measurements are those derved from inputs, other than quoted pnces included within Levet 1, that are cbservabte
for the asset orhability, erther directly (1@ as prices) or Indirectly (1 e derived from prices}, and

Level 3 fair value measurernents are those derved from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The following table describes the valuation techrique that the group applies for each class of financial instrument which s

measured at fair value on a recurnng basis

Fair volue as at 31 March

Fair value 2014 2013
hierarchy £m £m Valugtion techmques and key inputs
Cross currency swaps ~ Level2 Discounted cash flow
Assets 731 1091  Future cash flows are estimated based on forward interest
Liabilities ’ 21.7 84  rates from observable yield curves at the year end and
contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
credit nsk The currency cash flows are translated at the
spot rate
Interest rate swaps Level 2 Drscounted cash flow
Assets 121 210  Future cosh flows are estirmated bosed on forward interest
Ligbiiities 206.1 2998  rates frorn observable yield curves at the year end and
contract nterest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects
credit nsk
Energy swaps Level 2 Discounted cash flow
Assets - 09  Future cash flows are estirnated based on forward
Liabilities 29 18  electricity pnces from observable ndices at the year end

Foresgn currency forward contracts  Level 2
Assets 0.1 01
Liabilities 03 02

and contract prices discounted at a rate thot reflects
credit nsk

Discounted cash flow

Future cash flows are estimated based on observable
forward exchange rates at the year end and contract
forward rates discounted at a rate that reflects credit risk

SJUILIIIDIS |DIDUDUL dNOJS ¢ 3IUDWIBA0D  Modal J163101s

SjUBLLAILIS [DUDUY AUupdWwo)

UOIDLLLIOUI JBYI()

125




126

Severn Trent Pl Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial staterments

36 Fair values of financial instruments (continued)
b) Companson of fair value of financial instruments with therr carrying amounts

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits, bank overdrafts, trade recevables and trade
payabtes approxmate therr far values The carrying values and estimated farr values of other financiol instruments are set

out below
2014 2013
Far value
Carrying Carrying Far value As previously
value  Fair value value Restated stated
£m £m £m fm fm
Floating rote debt
Bank loans 300.0 2930 3000 2882 2882
Currency bonds 2156 217.4 2431 2578 2566
5156 5104 5431 5460 5448
Fixed rate debt
Bank loans 189.7 2011 1910 2108 2108
Sterling bonds 1,902.9 2,1081 1,9008 2,2383 2,2996
Currency bonds 5715 6273 5906 6650 649 4
Other loans 1.7 17 17 17 17
Finance legses 201.2 1977 2016 2082 2082
2,8670 3,1359 28857 33240 33697
Index-linked debt
Bank loans 105.2 1147 2677 2826 2826
Sterling bonds 1,134.3 1,2133 1,1035 1,2305 1,3767
1,2395 1,328.0 13712 15131 1,6593
Non-interest beanng
Other loans - - 12 12 12
Total 64,6221 4,974.3 48012 5,384 3 55750

Following the adoption of IFRS 13 ‘Fair Volue measurement’ the group has reviewed and omended its methodology for calcutating
the fair values of certain debt instruments The methods used and the changes from previous metheds are summansed below

The impact on the fair values disclosed in the previous year's financiol statements 1s shown in the table above

Fixed rate sterling and currency bonds are valued using market prices Previously these bonds were valued by discounted cash flow
models using discount rates derved from observations of credit spreads on a sample of the group’s histed bonds

Index-linked bonds are rarely traded and therefore quoted prices are not considered to be a reliable indicator of farr value Therefore,
these bonds are vatued using discounted cash flow models with discount rates denved from observed market prices for a sample

of bonds

Farr values of the other debt instrurments are also calculated using discounted cash flow models
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments

The group’s actities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks market nisk, (including interest rate risk, exchange rote nsk and other
price nisk), credit nsk, iguidity nsk and inflation nsk The group’s overall nsk management programme addresses the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to reduce potential adverse effects on the group’s financial performance or position

Financiat nsks are managed by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the board of directors
Group Treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial nsks in close co-operation with the group’s operating units The board
defines wntten principles for overall nsk management, as well as written policies covenng specific areas such as exchange rate risk,
interest rate nsk, credit nsk and the use of denvative and non-dervative financial instruments The group's policy 1s that dervative
financig! nstruments are not held for trading but may be used to mitigate the group’s exposure to financial nsk The types of
denvative Instrurments held and the related risks are described below

Interest rate swaps are held to mitigate the group’s expasure to changes iIn market interest rates Further detads are set out
sections o} (1) and e} (i} below

Cross currency swaps are held to mitrgate the group’s exposure to exchange rate movements on amounts borrowed in foreign
currencies Further details are set out in section a) (i) below

Energy swaps are held to mitigate the groups exposure to changes in electnerty pnces Further detalls are provided in section e} (i)
below

Severn Trent Water, the group’s most significant business unit, cperates under a regulatory erwironrment where its pnces are linked
to inflation measurad by RPI In order to mitigate the nisks to cosh flow and earnings ansing from fluctuations in RP, the group hoids
debt mstruments where the prnapal repayable and interest cost i1s binked to RPI

a) Market nisk

The group 1s exposed to fluctuations i interest rates and, to alesser extent, exchange rates The nature of these nsks and the steps
that the group has taken to manage them are descaribed below

() Interest rate nsk
The group's Income and 1ts operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market mterest rates The group’s
interest rate nsk anses from long term borrowings

Borrowings 1ssued at variable rates expose the group to the nsk of adverse cash flow impacts from increases in interest rates
Borrowings 1ssued at fixed rates expose the group to the nsk of Interest costs above the market rate when interest rates decrease

The group's policy ts to mamtain 45% to 90% of its interest beanng babilities i fixed rate instruments In measuring this metric,
management makes adjustments to the carrying value of debt to better reflect the amount that interest s calculated on Details of
the adjustments made are set out below in the reconciliation of interest beaning Liabilities to net debt At 31 March 2014 75% of the
group’s interest bearing labilites was at fixed rates (2013 68%)

The group manages its cash flow nterest rate nsk by borrowing at fixed or index-linked rates and by using interest rate swaps

Under these swaps the group receives vanable rate interest and pays fixed rate interest calculated by reference to the agreed
notienal prncipal amounts In practice the swaps are settled by transfernng the net amount These swaps have the economic effect
of corwerting borrowings frorm vanable rates to fixed rates The group has entered into a senes of these interest rate swaps to hedge
future interest payments to beyond 2030

The cost of some of the group’s debt 1s inked to changes in the Retall Pnce Index (RPT) This index-linked debt provides an economic
hedge for Severn Trent Water's revenues and Regulatory Capitat Vialue that are also inked to RP under its regulatory regime

The following tables show analyses of the group's interest bearing financial labilities by type of interest Debt raised in foreign
currencies has been included at the sterling value of the payable leg of the corresponding cross currency swap since this s the
amount that 1s exposed to changes i interest rates Valuation adjustments that do not impact the omount on which interest 1s
calculated, such as far volue hedge accounting adjustments, are excluded from this analysis
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37 Risks ansing from financiol nstruments (continued}
a) Market nsk (continued)

(1 Interest rate nisk (continued)

The group uses interest rate swaps to mitigate its exposure to fluctuations in iInterest rates The net prinaipal amount of these swaps
15 shown as an adjustment to floating rate and fixed rate debt to demonstrate the impact of the group’s interest rate swaps on the

amount of labilites bearing fixed interest

Floating Fixed Index-
rate rate linked Total
2014 £m £m £m £m
Bank loans (3000) {1857) {105 2) (594 9)
Other loans (2057) (2,4406) (1,1343) (3,7806)
Finance leases - (201 2) - (201 2)
(5057) (2,8315) (1,2395) (45767
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched aganst specific debt instruments 5914 {591 4) - -
Interest beanng financial kabilities 85.7 (3,4229) (1,2395) {(45767)
Proportion of interest bearning finanaial liabilities that are fixed 75%
Weighted averoge interest rate of fixed rate debt 5.68%
Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed {years) 107
Floating Fixed index-
rate rate linked Totat
2013 fm fm fm fm
Overdrafts {04) - - 04
Bank loans {(3000) (191 0) (267 7) {(7587)
Other loans (2064) (2,4382) (1,1035) (3,7481)
Finonce legses - (201 6) {201 6)
{5068) (2,8308) (1,3712) (4,7088)
Impact of interest rate swaps not matched aganst specific debt instruments 3649 (364 9) - -
Interest bearing financial habilities (1419) (3,1957) (13712} (4,7088)
Proportion of mnterest bearing financial iabibbies that are fixed 68%
Weighted average interest rate of fixed rate debt 5 55%
Weighted average penod for which interest is fixed (years) 113
Areconcilation of net debt to amounts iIncluded n interest beanng finanaial labilities 1s set out below
2014 2013
fm fm
Interest bearing financial liabitities 4,576.7 4,708 8
Interest free debt - 12
Exchange on currency debt 186 428
Fair value hedge accounting adjustments 268 488
Cross currency swaps included in net debt at far value (51.4) (100 7)
Cash and cash equivalents (123.2) (403 6)
Net debt {note 40) 44475 42973
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments {continued)
a) Market nisk (continued)

(i} Interest rate nsk (continued)

Interest rate swaps not hedge accounted

The group has a number of interest rate swaps which are not accounted for as cash flow hedges Economically these swaps act to
fix the Interest cost of debt within the group which is denorminated os floating rate, but they do not achieve hedge accounting under
the critena of TAS 39 This has led to a credit of £66 7 milien charge (2013 charge of £30 8 million) in the iIncome staternent

Contracts where the group pays fixed rate interest are summansed below

Average contract fixed

interest rate  Notional pnnapal amount Fair value

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Penod to matunty % % £m £m fm £m
1-2 years 6.32 - 2250 - (182) -
2-5 years - 6,32 - 2250 - (317)
5-10 years 498 - 2250 - (42.4) -
10-20 years 5.37 537 216.4 2148 (63.0) (906)
20-30 years 510 5.10 1250 1250 (35.3) (49 5)
5.44 559 7914 5649 (1589) (1718)

Contracts where the group recerves fixed interest are summansed below

Averoge contract fixed
interest rate  Notronal pnnapal amount Fair value
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Penod to matunty % % £m fm £m fm
1-2 years 5.18 - 2000 - 121 -
2-5 years - 518 - 2000 - 210
5.18 518 200.0 2000 121 210

Interest rate sensitvity analysis
The sensitvty ofter tax of the group’s profits, cash flow and equity, Including the impact on dervatve finoncial instruments, to
changes in interest rates at 31 March s as follows

2014 2013

+1.0% -1.0% +10% -10%

£m £m fm £fm

Profit or loss 733 (83.7) 627 {743)
Cash flow . (1.6) 16 Q0 20
Equity 97.8 {111.0) 1127 (1305)
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments (continued)
a) Market nsk {continued)

(i) Exchange rate nsk

Except for debt raised in foreign currency, which is hedged, the group’s business does not involve significant exposure te foreign
exchonge transactions Although the group operates internationally and 1ts net investments in foreign operations are subject to
exchange nsk, substantially all of the group’s prafits and net assets anse from Severn Trent Water, which has very imited and
mdirect exposure to changes in exchange rates, and therefore the sensitivity of the group’s results to changes n exchange rates s
not matenal

Certan of the group's subsidiaries enter into transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the operation
Exchange nsks relating to such operations are not matenal but are managed centrally by Group Treasury through forward exchonge
contracts to buy or sell currency

In order to meet its objective of accessing @ broad range of sources of finance, the group has raised debt denominated in currencies
other than sterling - pnincipally yen and euro In order to mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, cross currency
swaps were entered into at the time that the debt was drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt beanng nterest based
on LIBOR The terms of the recewvable leg of the swap closely match the terms of the underlying debt hence the swaps are expected
to be effectve hedges

The group’s gross and net currency exposures ansing from currency borrowings are summoansed in the tables below These show,

In the relevant currency, the amount borrowed and the notional principal of the related swap or forward contract The net position
shows the group’s exposure to exchange rate nsk in relation to its currency borrowings

Japanese
Euro Us Dollar Yen CzechKrona
2014 £m $m ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency {722 9) (527) {245) (6200}
Cross currency swaps - hedge accounted 199 500 145 6200
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
Net currency exposure (3.0) (2.7) - -
Jopanese
Euro US Dollar Yen CzechKrona
2013 €m Sm ¥Bn CZKm
Borrowings by currency {7216) {500} (245) {6200)
Cross currency swaps — hedge accounted 199 500 145 6200
Cross currency swaps - not hedge accounted 7000 - 100 -
Net currency exposure {17) - - -
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments {continued)
b) Credit nsk

Operationalty the group has no sigrificant concentrations of credit nsk It has policies in ptace to ensure that sales of products

are made to customers with an appropriate credrt history, other than in Severn Trent Water Limited, whose operating licence
obiiges It to supply dormestic customers even in cases where bills are not paid Amounts provided against accounts recevable and
movements on the provision dunng the year are disclosed in note 23

Cash deposits ond denvative contracts are enly placed with high credit qualtty financial institutions, which have been approved
by the board Group Treasury monitors the credit qualty of the approved financial institutions and the list of finanaial institutions
that may be used 1s approved annually by the board The group has policies that lmit the amount of credit exposure to any one
financial institution

Credit nsk analysis
At 31 March the aggregate credit imits of cuthonised counterparties and the amounts held on short term deposits were as follows

Credit imit Amount deposited
2014 2013 2014 2013
£m fm £fm fm
AAA 200 200 1.2 13
Double Arange 100.0 1500 24.2 820
Single A range 6000 6250 51.4 2724
720.0 7950 76.8 3557

The far values of denvotive assets anclysed by credit rofings of counterporties were os follows
Derivative assets
2014 2013
Rating £m £fm
Double A range 167 297
Single A range 686 1014
85.3 1311

¢) Liquidity nsk

{) Commutted faciitres

Prudent iquidity management requires sufficient cash balances to be maintained, adequate committed faclities to be available,
and the ability to close out market positions Group Treasury manages iquidity and flexbibity in funding by rmonitoring forecast and
actual cash flows and the maturnty profile of financral assets and liabilittes, and by keeping committed credit lines avallable

At the balance sheet date the group hod committed undrawn borrowing faciities expinng as follows

2014 2013
£m £m
2-5years 500.0 5000
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37 Risks ansing from financial instruments {continued}

) Liquidity nsk (continued)

() Cash flows from non-derivative financial instrurments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anse from the group’s non-dervative net financial hiabilities

The information presented 1s based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay and represents the undiscounted
cash flows including principal and interest

Payments on
Trade financial

2014 Flootingrate  Fixed rate Index linked payubles liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable £m £m £m fm fm
Wwithin 1 year {142 6) (2202) {238} {318) (418 4)
1-2 years {54 8) (7213) (24 4) - {800 5)
2-5 years (316 5) (737 3) (77 4) (1,1312)
5-10 years (263) (877 1) (3733) (1,276 7)
10-15 years {(435) (7880} {424 6) {1,256 2)
15-20 years (16 8) {5583) {124 0) (699 0)
20-25 years - {(609) (1512) (212 1)
25-30 years - (286 6) (183 6) (4701)
30-35 years - - (222 4) (222 &)
35-40 years - - (7640 6) (740 6)
40-45 years - - (35735 (3,5735)
45-50 years - - (337} (337}
50-55 years - - {545 5) (545 5)
Total (600.4) (42497) (64981) (31.8) (11,3800)
Receipts

Cash and from

Trade shortterm financisl

recetvables deposits assets

Undiscounted amounts receivable fm fm fm
Within 1 year 1956 12372 3188
Payrments on

Trade financwal

2013 Floating rate Fixed rate  Index linked payables liabilities
Undiscounted amounts payable £m £m fm Em Em
Within 1 year (105) (144 3) (194 5) (307) (3800}
1-2 years (167 9) (217 3} (233) - (408 5}
2-5 years (3677} {1,4210) (728) - (1,8615)
5-10 years (209) {5811} (3623) - (964 3)
10-15 years 697y (1,1796) (186 7) - (1,4360)
15-20 years - (539 1) (346 9) - (886 0)
20-25 years - (609) (1397) - (2007)
25-30years - (2988} (169 8) - (468 6)
30-35 years - - {206 4) - (206 4)
35-40years - - (717 7) - (7177
40-45 years - - (2,597 7) - (2,5977)
45-50 years - - {9499) - {949 9)
50-55 years - - (5369) - {5369
Total (6368) {(44420) {6,5048) (307) (11,6143)
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37 Risks anising from financial instruments (continued)
c) Liquidity nsk {continued)

(1} Cash flows from non-denvative fingncial mstruments (continued)

Cashand Receipts from

Trade  shorttermn financial

recevables deposits ossets

Undiscounted amounts recevable £m £m £m
Within 1 year 1967 4036 6003

Index-inked debt includes loans with matunties of up to 53 years The poncipal is revatued at fixed intervals and 1s inked to
movements in the Retall Price Index [nterest payments are made biannually based on the revalued principat The principal
repayment equals the revalued amount at matunty The payments included in the table above are estimates based on the forward
inflabion rates published by the Bank of England at the balance sheet date

{m) Cosh flows from denvative financial instruments

The following tables show the estimated cash flows that will anise from the group’s denvative financial instruments The tables are
based an the undiscounted net cash iInflows/{outflows) on the denvative financial Instruments that settle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows/(outflows} on those dervatives that require gross settlement When the amount payable or recevable 1s
not fixed, the amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the projected mterest and foreign currency rates denved from
the forward curves existing at the balance sheet date Actual amounts may be significantly different from those indicated below

Dervatrve habilities Dervative assets
Cross currency swaps
Interest rate Energy Interestrate Energy Cash Cash
2014 swaps swaps SWaps swaps receipts  payments Total
Undiscounted amounts (payable)recevable £m £m £m £m £m fm fm
within 1 year (406} (30) 85 - 1690 (179 4) {455)
1-2 years (38 4} - 35 - 664 2 {613 4) 159
2-5 years (670) - - - 31 17 (656)
5-10 years (633} - - - 55 (40) {618)
10-15 years (28 4) - - - 215 (143) {212)
15-20 years (182} - - - 168 87 {101)
20-25 years {07} - - - - - {07)
(256 6) (3 0) 120 - 8801 {821.5) (189.0)
Denvative labilities Dervoive assets
Cross currency swaps
Interest rote Energy  Interest rate Emergy Cash Cash
2013 swaps swaps SWaps swaps recepts  payments Total
Undiscounted amounts (payable)recenvable £m £m Em £m fm fm fm
Within 1 year (363} (03) 86 10 373 (362) (259
1-2 years (412) {15) 86 - 1254 {98 3) (70)
2-5years {1109) - 41 - 6835 (600 2} (235)
5-10 years {97 6) - - - 56 (32) (952)
10-15 years (358) - - - 407 (237) (188)
15-20 years (201) - - - - - (201)
20-25 years (22} - - - - - (22}
(344 1) (18) 213 i0 8925 {761 6) (192 7)
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37 Risks anising from financial instruments (continued)
d} Inflation nisk

The group’s principat operating subsidiory, Severn Trent Water, operates under a regulatory environment where its prices are linked
to nflation measured by RPI Its operating profits and cash flows are therefore exposed to changes in RPI In order to mitigate and
partiaily offset this nsk, Severn Trent Water has raised debt which pays interest at a fixed coupon based on a pnncipal amount that
5 adjusted for the change in RPI duning the life of the debt nstrument (index-linked debt} The amount of index-linked debt at the
balance sheet date 1s shown in section a) (1 Interest rate nisk, and the estimated future cash flows relating to this debt are shownin
section ¢} (1} Cash flows from non-denvative financiol nstruments

Inflation rate sensitvity analysis

The finance cost of the group’s Index-linked debt instruments varies with changes n RP rather than interest rates The sensitvity
at 31 March of the group’s profit and equity to chaniges n RPI s set out in the followang table This analyss relates to financial
instrurments only and excludes any RPimpact on Severn Trent Water’s revenues and Regulated Capital Value, or accounting for
defined benefit pension schemes

2014 2013

+10% -10% +10% -10%

£m £m fm fm

Profit or loss {9.5) 95 (10 4} 104
Equity {9.5) 9.5 (104) 104

e} Hedge accounting

The group uses denvative finanaial Instruments to hedge exposures to changes in exchange rates and interest rates
Hedge accounting is adopted for such instruments where the ctena set out in IAS 39 are met

() Fair value hedges

The group raises debt denominated in currencies other than sterling - principally yen and euro Cross currency swaps are entered
into at the time that the debt 1s drawn down to swap the proceeds into sterling debt beanng interest based on LIBOR in order to
mitigate the group’s exposure to exchange rate fluctuations The terms of the recevable teg of the swap dosely match the terms
of the underlying debt, hence the swaps are expected to be effective hedges At the year end the amounts of cross currency swaps
designated as fair value hedges were as follows

Notional pnncipat amount Farr value

2014 2013 2014 2013

fm fm £m £m

US dollar i 270 270 47 87
Euro 114 114 8.4 93
Yen 14.7 714 159 353
Czech krona 714 147 456 70
1245 1245 336 603

{) Cash flow hedges

The group has entered into interest rate swaps under which it hos agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and floating
interest rate amounts calcutated on agreed notional principal amounts Such contracts enable the group to mitigate the nsk of
changing interest rates on future cosh flow exposures ansing from issued vanable rate debt The group dlso entered into a number
of interest rate contracts with future start dates dunng the AMPS regulatory penod Such contracts enable the group to mitigate
the nsk of changing interest rates on debt which is tughly probable to be 1ssued over the AMP5 peniod to fund Severn Trent Water's
capital programme and have been accounted for as cosh flow hedges The farr value of interest rate swaps at the balance sheet
date 15 deterrmined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curve prevailing at the batance sheet date and the credit nsk
inherent in the contract.

The interest rate swaps pnmanly settle net on o biannual basis The floating rate on the iInterest rate swaps 15 six months LIBOR
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37 Risks anising from financial instruments (continued)
e} Hedge accounting {continued)

(i) Cash flow hedges (continued)
Detalls of interest rate swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Average contract fixed
Interest rate  Notwonal pnncipal amount Fair value
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Period to matunty % % £m £m fm £m
10-20 years 5.14 507 (264.7) (491 0) 472 1280

The group has entered into a series of energy swaps under which it has agreed to exchange the difference between fixed and
market prices of electricity at six-monthly intervals up to March 2015

Detalls of energy swaps that have been accounted for as cash flow hedges are summansed below

Notional contracted

Average contract pnce amount Fair value

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Penod to matunty £/MWh £/MWh MWh Mwh fm £m
Less than 1 year ) 62.9 533 174,720 550368 (2.9) 06
1-2 years - 629 - 174720 - (15)
62.9 556 174,720 725088 {29} 09)

38 Share based payments
The group operates a number of share based rermuneration schernes for employees Duning the period, the group recognised total
expenses of £6 2 milion (2013 £6 8 million) reloted to equity settled share based payment transactions

The weighted average share price dunng the period was £18 12 (2013 £16 49}
At 31 March 2014, there were no options exercisable (2013 none) under any of the share based rernuneration schemes

a) Long Term Incentive Plans (LTiPs)

Under the LTIPs conditional awards of shares may be made to executive directors and serior staff Awards are subject to
performance condstions and continued employment throughout the vesting period Awards have been made on different bases to
Severn Trent Plc and Severn Trent Water employees (the LTIP) and to Severn Trent Services employees (the Services LTIP)

() Awards outstanding

Awards made under the LTIP

These awards are subject to Severn Trent Water's achievernent of Return on Reguloted Capital Vialue in excess of the level included
In the Severn Trent Water AMPS business plan over a three year vesting period It has been assumed that perforrmance aganst the
LTIP ron-market conditions will be 100% (2013 100%)

Awards made under the Services LTIP

These awards are subject to achievement of turnover and profit targets over the three year penod from the financial year that the
awards were granted It has been assumed that performance against the 2012 Services LTIP non-market condrtions will be 25%
(2013 2012 Services LTIP 75%) and the 2013 Services LTIP will be 75%

SUaWa0Is jououy dnosy  duowanog  podar 269305

SUBLLAIDYS [DiJuour Aubdwioy

UONDUWIOJUI JBYID

135




136

Severn Trent Plc  Annual Report and Accounts 2014

Group financial statements Notes to the group financial statements

38 Share based payments {continued)
a) Long Term Incentive Plans {LTIPs} (continued)

Details of changes n the number of awards outstanding during the year are set out below

Number of awards

LTIP Services LTIP

Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 383,487 94,944
Granted during the year 99,886 28,599
Vested dunng the year (46,025) -
Lapsed dunng the year {116,324}  (33,671)
Outstonding at 1 Apni 2013 321,024 89,872
Granted dunng the year 88,996 38,502
Vested during the year (67,302} -
Lapsed dunng the year (66,586) (37,512
Outstanding ot 31 March 2014 276,132 91,262

Detalls of LTIP and Services LTIP awards outstanding ot 31 March were as follows
Number of awards
Normal date

Date of grant of vesting 2014 2013
July 2008 2013 - 31,145
July 2010 2013 - 125,568
July 2011 2014 127,777 129,209
Juty 2012 2015 115809 124,574
July 2013 2016 123,808 -
367,394 410,896

Detalls of the basis of the LTIP schemes are set out iIn the remuneration repert on pages 69 and 70

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme, the board may grant the nght to purchase ordinary shares in the compary to those
employees who have entered into an HMRC approved Save As You Earn contract for a peniod of three or five years

Detalls of changes in the nurmber of options outstanding during the year are set out below

Weighted

Number of average

share oplions  exercise price

Qutstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 3,084,486 950p
Granted during the year 601,415 1,241p
Forfeited dunng the year {(41,494) 1,005p
Cancelled dunng the year (44,590) 1,094p
Exercised during the year (757,623} 883p
Lapsed dunng the year (7,708)  1,028p
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2013 2,834,486 1,027p
Granted dunng the year 660,391 1,331p
Forfeted dunng the year (32,527)  1,151p
Cancelled dunng the year (58,850) 1,184p
Exercised dunng the year (576,913) 874p
Lapsed dunng the year (25,713) 1,077p
Qutstanding at 31 March 2014 2,800,874 1,125p
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38 Share based payments {continued)

b) Employee Sharesave Scheme {continued) e
Sharesave options outstanding at 31 March were as follows é
Number of share options §

Date of grant Normal date of exercise  Option price 2014 2013 =h
January 2006 2013 823p - 20468 B
January 2007 2014 1,172p 11,273 11,392 §
January 2008 2013 1,221p - 74976 Z
January 2009 2014 862p 496233 511,960 -
January 2010 2015 808p 308,501 774028 3
January 2011 2014 0r 2016 1,137p 293,633 315,258 g
January 2012 2015 0r 2017 1,177p 481,830 525534 §
January 2013 2016 0r 2018 1,241p 551,862 600,870 3
Jonuary 2014 2017 0r 2019 1,331p 657,542 - E_
2,800,874 2,834,486 :EDZ

3

c} Share Incentwve Plan (SIP) §~

Under the SIP the board may grant share awards to employees of group companies Dunng the year the board has announced that
it will make awards under the SIP based on perfermance against Severn Trent Water's targets for its Key Performiance Indicators
Elgible emplayees will be entitled to shares to a maximum value of £750 1t is expected that these owards will be made in

August 2014 SIP shares vest with the employee on the date of grant

uQIDLLIoJU 1BYID

d) Share Matching Plan (SMP)

Under the Share Matching Plan members of STEC receive matching share awards over those shares which have been acquired
under the deferred share component of the annual bonus scherme Matching shares may be awarded at a maximum ratio of one
matching share for every one deferred share and are subject to a three year vesting penod During the year matching shares were
aowardedataratioof 051

Matching shares are subject to total shareholder return over three years measured relative to the companies ranked 51-150 by
market capitalisation in the FTSE Index (excluding investment trusts)

The number of shares subject to an award will increase to reflect dwidends paid through the performance period on the basis of
such notional dwvidends being reinvested at the then prevailing share price Awards will normally vest as soon as the Remuneration
Committee deterrmines that the performance conditions have been met provided that the participant remains in employrment at
the end of the performance penod

Detalls of changes in the number of awards dunng the year are set out below

Number of

awards

Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2012 41,450
Granted during the year 18024
Cancelled dunng the year {2,051)
Outstanding at 1 Apnl 2013 57,383
Granted dunng the year 33,803
Cancelled dunng the year {4,569)
Vested dunng the year (16179)
Qutstanding at 31 March 2014 70,438
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38 Share based payments (continued)
d) Share Matching Plan (SMP) (continued)

Details of share rmatching awards outstanding at 31 March were as follows

Number of cwards
Date of grant Normal date of vesting 2014 2013
May 2010 June 2013 - 20,748
May 2011 ) May 2014 18,611 18,611
May 2012 ) May 2015 18,024 18,024
May 2013 May 2016 33,803 -

70,438 57,383

e) Fair value calculations

The fair vatues of the share awards made and share options gronted duning the year were calculoted using the methods, principal
ossumptions and data set out below

2014 2013
LTIP SAYE SAYE SMP LTIP SAYE SAYE SMP

3 year S year 3 year 5 year

scheme scheme scherne scheme
Black Black Black Monte Black Black Black Monte
Method used Scholes  Scholes Scholes Carlo Scholes Scholes Scholes Carlo
Share price at grant date 1,696p 1,694p 1,6%p 1,785p 1,749p 1,605p 1,605p 1,701p
Option Ufe (years) 3 35 55 3 3 35 55 3
Vesting period {years) 3 3 5 3 3 3 5 3
Expected volatility 18.2% 18.2% 18.2% 182% 18 2% 182% 18 2% 18 2%
Expected dmvidend yield 47% 47% 4.7% n/a 4 3% 47% 4 7% nfa
Risk free rate n/a 0.87% 1.83% 0.60% n/a 0 46% 096% 032%
Far value per share 1,471p 280p 278p 888p 1,536p 257p 239p 1,143p

Expected volatility 1s measured over the three years prior to the date of grant of the awards or share options Volatiity has been
calculated based on historical share pnce movements

The risk free rate is derved from yields at the grant date of gilts of similar duration to the awards or share options
The dvidend yield 1s calculated using the expected dividend for the year dvided by the share price at the date of grant
The comparator group for the Share Matching Plan ts the companies ranked 51-150 in the FTSE Index

For the Share Matching Plan, dvidends paid on the shares during the vesting penod are accumulated and released subject to the
achievement of the performance condition, In the same manner as the underlying shares As a result a dividend yield assumption s
not required

39 Acquisttions and disposals
In July 2012 the group acquired the trade and assets of Chlonne Engineers’ CECHLO business {CEC) for cash consideration of
£1 3 milion This transaction was accounted far by the purchase method of accounting

On 22 June 2012 the group completed the sale of its meter installation, reparr and replacernent business to Enterprise Plc
On 4 February 2012 the group disposed of Severn Trent Analytical Services to ALS Limited
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40 Cash flow statement
a} Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flows

2014 2013

fm fm

Profit before interest and tox 472.4 48396
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2700 2646
Amortisation of intangible cssets 293 305
Exceptional mparrment 295 82
Pension service cost 225 232
Defined benefit pension scherme odministration costs 30 26
Pension contributions (73.0) {435)
Share based payments charge 6.2 68
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (8.6) {104)
Loss on disposal of businesses - 15
Deferred income movement (9.5) 93)
Provisions charged to the income statement 110 116
Utilisation of provisions for liabilies and charges (13.8) {14 3)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 7390 7611
Decrease in inventory L4 19
Increase In amounts receivable (17.2) (294)
Incregse/{decrease) In amounts payable 40 (24)
Cash generated from operations 7302 7312
Tax receved/{paid) 272 {(725)
Net cash generated from operating activities 7574 6587

b) Non-cash transactions

No additions to property, plont and equipment during the year were financed by new finance leases (2013 nil) Assets transferred

from developers were £24 7 million (2013 £23 0 million)

¢) Exceptional cash flows

The following cash flows arose from items dassified as exceptional in the incorme statement

2014 2013
£m £m
Restructuring costs {4.3) {44)
Disposal of fixed assets 9.4 151
Settlernent of custormer contractual disputes {1.9) {06)
Obligations ansing from disposal of businesses (1.6} -
Professional fees relating to LongRiver proposal (18.7) -~
(17.1) 101
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40 Cash flow statement {continued)

d) Reconciliation of movement in cash and cash equivalents to movement in net debt

Asat RPI uplift on Other Asat

1 April Farvalue  index-linked Foreign non-cash 31 March

2013 Cash flow adjustments debt  exchange movements 2014

fm fm £m fm fm £m fm

Cash and cash equivalents 4036 (278 6) - - (18) - 1232
Bank overdrafts C4) G4 - - - - -
Net cash and cash equivalents 4032 (278 2) - - (18} - 123.2
Banrk loans (758 7) 1699 - 61 - - (594.9)
Other loans (3.8409) 19 219 (308} 242 (23) (3,826.0)
Finance leases (201 6) 04 - - - - (201 2)
Cross currency swaps 1007 - (486) - - 07 514
Net debt (4,297 3) (106 0) (267) (369) 224 (30) (44475)

41 Contingent Liabilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

Group undertakings have entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liability 1s expected to arise In

respect of either bonds or guarantees

The group has during the current year given certain modried and lower guarantees in respect of the borrowings of its associate,
Servizio Idnco Integrato S ¢ p a The guarantees are now limited to €5 1 milhion (2013 €11 2 millon) The group does not expect any

liabilities that are not prowided for n these financial statements to anse fror these arrangements

b} Disposal of subsidiaries

The group has given certain guarantees and indemnities in relation to disposals of businesses

On 1 Aprit 2010 the Commercial Court in Belgium rendered judgrent in favour of the group in relation to a claim from Veolia
Propreté S A (Vealia'} ansing from the sale of Biffa Belgium to Veolian 2006 The judgment declared all of Veolia's claims to be
unfounded Veolia’s appeal aganst this decision was rejected by the Court in a judgment delivered on 16 Apnl 2014

The group 15 not aware of any other liability that 1s ikely to result from these guarantees ond indemmnities that has not been provided

for in these financial statements

42 Service concession arrangements

The group’s contract to provide water and waste water services to the Ministry of Defence (MoD} is a service concession
arrangement under the definition set cut In IFRIC 12 The group acts as the service provider under the MoD Project Aquatrine
Package C - a 25 year contract spanning 1,295 sites across England covering the Eastern sea border and from Lancashire in the

Nerth West to West Sussex on the South coast

Under the contract the group maintains and upgrades the MoD Infrastructure assets and provides operating services for water and
waste water Both the operating services and mantenance and upgrade services are charged under a volumetnc tanft, along with
standard charges, which are adjusted with inftation as agreed in the contract

Since the group has an unconditional night to receive cash in exchange for the mantenance and upgrade services, the amounts
recewvable are recognised as ¢ financial asset within prepayments and accrued income At 31 March 2014 the amounts receivable

were £24 8 million (2013 £26 8 million)

There have been no significant changes to the arrangerment during the year
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43 Financial and other commitments
a) Investment expenditure commitments

2014 2013
£fm fm
Contracted for but not provided In the financigl statements 158.5 2249

In addition to these contractual commutments, Severn Trent Water Limited has longer term expenditure plans which include
Investments to achieve improvements in performance mandated by the Director General of Water Services (Ofwat) and to provide
far growth in demand for water and sewerage services

b) Leasing commitments

At the balance sheet date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum operating tease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2014 2013

£m fm

Within 1 year 34 &7
1-5 years ) 72 109
After more than 5 years 59 70
165 226

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and equipment

44 Post balance sheet events
Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dvidend of 48 24 pence per share Further detalls of this are
shown in note 14

45 Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not included in this note Transactions between the group and its associates and joint ventures are disclosed below

a) Trading transactions

Amounts due from

Sale of serwices related parties

2014 2013 2014 2013

£m £m Em fm

SII 5.8 69 171 164

The related parties are assoaiates and joint ventures in which the group has a participating interest The retirement benefit schermes
operated by the group are considered to be related parties Detatls of transactions and balances with the retirement benefit
schemes are disclesed in note 30

b) Remuneration of key mansgement personnel
Key management personnel compnse the members of STEC dunng the year

The remuneration of the directors is Included within the amounts disclosed below Further information about the remuneration of
mdmdual directors 15 provided in the audited part of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 67 to 74

2014 2013

£m fm

Short terrm employee benefits 6.3 60
Post employment benefits 0.4 01
Share based payments 14 10
81 71
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46 Subsidiary undertakings
Principal subsidiary undertakings

Details of the pnncipal operating subsidianes os at 28 May 2014 are given below A complete list of subsidiary undertakings 1s
availobte on request to the company and will be filed with the next Annual Return

Country of incorporation and main operation is Great Btain and registration is in England and Wales unless otherwise stated
All subsidiary undertakings are wholly owned unless otherwise indicated All shareholdings are in ordinary shares

All subsidiary undertakings have been included in the consolidation

Proportion of
Country of ownership
Name incorporation  Principal actraty interest
Derwent Insurance Limited Gibraltar Prowision of insurance services to other group comparies 100%
Severn Trent Services UK Limited Great Britain ~ Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure 100%
Severn Trent Senvices Defence Lirmited Great Britan  Prowision of water and sewerage services to MoD 100%
Severn Trent Environmental Services Inc ~ USA Operation of water and sewerage infrastructure 100%
Severn Trent Select Limited Great Britain ~ Provision of licensed water and sewerage services 100%
Severn Trent Services Limited Great Brtaun  Distnbution of water purification products 100%
Severn Trent Water Limited Great Britain  Prowision of regulated water and sewerage services 100%
Severn Trent Water Punfication Inc USA Manufacture and distrbution of water punfication products 100%
Subsidiary cudit exemptions

Severn Trent Pic has issued guarantees over the liabilities of the following companies at 31 March 2014 under section 479C
of Companves Act 2006 and therefore auditors have not been appointed for these entities

Cormnpany number
Crty Anatytical Services Lirruted 2050581
East Worcester Waoter Limited 2757948
Gunthorpe Fields Lirnited 4240764
Severn Trent (W&S) Limited 3995023
Severn Trent Carsington Limited 7570384
Severn Trent Corporate Holdings Limited 4395566
Severn Trent Dato Portal Lirmited 8181048
Severn Trent Draycote Limited 7681784
Severn Trent Finance Holdings Limited 6044159
Severn Trent Finance Limited 6294618
Severn Trent Financing and Investments Lirmited 6312635
Severn Trent Holdings Limited 5656363
Severn Trent Investrment Holdings Lirmited 7560050
Severn Trent Overseas Hotdings Lirmited 2455508
Severn Trent Power Generation Limited 2651131
Severn Trent Property Solutions Limited 8181033
Severn Trent Services Holdings Limited 4395572
Severn Trent Services International (Overseas Holdings) Limsted 3125131
Severn Trent Services Punfication Linited 2409826
Severn Trent Systems Limited 2394552
Severn Trent Utility Services Limited 4125386
Severn Trent Wind Power Lirmited 7742177
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2013
2014 Restated
£fm £m
Profit/{loss) for the year 310.7 638
Other cornprehensive Income
Iterns that will not be reclassified 1o the ncome statement
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate {0.5) {02)
(05) {02)
Items thaot may be reclassified to the ncome statement
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement in the year 2.7 25
Deferred tax on transfers to incorme staterment {05) (06}
2.2 19
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year 1.7 17
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 3124 (51)
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2014 2013
Note fm Em
Non-current assets
Intangible fixed assets 0.2 02
Tangibte fixed assets 3 0.4 06
Investments in subsidiaries 4 37627 36416
Denvative financial instruments 26 158
3,765.9 3,658 72
Current assets
Debtors 5 250 426
Denvative financial instruments 36 01
Cash at bank and in hand 259 30
54.5 457
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 6 (2171) (185 7}
Net current liabilities (162.6) (1400}
Total assets less current licbilities 3,603.3 35182
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year 7 (113.8) (163 8)
Net assets 3,489.5 3,354 4
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 9 2339 2333
Share prermium account 10 94.2 897
Other reserves 11 156.5 154 4
Retained earmings 3,004.9 28770
Total copital and reserves 3,489.5 3,354 4

Signed on behalf of the board who approved the accounts on 28 May 2014

Andrew Duff Michael McKeon
Chaurman Finance Director

Company number 02366619 l 2

.-
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Share Share Other Retained
caprtal premium reserves eamings Total
£m £m £m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 2326 838 1524 32000 36688

Loss for the penod - - - 68) (68)
Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the iIncome statement - - 26 - 26

Deferred tax on transfers to the incorne staternent - - {06) - @6
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - {02) (©2)
Total comprehensive loss far the peried - - 20 (70) (50)
Share options and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares 1ssued 07 59 - - 66

- value of employees’ services - - - 60 60

Dwvidends paid - - - (3220) (322
At 31 March 2013 2333 897 1544 28770 33544

Profit for the penod - - - 3107 3107

Amounts on cash flow hedges transferred to the ncome statement - - 26 - 26

Deferred tax on transfers to the income staternent - - ©5) - {05)
Deferred tax ansing from rate change - - - {05) (05}
Total comprehensive income for the pernod - - 21 3102 3123

Share options and LTIPs

- proceeds from shares 1ssued 06 45 - - 51

- value of employees’ senices - - - 30 30

Dwidends paid - - - (185 3) {185 3)
At 31 March 2014 2339 94.2 1565 3,0069 34895

In previous years £1,221 2 million of the compary’s retained profit arose as a result of group restructunng exercises, and 1s not

considered likely to be distnbutable
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For the year ended 31 March 2014

1 Accounting policies
a) Accounting convention

The financial staterments have been prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of
certain financiat assets and liabilities (including denvative
instruments) at fair value, and in accordance with applicable
United Kingdom Accounting Standards and comply with the
requirements of the United Kingdom Comparues Act 2006 (‘the
Act’} The pnncipal accounting policies, which have been applied
consistently in the current and preceding year are set out below

b) Basis of preparation

The company has elected to adopt early the new accounting
frarmework 1ssued by the Finanaal Reporting Councit

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under
Financial Reporting Standard 100 {FRS 100} Accordingly, in the
year ended 31 March 2014, the company has adopted FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and has ceased to apply all

UK Accounting Standards issued prior to FRS 100 Therefore the
recognition and rmeasurernent requirements of EU-adopted IFRS
have been applied, with amendments where necessary in order
to comply with Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-
sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Requlations
2008 (SI 2008/410) as these are Companies Act 2006 accounts

As perritted by FRS 101, the company has taken advantage
of the disdosure exemptions avalable under that standard

in relation to share based payrments, finanaal instruments,
capital management, presentation of comparative information
in respect of certain assets, standards not yet effective,
impaiment of assets and related party transactions

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the group
financial staterments

As permitted by section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006, no
profit or loss account or cash flow staternent 1s presented
for thrs company The profit for the year 1s disdosed in the
staterment of comprehensive income

Severn Trent Plc is a partner in Severn Trent Limited Partnership
{'the partnership’), which is registered in Scotland As the
partrership 1s ncluded in the Severn Trent Plc consolidated
accounts, the company has taken advantage of the exemption
conferred by Regulation 7 of The Partnershup {Accounts)
Regulations 2008 from the requirements of Regulations 4 to 6

¢) First ime adoption of FRS 101

The company’s date of transition to FRS 101 15 1 Apnl 2012 and
all comparative Information in the financial staterments has
been restated to reflect the company’s adeption of FRS 101,
except where otherwise required or permitted by paragraphs

6 to 33 of International Financial Reporting Standard 1 - ‘First
Tirne Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’
{IFRS 1) Details of this transition are givenin note 18

The group adopted IFRS for the first ime m its consohdated
financial stotements in the yeor ended 31 March 2006

In accordance with IFRS 1, the company has measured its
assets and liabilities at the carmeng amounts that would be
included in the consclidated financial staterments of the group

d) Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are caprialised at cost
and are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition
Following imitial recognition, the historical cost model 1s applied
tointangible assets

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their
estimated useful economic lives as follows

Years

Software 3-10

Amortisation charged on assets with finite bves is taken to the
income statement through operating costs

Intangible assets are reviewed for imparment where indicators
of mpairment exist

e) Tangble fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are Included at cost less accumulated
depreciation Freehold land s not depreciated Other assets
are depreciated on a straight line basis over therr estrnated
economic lives, which are principally as follows

Years
Buldings 60
Office fixtures and equiprment 3-20

f) Impairrment of fixed assets and investments

If the recoverable armount of a fixed asset or investment 1s
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset 1s reduced to its recoverable amount.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the company estimates the
recoverable arnount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of
fair vatue less costs to sell or estimated value in use at the date
the impairment review 1s undertaken Fair value less costs to sell
represents the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in
an armm's length transaction between knowledgeable and willing
third parties, less costs of disposal Velue in use represents the
present value of future cash flows expected to be denved from
a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market assessments of the cost of
copital of the cash-generating unit or asset.

The discount rate used 1s based on the estimated cost of capital
of the asset or cash-generating unit.

Imparments are recogrised immediately in the profit and

. loss account
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Compony financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

1 Accounting policies {(continued)
g) Financial instruments

1} Financial assets
Financial ossets are classified into the following categories

» atfar value through profit or loss,

+ held to matunty mvestments,

- gvaillable for sale finanaial assets,

* loans and recevables, and

- denvatives designated as hedging instrurnents

Financiol assets at fair value through profit or loss

Afinanoial asset is classified ot farr vatue through profit or loss

If it 1s so designated or if it is classified as ‘held for trading’
Denvative financial assets that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments are required to be classified as ‘held

for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury Policy,
described in the Financial review on page 36, 1s that the group
does not hold or issue dervative financig! iInstruments for
trading Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

are stated ot farr value, with any gains or losses ansing on
remeasurement being recogrused in the profit and loss account
Farr value 1s determined using the methodology described In
note 36 to the group’s finencal statements

Held to matunty irvestmerits

Where the company has the ability and intent to hold an
investment to matunty the financial asset is dassified as held to
matunty Such financial assets are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate rmethod, with any gains or tosses
being recogrised in the profit ond loss account

Available for sale financial assets

After nitial recognition at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration paid), Investrments which are daossified as
available for sale are measured at far value, with gains or losses
recogrised in equity When an available for sale investment 1s
disposed of or impaired, the goin or loss previously recogrised i
equity 1s taken to the profit and loss account Where there s no
active market in the iInvestments and the farr value cannot be
measured rebably, the investrments are held at cost

Loans and receivables

Trade recevables, loans and other recenvables that have fixed
or determmable payments and thot are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and recevables Such assets

are measured at far value on intial recognition and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
Interest rate method unless there 1s objective evidence that

an asset 15 ’mparred, when 1t 1s written down to its recoverable
amount and the rrecoverable ormount 1s recogmsed as

an expense

Denvaties designated as hedging instruments

The farr vatue of dervative financial assets that are designated
as hedging instrurnents is determined using the methodology
included in note 36 of the group financial staterments

Hedge accounting 1s described below

#  Finoncial liobilities
Financial labilities are classified as ether

- at farr value through profit or loss, or
« other financial Liabilities, or
+ dervatives designated as hedging instruments

Financial liobiitres at fair value through profit or toss

A financial liability s clossified at for value through profit or
loss if it 1s so designated or If it1s classified as ‘held for trading’
Dervative finanaal labilities that are not designated and
effective as hedging instruments are required to be classified
as ‘held for trading’ by IAS 39 However, the group’s Treasury
Policy, descnibed in the Financral review on page 36, is that the
group dees not hold or 1ssue dervative financial instruments
for trading Financial labiities at fair value through profit or
toss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeosurement baing recogrised n the profit ond toss account
Far value s determined using the methodoiogy described In
note 36 n the group finanoal statements

Other financial trabilities

Other financial iablities, including borrowings, are initially
recognised at farr value less transaction costs After initial
recognition, other financial kabilities are subsequently rmeasured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Denvatives designated as hedging instruments

The fair value of dervative financial lobilities that are designated
as hedging instruments 1s deterrmined using the methodology
included in note 36 of the group financial statemnents

Hedge accounting Is described below

) Hedge accounting

The company uses denvative financial instruments such as
cross currency swaps, forward currency contracts and interast
rate swaps to hedge its nsks associoted with foreign currency
and interest rate fluctuations Such denvative instruments are
recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting
policies described above

At the inception of the hedge relationship the
company documents

- the relotionship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged itemn,

its nsk management objectives and strategy for undertaking
hedge transactions, ond

whether the hedging instrument 1s highly effectve In
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows {as appropnate)
of the hedged tem

The company continues to test and docurnent the effectiveness
of the hedge on an ongoing basis

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument
expires, is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting

Farr value hedges

Where a loan or borrowing 1S in a fair value hedging relationship
It 1s remeasured for changes in farr value of the hedged nskat
the balance sheet date, with gains or losses being recogrised in
the profit and loss account
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial staterments

1 Accounting policies (continued)
g) Finenaal mstruments (continued)

) Hedge accounting (continued)

When hedge accounting 15 discontinued the fair value
adjustment to the carmying amount of the hedged item ansing
from the hedged nsk is amortised to the profit and loss account
from that date

Dervatives designated as cash flow hedges

The fair value of denvative financiol labilities that are designated
as hedging instruments 1s determined using the methodology
included in note 36 of the group finoncial staternents

Hedge accounting is described below

Cash flow hedges

The portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
15 determined to be an effective hedge 15 recogrised directly In
equity and the ineffective portton in the profit and loss account
The gains or losses deferred in equity in this way are recycled
through the profit and loss occount in the same period inwhich
the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment 1
recognised n the profit and loss account.

When hedge accounting is discontinued any cumulative gain
or loss on the hedgmng instrument recognised in equity 1s kept In
equity untit the forecast transaction occurs, or transferred to the
profit and loss account If the forecast transacton is no longer
expected to occur

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Where forward currency contracts and foreign currency
borrowings are used to hedge net nvestments in foreign
currency denominated operations, to the extent that they
are designated and effective as net investment hedges,
they are matched in equity against changes i value of the
reloted ossets Any ineffectiveness 1s taken to the profit and
loss account.

(v} Embedded dervatives

Derwvatives embedded in other financial instruments or other
host contracts are treated as separate dervatives when therr

nsks and characterstics are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract 1s not camed at fair value,
with gains and losses reported in the profit and loss account

h) Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are held at
historical cost.

After initial recognitron at cost (being the fair value of the
consideration paid), nvestments which are clossified as held
for trading or avaltable for sale are measured at far value,

with gains or losses recognised in profit and loss or equity
respectvely When an availlable for sale investrment is disposed
of or imparred, the gain or loss previously recognised In reserves
15 taken to the profit and toss occount

1) Share based payments

The company operates a number of equity settled share
based compensation plans for employees The farr value of
the employee serices receved In exchange for the grant 1s
recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant

The farr value of employee services 1s determined by reference
to the far value of the owards granted calculated using a pnaing
miodel, excluding the impact of any non-market conditions

The number of awards expected to vest tokes into account
non-market vesting conditions including, where appropnate,
continuing emnployment by the group The charge 1s adjusted

to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of failing to meet a
non-market based condition

Where the company grants awards to employees of subsidiary
cormpanies, the company records the far value of the awards as
an Increase inits Investment in the subsidiary The investment 1s
adjusted to reflect shares that do not vest as a result of falling to
meet a non-market based condition

J} Retirement benefits

The company participates in the Severn Trent group’s defined
benefit pension scheme As there 1s no contractual agreement,
or stated policy, for charging the net defined benefit cost to

the participating group companies, the company recognises a
charge in the profit and loss account equat to the contributions
payable in the year The net defined benefit cost 1s recognised by
the sponsoring employer, Severn Trent Water Lirnited

The company also participates in the Severn Trent group’s
defined contribution pension scheme Contributions are charged
to the profit and loss account in the year in which they fall due

k) Taxation

Current tax payable 1s based on taxable profit for the year
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
profit and loss account because 1t excludes items of ncome
and expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and
It further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
The company’s licbility for current tax 1s calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substontively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred taxation s provided in full, using the liablity method,
on taxable temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and ther carmying amounts in the financial
statements A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avallable
in the future to utlise it Deferred taxation 1s measured on a non-
discounted basis using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
that are expected te apply when the related deferred tax asset
is realised or the deferred tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there s a
legally enforceable nght to set off current tax ossets against
current tax labilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority ond the cormpany intends

. to settle s current tax assets and labilities on a net basis
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

2 Intangible fixed assets

Total
£fm
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2013 08
Additions 01
At 31 March 2014 09
Amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2013 06)
At 31 March 2014 {0 6)
Net book value
At 31 March 2014 03
At 31 March 2013 02
All intangibles assets are purchased software
3 Tangble fixed assets
Office
Landand foxtures and
buildings  equipment Total
£m £fm fm
Cost
As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 0.1 0.6 07
Depreciation
Asat 1 Apnl 2013 - 01 01
Charge for the year - {02) {02)
As at 31 March 2014 - (0.3) {0.3)
Net book value
As at 31 March 2014 0.1 03 0.4
As at 31 March 2013 01 05 06
4 Investments
Subsidiary undertakings
Shares Loans Total
£m £m £m
Asat1 Apnl 2013 3,3105 3311 3,6416
Addmions/loans advanced 31 1180 1211
As at 31 March 2014 3,3136 469.1 37627

Detalls of prncipal subsidiaries of the company are given in note 46 of the group financiol staternents
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

5 Debtors
2014 2013
£m fm
Amounts owed by group undertakings 159.2 45
Deferred tax 49 82
Corporation tax recoverable - 295
Other debtors 03 -
Prepayments and accrued income 0.6 G4
250 426
An anatysis of the moverments in the major deferred tax liabiities and assets recognised by the company 1s set out below
Accelerated Fair value of
tax financial
depreciation instruments Other Total
£fm £m £m £m
At1 Apnl 2012 02 92 06 100
Charge to profit and loss account {01) (09) 02 (08
Charge to profit and loss account ansing from rate change - (02} - 02)
Charge to other comprehensive iIncome - (06) - (06)
Charge to other comprehensive income arising from rate change - (02} - (02)
At 1 Apnl 2013 01 73 08 82
Charge to profit and loss account - (22) 05 17
Charge to profit and loss account ansing from rate change - (05) o {06)
Charge to other comprehensive income - (05) - {05)
Charge to other comprehensive income arising from rate change - {05) - {05}
At 31 March 2014 0.1 3.6 1.2 4.9
6 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2014 2013
£m fm
Bank overdrafts 40 196
Cther loans 26.4 -
Borrowings {note 8} 304 196
Derivative financial instruments 02 02
Trade credrtors 0.4 06
Amounts due to group undertakings 146.2 1552
Other creditors 101 60
Taxation and sogial securnty 28.7 -
Accrued expenses 1.1 41
217.1 1857
7 Credtors amounts falling due after more than one year
2014 2013
£fm fm
Borrowings - other loans (note B) 95.5 1291
Amounts due to group undertakings - 30
Derwvative fimancial instrurments 18.3 317
113.8 1638
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

8 Borrowings

2014 2013
£m £m
Borrowings due within 1 year 304 196

Borrowings due after moere than 1 year
Between 1-2 years 178 323
Between 2-5 years - 216
After more than 5 years 77.7 752
Total borrowings due after 1 year 955 1291
125.9 1487

Borrowings repayoble ofter more than five years compnises the company's RPI inked retod bonds rssued in July 2012 The bonds
carry a coupon of 1 3% on the pnncipal amount which is uplifted by RPI The bonds are repayable in Juty 2022
The company’s borrowings are denominated in sterting, after taking account of cross currency swaps the company has entered into
There 1s no significant difference between the book value and the fair value of the company’s borrowings Farr values are bosed on
the expected future cash flows discounted using zero coupon forward interest rates related to the expected timing of payments

At the balance sheet date the company had committed undrawn borrowing faclities expiring as follows

2014 2013
£m fm
Within 1 year - _
1-2 years - -
2-5 years 2000 2000
2000 2000
This facility 1s shared with Severn Trent Water Limited
9 Share capital
2014 2013
fm fm
Total issued and fully paid share caprtal
238,942,647 ordinary shares of 97'/1sp (2013 238,365,734) 2339 2333
Changes in share capital were as follows
Number £m
Ordinary shares of 97Y/1sp
At1Apnl 2013 238,365,734 2333
Shares issued under the group’s Employee Sharesave Scheme 576,913 06
At 31 March 2014 238,942,647 2339
10 Share premium
2014 2013
£m £m
At 1 April 89.7 838
Share premium arising on issue of shares for Employee Sharesave Scheme 45 59
At 31 March 94.2 897
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Company financial statements Notes to the company financial statements

11 Other reserves

Capital
redemption Hedging

reserve reserve Total

£m £m £m

At 1 Apnl 2012 1561 37 1524
Total comprehensive income for the year - 20 20
At1 Aprl 2013 1561 (17) 154 4
Total comprehensive ncorme for the year - 21 21
At 31 March 2014 156.1 0.4 156.5

The capital redemption reserve arose on the redemption of B shares

The hedging reserve arises from gains or losses on Interest rate swaps taken directly to equity under the hedge accounting

provisions of JAS 3% and the transition rules of IFRS 1

12 Share based payments

For detaits of employee share schemes and options granted over the shares of the company, see note 38 of the group financial

staterents Detalls of options exercised and awards vesting dunng the year and of the weighted average share price of the

company dunng the year are also disclosed in that note

13 Pensions

The group operates group defined benefit pension schernes, of which some employees of the company are members There is

no contractual agreement for charging the net defined benefit cost of these schernes between the companies that participate in
the schermes As a result, the net defined benefit cost of the scheme 1s recognised in the financial staterents of the sponsonng
employer, Severn Trent Water Limited The cost of contnbutions to the group schermes amounts to £0 1 miltion (2013 £0 1 million)

There were no amounts outstanding for cantributions to the defined benefit schernes (2013 nil)

Information about the plans as o whole 1s disclosed n note 30 to the group finanaal statements

14 Related party transactions

The retirernent benefit schemes operated by the company are considered to be related parties Detalls of transactions and balances

with the retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 13

15 Contingent habilities
a) Bonds and guarantees

The company has entered into bonds and guarantees in the normal course of business No liabilities are expected to anse in respect

of either the bonds or guarantees

b) Bank offset arrangements

The banking arrangernents of the company operate on a peoled basis with certain of its subsidiary undertakings Under these
arrangements, participating companies guarantee each others’ overdrawn balances to the extent of therr credit balances,

which can be offset aganst balances of participating companies As at 31 March 2014, the company had contingent liabiliies of

£25 9 rillion (2013 £3 QO million)
16 Post balonce sheet events

Following the year end the board of directors has proposed a final dividend of 48 24 pence per share

17 Dividends

For details of the dividends paid In the years ended 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013 see note 14 inthe group

finanoial statements
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18 Transition to FRS 101

This Is the first year that the company has presented its financial statements under FRS 101 The last financial statements prepared
under the previous UK accounting framework were for the year ending 31 March 2013, therefore the date of transition was

1 Apnl 2012

Reconciliation of equity ot 1 Apnl 2012
As previously Effectof  UnderFRS

reported tronsition 101
fm £m £fm
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets - 02 02
Tangible fixed assets 02 02 -
Investments 3,6380 - 3,6380
Dervatve financial instruments 208 - 208
3,6590 - 3,6590
Current assets
Debtors 443 27 470
Dervative financial assets 67 - 67
Cash at bank and n hand 2346 - 2346
2856 27 2883
Creditors arnounts falling due within one year (181 0) 06) {181 6)
Net current liabilities 1046 21 1067
Total assets less current Labilities 3,7636 21 3,7657
Creditors armounts falling due after more than one year {969) - (96 9)
Net assets 3,6667 21 3,6688
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2326 - 2326
Share premiurm 838 - 838
Other reserves 1524 - 152 4
Retamed earnings 3,1979 21 3,2000
Total shareholders’ funds 3,6667 21 3,668 8
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18. Transition to FRS 101 {continued)
Reconciliation of equity at 1 Aprit 2013

As previously Effectof  UnderFRS
reported tronsition 101
Em £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets - 02 02
Tangible fixed assets c8 {02) 06
Investrments 36416 - 36416
Dervative financial assets 158 - 158
3,6582 - 3,6582
Current assets
Debtors 405 21 426
Denvative financial assets 01 - 01
Cash at bank and in hand 30 - 30
436 21 457
Creditors amourts falling due within one year (185 6) 01) (1857)
Net current (labilities)/assets (142 Q) 20 {1400}
Total assets less current labilities 35162 20 35182
Creditors amounts falling due after more than ore year {163 8) - (163 8)
Net assets 33524 20 33544
Capital and reserves
Share capital 2333 - 2333
Share prermium 897 - 897
Cther reserves 154 4 - 154 4
Retained reserves 28750 20 28770
Shareholders’ funds 33524 20 3,354 4

The company 1s included in the consolidated accounts of the Sevem Trent group The Severn Trent group adopted [FRS In its
consolidated financial statements for the first trme in the yeor ended 31 March 2006 In accordance with IFRS 1, the company has

measured its assets and labilities at the carrying amounts that would be mcluded inthe consolidated financial staterments
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Fi
ive year summary
=1
g
m
2013 °
2014  Restated® 2012 2011 2010 ]
Continuing operations £m £m £m £m £m g
Turnover 18567 18316 1,7706 17113 1,7039 g-»
Profit before interest, tax and exceptional tems 516.8 495 4 504 2 5191 5571 §
Net exceptional iterns before tax (44.4) (58) (509) (214) (497) g
Net interest payable before gairs/{losses) on financial nstrurments g
and exceptional finance costs (247.9) (244 3) (22900 (2306) (218 8) 3
Gains/({losses) on finanaal instruments 58.0 (453) (677) (14 2) 457 =
Resutts of asseciates and joint ventures 02 02 01 Q1 Q1 -
Profit on ordinary actmties before taxation 2827 2002 1567 2530 3344 g
Current taxation on profit on ordinary activities {56.5) (279) {(605) (321) (407) §
Deferred taxation (215) 82 782 536 “2 3
Exceptional tax 2302 384 - - - 5
Profit on ordinary actmities ofter taxation 4349 2189 174 4 2745 2515 E
Profit for the year 4349 2189 174 4 2745 2525 g
Net assets employed 3
Fixed assets 7,1238 65061 67436 66353 65161 &
Other net liabilities excluding net debt, retirement benefit obligation, o
provisions and deferred tax (348.2) (273 8) (341 3) (320 4) (317 2) z
Dernvative financial instrurnents? {197.1) {279 8) (261 8) (90 5) (1253} 5
Retirement benefit obligation (348.3) (3837) (345 8) (292 1) (3549) g
Provisions for habilittes and charges and deferred tax {692.6) (827 5) (B45 5) (857 4) {1,0103) g.
55376 51413 49492 49749 47084 =
Financed by
Called up share capital 2339 2333 2326 2322 2316
Reserves 843.7 5999 7409 8676 7091
Total shareholders’ funds 1,077.6 8332 9735 1,099 8 9407
Non-controllng interests 125 108 79 63 63
Net debt? L4475 42973 3,967 8 3,868 8 3,7614
55376 51413 49492 49749 47084
Statistics
Earnings per share {continuing) - pence 1821 957 725 1152 1056
Adjusted earmings per share - pence 88.4 989 889 1056 1228
Dwidends per share (excluding special dividend} - pence 80.4 758 701 651 723
Dwidend cover (before exceptional items and deferred tax) 11 13 13 16 17
Geanng 80.3% 83 6% 802% 778% 799%
Ordinary share price at 31 March - pence 1,823.0 1,7120 1,544 0 14460 1,1950
Average number of employees
- Severn Trent Water 5,634 5,458 5162 5,237 5,686
- Other 2,358 2,763 2,889 3,045 3,102

1 Excludes instruments hedging forexgn curmency debt
2 Indudes instruments hedging foreign currency debt
3 Restuted for [AS 19R {see note 3}

Geanng has been calculated as net debt dvided by the sum of equity and net debt
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Information for shareholders

Severn Trent shareholder helpline

The company’s registrar 1s Equinit Lirmited Equinit’'s main
responsibilities include maintaining the shareholder register and
making dvidend payrments

If you have any quenes relating to your Severn Trent Plc
shareholding you should contact Equinit

Registrar contact details

Online www shareview co uk from here, you will be able
to securely email Equinitt with your query

Telephone 0871 384 2967*
Overseas enquiries +44 121 415 7044
Text phone (0871 384 2255*

By post Equiniti, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,
Woest Sussex, BN9S 6DA

Corporate website
Shareholders are encouraged to wisit our website
www severntrent.com which provides

« company news and inforanation,

» links to our operational businesses’ websites,

- details of cur governance arrangements,

» details of our strategy,

« details of the group’s business models and business plan, and
- the compary’s approach to operating responsibly

There 15 also a dedicated Investors’ section on the website which
contains up to date information for shareholders ncluding

- comprehensive share price nformation,

- financial results,

= ¢ history of dvidend payment dates and amounts, and

= qccess to current and histoncal shareholder docurments such
as the annual report and accounts

Electronic communications

By regrstenng to recenve shareholder documentation from
Severn Trent Pic electrorucally shareholders can benefit from
being able to

= view the annual report ond accounts on the day it
is published,

- receve an email alert when shareholder documents
are avalable,

= cast ther AGM vote electronically, and

« manage their shareholding quickly and securely online,
through Shareview

Electronic shareholder communications alsc enable the
company to reduce its impact on the environment and
benefit from savings associated with reduced printing ond
rmailing costs

For further information and to register for electronic shareholder
communications visit www shareview co uk

Dividend payments
Bank mandates

Dividends can be paid automatically into your bank or bulding
society account

The benefits of domng ths are that you will

+ receve cleared funds in your bank account on the
payment date,

« avod postal delays, and

+ remove the nsk of your cheques getting lost in the post

To take advantage of this service or for further detalls contact
Equiniti or visit www shareview co uk

Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIF)

The DRIP gives shareholders the option of using thetr dvidend
payments to buy more Severn Trent Pic shares instead of
receming cash If you would like to participate in the DRIP,
please request a dividend reinvestment plan mandate from
Equinttt Financial Services Linited

Telephone 0871 384 2268*
Telephone nurnber from outside the UK +44 121 415 7173

Buying and selling shares in the UK

If you wish to buy or sell certificated Severn Trent Plc shares,
you will need to use a stockbroker or high street bank which
trades on the London Stock Exchange There are alse many
telephone and online services avallable to you If you are selling,
you will need to present your share certificate at the time of
sale Details of low cost dealing services may be obtained from
www shareview co uk or 0845 603 7037+

Share price information

Shareholders can find share price information on our website
and in most national newspapers For a real time buying or
selling price, you should contact a stockbroker

Shareholder security

Fraudsters use persuasive and high-pressure tactics to lure
Investors into scams They may offer to sell shares that tum out
to be worthless or non-existent, or to buy shares at an inflated
price n return for an upfront payrment While high profits are
promised, f you buy or sell shares in this way you will probably
lose your money

How to avoid share fraud

+ Keepinmind that firms authorised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) are unlikely to contact you out of the blue with
an offer to buy or sell shares

- Do not get into o conversation, note the name of the person
and firm contacting you and ther end the call

« Check the Financial Services Register from www fca org uk
to see if the person and firm contacting you is authonsed by
the FCA

= Beware of fraudsters daiming to be from an authorised firm,
copying its website ar giving you false contact details

Colls cost 8 pence per minute plus network extres Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday Lo Frdoy

* Lines are apen Mondoy to Frday, 8 00am to 4 30pm for dealing, ond untit 6 00pm for enguines
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* Use the firm's contact details listed on the Register f you want -~ Amencan Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

to call ¢ back. Severn Trent has o sponsored Level 1 American Deposttary
. Cﬂ“ the FCAon0800 1116768 |f the firm dOES not hCNE contact Rece;pt (ADR) progromme’ for which The Bank of NeW YOrk
details on the Regsster or you are told they ore out of date Mellon acts as Depositary
+ Search the list of unauthonsed firms to avoid at

The Level 1 ADR programme trades on OTCQX which is the

www fca org uk/scams premier tier of the US over-the-counter {OTC) market under

Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthonsed

firm L not have access to the Financial Ombudsman the symbol STRNY {it 1s not listed on a US stock exchange)
rm you wi not have aceess Each ADR represents 1 Severn Trent ordinary share
Service or Financial Services Compensation Schermne

Think about getting independent financial and professional If you have any enquines regarding Severn Trent ADRs please
adwice before you hand over any money contact The Bank of New York Mellon

» Remember, if 1t sounds toc good to be true, it probably 1s By post. The Bank of New York Mellon, PO Box 358516,

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the Pittsburgh, PA 15252 - 8516, U5

share fraud reporting form ot www fca org uk/scams, where you By telephone

can find out more about nvestment scams If calling from within the US (888) 269 2377 (toll-free) .
You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800111 6768 [f calling from outside the US +1 201 680 6825

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should By email shrelations@bnymellon com
contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 Website, www bnymellon corn/shareowner

Unsolicited mail

The company 1 legally obliged to make its share register
avallable to the general public Consequently some shareholders
may receive unsolicted mal If you wish to imit the omount of
unsoliated mail you recesve please contact

The Mailing Preference Service (MPS), Freepost 29 LON20771,
London W1E OZT

Alternatively, register online at www mpsoniine org uk or call the
MPS Registration Lne on 0845 703 4599

Financtal calendar

Ex dvidend date - finat dvidend 18 June 2014
Record date to be eligible for the final dvmdend 20 June 2014
AGM 16 July 2014
Intenrn management statement - Q1 Year ending 31 March 2015 16 July 2014
Final dmidend payment date 25 July 2014
Interim results anncuncerment - Year ending 31 March 2015 25 Novernmber 2014
Ex dividend date - intenm dwvidend 4 December 2014
Record date to be eligible for the intenm dnvidend & December 2014
Intenm dividend payment date 9 January 2015

All dates are indicative and may be subject to change

Design and production by Radley Yeldar www rycom

This report has been printed on UPM Fine Cffset certified by the Forest
Stewardship Councll® The paper 1s made at a milt with 1S014001
ervionmentol manogernent system accreditation

This report was produced using the purepnnt® environmentat print
technology, o guoranteed, low carbon, low waste, independently
audited process that reduces the envronmental impact of the printing
process Printed using vegetable ot based inks by a CarbonNeutral®
printer cerbified to 190 14001 ervirenmental management system
and registered to EMAS the Eco Managermnent Audit Scheme
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Registered office
Severn Trent Centre
2 St John’s Street
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